Offering Circular dated 13 December 2019
t

CITIGROUP INC.
(incorporated in Delaware)

and

CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS HOLDINGS INC.
(a corporation duly incorporated and existing under the laws of the state of New York)

and

CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS FUNDING LUXEMBOURG S.C.A.
(incorporated as a corporate partnership limited by shares (société en commandite par actions)
under Luxembourg law, with registered office at 31, Z.A. Bourmicht, L-8070 Bertrange, Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg and registered with the Register of Trade and Companies of Luxembourg
under number B 169.199)

each an issuer under the
Citi U.S.$60,000,000,000 Global Medium Term Note Programme

Notes issued by Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. only will be unconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by
CITIGROUP INC.
(incorporated in Delaware)

Notes issued by Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A. only will be
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by
CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS LIMITED
(incorporated in England and Wales)

Under the Global Medium Term Note Programme (the Programme) described in this Offering
Circular, each of Citigroup Inc., Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. (CGMHI) and Citigroup
Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A. (CGMFL and, together with Citigroup Inc. and CGMHI,
the Issuers and each an Issuer) may from time to time issue notes (Notes), in each case subject to
compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and directives. References herein to the Issuer shall be
construed as whichever of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI or CGMFL is the issuer or proposed issuer of the
relevant Notes. The aggregate principal amount of securities outstanding under the Programme will
not at any time exceed U.S.$60,000,000,000 (or the equivalent in other currencies), subject to any
increase or decrease described herein. This does not affect any Notes issued prior to the date of this
Offering Circular.

This Offering Circular does not comprise a prospectus or a base prospectus for the purposes of
Article 8 of the Prospectus Regulation. When used in this Offering Circular, Prospectus
Regulation means Regulation (EU) 2017/1129. This Offering Circular has been prepared solely
in order to allow Notes to be offered in circumstances which do not impose an obligation on the
relevant Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor
(where the Issuer is CGMFL) or any Dealer (as defined herein) to publish or supplement a
prospectus under the Prospectus Regulation. This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer
or an invitation to the public or any section thereof to subscribe for or to purchase the Notes.

This Offering Circular and any Pricing Supplement may only be used for the purposes for which they
have been published.

This Offering Circular constitutes a prospectus for purposes of Part IV of the Luxembourg Act dated

16 July 2019 relating to prospectuses for securities (the Prospectus Act 2019). Application has been

made for the Notes to be admitted to listing on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
[
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and to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's Euro MTF Market (the Euro MTF). The Euro
MTF is not a regulated market pursuant to the provisions of Directive 2014/65/EU (MiFID).

This Offering Circular has not been approved by and will not be submitted for approval to the
Commission de surveillance du secteur financier of Luxembourg. The Notes may not be offered or sold
to the public in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg (Luxembourg), directly or indirectly, and neither this
Offering Circular nor any other circular, prospectus, form of application, advertisement,
communication or other material may be distributed, or otherwise made available in or from, or
published in, Luxembourg except (i) for the sole purpose of the admission to trading of the Notes on
the Euro MTF and listing of the Notes on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (or any
other stock exchange or market that is not a regulated market for the purposes of MiFID) and in
circumstances which do not constitute an offer of securities to the public pursuant to the Prospectus Act
2019 or (ii) in other circumstances which do not constitute an offer of securities to the public within the
meaning of the Prospectus Act 2019.

The payment and delivery of all amounts due in respect of Notes issued by CGMHI will be
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by Citigroup Inc. (in such capacity, the CGMHI
Guarantor) pursuant to a deed of guarantee dated 25 January 2019 (such deed of guarantee as
amended and/or supplemented and/or replaced from time to time, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee)
executed by the CGMHI Guarantor.

The payment and delivery of all amounts due in respect of Notes issued by CGMFL will be
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by Citigroup Global Markets Limited (CGML) (in such
capacity, the CGMFL Guarantor) pursuant to a deed of guarantee dated 21 December 2015 (such
deed of guarantee as amended and/or supplemented and/or replaced from time to time, the CGMFL
Deed of Guarantee) executed by the CGMFL Guarantor.

Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. will not be guaranteed by any entity.

Each Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor and the CGMFL Guarantor has a right of substitution as set out in
the Terms and Conditions of the Notes set out herein.

Notes may be issued on a continuing basis to Citigroup Global Markets Limited and/or Citigroup
Global Markets Inc. and/or Citigroup Global Markets Europe AG and/or any additional dealer
appointed under the Programme from time to time by the Issuers (each a Dealer and together the
Dealers) which appointment may be for a specific issue or on an ongoing basis. In relation to each
issue of Notes, the Dealer(s) will be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement (as defined below).
However, each Issuer reserves the right to sell Notes directly on its own behalf to other entities and to
offer Notes in specified jurisdictions directly to the public through distributors, in accordance with all
applicable rules and regulations. Notes may be resold at prevailing market prices, or at prices related
thereto, at the time of such resale, as determined by the Issuer or the relevant Dealer. Notes may also
be sold by the Issuer through the Dealer(s), acting as agent of the Issuer.

Investing in the Notes involves certain risks, and you should fully understand these before you invest.
See "Risk Factors" on pages 10 to 77 of this Offering Circular.

Pursuant to this Offering Circular, Notes may be issued whose return (in respect of any interest payable
on such Notes and/or their redemption amount) is linked to one or more security indices (Security
Index Linked Notes) or one or more inflation indices (Inflation Index Linked Notes) or one or more
commodity indices (Commodity Index Linked Notes) or one or more commodities (Commodity
Linked Notes) or one or more shares (Share Linked Notes) or one or more depositary receipts
(Depositary Receipt Linked Notes) or one or more exchange traded fund (ETF) shares (ETF Linked
Notes) or one or more mutual funds (Mutual Fund Linked Notes) or one or more currency exchange
rates (FX Rate Linked Notes) or one or more warrants (Warrant Linked Notes) or one or more
proprietary indices (Proprietary Index Linked Notes) or one or more Dividend Futures Contracts
(Dividend Futures Contract Linked Notes) or one or more rates (Rate Linked Notes), together,
Underlying Linked Notes, as more fully described herein.

Notes may provide that settlement will be by way of cash settlement (Cash Settled Notes) or physical
delivery (Physical Delivery Notes) as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
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The Issuer may from time to time issue Notes that are titled "Certificates" and, in such circumstances,
the terms "Note(s)" and "Noteholder(s)" as used herein shall be construed to be to "Certificate(s)" and
"Certificateholder(s)" and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

Notes are issued in Series (as defined herein) and each Series may comprise one or more Tranches (as
defined herein) of Notes. Each Tranche is the subject of a final terms document (the Pricing
Supplement and references to the applicable Pricing Supplement shall be construed accordingly).
The Pricing Supplement will specify with respect to the issue of Notes to which it relates, inter alia, the
specific designation of the Notes, the aggregate principal amount and type of the Notes, the date of
issue of the Notes, the issue price, the relevant interest provisions (if any), and the redemption amount
of the Notes and, as relevant, the underlying security, share, bond, asset, index, commaodity, rate,
contract, currency or other item(s) (each, an Underlying) to which the Notes relate and certain other
terms relating to the offering and sale of such Notes. The applicable Pricing Supplement supplements
the Terms and Conditions of the relevant Notes and may specify other terms and conditions which
shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the Terms and Conditions of the
relevant Notes, supplement, replace and/or modify such Terms and Conditions. The relevant Pricing
Supplement will specify whether the Notes are to be listed and admitted to trading on the Euro MTF
and/or another stock exchange or market which is not a regulated market for the purposes of MiFID
agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) or will be unlisted.

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes will be as set out in "General Conditions of the Notes™ and in
the relevant Schedule(s) thereto.

AN ISSUE OF NOTES MAY BE OF A SPECIALIST NATURE AND SHOULD ONLY BE
BOUGHT AND TRADED BY INVESTORS WHO ARE PARTICULARLY
KNOWLEDGEABLE IN INVESTMENT MATTERS. PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS OF
NOTES SHOULD ENSURE THAT THEY UNDERSTAND THE NATURE OF THE
RELEVANT NOTES AND THE EXTENT OF THEIR EXPOSURE TO RISKS AND THAT
THEY CONSIDER THE SUITABILITY OF THE RELEVANT NOTES AS AN INVESTMENT
IN LIGHT OF THEIR OWN CIRCUMSTANCES AND FINANCIAL CONDITION. IT IS THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS TO ENSURE THAT THEY HAVE
SUFFICIENT KNOWLEDGE, EXPERIENCE AND PROFESSIONAL ADVICE TO MAKE
THEIR OWN LEGAL, FINANCIAL, TAX, ACCOUNTING AND OTHER BUSINESS
EVALUATION OF THE MERITS AND RISKS OF INVESTING IN THE NOTES AND ARE
NOT RELYING ON THE ADVICE OF THE ISSUER, THE CGMHI GUARANTOR, THE
CGMFL GUARANTOR OR ANY DEALER IN THIS REGARD. NOTES MAY INVOLVE A
HIGH DEGREE OF RISK, INCLUDING THE PRINCIPAL NOT BEING PROTECTED.
POTENTIAL INVESTORS MAY SUSTAIN A LOSS OF ALL OR PART OF THEIR
INVESTMENT IN THE NOTES. SEE "RISK FACTORS" SET OUT HEREIN.

Prospective investors should note that Events of Default in respect of the CGMHI Guarantor are
limited to the events stated in Conditions 9(a)(i) and 9(a)(ii) of the General Conditions of the
Notes relating to default in payment of principal or interest in respect of the Notes but will not
include the insolvency or bankruptcy of the CGMHI Guarantor (or any similar event), any other
default of the CGMHI Guarantor or the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee being (or being claimed not
to be) in full force and effect. Therefore, even though the CGMHI Guarantor may be declared
insolvent or have entered into bankruptcy proceedings or disclaimed the CGMHI Deed of
Guarantee, holders of Notes issued by CGMHI will not be able to trigger an Event of Default
under the Notes and thus will not be able to cause the Notes to be immediately due and payable,
and the Notes will not redeem until maturity (unless there has been an Event of Default due to
non-payment of interest or principal or bankruptcy or other default of CGMHI in the
meantime). It is possible that holders may receive a lower return at maturity than if they were
able to accelerate the Notes for immediate repayment in such circumstances.

Subject as provided below in the case of Swedish Notes and Finnish Notes, Notes to be issued
hereunder will be in registered form (Registered Notes) and will be represented by registered note
certificates (Registered Note Certificates), one Registered Note Certificate being issued in respect of
each holder's entire holding of Registered Notes of one Series. Registered Notes which are held in
Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (Euroclear) and Clearstream Banking S.A. (Clearstream, Luxembourg) or
the Depository Trust Company (DTC), as the case may be, will be represented by a global Registered
Note Certificate (a Global Registered Note Certificate) registered in the name of a nominee for either

iii
0012230-0017435 ICM:34056498.7B



Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC, as the case may be, and the Global Registered Note
Certificate will be delivered to the appropriate depositary, common safekeeper or custodian, as the case
may be. Interests in a Global Registered Note Certificate will be exchangeable for definitive
Registered Note Certificates as described under "Form of the Notes" set out herein.

In addition, indirect interests in Notes may be delivered, held and settled via the CREST Depository
Interest (CDI) mechanism in Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited (CREST).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Notes issued in accordance with the Swedish Act on central Securities
Depositories and Financial Instruments Accounts (Sw. lag (1998:1479) om vérdepapperscentraler och
kontoforing av financiella instrument) (SFIA Act) (Swedish Notes) will be issued in uncertificated and
dematerialised book-entry form in accordance with the SFIA Act. No global or definitive registered
Swedish Notes will be issued. The Swedish Notes will be transferable only in accordance with the
provisions of the SFIA Act, other applicable Swedish legislation and the rules and regulations
applicable to, and/or issued by, Euroclear Sweden AB (Euroclear Sweden).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Notes issued in accordance with the Finnish Act on the Book-Entry
System and Clearing (Fin. laki arvo-osuusjarjestelméasta ja selvitystoiminnasta (348/2017, as
amended)) and with the Finnish Act on the Book-Entry Accounts (Fin. laki arvo-osuustileista
(827/1991, as amended)) (Finnish Notes) will be issued in uncertificated and dematerialised book
entry form in accordance with the Finnish Act on the Book-Entry System and Clearing (Fin. laki
arvo-osuusjarjestelmésta ja selvitystoiminnasta (348/2017, as amended)) and with the Finnish Act on
Book-Entry Accounts (Fin. laki arvo-osuustileistd (827/1991, as amended)). No global or definitive
registered Notes will be issued. The Finnish Notes will be transferable only in accordance with the
legislation, rules and regulations applicable to, and/or issued by, Euroclear Finland Ltd (Euroclear
Finland).

None of the Notes, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee and the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee has been
nor will be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities
Act), or with any securities regulatory authority of any state or other jurisdiction of the United
States. Notes issued by Citigroup Inc., CGMHI or CGMFL may be offered and sold outside of
the United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act
(Regulation S). Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. or CGMHI may be offered and sold within the
United States to ""qualified institutional buyers' (QIBs) in transactions exempt from registration
under the Securities Act in reliance on Rule 144A under the Securities Act (Rule 144A). Notes
may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S.
persons (as defined in Regulation S) other than, in the case of Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. or
CGMHI, to QIBs in reliance on Rule 144A. Notes issued by CGMFL, which are guaranteed by
the CGMFL Guarantor, will not be offered and sold in the United States or to, or for the account
or benefit of, U.S. persons at any time. For a description of certain restrictions on offers, sales
and transfers of Notes, see ""Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions'. Any
purchaser of Notes that is a registered U.S. investment company should consult its own counsel
regarding the applicability of Section 12(d) and Section 17 of the Investment Company Act of
1940 and the rules promulgated thereunder to its purchase of Notes and should reach an
independent conclusion with respect to the issues involved in such purchase.

The Notes, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee, the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee and any Entitlement do not
constitute, and have not been marketed as, contracts of sale of a commodity for future delivery (or
options thereon) subject to the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended (the CEA), and
trading in the Notes has not been approved by the United States Commodity Futures Trading
Commission (the CFTC) pursuant to the CEA.

The Notes may not be offered or sold to, or acquired by, any person that is, or whose purchase
and holding of the Notes is made on behalf of or with ""plan assets™ of, an employee benefit plan
subject to Title I of the U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended
(ERISA), a plan, individual retirement account or other arrangement subject to Section 4975 of
the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code) or an employee benefit plan or
plan subject to any laws, rules or regulations substantially similar to Title I of ERISA or Section
4975 of the Code.
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Agreement and Acknowledgement with Respect to the Exercise of the Bail-in Power in Respect of
Notes Issued by CGMFL

Each Noteholder of Notes issued by CGMFL (CGMFL Notes) (including each holder of a beneficial
interest in such CGMFL Notes) acknowledges, accepts, consents and agrees, notwithstanding any
other term of the CGMFL Notes or any other agreements, arrangements or understandings between
CGMFL and such Noteholder, by its acquisition of such CGMFL Notes, to be bound by the exercise of,
any bail-in power by the relevant resolution authority. See Condition 22 of the General Conditions and
also the risk factor "Risks relating to the exercise of any bail-in power by the relevant resolution
authority in respect of Notes issued by CGMFL and Noteholder agreement to be bound thereby

CREDIT RATINGS

Citigroup Inc. has a long term/short term senior debt rating of BBB+/A-2 by Standard & Poor's
Financial Services LLC (S&P), A3/P-2 by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (Moody's) and A/F1 by
Fitch Ratings, Inc. (Fitch). CGMHI has a long term/short term senior debt rating of BBB+/A-2 by
S&P, A3/P-2 by Moody's and A/F1 by Fitch. CGMFL has a long term/short term senior debt rating of
A+/A-1 by S&P and A/F1 by Fitch. CGML has a long term/short term senior debt rating of A+/A-1 by
S&P, A1/P-1 by Moody's and A/F1 by Fitch. The rating of a certain Tranche of Notes may be specified
in the applicable Pricing Supplement. See "Credit Ratings — Rating Agencies of the Issuers, the
CGMHI Guarantor and the CGMFL Guarantor" in the section "Risk Factors" below as to whether or
not each such credit rating agency is established in the European Union and registered under
Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended) (the CRA Regulation).

The Notes, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee and the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee constitute
unconditional liabilities of the respective issuers. None of the Notes, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee
and the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
any other deposit protection insurance scheme.

An Index of Defined Terms is set out on pages 440 to 447 of this Offering Circular.

Arranger of the Programme
Citigroup

Dealers
Citigroup
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Citigroup Inc. accepts responsibility for the information contained in the Citigroup Inc. Offering
Circular but does not take responsibility for the CGMHI Offering Circular or the CGMFL Offering
Circular. To the best of the knowledge of Citigroup Inc. (having taken all reasonable care to ensure
that such is the case), the information contained in the Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular is in
accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

CGMHI accepts responsibility for the information contained in the CGMHI Offering Circular but does
not take responsibility for the Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular or the CGMFL Offering Circular. To
the best of the knowledge of CGMHI (having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case),
the information contained in the CGMHI Offering Circular is in accordance with the facts and does not
omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The CGMHI Guarantor accepts
responsibility for the information contained in the CGMHI Offering Circular (excluding the
information set out under the heading "Description of Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc.” and
the information set out in the sections of ™ Overview of the Programme" entitled "Description of
CGMHI" and "Business of CGMHI™). The CGMHI Guarantor does not take responsibility for the
Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular or the CGMFL Offering Circular. To the best of the knowledge of the
CGMHI Guarantor (having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information
contained in the CGMHI Offering Circular (excluding the information set out under the heading
"Description of Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc." and the information set out in the sections of
"Overview of the Programme" entitled "Description of CGMHI" and "Business of CGMHI") is in
accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

CGMFL accepts responsibility for the information contained in the CGMFL Offering Circular but does
not take responsibility for the Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular or the CGMHI Offering Circular. To the
best of the knowledge of CGMFL (having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the
information contained in the CGMFL Offering Circular is in accordance with the facts and does not
omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

The CGMFL Guarantor accepts responsibility for the information contained in the CGMFL Offering
Circular (excluding the information set out under the heading "Description of Citigroup Global
Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A." and the information set out in the sections of "Overview of the
Programme" entitled "Description of CGMFL" and "Business of CGMFL"). To the best of the
knowledge of the CGMFL Guarantor (having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case),
the information contained in the CGMFL Offering Circular (excluding the information set out under
the heading "Description of Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A." and the
information set out in the sections of "Overview of the Programme" entitled "Description of CGMFL"
and "Business of CGMFL") is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect
the import of such information.

The Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular should be read in conjunction with all documents which are
incorporated by reference therein (see "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the Citigroup Inc.
Offering Circular"). The Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular shall be read and construed on the basis that
such documents are incorporated into and form part of the Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular.

The CGMHI Offering Circular should be read in conjunction with all documents which are
incorporated by reference therein (see "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMHI
Offering Circular"). The CGMHI Offering Circular shall be read and construed on the basis that such
documents are incorporated into and form part of the CGMHI Offering Circular.

The CGMFL Offering Circular should be read in conjunction with all documents which are
incorporated by reference therein (see "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMFL
Offering Circular"). The CGMFL Offering Circular shall be read and construed on the basis that such
documents are incorporated into and form part of the CGMFL Offering Circular.

The Citigroup Inc. offering circular (the Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular) will comprise this
Offering Circular with the exception of:

@) in the "Overview of the Programme", the information in the sections entitled "Description of
CGMHI" and "Business of CGMHI";

Vi
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(b)

(©

(d)

(€

(®

(9)
(h)
(i)
1)

the information in the section entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMHI
Offering Circular" and all information incorporated therein by reference thereby;

the information in the section entitled "Description of Citigroup Global Markets Holdings
Inc.”;

in the "Overview of the Programme”, the information in the sections entitled "Description of
CGMFL" and "Business of CGMFL";

the information in the section entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMFL
Offering Circular" and all information incorporated therein by reference thereby;

the information in the section entitled "Description of Citigroup Global Markets Funding
Luxembourg S.C.A.";

the information in the section entitled "Description of Citigroup Global Markets Limited";
the information in the section entitled "Form of CGMHI Deed of Guarantee";
the information in the section entitled "Form of CGMFL Deed of Guarantee"; and

the information in the section entitled "Form of CGMFL All Monies Guarantee".

The CGMHI offering circular (the CGMHI Offering Circular) will comprise this Offering Circular
with the exception of:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

©

(f
)
(h)

in the "Overview of the Programme”, the information in the sections entitled "Description of
Citigroup Inc." and "Business of Citigroup Inc.”;

the information in the section entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the
Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular" and all information incorporated therein by reference
thereby;

in the "Overview of the Programme”, the information in the sections entitled "Description of
CGMFL" and "Business of CGMFL";

the information in the section entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMFL
Offering Circular" and all information incorporated therein by reference thereby;

the information in the section entitled "Description of Citigroup Global Markets Funding
Luxembourg S.C.A.";

the information in the section entitled "Description of Citigroup Global Markets Limited";
the information in the section entitled "Form of CGMFL Deed of Guarantee"; and

the information in the section entitled "Form of CGMFL All Monies Guarantee".

The CGMFL offering circular (the CGMFL Offering Circular) will comprise this Offering Circular
with the exception of:

@)

(b)

(©
(d)

in the "Overview of the Programme", the information in the sections entitled "Description of
Citigroup Inc." and "Business of Citigroup Inc.";

the information in the section entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the
Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular" and all information incorporated therein by reference
thereby;

the information in the section entitled "Description of Citigroup Inc.";

in the "Overview of the Programme", the information in the sections entitled "Description of
CGMHI" and "Business of CGMHI";

vii
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(e) the information in the section entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMHI
Offering Circular" and all information incorporated therein by reference thereby; and

4] the information in the section entitled "Description of Citigroup Global Markets Holdings
Inc."; and
(9) the information in the section entitled "Form of CGMHI Deed of Guarantee".

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation other than those
contained in this Offering Circular in connection with the issue or sale of any Notes and, if given or
made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the
Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer
is CGMFL) or any of the Dealers. Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular nor any sale made in
connection herewith shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no
change in the affairs of the Issuer and/or, where applicable, the CGMHI Guarantor or the CGMFL
Guarantor since the date hereof or the date upon which this Offering Circular has been most recently
amended or supplemented or that there has been no adverse change in the financial position of any
Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor and/or the CGMFL Guarantor since the date hereof or the date upon
which this Offering Circular has been most recently amended or supplemented or that any other
information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of any time subsequent to the date
on which it is supplied or, if different, the date indicated in the document containing the same.

viii
0012230-0017435 ICM:34056498.7B



IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATING TO THE USE OF THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR
AND OFFERS OF NOTES GENERALLY

This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any
Notes in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such
jurisdiction. The distribution of this Offering Circular and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricted
by law in certain jurisdictions. Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL
Guarantor and the Dealers do not represent that this Offering Circular may be lawfully distributed, or
that any Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any applicable registration or other
requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption available thereunder, or assume any
responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In particular, no action has been taken
by Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor or the Dealers
which is intended to permit a public offering of any Notes or distribution of this Offering Circular in
any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, no Notes may be offered or
sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Offering Circular nor any advertisement or other offering
material may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result
in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations. Persons into whose possession this Offering
Circular or any Notes may come must inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on
the distribution of this Offering Circular and the offering and sale of Notes. In particular, there are
restrictions on the distribution of this Offering Circular and the offer or sale of Notes in the United
States of America, the EEA, the United Kingdom, Australia, Austria, the Kingdom of Bahrain, Brazil,
Canada, Chile, Columbia, Costa Rica, the Republic of Cyprus, the Czech Republic Denmark, the
Dominican Republic, Dubai International Financial Centre, Ecuador, El Salvador, Finland, France,
Guatemala, Honduras, Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Hungary, Ireland, Israel, Italy, The
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, The Netherlands, Japan, the State of Kuwait, Mexico, Norway, Oman,
Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Poland, Portugal, the State of Qatar (including the Qatar Financial Centre),
the Russian Federation, the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Singapore, Sweden, Switzerland, Taiwan, the
Republic of Turkey, the United Arab Emirates and Uruguay. See "Subscription and Sale and Transfer
and Selling Restrictions".

The price and principal amount of securities (including any Notes) to be issued under the Programme
will be determined by the Issuer and the relevant Dealer at the time of issue in accordance with
prevailing market conditions.

The Dealers have not separately verified the information contained in this Offering Circular. None of
the Dealers makes any representation, express or implied, or accepts any responsibility, with respect to
the accuracy or completeness of any of the information in this Offering Circular.

Neither this Offering Circular nor any financial statements or other information supplied in connection
with the Programme or any Notes are intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation
and should not be considered as a recommendation or a statement of opinion, or a report of either of
those things, by any Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantor or any of the Dealers that
any recipient of this Offering Circular or any other financial statements or any other information
supplied in connection with the Programme or any Notes should purchase any Notes. Each potential
purchaser of any Notes should determine for itself the relevance of the information contained in this
Offering Circular and its purchase of any Notes should be based upon such investigation as it deems
necessary. Each potential purchaser is authorised to use this Offering Circular solely for the purpose
of considering the purchase of Notes described in this Offering Circular; any other usage of this
Offering Circular is unauthorised. None of the Dealers (in the case of CGML, in its capacity as
Dealer) undertakes to review the financial condition or affairs of any Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor or
the CGMFL Guarantor during the life of the arrangements contemplated by this Offering Circular nor
to advise any investor or potential investor in any Notes of any information coming to the attention of
any of the Dealers.

For convenience, the website addresses of certain third parties have been provided in this Offering
Circular. Except as expressly set forth in this Offering Circular, no information in such websites
should be deemed to be incorporated in, or form a part of, this Offering Circular and none of the
Issuers, the CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantor and any Dealer takes responsibility for the
information contained in such websites.
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In connection with any Tranche, one or more of the Dealers may act as a stabilisation manager (the
Stabilisation Manager(s)). The identity of the Stabilisation Managers, if any, will be disclosed in the
applicable Pricing Supplement.

In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes, the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as the
Stabilisation Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilisation Manager(s)) in the
applicable Pricing Supplement may over allot Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting
the market price of the Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However,
stabilisation may not necessarily occur. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on
which adequate public disclosure of the terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche of Notes is made and,
if begun, may cease at any time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue date
of the relevant Tranche of Notes and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche of
Notes. Any stabilisation action or over-allotment must be conducted by the relevant Stabilisation
Manager(s) (or person(s) acting on behalf of any Stabilisation Manager(s)) in accordance with all
applicable laws and rules.

In any EEA Member State and subject as provided in "IMPORTANT — EEA Retail Investors" below,
this communication is only addressed to and is only directed at qualified investors in that Member
State within the meaning of the Prospective Regulation.

This Offering Circular has been prepared on the basis that any offer of Notes pursuant to or under this
Offering Circular in any Member State of the EEA must be made pursuant to an exemption under the
Prospectus Regulation from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of Notes. Accordingly,
and subject as provided in "IMPORTANT — EEA Retail Investors" below, any person making or
intending to make an offer in that Member State of Notes which are the subject of a placement
contemplated in this Offering Circular as completed by the Pricing Supplement in relation to the offer
of those Notes may only do so in circumstances in which no obligation arises for any lIssuer, the
CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantor or any Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article
3 of the Prospectus Regulation or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 23 of the Prospectus
Regulation, in each case, in relation to such offer. None of the Issuers, the CGMHI Guarantor, the
CGMFL Guarantor and any Dealer has authorised, nor does any of the them authorise, the making of
any offer of Notes pursuant to or under this Offering Circular in circumstances in which an obligation
arises for any Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantor or any Dealer to publish or
supplement a prospectus for such offer.

The only persons authorised to use this Offering Circular in connection with an offer of Notes are the
persons named in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the relevant Dealer or the Stabilisation
Managers.

Each person in a Member State of the EEA will be deemed to have represented, warranted agreed to
and with each Dealer, the Issuers, the CGMHI Guarantor and the CGMFL Guarantor that in the case
of any Notes acquired by it as a financial intermediary, as that term is used in Article 5(1) of the
Prospectus Regulation, (i) the Notes acquired by it in the offer have not been acquired on behalf of, nor
have they been acquired with a view to their offer or resale to, persons in any Member State of the EEA
other than qualified investors, as that term is defined in the Prospectus Regulation, or in circumstances
in which the prior consent of the relevant Dealers has been given to the offer or resale; or (ii) where
Notes have been acquired by it on behalf of persons in any such Member State other than qualified
investors, the offer of those Notes to it is not treated under the Prospectus Regulation as having been
made to such persons.

For the purposes of this representation, the expression an "offer" in relation to any Notes in any
Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the
terms of the offer and any Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or
subscribe for the Notes.

In this Offering Circular, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, references to
Euro, euro or EUR are to the single currency introduced at the start of the third stage of the European
Economic and Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, as
amended (the Treaty), references to U.S. dollars, U.S.$ and $ are to the currency of the United States
of America, references to Yen are to the currency of Japan, references to Sterling, and GBP are to the
currency of the United Kingdom and references to Renminbi, RMB and CNY are to the currency of the
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People's Republic of China (PRC). All references to the PRC are to the People's Republic of China
excluding the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China (Hong
Kong), the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China and Taiwan.

Capitalised terms which are used but not defined in any particular section of this Offering Circular
have the meaning attributed to them in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes, or any other section of
this Offering Circular.

The language of this Offering Circular is English. Certain legislative references and technical terms
have been cited in their original language in order that the correct technical meaning may be ascribed
to them under applicable law.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the Issuer, the
CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is
CGMFL) and the terms of the Notes being offered, including the merits and risks involved. None
of the Notes has been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission or any other securities commission or other regulatory authority in the United
States, nor have the foregoing authorities approved this Offering Circular or confirmed the
accuracy or determined the adequacy of the information contained in this Offering Circular.
Any representation to the contrary is unlawful. The Notes do not constitute, and have not been
marketed as, contracts of sale of a commodity for future delivery (or options thereon) subject to
the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended, and trading in the Notes has not been
approved by the CFTC pursuant to the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended.

None of the Issuers, the CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantor and any Dealer makes any
representation to any investor in any Notes regarding the legality of its investment under any
applicable laws. Any investor in any Notes should be able to bear the economic risk of an
investment in such Notes for an indefinite period of time.

IMPORTANT - EEA Retail Investors — Other than as provided in the Pricing Supplement, the Notes
are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or
otherwise made available to any retail investor in the EEA. For these purposes, a retail investor means
a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive
2014/65/EU (as amended, MIFID I1); or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97
(the Insurance Distribution Directive), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client
as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MIFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in
Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (the Prospectus Regulation). Consequently, save in relation to any
jurisdiction(s) or period(s) for which the "Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors" is specified to
be not applicable in any Pricing Supplement, no key information document required by Regulation
(EU) No 1286/2014 (as amended, the PRIIPs Regulation) for offering or selling the Notes or
otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore
offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may
be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation.

MIiFID Il product governance — A determination will be made in relation to each issue of Notes about
whether, for the purpose of the Product Governance rules under EU Delegated Directive 2017/593 (the
MiFID Product Governance Rules), any Dealer subscribing for any Notes is a manufacturer in
respect of such Notes, but otherwise neither the Arranger nor the Dealers nor any of their respective
affiliates will be a manufacturer for the purposes of the MiFID Product Governance Rules.

Unless otherwise provided, in connection with any issue of Notes in respect of which Citigroup Global
Markets Limited is the manufacturer (for such purposes), it has prepared the following Target Market
Assessment and Distribution Strategy
https://www:.citibank.com/icg/global_markets/docs/MiFID-I1-Target-Market-Disclosure-Notice.pdf.
Any person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Notes (a distributor) should take into
consideration the manufacturer's target market assessment and distribution strategy; however, a
distributor subject to MiFID Il is responsible for (i) undertaking its own target market assessment in
respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the manufacturer's target market assessment); and
(ii) determining appropriate distribution channels.

Xi
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https://www.citibank.com/icg/global_markets/docs/MiFID-II-Target-Market-Disclosure-Notice.pdf

Notification under Section 309B(1)(c) of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) of
Singapore, as modified or amended from time to time (the SFA) — Unless otherwise stated in the
Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes, all Notes issued or to be issued under the Programme shall
be capital markets products other than prescribed capital markets products (as defined in the Securities
and Futures (Capital Markets Products) Regulations 2018 of Singapore) and Specified Investment
Products (as defined in MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS
Notice FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations on Investment Products).
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U.S. INFORMATION

This Offering Circular is being submitted in the United States to a limited number of QIBs only
for informational use solely in connection with the consideration of the purchase of Notes issued
by Citigroup Inc. or CGMHI being offered hereby. Its use for any other purpose in the United
States is not authorised. It may not be copied or reproduced in whole or in part nor may it be
distributed or any of its contents disclosed to anyone other than the prospective investors to
whom it is originally submitted.

Notes may be offered or sold within the United States only if the applicable Pricing Supplement
specifies that they are being offered in reliance on Rule 144A and then only to QIBs in
transactions exempt from registration under the Securities Act. Each U.S. purchaser of Notes is
hereby notified that the offer and sale of any Notes to it is being made in reliance upon the
exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 144A and
one or more exemptions and/or exclusions from regulation under the CEA.

Each purchaser or holder of Notes will be deemed, by its acceptance or purchase of any such
Notes, to have made certain representations and agreements intended to restrict the resale or
other transfer of such Notes as set out in "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling
Restrictions'. Unless otherwise stated, terms used in this ""U.S. Information" section have the
meanings given to them in ""Form of the Notes".

Notwithstanding any limitation on disclosure by any party provided for herein, or any other provision
of this Offering Circular and its contents or any associated Pricing Supplement, and effective from the
date of commencement of any discussions concerning any of the transactions contemplated herein (the
Transactions), any party (and each employee, representative, or other agent of any party) may disclose
to any and all persons, without limitation of any kind, the tax treatment and tax structure of the
Transactions and all materials of any kind (including opinions or other tax analyses) that are provided
to it relating to such tax treatment and tax structure, except to the extent that any such disclosure could
reasonably be expected to cause this Offering Circular, any associated Pricing Supplement, or any
offering of Notes thereunder not to be in compliance with securities laws. For purposes of this
paragraph, the tax treatment of the Transactions is the purported or claimed U.S. federal income tax
treatment of the Transactions, and the tax structure of the Transactions is any fact that may be relevant
to understanding the purported or claimed U.S. federal income tax treatment of the Transactions.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Citigroup Inc. has, in respect of Notes issued by it, undertaken in a deed poll dated 21 December
2015 (the Citigroup Inc. Rule 144A Deed Poll) and CGMHI and Citigroup Inc. have, in respect of
Notes issued by CGMHI, undertaken in a deed poll dated 21 December 2015 (the CGMHI Rule
144A Deed Poll and, together with the Citigroup Inc. Rule 144A Deed Poll, the Rule 144A Deed
Polls) to furnish, upon the request of a holder of any Notes offered and sold in reliance on Rule
144A or any beneficial interest therein, to such holder or to a prospective purchaser designated
by him the information required to be delivered under Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act
if, at the time of the request, Citigroup Inc. is neither a reporting company under Section 13 or
15(d) of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), nor exempt
from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder.

NOTICE TO RESIDENTS IN THE KINGDOM OF SAUDI ARABIA

This document may not be distributed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia except to such persons as are
permitted under the Rules on the Offer of Securities and Continuing Obligations issued by the Capital
Market Authority of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (the CMA).

The CMA does not make any representation as to the accuracy or completeness of this document and
expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss arising from, or incurred in reliance upon, any
part of this document. Prospective purchasers of the securities offered hereby should conduct their own
due diligence on the accuracy of the information relating to the securities. If you do not understand the
contents of this document, you should consult an authorised financial advisor.

xiii
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NOTICE TO RESIDENTS IN THE KINGDOM OF BAHRAIN

In relation to investors in the Kingdom of Bahrain, Notes issued in connection with this Offering
Circular and related offering documents must be in registered form and must only be offered in
registered form to existing account holders and accredited investors as defined by the Central Bank of
Bahrain (the CBB) in the Kingdom of Bahrain where such investors make a minimum investment of at
least U.S.$100,000 or any equivalent amount in other currency or such other amount as the CBB may
determine.

This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer of securities in the Kingdom of Bahrain pursuant to
the terms of Article (81) of the Central Bank and Financial Institutions Law 2006 (decree Law No. 64
of 2006). This Offering Circular and related offering documents have not been and will not be
registered as a prospectus with the CBB. Accordingly, no Notes may be offered, sold or made the
subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase nor will this Offering Circular or any other related
document or material be used in connection with any offer, sale or invitation to subscribe or purchase
Notes, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in the Kingdom of Bahrain, other than as marketing to
accredited investors for an offer outside the Kingdom of Bahrain.

The CBB has not reviewed, approved or registered this Offering Circular or related offering documents
and it has not in any way considered the merits of the Notes to be marketed for investment, whether in
or outside the Kingdom of Bahrain. Therefore, the CBB assumes no responsibility for the accuracy and
completeness of the statements and information contained in this Offering Circular and expressly
disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from reliance upon the whole or any
part of the content of this Offering Circular. No offer of Notes will be made to the public in the
Kingdom of Bahrain and this Offering Circular must be read by the addressee only and must not be
issued, passed to, or made available to the public generally.

NOTICE TO RESIDENTS IN THE STATE OF QATAR

Any Notes to be issued under the Programme will not be offered or sold at any time, directly or
indirectly, in Qatar (including the Qatar Financial Centre) in a manner that would constitute a public
offering. This Offering Circular has not been and will not be reviewed or approved by, or registered
with, the Qatar Financial Markets Authority, the Qatar Central Bank, the Qatar Stock Exchange or the
Qatar Financial Centre Regulatory Authority in accordance with their regulations or any other
regulations in the State of Qatar. The Notes are not and will not be traded on the Qatar Stock Exchange.
The Notes and interests therein will not be offered to investors domiciled or resident in the State of
Qatar and do not constitute debt financing in the State of Qatar under the Commercial Companies Law
No. (11) of 2015 or otherwise under the laws of the State of Qatar.
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OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAMME

OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAMME

This overview must be read as an introduction to this Offering Circular and is provided as an aid to
investors when considering whether to purchase Notes but is not a substitute for the Offering Circular.
Any decision to invest in any Notes should be based on a consideration of the Offering Circular as a
whole (including the documents incorporated by reference) and the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Words and expressions defined in the Terms and Conditions and in the applicable Pricing Supplement
shall have the same meanings herein.

Issuers:

Issuers' Legal Entity
Identifiers (LEI):

Description of Citigroup Inc.:

Business of Citigroup Inc.:

Description of CGMHI:

Business of CGMHI:

Description of CGMFL.:
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Each of Citigroup Inc., Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. and
Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A. acting
severally and, in relation to any Series, as specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement.

Citigroup Inc.: 6SHGI4ZSSLCXXQSBB395

Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc.: 82VOJDD5PTRDMVVMG
V3l

Citigroup  Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A.
549300EVRWDWFJUNNP53

Citigroup Inc. is a holding company and services its obligations
primarily by earnings from its operating subsidiaries. The principal
offices for Citigroup Inc. are located at 388 Greenwich Street, New
York, NY 10013, and its telephone number is + 1 212 559-1000.
Citigroup Inc. was established as a corporation incorporated in
Delaware on 8 March 1988 with perpetual duration pursuant to the
Delaware General Corporation Law with file number 2154254,

Citigroup Inc. is a global diversified financial services holding
company whose businesses provide consumers, corporations,
governments and institutions with a broad, yet focussed, range of
financial products and services. Citigroup Inc. has approximately
200 million customer accounts and does business in more than
161 countries and jurisdictions. As at the date of this Offering
Circular, Citigroup operates, for management reporting purposes, via
two primary business segments: Global Consumer Banking and
Institutional Clients Group, with remaining operations in
Corporate/Other.

Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. (CGMHI) was incorporated
in New York on 23 February 1977 and is the successor to Salomon
Smith Barney Holdings Inc. The principal offices of CGMHI are
located at 388 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10013, and its
telephone number is + 1 212 559-1000. CGMHI was incorporated in
New York on 23 February 1977 and is the successor to Salomon
Smith Barney Holdings Inc. On 7 April 2003, CGMHI filed a
Restated Certificate of Incorporation, changing its name from
Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc. to Citigroup Global Markets
Holdings Inc.

CGMHI, operating through its subsidiaries, engages in full-service
investment banking and securities brokerage business.

Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A (CGMFL), a
corporate partnership limited by Shares (société en commandite par
actions) incorporated on 24 May 2012 under Luxembourg law for an
unlimited duration with its registered office at 31, Z.A. Bourmicht,

1



Business of CGMFL:

Arranger:

Dealers:

Issuing and Fiscal Agent and
principal paying agent:

Swedish Notes Issuing and
Paying Agent:

Finnish Notes Issuing and
Paying Agent:

Risk Factors:

0012230-0017435 ICM:34056498.7B

OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAMME

L-8070 Bertrange, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, telephone number
+352 45 14 14 447 and registered with the Register of Trade and
Companies of Luxembourg (Registre de Commerce et des Sociétés,
Luxembourg) under number B 169.199.

The business activities of CGMFL consist primarily of granting loans
or other forms of funding directly or indirectly in whatever form or
means to Citigroup Global Markets Limited and any other entities in
the same group.

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Citigroup Global Markets Inc.
Citigroup Global Markets Europe AG

Citibank, N.A., London branch

Citibank Europe Plc (Sweden Branch)

Nordea Bank Finland Plc.

Prospective purchasers should ensure to carefully read and consider
the risks relating to the Issuer, (where the Issuer is CGMHI) the
CGMHI Guarantor and (where the Issuer is CGMFL) the CGMFL
Guarantor and the risks relating to the Notes set out in "Risk Factors"
below. Prospective purchasers should consult their own financial and
legal advisers about risks associated with investment in any Notes and
the suitability of investing in any Notes in light of their particular
circumstances.

There are certain factors that may affect Citigroup Inc.'s ability to
fulfil its obligations under any Notes issued by it or as guarantor in
respect of Notes issued by CGMHI, including that such ability is
dependent on the earnings of Citigroup Inc.'s subsidiaries, that
Citigroup Inc. may be required to apply its available funds to support
the financial position of its banking subsidiaries, rather than fulfil its
obligations under the Notes, that Citigroup Inc.'s business may be
affected by economic conditions, credit, market and market liquidity
risk, by competition, country risk, operational risk, fiscal and
monetary policies adopted by relevant regulatory authorities,
reputational and legal risks and certain regulatory considerations.

CGMHI is a holding company that does not engage in any material
amount of business activities that generate revenues. CGMHI services
its obligations primarily with dividends and advances from its
subsidiaries. Its subsidiaries that operate in the securities businesses
can only pay dividends if they are in compliance with applicable
regulatory requirements imposed on them by federal and state
regulatory authorities. Their respective subsidiaries may also be
subject to credit agreements that also may restrict their ability to pay
dividends. If such subsidiaries do not realise sufficient earnings to
satisfy applicable regulatory requirements, or if such requirements are
changed to further restrict the ability of such subsidiaries to pay
dividends to CGMHI, CGMHI's ability to fulfil its obligations under
Notes issued by it may be adversely affected. Notes issued by
CGMHI will have the benefit of a guarantee of Citigroup Inc.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, prospective investors should note that
the Events of Default in respect of the CGMHI Guarantor are limited
to the events stated in Conditions 9(a)(i) and 9(a)(ii) of the General
Conditions of the Notes relating to default in payment of principal or
interest in respect of the Notes but will not include the insolvency or
bankruptcy of the CGMHI Guarantor (or any similar event), any other
default of the CGMHI Guarantor or the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee
being (or being claimed not to be) in full force and effect. Therefore,
even though the CGMHI Guarantor may be declared insolvent or
have entered into bankruptcy proceedings or disclaimed the CGMHI
Deed of Guarantee, holders of Notes issued by CGMHI will not be
able to trigger an Event of Default under the Notes and thus will not
be able to cause the Notes to be immediately due and payable, and the
Notes will not redeem until maturity (unless there has been an Event
of Default due to non-payment of interest or principal or bankruptcy
or other default of CGMHI in the meantime). It is possible that
holders may receive a lower return at maturity than if they were able
to accelerate the Notes for immediate repayment in such
circumstances.

There are certain factors that may affect CGMFL's ability to fulfil its
obligations under the Notes issued by it, including that such ability is
dependent on the group entities to which it on-lends and funds raised
through the issue of the Notes performing their obligations in respect
of such funding in a timely manner. In addition, such ability and
CGML's ability to fulfil its obligations as guarantor in respect of
Notes issued by CGMFL is dependent on economic conditions, credit,
market and market liquidity risk, by competition, country risk,
operational risk, fiscal and monetary policies adopted by relevant
regulatory authorities, reputational and legal risks and certain
regulatory considerations.

The relevant Issuer will have the option to vary settlement in relation
to certain Notes if so indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

An investment in Notes, the payments and/or deliveries in respect of
which is/are determined by reference to one or more values of
security indices, inflation indices, commodity indices, commodities,
shares, depositary receipts, exchange traded funds, mutual funds,
currencies, warrants, proprietary indices (which may be linked or
referenced to one or more asset classes), dividend futures contracts,
interest rates or other bases of reference or formulae (the
Underlying(s)), either directly or inversely, or which may be
redeemable for certain assets may entail significant risks and, in the
case of Notes, risks that are not associated with an investment in a
debt instrument with a fixed principal amount and which bears
interest at either a fixed rate or at a floating rate determined by
reference to published interest rate references. The risks of a
particular Note will depend on the terms of such Note, but may
include, without limitation, the possibility of significant changes in
the prices of the relevant Underlying(s). Such risks generally depend
on factors over which none of the relevant Issuer and, where the
relevant Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor or where the
relevant Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor, has control and
which cannot readily be foreseen, such as economic and political
events and the supply of and demand for the relevant Underlying(s).
In recent years, currency exchange rates and prices for various
Underlying(s) have been highly volatile, and such volatility may be
expected in the future. Fluctuations in any such rates or prices that
have occurred in the past are not necessarily indicative, however, of
fluctuations that may occur during the term of any Note. The risk of
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loss as a result of the linkage to the relevant Underlying(s) can be
substantial.

Investors should note that the Notes (including those which
provide for a minimum redemption value to be paid at maturity)
are subject to the credit risk of the relevant Issuer and, where the
relevant Issuer is CGMHI, the credit risk of the CGMHI
Guarantor or, where the Issuer is CGMFL, the credit risk of the
CGMFL Guarantor. Furthermore, the Notes may be sold,
redeemed or repaid early, and if so, the price for which a security
may be sold, redeemed or repaid early may be less than the
investor's initial investment.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MUST REVIEW THE APPLICABLE
PRICING SUPPLEMENT TO ASCERTAIN WHAT THE
RELEVANT UNDERLYING(S) ARE AND TO SEE HOW ANY
AMOUNTS PAYABLE AND/OR ASSETS DELIVERABLE ARE
DETERMINED AND WHEN ANY SUCH AMOUNTS ARE
PAYABLE AND/OR ASSETS ARE DELIVERABLE, AS THE
CASE MAY BE, BEFORE MAKING ANY DECISION TO
PURCHASE ANY NOTES.

U.S.$60,000,000,000 (or its equivalent).

Notes may (i) bear interest at a fixed rate or a floating rate; (ii) not
bear interest; (iii) bear interest calculated by reference to one or more
Underlying(s) and/or (iv) have a specified redemption amount or
provide that the redemption amount is calculated by reference to one
or more Underlying(s). In addition, Notes which have any
combination of the foregoing features may also be issued.

Interest periods, rates of interest and the terms of and/or amounts
payable or deliverable in respect of the Notes will be specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement.

Any maturity as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
Such denominations specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Notes may be issued in registered form or in dematerialised and
uncertificated book-entry form, all as described in "Form of the
Notes".

Registered Notes will initially either be represented by a Global
Registered Note Certificate, which, in the case of Registered Notes
held in DTC, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, will
initially be registered in the name of a nominee for DTC or Euroclear
and Clearstream, Luxembourg, or will be represented by definitive
Registered Note Certificates.

Interests in a Global Registered Note Certificate registered in the
name of a nominee for one or more clearing system(s) will be
transferable through the relevant clearing system(s).  Global
Registered Note Certificates will be exchangeable for definitive
Registered Note Certificates as described under "Form of the Notes"
below.

In addition, indirect interests in Notes may be represented via the
dematerialised CREST Depository Interest (CDI) mechanism and
settled in CREST.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Swedish Notes will be issued in
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dematerialised book-entry form in accordance with the SFIA Act,
other applicable Swedish legislation and the rules and regulations
applicable to, and/or issued by, Euroclear Sweden. No global or
definitive Swedish Notes will be issued.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Finnish Notes will be issued in
uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form and not be issued
in global or definitive form and Finnish Notes of one Specified
Denomination may not be changed for Finnish Notes of another
Specified Denomination.

Payments in respect of the Notes will be made free and clear of
withholding taxes of the United States in the case of Citigroup Inc.,
CGMHI and the CGMHI Guarantor, Luxembourg in the case of
CGMFL, or United Kingdom in the case of CGMFL Guarantor, in
each case except as required by law. In that event, additional interest
will be payable in respect of such taxes, subject to specified
exceptions.

The applicable Pricing Supplement will specify the redemption
amount or the basis for its calculation and will indicate whether the
Notes can be redeemed prior to their stated maturity (other than Notes
redeemable in instalments or following an Event of Default or on an
illegality or for taxation reasons or following the occurrence of an
Administrator/ Benchmark Event or, in the case of Notes, the
payments and/or deliveries in respect of which is/are determined by
reference to an Underlying, following an Early Redemption Event) or
that such Notes will be redeemable prior to such stated maturity at the
option of the relevant Issuer and/or the Noteholders upon giving
notice on a date or dates specified prior to such stated maturity and at
a price or prices and on such terms as are indicated in the applicable
Pricing Supplement.

If "Mandatory Early Redemption Event" is specified as applicable in
the applicable Pricing Supplement, then the applicable Pricing
Supplement will specify what constitutes a "Mandatory Early
Redemption Event" and, following the occurrence of a Mandatory
Early Redemption Event the Notes will be redeemed and the
Mandatory Early Redemption Amount will become payable.

The applicable Pricing Supplement may provide that Notes may be
redeemed in two or more instalments of such amounts, on such dates
and on such other terms as are indicated in such Pricing Supplement.

The optional early redemption of any Note issued by Citigroup Inc.
that is included in Citigroup Inc.'s capital and total loss absorbing
capacity may be subject to consultation with the Federal Reserve of
the United States, which may not acquiesce in the early redemption of
such Note unless it is satisfied that the capital position and total loss
absorbing capacity of Citigroup Inc. will be adequate after the
proposed redemption.

In the case of Notes linked to one or more Underlying(s), the General
Conditions and the Underlying Schedule(s) applicable to the relevant
Underlying(s) contain provisions, as applicable, relating to events
affecting the relevant Underlying(s), modification or cessation of the
relevant Underlying(s), settlement disruption and market disruption
provisions and provisions relating to subsequent corrections of the
level of an Underlying (including, without limitation and where
necessary, appropriate definitions of Disrupted Day, Market
Disruption Event, Realisation Disruption Event, Adjustment Event,
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Early Redemption Event or equivalent provisions) and details of the
consequences of such events. Such provisions may permit the
relevant Issuer either to require the Calculation Agent to determine
what adjustments should be made following the occurrence of the
relevant event (which may include deferment of any required
valuation or the substitution of another Underlying in place of the
affected Underlying and/or, in the case of an increased cost of
hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders such increased cost of
hedging (including, but not limited to, reducing any amounts payable
or deliverable in respect of the Notes to reflect any such increased
costs) and/or, in the case of Realisation Disruption, payment in the
relevant local currency rather than in the relevant Specified Currency,
deduction of or payment by Noteholder of amounts in respect of any
applicable taxes, delay of payments or deliveries, determination of
relevant exchange rates taking into consideration all available
relevant information and/or (where legally permissible) procuring the
physical delivery of any Underlying(s) in lieu of cash settlement (or
vice versa) and/or, in the case of mutual fund interests, adjustments to
'monetise’ the mutual fund interest affected by the relevant
Adjustment Event and adjust amounts payable under the Notes to
account for such monetisation) or to cancel the Notes and to pay an
amount determined as provided in "lllegality™ below.

Where Renminbi Currency Event is specified as applicable in the
applicable Pricing Supplement, the General Conditions contain
provisions relating to Renminbi inconvertibility, non-transferability or
illiquidity events. Such provisions permit deferral of payments,
payment in a currency other than Renminbi and/or early redemption
of the Notes.

If amounts paid with respect to the Notes or any underlying hedging
arrangements of the Issuer in respect of the Notes will be subject to
U.S. withholding tax pursuant to Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, the Issuer may redeem the
Notes. If the Notes are so redeemed, the Issuer, to the extent
permitted by applicable law, will pay, in respect of each Note, an
amount determined as provided in "lllegality” below.

If there is or will be a material change to a relevant benchmark, a
relevant benchmark is permanently or indefinitely cancelled, any
authorisation or registration or similar required in relation to the
performance of any obligations in respect of the Notes is refused, not
obtained or suspended or withdrawn, it is not commercially
reasonable to continue to use the benchmark due to licensing
restrictions or costs (unless the applicable Pricing Supplement
specifies that "Administrator/Benchmark Event (Limb (3))" does not
apply) or a relevant supervisor officially announces the benchmark is
no longer representative of any relevant underlying market(s), then (i)
the Calculation Agent may make such adjustments to the terms of the
Notes as it determines appropriate to account for the relevant event
(which may include selecting one or more successor benchmarks and
making related adjustments to the Notes, including, if applicable, to
reflect increased costs) or (ii) the Issuer may (if so specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement and at its option) redeem the Notes. If
the Notes are redeemed, the Issuer will pay, in respect of each Note,
an amount determined as provided in "lllegality" below.

Such Issue Price as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

To the extent specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement,
payments will be calculated by reference to one or more
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Underlying(s) and/or formulae as specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement.

To the extent specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement,
settlement may be by way of physical delivery of certain assets by an
Intermediary as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

In the case of Physical Delivery, if a Settlement Disruption Event
occurs or exists on any due date for delivery of such assets, settlement
will be postponed until the next Settlement Business Day in respect of
which there is no Settlement Disruption Event. The Issuer or, where
applicable, relevant Intermediary in these circumstances may elect to
deliver the relevant Entitlement using such other commercially
reasonable manner as it may select or may pay the Disruption Cash
Redemption Amount in lieu of delivering the Entitlement.

If "Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity"” is specified as applying in the
applicable Pricing Supplement and, at the relevant time, it is
impossible or impracticable to deliver, when due, some or all of the
assets otherwise due to be delivered, where such failure to deliver is
due to illiquidity in the market for such assets, the Issuer or, where
applicable, relevant Intermediary may pay the Failure to Deliver
Redemption Amount in lieu of delivering some or all of such assets
so affected.

In respect of Physical Delivery Notes, the Issuer or, where applicable,
relevant Intermediary may, if the Calculation Agent determines that
an Underlying comprises securities which are not freely tradeable,
elect to substitute a substitute asset for the Underlying or not to
deliver or procure the delivery of the relevant Underlying or the
relevant substitute asset, but in lieu thereof to make a cash payment to
the Noteholders equal to the fair market value of such Underlying or
substitute asset not delivered.

If the relevant Issuer determines that performance of its obligations
under an issue of Notes or, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI
Guarantor determines that the performance of its obligations under
the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee in respect of such Notes or, where the
Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor determines that the
performance of its obligations under the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee
in respect of such Notes or that any arrangements made to hedge the
relevant Issuer's obligations under such Notes and/or, where the
Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor's obligations under such
Notes and/or the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee and/or, where the Issuer
is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor's obligations under such Notes
and/or the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee, as the case may be, has or
will become unlawful, illegal or otherwise prohibited in whole or in
part for any reason the relevant Issuer may redeem the Notes early
and, if and to the extent permitted by applicable law, will pay, in
respect of each Note, an amount equal to (1) where the Notes are
Underlying Linked Notes, the fair market value of such Note
notwithstanding such illegality less the cost to the relevant Issuer
and/or its affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging
arrangements or such other amount calculated pursuant to the
provisions of the applicable Pricing Supplement or (2) where the
Notes are Zero Coupon Notes, the Early Redemption Amount
determined as provided herein or (3) in respect of Notes other than
Underlying Linked Notes and Zero Coupon Notes, an amount
calculated pursuant to the provisions of the applicable Pricing
Supplement or, if not so specified, the principal amount.
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Notes will constitute unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the
relevant Issuer.

Notes issued by CGMHI only will be unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by the CGMHI Guarantor pursuant to the CGMHI Deed
of Guarantee, and the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee will constitute
direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of
the CGMHI Guarantor and will rank pari passu (subject to
mandatorily preferred debts under applicable laws) with all other
outstanding, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the
CGMHI Guarantor.

Notes issued by CGMFL only will be unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by the CGMFL Guarantor pursuant to the CGMFL Deed
of Guarantee, and the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee will constitute
direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of
the CGMFL Guarantor and will rank pari passu (subject to
mandatorily preferred debts under applicable laws) with all other
outstanding, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the
CGMFL Guarantor.

Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. will not be guaranteed by any entity.

Subject as provided below, Notes will contain certain events of
default relating to, inter alia, non-payment, non-performance and
certain insolvency events relating to the relevant Issuer and/or, where
the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor.

If so specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement in respect of
Notes issued by Citigroup Inc., the Events of Default will be limited
to (i) failure to pay principal or interest for 30 days after it is due and
(ii) certain events of insolvency or bankruptcy (whether voluntary or
not). Where the above is applicable, only those specified Events of
Default will provide for a right of acceleration of the Notes and no
other event, including a default in the performance of any other
covenant of Citigroup Inc., will result in acceleration.

Prospective investors should note that Events of Default in respect of
the CGMHI Guarantor are limited to the events stated in Conditions
9(a)(i) and 9(a)(ii) of the General Conditions of the Notes relating to
default in payment of principal or interest in respect of the Notes but
will not include the insolvency or bankruptcy of the CGMHI
Guarantor (or any similar event), any other default of the CGMHI
Guarantor or the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee being (or being claimed
not to be) in full force and effect. Therefore, even though the
CGMHI Guarantor may be declared insolvent or have entered into
bankruptcy proceedings or disclaimed the CGMHI Deed of
Guarantee, holders of Notes issued by CGMHI will not be able to
trigger an Event of Default under the Notes and thus will not be able
to cause the Notes to be immediately due and payable, and the Notes
will not redeem until maturity (unless there has been an Event of
Default due to non-payment of interest or principal or bankruptcy or
other default of CGMHI in the meantime). It is possible that holders
may receive a lower return at maturity than if they were able to
accelerate the Notes for immediate repayment in such circumstances.

In relation to any Notes, any relevant Issuer and, where the Issuer is
CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor or, where the Issuer is CGMFL, the
CGMFL Guarantor may, without consent of the holders but subject to
certain conditions, substitute for itself in respect of such Notes or, as
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applicable, in respect of the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee or the
CGMFL Deed of Guarantee, any company which is, on the date of
such substitution, in the opinion of the relevant Issuer, the CGMHI
Guarantor or the CGMFL Guarantor, as the case may be, of at least
equivalent standing and creditworthiness to it, and subject to certain
other terms and conditions.

Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, Euroclear Sweden and/or
Euroclear Finland. In addition, the relevant Issuer may make an
application for any Notes in registered form to be accepted for
clearing in book-entry form by DTC. Indirect interests in Notes may
be represented via the CDI mechanism and settled in CREST. The
Notes may clear through any additional or alternative clearing system,
as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

English law or the laws of the State of New York as specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement, except that (i) the registration of
Swedish Notes in Euroclear Sweden's system for the registration of
financial instruments will be governed by, and construed in
accordance with, Swedish law and (ii) the registration of Finnish
Notes in Euroclear Finland's system for the registration of financial
instruments will be governed by, and construed in accordance with,
Finnish Law.

With regard to CGMFL and for the avoidance of doubt, Articles
470-3 to 470-19 of the Luxembourg law dated 10 August 1915 on
commercial companies, as amended from time to time, are hereby
excluded.

Applications has been made for Notes issued under the Programme to
be admitted to trading on the Euro MTF and to be listed on the
Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Notes may also be
issued on the basis that they will not be listed or admitted to trading
on any market. The Euro MTF is not a regulated market for the
purposes of the Directive 2014/65/EU. This Offering Circular has not
been approved for the purpose of the admission to trading of any
Notes on a market that is a regulated market in accordance with
Directive 2014/65/EU.

In relation to Notes: United States of America, the EEA, the United
Kingdom, Australia, Austria, the Kingdom of Bahrain, Brazil,
Canada, Chile, Columbia, Costa Rica, Republic of Cyprus, the Czech
Republic, Denmark, the Dominican Republic, Dubai International
Financial Centre, Ecuador, El Salvador, Finland, France, Guatemala,
Honduras, Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Hungary,
Ireland, Israel, Italy, The Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, The
Netherlands, Japan, the State of Kuwait, Mexico, Norway, Oman,
Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Poland, Portugal, the State of Qatar, the
Russian Federation, the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Singapore,
Sweden, Switzerland, Taiwan, the Republic of Turkey, the United
Arab Emirates and Uruguay. See "Subscription and Sale and
Transfer and Selling Restrictions".
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In purchasing Notes, investors assume the risk that the Issuer and, where CGMHI is the Issuer, the
CGMHI Guarantor or where CGMFL is the Issuer, the CGMFL Guarantor may become insolvent
or otherwise be unable to satisfy their obligations in respect of the Notes. There is a wide range of
factors which individually or together could result in the Issuer and, where CGMHI is the Issuer,
the CGMHI Guarantor or, where CGMFL is the Issuer, the CGMFL Guarantor becoming unable to
satisfy their obligations in respect of the Notes. It is not possible to identify all such factors or to
determine which factors are most likely to occur, as the Issuer and, where CGMHI is the Issuer, the
CGMHI Guarantor or, where CGMFL is the Issuer, the CGMFL Guarantor may not be aware of all
relevant factors and certain factors which they currently deem not to be material may become
material as a result of the occurrence of events outside the Issuer's and, where CGMHI is the Issuer,
the CGMHI Guarantor's or, where CGMFL is the Issuer, the CGMFL Guarantor's control. The
Issuer and, where CGMHI is the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor or, where CGMFL is the Issuer, the
CGMFL Guarantor have identified in this Offering Circular a number of factors which could
materially adversely affect their businesses and ability to make payments due under, or to deliver
assets on or in connection with, the Notes.

Each of the risks highlighted below could adversely affect the trading price of the Notes and, as a
result, investors could lose some or all of their investment.

In addition, factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with
Notes issued under this Offering Circular are also described below.

Prospective investors must read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Offering Circular
including any documents incorporated by reference herein and reach their own views prior to
making any investment decision.

Contents

. RISKS RELATING TO CITIGROUP INC., CGMHI, THE CGMHI GUARANTOR,
CGMFL AND THE CGMFL GUARANTOR

. RISKS RELATING TO NOTES
. Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of Notes
° Risks related to the market generally

RISKS RELATING TO CITIGROUP INC., CGMHI, THE CGMHI GUARANTOR, CGMFL
AND THE CGMFL GUARANTOR

Set out below are certain risk factors which could have a material adverse effect on the business,
operations, financial condition or prospects of one or more of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI
Guarantor, CGMFL and/or the CGMFL Guarantor and cause one or more of Citigroup Inc.'s,
CGMHI's, the CGMHI Guarantor's, CGMFL's and/or the CGMFL Guarantor's future results to be
materially different from expected results. Citigroup Inc.'s, CGMHI's, the CGMHI Guarantor's,
CGMFL's and/or the CGMFL Guarantor's results could also be affected by competition and other
factors. The factors discussed below should not be regarded as a complete and comprehensive
statement of all potential risks and uncertainties Citigroup Inc.'s, CGMHI's, the CGMHI Guarantor's,
CGMFL's and the CGMFL Guarantor's businesses face. Each of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI
Guarantor, CGMFL and the CGMFL Guarantor has described only those risks relating to its operations
that it considers to be material. There may be additional risks that Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI
Guarantor, CGMFL and/or the CGMFL Guarantor currently considers not to be material or of which it
is not currently aware, and any of these risks could have the effects set forth above. Investors should
note that they bear the Issuer's, the CGMHI Guarantor's (where the Issuer is CGMHI) and the CGMFL
Guarantor's (where the Issuer is CGMFL) solvency risk.
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The ability of each of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL and the CGMFL
Guarantor to fulfil its obligations under the Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. CGMHI or CGMFL, as
the case may be, is dependent on the earnings of Citigroup Inc.’s subsidiaries.

Citigroup Inc. is a holding company that does not engage in any material amount of business activities
that generate revenues. Citigroup Inc. services its obligations primarily with dividends and advances
from its subsidiaries. Its subsidiaries that operate in the banking, insurance and securities businesses
can only pay dividends if they are in compliance with applicable regulatory requirements imposed on
them by federal and state regulatory authorities. Its subsidiaries may also be subject to credit
agreements that also may restrict their ability to pay dividends. If such subsidiaries did not realise
sufficient earnings to satisfy applicable regulatory requirements, or if such requirements were changed
to further restrict the ability of such subsidiaries to pay dividends to Citigroup Inc., Citigroup Inc.'s
ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes issued by it or as guarantor in respect of Notes issued by
CGMHI may be adversely affected.

In addition, CGMHI is a holding company that does not engage in any material amount of business
activities that generate revenues. CGMHI services its obligations primarily with dividends and
advances from its subsidiaries. Its subsidiaries that operate in the securities businesses can only pay
dividends if they are in compliance with applicable regulatory requirements imposed on them by
federal and state regulatory authorities. Their respective subsidiaries may also be subject to credit
agreements that also may restrict their ability to pay dividends. If such subsidiaries do not realise
sufficient earnings to satisfy applicable regulatory requirements, or if such requirements are changed to
further restrict the ability of such subsidiaries to pay dividends to CGMHI, CGMHI's ability to fulfil its
obligations under the notes issued by it may be adversely affected. Notes issued by CGMHI will have
the benefit of a guarantee of Citigroup Inc. Notwithstanding the foregoing, prospective investors should
note that the Events of Default in respect of the CGMHI Guarantor are limited to the events stated in
Conditions 9(a)(i) and 9(a)(ii) of the General Conditions of the Notes relating to default in payment of
principal or interest in respect of the Notes but will not include the insolvency or bankruptcy of the
CGMHI Guarantor (or any similar event), any other default of the CGMHI Guarantor or the CGMHI
Deed of Guarantee being (or being claimed not to be) in full force and effect. Therefore, even though
the CGMHI Guarantor may be declared insolvent or have entered into bankruptcy proceedings or
disclaimed the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee, holders of Notes issued by CGMHI will not be able to
trigger an Event of Default under the Notes and thus will not be able to cause the Notes to be
immediately due and payable, and the Notes will not redeem until maturity (unless there has been an
Event of Default due to non-payment of interest or principal or bankruptcy or other default of CGMHI
in the meantime). It is possible that holders may receive a lower return at maturity than if they were
able to accelerate the Notes for immediate repayment in such circumstances.

In addition, the ability of CGMFL to fulfil its obligations under any Notes issued by it (which Notes
will not have the benefit of any guarantee of Citigroup Inc. but will have the benefit of a guarantee of
the CGMFL Guarantor which is an indirect subsidiary of Citigroup Inc.) will be dependent on the
group entities to which it on-lends the funds raised through the issue of such Notes performing their
obligations in respect of such funding in a timely manner. Accordingly, investors in these Notes should
consider the risk factors applicable to Citigroup Inc. and its subsidiaries as set out elsewhere in these
Risk Factors.

Under U.S. banking law, Citigroup Inc. may be required to apply its available funds to support the
financial position of its banking subsidiaries, rather than to fulfil its obligations under the Notes.

Under longstanding policy of The Board of Governors of the U.S. Federal Reserve System, a bank
holding company (such as Citigroup Inc.) is expected to act as a source of financial strength for its
subsidiary banks and to commit resources to support such banks. As a result of that policy, Citigroup
Inc. may be required to commit resources (in the form of investments or loans) to its subsidiary banks
in amounts or at times that could adversely affect its ability to also fulfil its obligations under the
Notes.
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A reduction of the Issuer's and/or, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor's and/or,
where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor's ratings may reduce the market value and
liquidity of the relevant Notes.

The value of the Notes is expected to be affected, in part, by investors' general appraisal of the Issuer's,
the CGMHI Guarantor's, the CGMFL Guarantor's and/or their affiliates' creditworthiness. Such
perceptions are generally influenced by the ratings accorded to the outstanding securities of the
relevant Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantor and/or any of their affiliates by standard
statistical rating services, such as Moody's, S&P and Fitch. A reduction in the rating, if any, accorded
to outstanding debt securities (if any) of the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantor
and/or the securities issued by any of their affiliates by one of these rating agencies could result in a
reduction in the trading value of the Notes.

Each rating agency may reduce, suspend or withdraw any such credit ratings of an Issuer, the CGMHI
Guarantor and/or the CGMFL Guarantor at any time in the future if, in its judgment, circumstances
warrant a change. No rating agency is obligated to maintain its ratings at their current levels. If a rating
agency reduces, suspends or withdraws its rating of an Issuer and/or, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the
CGMHI Guarantor and/or, where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor or any affiliate thereof,
the liquidity and market value of the Notes of the Issuer are likely to be adversely affected.

The credit rating agencies continuously review the ratings of Citi (as defined below) and its
subsidiaries, and reductions in Citi's and its subsidiaries' credit ratings could have a significant and
immediate impact on Citi's funding and liquidity through cash obligations, reduced funding capacity
and collateral triggers.

Citi's long-term/short-term senior debt ratings are currently rated investment grade by Fitch, Moody's
and S&P. The rating agencies continuously evaluate Citi and its subsidiaries, and their ratings of Citi's
and its subsidiaries' long-term and short-term debt are based on a number of factors, including financial
strength, as well as factors not entirely within the control of Citi and its subsidiaries, such as conditions
affecting the financial services industry generally.

Citi and its subsidiaries may not be able to maintain their current respective ratings. Ratings
downgrades by Fitch, Moody's or S&P could have a significant and immediate impact on Citi's funding
and liquidity through cash obligations, reduced funding capacity and derivative triggers and additional
margin requirements. Ratings downgrades could also have a negative impact on other funding sources,
such as secured financing and other margin requirements, for which there are no explicit triggers. Some
entities may also have ratings limitations as to their permissible counterparties, of which Citi may or
may not be aware. A reduction in Citi's or its subsidiaries' credit ratings could also widen Citi's credit
spreads or otherwise increase its borrowing costs and limit its access to the capital markets.

Credit Ratings — Rating Agencies of the Issuers, the CGMHI Guarantor and the CGMFL Guarantor

Citigroup Inc. has a long term/short term senior debt rating of BBB+/A-2 by S&P, A3/P-2 by Moody's
and A/F1 by Fitch. CGMHI has a long term/short term senior debt rating of BBB+/A-2 by S&P,
A3/P-2 by Moody's and A/F1 by Fitch. CGMFL has a long term/short term senior debt rating of
A+/A-1 by S&P and A/F1 by Fitch. CGML has a long term/short term senior debt rating of A+/A-1 by
S&P, A1/P-1 by Moody's and A/F1 by Fitch. The rating of a specific Tranche of Notes may be
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

S&P is not established in the European Union and has not applied for registration under the CRA
Regulation. The S&P ratings have been endorsed by S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited (SPGRE).
SPGRE is established in the European Union and registered under the CRA Regulation. As such
SPGRE is included in the list of credit rating agencies published by the European Securities Market
Authority (ESMA) on its website (at
http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-CRAS) in accordance with the CRA
Regulation. ESMA has indicated that ratings issued in the United States of America which have been
endorsed by SPGRE may be used in the European Union by the relevant market participants.

Moody's is not established in the European Union and has not applied for registration under the CRA
Regulation. The Moody's ratings have been endorsed by Moody's Investors Service Ltd. in accordance
with the CRA Regulation. Moody's Investors Service Ltd. is established in the European Union and
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registered under the CRA Regulation. As such, Moody's Investors Service Ltd. is included in the list of
credit rating agencies published by ESMA on its website (at
http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-CRAs) in accordance with the CRA
Regulation. ESMA has indicated that ratings issued in the United States of America which have been
endorsed by Moody's Investors Service Ltd. may be used in the European Union by the relevant market
participants.

Fitch is not established in the European Union and has not applied for registration under the CRA
Regulation. The Fitch ratings have been endorsed by Fitch Ratings Limited in accordance with the
CRA Regulation. Fitch Ratings Limited is established in the European Union and registered under the
CRA Regulation. As such, Fitch Ratings Limited is included in the list of credit rating agencies
published by ESMA on its website (at
http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-CRAs) in accordance with the CRA
Regulation. ESMA has indicated that ratings issued in the United States of America which have been
endorsed by Fitch Ratings Limited may be used in the European Union by the relevant market
participants.

Citi Resolution Plan (CSA, etc.) in relation to Notes issued by Citigroup Inc.

On 15 December 2016, the Federal Reserve issued a final total loss-absorbing capacity (TLAC) rule
that will require Citigroup Inc. to (i) maintain minimum levels of external TLAC and long-term debt
and (ii) adhere to various "clean holding company" requirements. Citigroup Inc. continues to review
and consider the implications of the final TLAC rule, including the impact of (w) the amount of its debt
securities issued prior to 31 December 2016 that will benefit from the grandfathering provided by the
final TLAC rule, (X) the effectiveness date of 1 January 2019 for all aspects of the final TLAC rule, (y)
a new anti-evasion provision that authorises the Federal Reserve to exclude from a holding company's
outstanding eligible long-term debt any debt having certain features that would, in the Federal
Reserve's view, "significantly impair" the debt's ability to absorb losses and (z) the consequences of
any breach of the external long-term debt or clean holding company requirements. In response to the
final TLAC rule, Citigroup Inc. has amended the Events of Default under the Notes, as required by the
final TLAC rule.

Under Title | of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the
Dodd-Frank Act), Citigroup has developed a "single point of entry" resolution strategy and plan under
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (the Resolution Plan). Under Citigroup Inc.'s Resolution Plan, only
Citigroup Inc., the parent holding company, would enter into bankruptcy, while Citigroup Inc.'s
material legal entities (as defined in the public section of its 2017 Resolution Plan, which can be found
on the Federal Reserve and FDIC websites) would remain operational and outside of any resolution or
insolvency proceedings. Citigroup Inc. believes its Resolution Plan has been designed to minimize the
risk of systemic impact to the U.S. and global financial systems, while maximizing the value of the
bankruptcy estate for the benefit of Citigroup Inc.'s creditors. In addition, in line with the Federal
Reserve's final total loss-absorbing capacity (TLAC) rule, Citigroup Inc. believes it has developed the
Resolution Plan so that in the event of a Citigroup Inc. bankruptcy or other resolution proceeding,
Citigroup Inc.'s losses and any losses incurred by its subsidiaries would be imposed first on Citigroup
Inc.'s shareholders and then on its unsecured creditors, including the holders of Notes issued by
Citigroup Inc.. Further, in a bankruptcy or other resolution proceeding of Citigroup Inc., any value
realized by holders of any Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. may not be sufficient to repay the amounts
owed on such Notes. For more information about the final TLAC rule and its consequences for debt
securities, you should refer to the section "Managing Global Risk — Liquidity Risks — Long-Term
Debt — Total Loss-Absorbing Capacity (TLAC)" in Citigroup Inc.'s most recent Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

In response to feedback received from the Federal Reserve and FDIC (together, the Agencies) on
Citigroup Inc.'s 2015 Resolution Plan, Citigroup Inc. took the following actions in connection with its
2017 Resolution Plan submission:

(i Citicorp LLC (Citicorp), an existing wholly-owned subsidiary of Citigroup Inc., was
established as an intermediate holding company (an IHC) for certain of Citigroup Inc.'s
operating material legal entities;
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(ii) Citigroup Inc. executed an inter-affiliate agreement with Citicorp, Citigroup Inc.'s operating
material legal entities and certain other affiliated entities pursuant to which Citicorp is
required to provide liquidity and capital support to Citigroup Inc.'s operating material legal
entities in the event Citigroup Inc. were to enter bankruptcy proceedings (the Citi Support
Agreement);

(iii) pursuant to the Citi Support Agreement:

. Citigroup Inc. made an initial contribution of assets, including certain high-quality
liquid assets and inter-affiliate loans (the Contributable Assets), to Citicorp, and
Citicorp became the business as usual funding vehicle for Citigroup Inc.'s operating
material legal entities;

o Citigroup Inc. will be obligated to continue to transfer Contributable Assets to
Citicorp over time, subject to certain amounts retained by Citigroup Inc. to, among
other things, meet Citigroup Inc.'s near-term cash needs;

. in the event of a Citigroup Inc. bankruptcy, Citigroup Inc. will be required to
contribute most of its remaining assets to Citicorp; and

(iv) the obligations of both Citigroup Inc. and Citicorp under the Citi Support Agreement, as well
as the Contributable Assets, are secured pursuant to a security agreement.

The Citi Support Agreement provides two mechanisms, besides Citicorp's issuing of dividends to
Citigroup Inc., pursuant to which Citicorp will be required to transfer cash to Citigroup Inc. during
business as usual so that Citigroup Inc. can fund its debt service — including payments due on Notes
issued by Citigroup Inc. — as well as other operating needs: (i) one or more funding notes issued by
Citicorp to Citigroup Inc.; and (ii) a committed line of credit under which Citicorp may make loans to
Citigroup Inc..

In addition to Citigroup Inc.'s required Resolution Plan under Title I of the Dodd-Frank Act, Title Il of
the Dodd-Frank Act grants the FDIC the authority, under certain circumstances, to resolve systemically
important financial institutions, including Citigroup Inc. This resolution authority is commonly
referred to as the FDIC's "orderly liquidation authority”. Under the FDIC's stated preferred "single
point of entry" strategy for such resolution, the bank holding company (Citigroup Inc.) would be placed
in receivership; the unsecured long-term debt and shareholders of the parent holding company would
bear any losses; and the operating subsidiaries would be recapitalized. The Notes may be fully
subordinated to interests held by the U.S. government in the event of a receivership, insolvency,
liquidation or similar proceeding with respect to Citigroup Inc., including a proceeding under the
"orderly liquidity authority" provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act.

Under the regulations of the Federal Reserve, a bank holding company is expected to act as a source of
financial strength for its subsidiary banks. As a result of this regulatory policy, the Federal Reserve
might require Citigroup Inc. to commit resources to its subsidiary banks when doing so is not otherwise
in the interests of Citigroup Inc. or its shareholders or creditors.

Citi Resolution Plan (CSA, etc.) in relation to Notes issued by Citigroup Global Markets Holdings
Inc.

Under Title | of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the
Dodd-Frank Act), Citigroup has developed a "single point of entry" resolution strategy and plan under
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (the Resolution Plan). Under Citigroup Inc.'s Resolution Plan, only
Citigroup Inc., the parent holding company, would enter into bankruptcy, while Citigroup Inc.'s
material legal entities (as defined in the public section of its 2017 Resolution Plan, which can be found
on the Federal Reserve and FDIC websites) would remain operational and outside of any resolution or
insolvency proceedings. Citigroup Inc. believes its Resolution Plan has been designed to minimize the
risk of systemic impact to the U.S. and global financial systems, while maximizing the value of the
bankruptcy estate for the benefit of Citigroup Inc.'s creditors. In addition, in line with the Federal
Reserve's final total loss-absorbing capacity (TLAC) rule, Citigroup Inc. believes it has developed the
Resolution Plan so that Citigroup Inc.'s shareholders and unsecured creditors — including creditors
claiming under the Citigroup Inc. guarantee of Notes issued by CGMHI — bear any losses resulting
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from Citigroup Inc. bankruptcy or other resolution proceeding. For more information about the final
TLAC rule and its consequences for debt securities, you should refer to the section "Managing Global
Risk — Liquidity Risks — Long-Term Debt — Total Loss-Absorbing Capacity (TLAC)" in Citigroup
Inc.'s most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In response to feedback received from the Federal Reserve and FDIC (together, the Agencies) on
Citigroup Inc.'s 2015 Resolution Plan, Citigroup Inc. took the following actions in connection with its
2017 Resolution Plan submission:

Q) Citicorp LLC (Citicorp), an existing wholly-owned subsidiary of Citigroup Inc., was
established as an intermediate holding company (an IHC) for certain of Citigroup Inc.'s
operating material legal entities;

(ii) Citigroup Inc. executed an inter-affiliate agreement with Citicorp, Citigroup Inc.'s operating
material legal entities and certain other affiliated entities pursuant to which Citicorp is
required to provide liquidity and capital support to Citigroup Inc.'s operating material legal
entities in the event Citigroup Inc. were to enter bankruptcy proceedings (the Citi Support
Agreement);

(iii) pursuant to the Citi Support Agreement:

. Citigroup Inc. made an initial contribution of assets, including certain high-quality
liquid assets and inter-affiliate loans (the Contributable Assets), to Citicorp, and
Citicorp became the business as usual funding vehicle for Citigroup Inc.'s operating
material legal entities;

o Citigroup Inc. will be obligated to continue to transfer Contributable Assets to
Citicorp over time, subject to certain amounts retained by Citigroup Inc. to, among
other things, meet Citigroup Inc.'s near-term cash needs;

. in the event of a Citigroup Inc. bankruptcy, Citigroup Inc. will be required to
contribute most of its remaining assets to Citicorp; and

(iv) the obligations of both Citigroup Inc. and Citicorp under the Citi Support Agreement, as well
as the Contributable Assets, are secured pursuant to a security agreement.

The Citi Support Agreement provides two mechanisms, besides Citicorp's issuing of dividends to
Citigroup Inc., pursuant to which Citicorp will be required to transfer cash to Citigroup Inc. during
business as usual so that Citigroup Inc. can fund its debt service as well as other operating
needs: (i) one or more funding notes issued by Citicorp to Citigroup Inc.; and (ii) a committed line of
credit under which Citicorp may make loans to Citigroup Inc..

Under the terms and conditions of the Notes, a Citigroup Inc. bankruptcy, insolvency or resolution
proceeding will not constitute an event of default with respect to any series of Notes issued by
Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. Moreover, it will not constitute an event of default with
respect to any series of Notes issued by Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. if the guarantee of the
Notes by Citigroup Inc. (as CGMHI Guarantor) ceases to be (or is claimed not to be) in full force and
effect for any reason, including by Citigroup Inc.'s insolvency or resolution. Should the Citigroup Inc.
guarantee no longer be in effect, Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. will become the sole obligor
under its Notes, and there can be no assurance that it would be able to continue to meet its obligations
under such Notes.

In the event that Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. also enters bankruptcy, at the time of
Citigroup Inc.'s bankruptcy filing or at a later time, holders of Notes issued by Citigroup Global
Markets Holdings Inc. would be unsecured creditors of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the Citigroup Inc.
guarantee and, accordingly, cannot be assured that the Citigroup Inc. guarantee would protect them
against losses resulting from a default by Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc.

The Banking Act confers substantial powers on a number of UK authorities designed to enable them
to take a range of actions in relation to UK banks, UK building societies, UK investment firms and
UK recognised central counterparties which are considered to be at risk of failing. The exercise of

15
0012230-0017435 ICM:34056498.7B



RISK FACTORS

any of these actions in relation to the CGMFL Guarantor could materially adversely affect the value
of any Notes issued by CGMFL

Under the Banking Act 2009 (the Banking Act), substantial powers are granted to HM Treasury, the
Bank of England, the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority (together,
the Authorities) as part of a special resolution regime (the SRR). These powers can be exercised, as
applicable, by the Authorities in respect of a UK bank, UK building society, UK investment firm (such
as the CGMFL Guarantor) or UK recognised central counterparty (each a relevant entity) in
circumstances in which the Authorities consider its failure has become likely and if certain other
conditions are satisfied (depending on the relevant power) for example, to protect and enhance the
stability of the financial system of the UK.

The SRR consists of five stabilisation options and two special insolvency procedures (bank
administration and bank insolvency) which may be commenced by HM Treasury, the Bank of England,
the Prudential Regulation Authority or Secretary of State, as the case may be. The stabilisation options
provide for: (i) private sector transfer of all or part of the business of the relevant entity; (ii) transfer of
all or part of the business of the relevant entity to a bridge bank wholly owned by the Bank of England;
(iii) transfer of all or part of the business of the relevant entity to an asset management vehicle owned
and controlled by the Bank of England; (iv) writing down certain claims of unsecured creditors of the
relevant entity and/or converting certain unsecured debt claims to equity, (the bail-in option), which
equity could also be subject to any future cancellation, transfer or dilution; and (v) temporary public
ownership (nationalisation) of all or part of the relevant entity or any UK holding company. In each
case, the Authorities have wide powers under the Banking Act including powers to modify contractual
arrangements in certain circumstances and powers for HM Treasury to disapply or modify laws (with
possible retroactive effect) to enable the stabilisation powers under the Banking Act to be used
effectively.

The paragraphs below set out some of the possible consequences of the exercise of the powers under
the SRR.

The SRR may be triggered prior to insolvency of the CGMFL Guarantor

The purpose of the stabilising options is to address the situation where all or part of a business of a
relevant entity has encountered, or is likely to encounter, financial difficulties, giving rise to wider
public interest concerns. Accordingly, the relevant stabilisation options may be exercised if (a) the
relevant Authority is satisfied that a relevant entity (such as the CGMFL Guarantor) is failing, or is
likely to fail, (b) following consultation with the other Authorities, the relevant Authority determines
that it is not reasonably likely that (ignoring the stabilising options) action will be taken that will result
in the condition referred to in (a) ceasing to be met and (c) the Authorities consider the exercise of the
stabilisation options to be necessary, having regard to certain public interest considerations (such as the
stability of the UK financial system, public confidence in the UK banking system and the protection of
depositors). It is therefore possible that one of the stabilisation options could be exercised prior to the
point at which any insolvency proceedings with respect to the relevant entity could be initiated.

The terms of the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee may be modified without the consent of the holders of
Notes issued by CGMFL

If the stabilisation options were exercised under the SRR in respect of the CGMFL Guarantor, HM
Treasury or the Bank of England may exercise extensive powers including, share transfer powers
(applying to a wide range of securities), property transfer powers (including powers for partial transfers
of property, rights and liabilities subject to certain protections in respect of the CGMFL Guarantor) and
resolution instrument powers (including powers to make special bail-in provisions subject to certain
protections afforded under The Banking Act 2009 (Restriction of Special Bail-in Provision, etc.) Order
2014). Exercise of these powers could involve taking various actions in relation to the CGMFL Deed
of Guarantee without the consent of the holders of Notes issued by CGMFL, including (among other
things) modifying or disapplying the terms of the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee.

The taking of any such actions could adversely affect the rights of holders of Notes issued by CGMFL,
the price or value of their investment in such Notes and/or the ability of the CGMFL Guarantor to
satisfy its obligations under the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee. In such circumstances, holders of Notes
issued by CGMFL may have a claim for compensation under one of the compensation schemes
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existing under, or contemplated by, the Banking Act, but there can be no assurance that such holders
would thereby recover compensation promptly or equal to any loss actually incurred.

A partial transfer of the CGMFL Guarantor's business may result in a deterioration of its
creditworthiness

If the CGMFL Guarantor were made subject to the SRR and a partial transfer of its business to another
entity were effected, the quality of the assets and the quantum of the liabilities not transferred and
remaining with the CGMFL Guarantor (which may include the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee) will result
in a deterioration in the creditworthiness of the CGMFL Guarantor and, as a result, increase the risk
that it will be unable to meet its obligations in respect of the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee and/or
eventually become subject to administration proceedings pursuant to the Banking Act. In such
circumstances, holders of Notes issued by CGMFL may have a claim for compensation under one of
the compensation schemes existing under, or contemplated by, the Banking Act, but there can be no
assurance that holders of Notes issued by CGMFL would thereby recover compensation promptly or
equal to any loss actually incurred.

As at the date of this Offering Circular, the relevant Authorities have not made an instrument or order
under the Banking Act in respect of the CGMFL Guarantor and there has been no indication that they
will make any such instrument or order. However, there can be no assurance that this will not change
and/or that holders of Notes issued by CGMFL will not be adversely affected by any such order or
instrument if made.

The European Parliament and the Council of the European Union have adopted a bank recovery
and resolution directive which is intended to enable a range of actions to be taken among others in
relation to credit institutions, investment firms, certain financial institutions and certain financial or
mixed-activity holding companies (each a relevant entity) considered to be at risk of failing. The
directive as implemented into Luxembourg law or the taking of any action under it could materially
affect the value of any Notes issued by CGMFL.

Directive 2014/59/EU providing for the establishment of an EU-wide framework for the recovery and
resolution of credit institutions and investment firms (the Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive or
BRRD) is designed to provide authorities with a credible set of tools to intervene sufficiently early and
quickly in an unsound or failing relevant entity. This is so as to ensure the continuity of the relevant
entity's critical financial and economic functions, while minimising the impact of a relevant entity's
failure on the economy and financial system.

Implementation of BRRD in Luxembourg

The BRRD was transposed into Luxembourg law by the Luxembourg act dated 18 December 2015 on
the recovery, resolution and liquidation of credit institutions and certain investment firms and on
deposit guarantee and investor compensation schemes, as amended (the BRR Act 2015). Under the
BRR Act 2015, the competent authority is the Commission de surveillance du secteur financier (the
CSSF) and the resolution authority is the CSSF acting as resolution council (Conseil de résolution) (the
Resolution Council).

The BRR Act 2015 contains four resolution tools and powers which may be used alone or in
combination where the Resolution Council considers that (a) a relevant entity is failing or likely to fail,
(b) there is no reasonable prospect that any alternative private sector measures would prevent the
failure of such relevant entity within a reasonable timeframe, and (c) a resolution action is necessary in
the public interest.

In particular, the BRR Act 2015 provides for certain resolution measures, including the power to
impose in certain circumstances a suspension of activities. Any suspension of activities can, to the
extent determined by the Resolution Council, result in the partial or complete suspension of the
performance of agreements entered into by a Luxembourg incorporated in-scope relevant entity (such
as CGMFL). The BRR Act 2015 also grants the power to the Resolution Council to take a number of
resolution measures including (i) a forced sale of a Luxembourg incorporated in-scope entity (sale of
business), which enables the Resolution Council to direct the sale of the Luxembourg incorporated
in-scope entity or all or part of its business on commercial terms, (ii) the establishment of a bridge
institution, which may limit the capacity of a Luxembourg incorporated in-scope entity to meet its
repayment obligations, (iii) the forced transfer of all or part of the assets, rights or obligations of a
Luxembourg incorporated in-scope entity (asset separation), which enables the Resolution Council to
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transfer (impaired or problem) assets rights or liabilities to one or more publicly owned asset
management vehicles to allow them to be managed with a view to maximising their value through
eventual sale or orderly wind-down (this can be used together with another resolution tool only) and
(iv) the application of the general bail-in tool, which gives the Resolution Council the power, among
others, to write down certain claims of unsecured creditors of a failing Luxembourg incorporated
in-scope entity (which write-down may result in the reduction of such claims to zero) and to convert
certain unsecured debt claims (including Notes issued by CGMFL) to equity or other instruments of
ownership, which equity or other instruments could also be subject to any future cancellation, transfer
or dilution. The powers set out in the BRR Act 2015 will impact how in-scope credit institutions,
investment firms or relevant entities (such as CGMFL) established in Luxembourg, are managed as
well as, in certain circumstances, the rights of creditors.

If the general bail-in tool and the statutory write-down and conversion power become applicable to
CGMFL, Notes issued by CGMFL may be subject to write-down or conversion into equity (ordinary
shares or other instrument of ownership for the purpose of stabilisation and loss absorption) on any
application of the bail-in tool, which may result in holders of such Notes losing some or all of their
investment (notably, the amount of the relevant outstanding Notes may be reduced, including to zero).
Subject to certain conditions, the terms of the obligations owed under the Notes may also be varied by
the Resolution Council (e.g. as to maturity, interest and interest payment dates) and the payments may
be suspended for a certain period. The exercise of any power under the BRR Act 2015 or any
suggestion of such exercise could materially adversely affect the rights of the holders of Notes issued
by CGMFL, the price or value of their investment in any such Notes and/or the ability of CGMFL to
satisfy its obligations under any such Notes.

Any application of the general bail-in tool under the BRR Act 2015 shall be in accordance with the
hierarchy of claims in Luxembourg insolvency proceedings generally applicable to credit institutions,
investment firms or relevant entities. Accordingly, the impact of such application on holders of Notes
issued by CGMFL will depend on their ranking in accordance with such hierarchy, including any
priority given to other creditors such as depositors (if any).

The BRR Act 2015 has been amended by the Luxembourg act dated 25 July 2018, which transposed
Directive (EU) 2017/2399 amending the BRRD as regards the ranking of unsecured debt instruments in
the insolvency hierarchy. The main amendment concerns the creation of a new rank of non-preferred
senior debt within the insolvency hierarchy, which can be bailed-in in resolution after capital
instruments but before other senior liabilities.

To the extent any resulting treatment of holders of Notes issued by CGMFL pursuant to the exercise of
the general bail-in tool is less favourable than would have been the case under such hierarchy in normal
Luxembourg insolvency proceedings (i.e. not governed by the BRR Act 2015), a holder of Notes has a
right to compensation under the BRR Act 2015 based on an independent valuation of the Luxembourg
incorporated in-scope entity (which is referred to as the "no creditor worse off" safeguard under the
BRRD). There is likely to be a considerable delay in the recovery of such compensation. Compensation
payments (if any) are also likely to be made considerably later than when amounts may otherwise have
been due under such Notes.

Regulation (EU) no. 806/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 July 2014
establishing uniform rules and a uniform procedure for the resolution of significant credit institutions
and financial groups, in the framework of a Single Resolution Mechanism and a Single Resolution
Fund (the SRM Regulation), established a centralised power of resolution and entrusted to a Single
Resolution Board and to the national resolution authorities of participating EU Member States
(including Luxembourg and the CSSF through the Resolution Council). Since 1 January 2015, the
Single Resolution Board works in close cooperation with the Resolution Council, in particular in
relation to the elaboration of resolution planning, and has assumed full resolution powers since 1
January 2016.

The current regime will evolve as a result of further changes adopted by EU legislators. On 7 June
2019, as part of the contemplated amendments to the BRRD, SRM Regulation, Regulation (EU) No
575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential requirements
for credit institutions and investment firms (CRR) and Directive 2013/36/EU of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on access to the activity of credit institutions and the
prudential supervision of credit institutions and investment firms (CRD 1V), the following legislative
texts have been published in the EU's Official Journal:
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(i) Directive (EU) 2019/879 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2019
amending Directive 2014/59/EU as regards the loss-absorbing and recapitalisation capacity of
credit institutions and investment firms and Directive 98/26/EC (BRRD I1),

(ii) Regulation (EU) 2019/877 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2019
amending Regulation (EU) No 806/2014 as regards the loss-absorbing and recapitalisation
capacity of credit institutions and investment firms (SRM Il Regulation),

(iii) Regulation (EU) 2019/876 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2019
amending Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 as regards the leverage ratio, the net stable funding
ratio, requirements for own funds and eligible liabilities, counterparty credit risk, market risk,
exposures to central counterparties, exposures to collective investment undertakings, large
exposures, reporting and disclosure requirements, and Regulation (EU) No 648/2012 (CRR
11), and

(iv) Directive (EU) 2019/878 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2019
amending Directive 2013/36/EU as regards exempted entities, financial holding companies,
mixed financial holding companies, remuneration, supervisory measures and powers and
capital conservation measures (CRD V and, together with BRRD Il, SRM Il Regulation and
CRR I, the BRRD II reforms).

The BRRD Il reforms will introduce, among other things, the Total Loss-absorbing Capacity
provisions (the TLAC standard) as implemented by the Financial Stability Board, by adapting the
existing BRRD regime relating to the specific minimum requirements for own funds and eligible
liabilities (MREL).

In particular, the external TLAC standard will set out the minimum requirements for own funds and
eligible liabilities of the institutions identified as resolution entities, while the internal TLAC standard
will set out the minimum requirements applying to material subsidiaries of non-EU global systemically
important insurers (hon-EU G-SllIs) that are not resolution entities. The new MREL regime will be
aligned with TLAC standard requirements in terms of calculation of loss absorption and
recapitalisation amount. The eligible liabilities under MREL will be determined according to the
provisions concerning the eligible liabilities under TLAC standard. This requirement may therefore
have an impact on the financial performance of CGMFL and the Citi group as a whole.

The BRRD Il reforms also provide for the introduction of a new pre-resolution moratorium tool as a
temporary measure in an early stage and new suspension powers which the Resolution Council can use
within the resolution period. Any suspension of activities can, as stated above, result in the partial or
complete suspension of the performance of agreements (including any payment or delivery obligation)
entered into by the respective credit or financial institution (such as CGMFL). The exercise of any
such power or any suggestion of such exercise could materially adversely affect the rights of the
holders of Notes issued by CGMFL, the price or value of their investment in any such Note and/or the
ability of CGMFL to satisfy its obligations under any such Note.

Risks relating to the exercise of any bail-in power by the relevant resolution authority in respect of
Notes issued by CGMFL and Noteholder agreement to be bound thereby

Each Noteholder of Notes issued by CGMFL (CGMFL Notes) (including each holder of a beneficial
interest in such CGMFL Notes) acknowledges, accepts, consents and agrees, notwithstanding any other
term of the CGMFL Notes or any other agreements, arrangements, or understandings between CGMFL
and such Noteholder, by its acquisition of such CGMFL Notes (a) to be bound by the effect of the
exercise of the bail-in power by the relevant resolution authority if the latter were to consider that the
amounts due under the CGMFL Notes would fall within the scope of the bail-in power. This bail-in
power may include and result in any of the following, or a combination thereof (i) the reduction of all,
or a portion, of the amounts due under the CGMFL Notes, (ii) the conversion of all, or a portion, of the
amounts due under the CGMFL Notes into shares, other securities or other obligations of CGMFL or
another person, including by means of an amendment, modification or variation of the terms and
conditions of the CGMFL Notes, in which case the Noteholder agrees to accept, in lieu of any rights
under the CGMFL Notes, any such shares, other securities or other obligations of CGMFL or another
person, (iii) the cancellation of the CGMFL Notes, (iv) the amendment or alteration of the maturity of
the CGMFL Notes or amendment of the amount of interest payable on the CGMFL Notes, or the date
on which the interest becomes payable, including by suspending payment for a temporary period, and
(b) if applicable, that the terms and conditions of the CGMFL Notes are subject to, and may be varied,
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if necessary, to give effect to, the exercise of the bail-in power by the relevant resolution authority.
Accordingly, any bail-in power may be exercised in such a manner as to result in Noteholders of the
CGMFL Notes losing all or a part of the value of their investment in the CGMFL Notes or receiving a
different security from the CGMFL Notes, which may be worth significantly less than the CGMFL
Notes and which may have significantly fewer protections than those typically afforded to debt
securities (and holders of those securities may be subject to liabilities to which they would not be
subject as the holder of debt securities). Moreover, the relevant resolution authority may exercise its
authority to implement the bail-in power without providing any advance notice to Noteholders of the
CGMFL Notes.

See Condition 22 of the General Conditions and also the risk factor "The European Parliament and the
Council of the European Union have adopted a bank recovery and resolution directive which is
intended to enable a range of actions to be taken among others in relation to credit institutions,
investment firms, certain financial institutions and certain financial or mixed-activity holding
companies (each a relevant entity) considered to be at risk of failing. The directive as implemented into
Luxembourg law or the taking of any action under it could materially affect the value of any Notes
issued by CGMFL" above.

The U.S. banking regulators have adopted rules mandating the inclusion of contractual stay
provisions in certain financial contracts, which are intended to mitigate the risk of destabilizing
closeouts of such contracts on the resolution of Citigroup Inc. and its subsidiaries. The inclusion of
these provisions into the Terms and Conditions of the Notes could materially adversely affect the
rights of Noteholders against Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, CGMFL or the CGMFL Guarantor in a
resolution scenario

In the autumn of 2017, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation and the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency issued rules (QFC Stay
Rules) designed to improve the resolvability and resilience of U.S. global systemically important
banking organisations (G-SIBs) and the U.S. operations of foreign G-SIBs, by mitigating the risk of
destabilizing closeouts of qualified financial contracts (QFCs) in resolution. Citigroup Inc. and its
subsidiaries, including CGMHI, CGMFL and the CGMFL Guarantor, are covered entities subject to
the QFC Stay Rules. Certain of the Notes (such Notes, Covered Instruments), the CGMHI Deed of
Guarantee and the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee — to the extent those guarantees relate to Covered
Instruments — may qualify as QFCs.

The QFC Stay Rules seek to eliminate impediments to the orderly resolution of a G-SIB both in a
scenario where resolution proceedings are instituted by the U.S. regulatory authorities under the
Federal Deposit Insurance Act or the Orderly Liquidation Authority under Title 11 of the Dodd Frank
Act ("OLA") (together, the U.S. Special Resolution Regimes) as well as in a scenario where the G-
SIB is resolved under ordinary insolvency proceedings. To address this, the QFC Stay Rules require
covered entities to ensure that their QFCs subject to the QFC Stay Rules (i) contain an express
contractual recognition of the statutory stay-and-transfer provisions of the U.S. Special Resolution
Regimes and (ii) do not contain cross-default rights against the covered entity based on an affiliate
becoming subject to any type of insolvency proceeding or restrictions on the transfer of any related
credit enhancements (including a guarantee) issued by an affiliate of the covered entity following the
affiliate’s entry into insolvency proceedings.

Acknowledgement of U.S. Special Resolution Regimes

To address these requirements, the Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes contain an express
contractual recognition that, in the event any of the relevant Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor and the
CGMFL Guarantor becomes subject to a proceeding under a U.S. Special Resolution Regime, the
transfer of the Covered Instruments, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee and the CGMFL Deed of
Guarantee (and the transfer of any interest and obligation in or under such Covered Instruments, the
CGMHI Deed of Guarantee or the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee) from the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor
or the CGMFL Guarantor, as applicable, will be effective to the same extent as the transfer would be
effective under such U.S. Special Resolution Regime.

In addition, the Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes contain an express contractual
recognition that, in the event any of the relevant Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantor
and any of their affiliates becomes subject to a proceeding under a U.S. Special Resolution Regime,
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default rights against the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor or the CGMFL Guarantor with respect to the
Covered Instruments, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee or the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee are permitted
to be exercised to no greater extent than they could be exercised under such U.S. Special Resolution
Regime. For these purposes, default rights include the right to terminate, liquidate or accelerate a
QFC or demand payment or delivery thereunder.

Each of Citigroup Inc., as a U.S. entity incorporated in Delaware, and CGMHI, as a U.S. entity
incorporated in the State of New York, could be placed into proceedings under OLA if certain
determinations are made by the applicable U.S. regulatory authorities. However, under the law in effect
as at the date of this Base Prospectus, although CGMFL and the CGMFL Guarantor are each "covered
entities" for the purposes of the QFC Stay Rules and are required to include the above described
acknowledgements in relevant QFCs, neither CGMFL nor the CGMFL Guarantor, as non-U.S. entities,
are eligible to be placed into proceedings under the U.S. Special Resolution Regimes.

See also "The Banking Act confers substantial powers on a number of UK authorities designed to
enable them to take a range of actions in relation to UK banks, UK building societies, UK investment
firms and UK recognised central counterparties which are considered to be at risk of failing. The
exercise of any of these actions in relation to the CGMFL Guarantor could materially adversely affect
the value of any Notes issued by CGMFL" and "The European Parliament and the Council of the
European Union have adopted a bank recovery and resolution directive which is intended to enable a
range of actions to be taken in relation to credit institutions, investment firms, certain financial
institutions and certain holding companies (each a relevant entity) considered to be at risk of failing.
The implementation of the directive under Luxembourg law or the taking of any action under it could
materially affect the value of any Notes issued by CGMFL" above.

Ability to Substitute the CGMHI Guarantor or the CGMFL Guarantor in Insolvency

In addition, the Terms and Conditions of the Notes explicitly provide that nothing in Condition 15 of
the General Conditions shall limit the ability of the CGMHI Guarantor or the CGMFL Guarantor to be
substituted upon or following the relevant entity becoming subject to a resolution, restructuring, or
reorganisation or similar proceeding.

As at the date of this Offering Circular, interpretation of the application of the relevant
requirements and market practice is continuing to evolve. If you are in any doubt about the
categorisation of any Notes as QFCs and the effect of any proceeding under a U.S. Special
Resolution Regime on such Notes, you should take advice from such professional advisers as you
may deem necessary.

OECD base erosion and profit shifting

In May 2013, the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) Council at
Ministerial Level adopted a declaration on base erosion and profit shifting urging the OECD's
Committee on Fiscal Affairs to develop an action plan to address base erosion and profit shifting in a
comprehensive manner and in July 2013 the OECD launched an Action Plan on Base Erosion and
Profit Shifting, identifying 15 specific actions to achieve this (the BEPS Project). These action points
relate to, amongst other things, restricting the deductibility of interest payments (Action 4), preventing
the granting of tax treaty benefits in inappropriate circumstances (Action 6) and preventing the
artificial avoidance of permanent establishment status (Action 7).

All of the action points have been subject to public consultation and on 5 October 2015 the OECD
Secretariat published 13 final reports and an explanatory statement outlining consensus actions. The
BEPS Project is expected to generate changes to tax policy and systems in numerous jurisdictions.
While some aspects of the BEPS Project have been provided for in some jurisdictions (such as in the
European Union by Council Directive (EU) 2016/1164 of 12 July 2016 laying down rules against tax
avoidance practices that directly affect the functioning of the internal market), it remains unclear the
extent to which actions will be implemented in other jurisdictions. It is not possible to assess at this
stage what impact the BEPS Project will have to the tax payable by Citi or whether there would be any
other adverse tax consequences, any of which could reduce amounts available for distribution to
Noteholders.

The following risk factors have been extracted from the ""Risk Factors' section of the Citigroup
Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference in this Offering Circular and reproduced
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without material amendment and references therein to ""Citigroup’ and "'Citi'* are to ""Citigroup
Inc. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries™ and other terms used but not defined therein are as
defined in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K.

STRATEGIC RISKS

Citi's Ability to Return Capital to Common Shareholders Consistent with Its Capital Planning
Efforts and Targets Substantially Depends on the CCAR Process and the Results of Regulatory
Stress Tests.

Citi's ability to return capital to its common shareholders consistent with its capital planning efforts and
targets, whether through its common stock dividend or through a share repurchase program,
substantially depends, among other things, on regulatory approval, including through the
Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review (CCAR) process required by the Federal Reserve Board
(FRB) and the supervisory stress tests required under the Dodd-Frank Act. The ability to return capital
also depends on Citi's results of operations and effectiveness in managing its level of risk-weighted
assets and GSIB surcharge. Citi's ability to accurately predict, interpret or explain to stakeholders the
outcome of the CCAR process, and thus to address any market or investor perceptions, may be limited
as the FRB's assessment of Citi's capital adequacy is conducted using the FRB's proprietary stress test
models, as well as a number of qualitative factors, including a detailed assessment of Citi's "capital
adequacy process," as defined by the FRB. For additional information on Citi's return of capital to
common shareholders in 2018 as well as the CCAR process, supervisory stress test requirements and
GSIB surcharge, see "Capital Resources—Overview" and "Capital Resources— Current Regulatory
Capital Standards—Stress Testing Component of Capital Planning" in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form
10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular.

The FRB has stated that it expects leading capital adequacy practices will continue to evolve and will
likely be determined by the FRB each year as a result of its cross-firm review of capital plan
submissions. Similarly, the FRB has indicated that, as part of its stated goal to continually evolve its
annual stress testing requirements, several parameters of the annual stress testing process may continue
to be altered, including the severity of the stress test scenario, the FRB modelling of Citi's balance sheet
and the addition of components deemed important by the FRB.

Additionally, in April 2018, the FRB proposed integration of the annual stress testing requirements
with on-going regulatory capital requirements. Proposed changes to the stress testing regime include,
among others, introduction of a firm-specific "stress capital buffer" (SCB), which would be equal to
the maximum decline in a firm's Common Equity Tier 1 Capital ratio under a severely adverse scenario
over a nine-quarter CCAR measurement period, subject to a minimum requirement of 2.5 per cent..
The FRB proposed that the SCB would replace the capital conservation buffer in the firm's on-going
regulatory capital requirements for Standardized Approach capital ratios. The SCB would be calculated
by the FRB using its proprietary data and modelling of each firm's results. Accordingly, a firm's SCB
would change annually based on the supervisory stress test results, thus potentially resulting in year-to-
year volatility in the calculation of the SCB. For additional information on the FRB's proposal,
including calculation of the SCB, see "Capital Resources—Regulatory Capital Standards
Developments” in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering
Circular.

Although various uncertainties exist regarding the extent of, and the ultimate impact to Citi from, these
changes to the FRB's stress testing and CCAR regimes, these changes would likely increase the level of
capital Citi is required or elects to hold, including as part of Citi's estimated management buffer, thus
potentially impacting the extent to which Citi is able to return capital to shareholders.

Citi, Its Management and Its Businesses Must Continually Review, Analyse and Successfully Adapt
to On-going Regulatory and Other Uncertainties and Changes in the U.S. and Globally.

Despite the adoption of final regulations in numerous areas impacting Citi and its businesses over the
past several years, Citi, its management and its businesses continually face on-going regulatory
uncertainties and changes, both in the United States of America (U.S.) and globally. While the areas of
on-going regulatory uncertainties and changes facing Citi are too numerous to list completely, various
examples include, but are not limited to (i) uncertainties and potential fiscal, monetary and regulatory
changes arising from the U.S. Presidential administration and Congress; (ii) potential changes to
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various aspects of the regulatory capital framework applicable to Citi (see the CCAR risk factor and
"Capital Resources—Regulatory Capital Standards Developments" in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-
K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular); and (iii) the terms of and other uncertainties
resulting from the United Kingdom's (U.K.) potential exit from the European Union (EU) (see the
macroeconomic challenges and uncertainties risk factor in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K
incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular).

On-going regulatory uncertainties and changes make Citi's and its management's long-term business,
balance sheet and budget planning difficult or subject to change. For example, the U.S. Presidential
administration has implemented and continues to discuss various changes to certain regulatory
requirements, which would require on-going assessment by management as to the impact to Citi, its
businesses and business planning. Business planning is required to be based on possible or proposed
rules or outcomes, which can change dramatically upon finalisation, or upon implementation or
interpretive guidance from numerous regulatory bodies worldwide, and such guidance can change.

Moreover, U.S. and international regulatory initiatives have not always been undertaken or
implemented on a coordinated basis, and areas of divergence have developed and continue to develop
with respect to the scope, interpretation, timing, structure or approach, leading to inconsistent or even
conflicting regulations, including within a single jurisdiction. For example, in 2016, the European
Commission proposed to introduce a new requirement for major banking groups headquartered outside
the EU (which would include Citi) to establish an intermediate EU holding company where the foreign
bank has two or more institutions (broadly meaning banks, broker-dealers and similar financial firms)
established in the EU. While the proposal mirrors an existing U.S. requirement for non-U.S. banking
organizations to form U.S. intermediate holding companies, if adopted, it could lead to additional
complexity with respect to Citi's resolution planning, capital and liquidity allocation and efficiency in
various jurisdictions. Regulatory changes have also significantly increased Citi's compliance risks and
costs (see the implementation and interpretation of regulatory changes risk factor in the Citigroup Inc.
2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular).

Citi's Ability to Utilize Its DTAs, and Thus Reduce the Negative Impact of the DTAs on Citi's
Regulatory Capital, Will Be Driven by Its Ability to Generate U.S. Taxable Income and by the
Provisions of and Guidance Issued in Connection with Tax Reform.

At 31 December 2018, Citi's net deferred tax assets (DTAS) were U.S.$22.9 billion, net of a valuation
allowance of U.S.$9.3 billion, of which U.S.$11.0 billion was excluded from Citi's Common Equity
Tier 1 Capital under the U.S. Basel Il rules (for additional information, see "Capital Resources—
Components of Citigroup Capital™ in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into
the Offering Circular). Of the net DTAs at 31 December 2018, U.S.$6.8 billion related to foreign tax
credit carry-forwards (FTCs), net of a valuation allowance. The carry-forward utilization period for
FTCs is 10 years and represents the most time-sensitive component of Citi's DTAs. The FTC carry-
forwards at 31 December 2018 expire over the period of 2019-2028. Citi must utilize any FTCs
generated in the then-current year tax return prior to utilizing any carry-forward FTCs.

The accounting treatment for realization of DTAS, including FTCs, is complex and requires significant
judgment and estimates regarding future taxable earnings in the jurisdictions in which the DTASs arise
and available tax planning strategies. Citi's ability to utilize its DTAs, including the FTC components,
will be dependent upon Citi's ability to generate U.S. taxable income in the relevant tax carry-forward
periods. Failure to realize any portion of the net DTAs would also have a corresponding negative
impact on Citi's net income and financial returns.

The U.S. Department of the Treasury (U.S. Treasury) issued proposed regulations in November 2018
regarding the required allocation of existing FTC carry-forwards to the appropriate FTC baskets as
redefined by the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (Tax Reform) and the allocation of the overall domestic loss
(ODL) to these FTC baskets. An ODL allows a company to characterise domestic income as income
from sources outside the U.S., which enables a taxpayer to use FTC carry-forwards and FTCs
generated in future years, assuming the generation of sufficient U.S. taxed income. If the final
regulations issued by the U.S. Treasury differ from the proposed regulations, the valuation allowance
against Citi's FTC carry-forwards would increase or decrease, depending upon the content of the final
regulations. Citi's net income would change by a corresponding amount. However, a change in
recognized FTC carry-forwards would not impact Citi's regulatory capital, given that such amounts are
already fully disallowed. Citi does not expect to be subject to the Base Erosion Anti-Abuse Tax
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(BEAT) added by Tax Reform. However, any final BEAT regulations could affect Citi's decisions as to
how to structure its non-U.S. operations, possibly in a less cost-efficient manner. Further, if BEAT
were to be applicable to Citi in any given year, it could have a significantly adverse effect on both Citi's
net income and regulatory capital.

For additional information on the impact of Tax Reform and on Citi's DTAs, including the FTCs, see
"Significant Accounting Policies and Significant Estimates—Income Taxes" in the Citigroup Inc. 2018
Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular and Notes 1 and 9 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering
Circular.

Citi's Interpretation or Application of the Complex Tax Laws to Which It Is Subject Could Differ
from Those of the Relevant Governmental Authorities, Which Could Result in the Payment of
Additional Taxes, Penalties or Interest.

Citi is subject to the various tax laws of the U.S. and its states and municipalities, as well as the
numerous non-U.S. jurisdictions in which it operates. These tax laws are inherently complex and Citi
must make judgments and interpretations about the application of these laws, including Tax Reform as
mentioned above, to its entities, operations and businesses. Citi's interpretations and application of the
tax laws, including with respect to Tax Reform, withholding tax obligations and stamp and other
transactional taxes, could differ from that of the relevant governmental taxing authority, which could
result in the payment of additional taxes, penalties or interest, which could be material.

Citi's Continued Investments and Efficiency Initiatives May Not Be as Successful as It Projects or
Expects.

Citi continues to leverage its scale and make incremental investments to deepen client relationships,
increase revenue and lower expenses. For example, Citi continues to make investments to enhance its
digital capabilities across the franchise, including digital platforms and mobile and cloud architecture.
Citi also has been investing in higher return businesses, such as the U.S. cards and wealth management
businesses in Global Consumer Banking (GCB) as well as equities and other businesses in Institutional
Clients Group (ICG). Citi also continues to execute on its investment of more than U.S.$1 billion in
Citibanamex through 2020. Further, Citi has been pursuing efficiency savings through various
technology and digital initiatives, location strategy and organizational simplification, which are
intended to self-fund Citi's incremental investment initiatives as well as offset growth-related expenses.

Citi's investments and efficiency initiatives are being undertaken as part of its overall strategy to meet
operational and financial objectives and targets, including operating efficiency and revenue and
earnings growth expectations. There is no guarantee that these or other initiatives Citi may pursue will
be as productive or effective as Citi expects, or at all. Citi's investment and efficiency initiatives may
continue to evolve as its business strategies and the market environment change, which could make the
initiatives more costly and more challenging to implement, and limit their effectiveness. Moreover,
Citi's ability to achieve expected returns on its investments and costs savings depends, in part, on
factors that it cannot control, such as macroeconomic conditions, customer, client and competitor
actions and on-going regulatory changes, among others.

A Deterioration in or Failure to Maintain Citi's Co- Branding or Private Label Credit Card
Relationships, Including as a Result of any Bankruptcy or Liquidation, Could Have a Negative
Impact on Citi's Results of Operations or Financial Condition.

Citi has co-branding and private label relationships through its Citi-branded cards and Citi retail
services credit card businesses with various retailers and merchants globally in the ordinary course of
business whereby Citi issues credit cards to customers of the retailers or merchants. Citi's co-branding
and private label agreements provide for shared economics between the parties and generally have a
fixed term. The five largest relationships, including Sears, constituted an aggregate of approximately
11 per cent. of Citi's revenues in 2018.

These relationships could be negatively impacted by, among other things, external factors outside the
control of either party to the relationship, such as the general economic environment, declining sales
and revenues or other operational difficulties of the retailer or merchant, termination due to a
contractual breach by Citi or by the retailer or merchant, or other factors, including bankruptcies,
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liquidations, restructurings, consolidations or other similar events. Over the last several years, a number
of U.S. retailers have continued to experience declining sales, which has resulted in significant
numbers of store closures and, in a number of cases, bankruptcies, as retailers attempt to cut costs and
reorganize. For example, as previously disclosed, Sears filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection in
October 2018. On 11 February 2019, after bankruptcy court approval, ESL Investments purchased
substantially all of Sears' assets on a going concern basis, including its credit card program agreement
with Citi (for further information, including certain potential impacts to Citi retail services, see "Global
Consumer Banking—North America GCB" in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by
reference into the Offering Circular). In addition, as has been widely reported, competition among card
issuers, including Citi, for these relationships is significant, and it has become increasingly difficult in
recent years to maintain such relationships on the same terms or at all. While various mitigating factors
could be available to Citi if any of these events were to occur-such as by replacing the retailer or
merchant or offering other card products—such events, particularly bankruptcies or liquidations, could
negatively impact the results of operations or financial condition of Citi-branded cards, Citi retail
services or Citi as a whole, including as a result of loss of revenues, increased expenses, higher cost of
credit, impairment of purchased credit card relationships and contract-related intangibles or other losses
(for information on Citi's credit card related intangibles generally, see Note 16 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering
Circular).

Macroeconomic and Geopolitical Challenges and Uncertainties Globally Could Have a Negative
Impact on Citi's Businesses and Results of Operations.

Citi has experienced, and could experience in the future, negative impacts to its businesses and results
of operations as a result of macroeconomic and geopolitical challenges, uncertainties and volatility. For
example, changes in U.S. trade policies, which have resulted in retaliatory measures from other
countries, could result in a reduction or realignment of trade flows among countries and negatively
impact businesses, sectors and economic growth rates. Additional areas of uncertainty include, among
others, geopolitical tensions and conflicts, natural disasters, election outcomes and other
macroeconomic developments, such as those involving economic growth rates, consumer confidence
and spending, employment rates and commodity prices.

Governmental fiscal and monetary actions, or expected actions, such as changes in interest rate policies
and any balance sheet normalization program implemented by a central bank to reduce the size of its
balance sheet could significantly impact interest rates, economic growth rates, the volatility of global
financial markets, foreign exchange rates and capital flows among countries. For example, in 2017, the
FRB began implementing a balance sheet normalization program to reduce the size of the central
bank's balance sheet, although there are various uncertainties regarding the ultimate size of the balance
sheet and its composition. Such actions could, among other things, result in higher interest rates.
Although Citi estimates its overall net interest revenue would generally increase due to higher interest
rates, higher rates could adversely affect Citi's funding costs, levels of deposits in its consumer and
institutional businesses and certain business or product revenues.

As a result of the U.K.'s 2016 referendum on exiting the EU, numerous uncertainties have arisen
regarding the U.K.'s potential exit from and future relationship with the EU. For example, the terms of
a withdrawal continue to be negotiated within the U.K. and between the U.K. and the EU, and it is
unclear whether the parties will be able to agree on terms prior to the scheduled exit. If no agreement is
reached on terms of an exit, it could result in what is commonly referred to as a “cliff-edge™ or "hard"
exit scenario. A hard exit scenario would result in the U.K. and EU losing reciprocal financial services
license-passporting rights and require the U.K. to deal with the EU as a third country regime, but
without an equivalence regime or transition period in place. A hard exit scenario could cause severe
disruptions in the movement of goods and services between the U.K. and EU countries and negatively
impact financial markets and the U.K. and EU economies. Citi's business and operations could be
impacted by these and other factors, including the preparedness and reaction of clients, counterparties
and financial markets infrastructure. For information about Citi's actions to manage the U.K.'s potential
exit from the EU, see "Managing Global Risk—Strategic Risk—Potential Exit of U.K. from EU" in the
Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular. Further, the
economic and fiscal situations of some EU countries have remained fragile, and concerns and
uncertainties remain in Europe over the resulting effects of the U.K.'s potential exit from the EU.
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These and other global macroeconomic and geopolitical challenges, uncertainties and volatilities have
negatively impacted, and could continue to negatively impact, Citi's businesses, results of operations
and financial condition, including its credit costs, revenues in its Markets and securities services and
other businesses, and Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (AOCI) (which would in turn
negatively impact Citi's book and tangible book value).

Citi's Presence in the Emerging Markets Subjects It to Various Risks as well as Increased
Compliance and Regulatory Risks and Costs.

During 2018, emerging markets revenues accounted for approximately 37 per cent. of Citi's total
revenues (Citi generally defines emerging markets as countries in Latin America, Asia (other than
Japan, Australia and New Zealand), Central and Eastern Europe, the Middle East and Africa).
Although Citi continues to pursue its target client strategy, Citi's presence in the emerging markets
subjects it to a number of risks, including sovereign volatility, election outcomes, regulatory changes
and political events, foreign exchange controls, limitations on foreign investment, socio-political
instability (including from hyperinflation), fraud, nationalization or loss of licenses, business
restrictions, sanctions or asset freezes, potential criminal charges, closure of branches or subsidiaries
and confiscation of assets. For example, Citi operates in several countries that have, or have had in the
past, strict foreign exchange controls, such as Argentina, that limit its ability to convert local currency
into U.S. dollars and/or transfer funds outside of the country. In prior years, Citi has also discovered
fraud in certain emerging markets in which it operates. Political turmoil and instability have occurred
in certain regions and countries, including Asia, the Middle East and Latin America, which have
required management time and attention in prior years (such as monitoring the impact of sanctions on
certain emerging market economies as well as on Citi's businesses and results of operations in affected
countries).

Citi's emerging markets presence also increases its compliance and regulatory risks and costs. For
example, Citi's operations in emerging markets, including facilitating cross border transactions on
behalf of its clients, subject it to higher compliance risks under U.S. regulations primarily focused on
various aspects of global corporate activities, such as anti-money laundering regulations and the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. These risks can be more acute in less-developed markets and thus
require substantial investment in compliance infrastructure or could result in a reduction in certain of
Citi's business activities. Any failure by Citi to comply with applicable U.S. regulations, as well as the
regulations in the countries and markets in which it operates as a result of its global footprint, could
result in fines, penalties, injunctions or other similar restrictions, any of which could negatively impact
Citi's results of operations and reputation (see the implementation and interpretation of regulatory
changes and legal and regulatory proceedings risk factors in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K
incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular).

Citi's Inability in Its Resolution Plan Submissions to Address Any Deficiencies ldentified or
Guidance Provided by the FRB and FDIC Could Subject Citi to More Stringent Capital, Leverage or
Liquidity Requirements, or Restrictions on Its Growth, Activities or Operations, and Could
Eventually Require Citi to Divest Assets or Operations.

Title | of the Dodd-Frank Act requires Citi to prepare and submit a plan to the FRB and the FDIC for
the orderly resolution of Citigroup (the bank holding company) and its significant legal entities, under
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the event of future material financial distress or failure. As previously
announced, Citi's next resolution plan submission is due 1 July 2019. On 20 December 2018, the FRB
and FDIC issued final guidance for the 2019 and subsequent resolution plan submissions for the eight
U.S. GSIBs, including Citi. For additional information on Citi's resolution plan submissions, see
"Managing Global Risk—Liquidity Risk" in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by
reference into the Offering Circular.

Under Title I, if the FRB and the FDIC jointly determine that Citi's resolution plan is not “credible"
(which, although not defined, is generally believed to mean the regulators do not believe the plan is
feasible or would otherwise allow the regulators to resolve Citi in a way that protects systemically
important functions without severe systemic disruption), or would not facilitate an orderly resolution of
Citi under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, and Citi fails to resubmit a resolution plan that remedies any
identified deficiencies, Citi could be subjected to more stringent capital, leverage or liquidity
requirements, or restrictions on its growth, activities or operations. If within two years from the
imposition of any requirements or restrictions Citi has still not remediated any identified deficiencies,
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then Citi could eventually be required to divest certain assets or operations. Any such restrictions or
actions would negatively impact Citi's reputation, market and investor perception, operations and
strategy.

Citi's Performance and the Performance of Its Individual Businesses Could Be Negatively Impacted
if Citi Is Not Able to Effectively Compete for Highly Qualified Employees.

Citi's performance and the performance of its individual businesses largely depends on the talents and
efforts of its highly skilled employees. Specifically, Citi's continued ability to compete in its
businesses, to manage its businesses effectively and to continue to execute its overall global strategy
depends on its ability to attract new employees and to retain and motivate its existing employees. If Citi
is unable to continue to attract and retain the most highly qualified employees, Citi's performance,
including its competitive position, the successful execution of its overall strategy and its results of
operations could be negatively impacted.

Citi's ability to attract and retain employees depends on numerous factors, some of which are outside of
its control. For example, the banking industry generally is subject to more comprehensive regulation of
executive and employee compensation than other industries, including deferral and claw-back
requirements for incentive compensation. Citi often competes in the market for talent with entities that
are not subject to such comprehensive regulatory requirements on the structure of incentive
compensation, including, among others, technology companies. Other factors that could impact Citi's
ability to attract and retain employees include its culture and the management and leadership of the
Company as well as its individual businesses, presence in the particular market or region at issue and
the professional opportunities it offers.

Financial Services Companies and Others as well as Emerging Technologies Pose Increasingly
Competitive Challenges to Citi.

Citi operates in an increasingly competitive environment, which includes both financial and non-
financial services firms, such as traditional banks, online banks, financial technology companies and
others. These companies compete on the basis of, among other factors, size, quality and type of
products and services offered, price, technology and reputation. Emerging technologies have the
potential to intensify competition and accelerate disruption in the financial services industry. Citi
competes with financial services companies in the U.S. and globally that continue to develop and
introduce new products and services. In recent years, non-financial services firms, such as financial
technology companies, have begun to offer services traditionally provided by financial institutions,
such as Citi. These firms attempt to use technology and mobile platforms to enhance the ability of
companies and individuals to borrow money, save and invest. To the extent Citi is not able to compete
effectively with these and other firms, Citi could be placed at a competitive disadvantage, which could
result in loss of customers and market share, and its businesses, results of operations and financial
condition could suffer. For additional information on Citi's competitors, see the co-brand and private
label cards risk factor in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering
Circular and "Supervision, Regulation and Other—Competition™ in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K
incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular.

Uncertainties Regarding the Possible Discontinuance of the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate
(LIBOR) or Any Other Interest Rate Benchmark Could Have Adverse Consequences for Market
Participants, Including Citi.

In 2017, the U.K. Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), noted that market conditions raised serious
questions about the future sustainability of LIBOR benchmarks. With the FCA securing voluntary
panel bank support to sustain LIBOR only until 2021, the future of LIBOR beyond 2021 remains
uncertain. In addition, following guidance provided by the Financial Stability Board (FSB), other
regulators have suggested reforming or replacing other benchmark rates with alternative reference
rates.

Given LIBOR's extensive use across financial markets, the transition away from LIBOR presents
various risks and challenges to financial markets and institutions, including Citi. Citi's consumer and
institutional businesses issue, trade, hold or otherwise use various products and securities that reference
LIBOR, including, among others, mortgages and other consumer loans, commercial loans, corporate
loans, various types of debt, derivatives and other securities. If not sufficiently planned for, the
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discontinuation of LIBOR or any other interest rate benchmark could result in increased financial,
operational, legal, reputational or compliance risks. For example, a significant challenge will be the
impact of LIBOR transition on contractual mechanics of floating rate financial instruments and
contracts that reference LIBOR and mature after 2021. Certain of these instruments and contracts do
not provide for alternative reference rates. Even if the instruments and contracts transition to alternative
reference rates, the new reference rates are likely to differ from the prior benchmark rates. While there
are a number of international working groups focused on transition plans and fall-back contract
language that seek to address market disruption and value transfer, replacement of LIBOR or any other
benchmark with a new benchmark rate could adversely impact the value of and return on existing
instruments and contracts. Moreover, replacement of LIBOR or other benchmark rates could result in
market dislocations and have other adverse consequences for market participants, including the
potential for increased costs, including by requiring Citi to pay higher interest on its obligations, and
litigation risks. For information about Citi's management of LIBOR transition risk, see "Managing
Global Risk—Strategic Risk—LIBOR Transition Risk" in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K
incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular.

CREDIT RISKS

Credit Risk and Concentrations of Risk Can Increase the Potential for Citi to Incur Significant
Losses.

Credit risk arises from Citi's lending and other businesses in both GCB and ICG. Citi has credit
exposures to counterparties in the U.S. and various countries and jurisdictions globally, including
end-of-period consumer loans of U.S.$331 billion and end-of-period corporate loans of
U.S.$354 billion at year-end 2018. A default by a borrower or counterparty, or a decline in the credit
quality or value of any underlying collateral, exposes Citi to credit risk. Various macroeconomic,
geopolitical and other factors, among other things, can increase Citi's credit risk and credit costs (for
additional information, see co-branding and private label credit card and macroeconomic challenges
and uncertainties risk factors in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the
Offering Circular). While Citi provides reserves for probable losses for its credit exposures, such
reserves are subject to judgments and estimates that could be incorrect or differ from actual future
events (see incorrect assumptions or estimates risk factor in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K
incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular). For additional information on Citi's credit and
country risk, see each respective business' results of operations in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K
incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular and "Managing Global Risk—Credit Risk" and
"Managing Global Risk—Strategic Risk Country Risk™ in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K
incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular and Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular.

Concentrations of risk, particularly credit and market risks, can also increase Citi's risk of significant
losses. As of year-end 2018, Citi's most significant concentration of credit risk was with the U.S.
government and its agencies, which primarily results from trading assets and investments issued by the
U.S. government and its agencies (for additional information, including concentrations of credit risk to
other public sector entities, see Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc.
2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular). Citi also routinely executes a
high volume of securities, trading, derivative and foreign exchange transactions with non-U.S.
sovereigns and with counterparties in the financial services industry, including banks, insurance
companies, investment banks, governments, central banks and other financial institutions. A rapid
deterioration of a large counterparty or within a sector or country where Citi has large exposures or
unexpected market dislocations could cause Citi to incur significant losses.

LIQUIDITY RISKS

The Maintenance of Adequate Liquidity and Funding Depends on Numerous Factors, Including
Those Outside of Citi's Control, Such as Market Disruptions and Increases in Citi's Credit Spreads.

As a global financial institution, adequate liquidity and sources of funding are essential to Citi's
businesses. Citi's liquidity and sources of funding can be significantly and negatively impacted by
factors it cannot control, such as general disruptions in the financial markets, governmental fiscal and
monetary policies, regulatory changes or negative investor perceptions of Citi's creditworthiness,
unexpected increases in cash or collateral requirements and the inability to monetize available liquidity
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resources. For example, Citi competes with other banks and financial institutions for deposits, which
represent Citi's most stable and lowest cost of long-term funding. The competitive environment has
increased for retail banking deposits, including as online banks and other competitors have increased
rates paid for deposits. More recently, as interest rates have increased, a growing number of customers
have transferred deposits to other products, including investments and interest bearing accounts, and/or
other financial institutions. This, along with slower industry growth in deposits, has resulted in a more
challenging environment for deposits. In addition, as interest rates continue to rise, financial
institutions, such as Citi, may have to raise the rates paid for deposits, thus increasing the cost of funds
and affecting net interest income and margin.

Moreover, Citi's costs to obtain and access secured funding and long-term unsecured funding are
directly related to its credit spreads. Changes in credit spreads constantly occur and are market driven,
including both external market factors and factors specific to Citi, and can be highly volatile. For
additional information on Citi's primary sources of funding, see "Liquidity Risk" in the Citigroup Inc.
2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular.

In addition, Citi's ability to obtain funding may be impaired if other market participants are seeking to
access the markets at the same time, or if market appetite is reduced, as is likely to occur in a liquidity
or other market crisis. A sudden drop in market liquidity could also cause a temporary or lengthier
dislocation of underwriting and capital markets activity. In addition, clearing organizations, central
banks, clients and financial institutions with which Citi interacts may exercise the right to require
additional collateral based on these market perceptions or market conditions, which could further
impair Citi's access to and cost of funding.

As a holding company, Citi relies on interest, dividends, distributions and other payments from its
subsidiaries to fund dividends as well as to satisfy its debt and other obligations. Several of Citi's U.S.
and non-U.S. subsidiaries are or may be subject to capital adequacy or other regulatory or contractual
restrictions on their ability to provide such payments, including any local regulatory stress test
requirements. Limitations on the payments that Citi receives from its subsidiaries could also impact its
liquidity.

The Credit Rating Agencies Continuously Review the Credit Ratings of Citi and Certain of Its
Subsidiaries, and Ratings Downgrades Could Have a Negative Impact on Citi's Funding and
Liquidity Due to Reduced Funding Capacity and Increased Funding Costs, Including Derivatives
Triggers That Could Require Cash Obligations or Collateral Requirements.

The credit rating agencies, such as Fitch, Moody's and S&P, continuously evaluate Citi and certain of
its subsidiaries, and their ratings of Citi and its more significant subsidiaries' long-term/ senior debt and
short-term/commercial paper, as applicable, are based on a number of factors, including standalone
financial strength, as well as factors not entirely within the control of Citi and its subsidiaries, such as
the agencies' proprietary rating methodologies and assumptions, and conditions affecting the financial
services industry and markets generally.

Citi and its subsidiaries may not be able to maintain their current respective ratings. Ratings
downgrades could negatively impact Citi's ability to access the capital markets and other sources of
funds as well as the costs of those funds, and its ability to maintain certain deposits. A ratings
downgrade could also have a negative impact on Citi's funding and liquidity due to reduced funding
capacity, as well as the impact of derivative triggers, which could require Citi to meet cash obligations
and collateral requirements. In addition, a ratings downgrade could also have a negative impact on
other funding sources, such as secured financing and other margined transactions for which there may
be no explicit triggers, as well as on contractual provisions and other credit requirements of Citi's
counterparties and clients, which may contain minimum ratings thresholds in order for Citi to hold
third-party funds.

Moreover, credit ratings downgrades can have impacts that may not be currently known to Citi or are
not possible to quantify. For example, some entities may have ratings limitations as to their permissible
counterparties, of which Citi may or may not be aware. Further, certain of Citi's corporate customers
and trading counterparties, among other clients, could re-evaluate their business relationships with Citi
and limit the trading of certain contracts or market instruments with Citi in response to ratings
downgrades. Changes in customer and counterparty behaviour could impact not only Citi's funding and
liquidity but also the results of operations of certain Citi businesses. For additional information on the
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potential impact of a reduction in Citi's or Citibank's credit ratings, see "Managing Global Risk—
Liquidity Risk" in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering
Circular.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

A Disruption of Citi's Operational Systems Could Negatively Impact Citi's Reputation, Customers,
Clients, Businesses or Results of Operations and Financial Condition.

A significant portion of Citi's operations relies heavily on the secure processing, storage and
transmission of confidential and other information as well as the monitoring of a large number of
complex transactions on a minute-by-minute basis. For example, through its GCB and treasury and
trade solutions and securities services businesses in ICG, Citi obtains and stores an extensive amount of
personal and client-specific information for its retail, corporate and governmental customers and clients
and must accurately record and reflect their extensive account transactions.

With the evolving proliferation of new technologies and the increasing use of the Internet, mobile
devices and cloud technologies to conduct financial transactions, large global financial institutions such
as Citi have been, and will continue to be, subject to an increasing risk of operational disruption or
cyber or information security incidents from these activities (for additional information on cyber-
security risk, see the discussion in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into
the Offering Circular). These incidents are unpredictable and can arise from numerous sources, not all
of which are in Citi's control, including, among others, human error, fraud or malice on the part of
employees, accidental technological failure, electrical or telecommunication outages, failures of
computer servers or other similar damage to Citi's property or assets. These issues can also arise as a
result of failures by third parties with which Citi does business, such as failures by Internet, mobile
technology and cloud service providers or other vendors to adequately safeguard their systems and
prevent system disruptions or cyber-attacks.

Such events could cause interruptions or malfunctions in the operations of Citi (such as the temporary
loss of availability of Citi's online banking system or mobile banking platform), as well as the
operations of its clients, customers or other third parties. Given Citi's global footprint and the high
volume of transactions processed by Citi, certain errors or actions may be repeated or compounded
before they are discovered and rectified, which would further increase these costs and consequences.
Any such events could also result in financial losses as well as misappropriation, corruption or loss of
confidential and other information or assets, which could negatively impact Citi's reputation,
customers, clients, businesses or results of operations and financial condition, perhaps significantly.

Citi and Third Parties’ Computer Systems and Networks Have Been, and Will Continue to Be,
Susceptible to an Increasing Risk of Continually Evolving, Sophisticated Cyber-security Activities
That Could Result in the Theft, Loss, Misuse or Disclosure of Confidential Client or Customer
Information, Damage to Citi's Reputation, Additional Costs to Citi, Regulatory Penalties, Legal
Exposure and Financial Losses.

Citi's computer systems, software and networks are subject to on-going cyber incidents such as
unauthorized access, loss or destruction of data (including confidential client information), account
takeovers, unavailability of service, computer viruses or other malicious code, cyber-attacks and other
similar events. These threats can arise from external parties, including cyber criminals, cyber terrorists,
hacktivists and nation state actors, as well as insiders who knowingly or unknowingly engage in or
enable malicious cyber activities.

Third parties with which Citi does business, as well as retailers and other third parties with which Citi's
customers do business, may also be sources of cyber-security risks, particularly where activities of
customers are beyond Citi's security and control systems. For example, Citi outsources certain
functions, such as processing customer credit card transactions, uploading content on customer-facing
websites, and developing software for new products and services. These relationships allow for the
storage and processing of customer information by third-party hosting of or access to Citi websites,
which could result in compromise or the potential to introduce vulnerable or malicious code, resulting
in security breaches impacting Citi customers. Furthermore, because financial institutions are becoming
increasingly interconnected with central agents, exchanges and clearing houses, including as a result of
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the derivatives reforms over the last few years, Citi has increased exposure to cyber-attacks through
third parties.

Citi has been subject to intentional cyber incidents from external sources over the last several years,
including (i) denial of service attacks, which attempted to interrupt service to clients and customers, (ii)
data breaches, which obtained unauthorized access to customer account data and (iii) malicious
software attacks on client systems, which attempted to allow unauthorized entrance to Citi's systems
under the guise of a client and the extraction of client data. While Citi's monitoring and protection
services were able to detect and respond to the incidents targeting its systems before they became
significant, they still resulted in limited losses in some instances as well as increases in expenditures to
monitor against the threat of similar future cyber incidents. There can be no assurance that such cyber
incidents will not occur again, and they could occur more frequently and on a more significant scale.

Further, although Citi devotes significant resources to implement, maintain, monitor and regularly
upgrade its systems and networks with measures such as intrusion detection and prevention and
firewalls to safeguard critical business applications, there is no guarantee that these measures or any
other measures can provide absolute security. Because the methods used to cause cyber-attacks change
frequently or, in some cases, are not recognized until launched or even later, Citi may be unable to
implement effective preventive measures or proactively address these methods until they are
discovered. In addition, given the evolving nature of cyber threat actors and the frequency and
sophistication of cyber activities they carry out, the determination of the severity and potential impact
of a cyber-incident may not occur for a substantial period until after the incident has been discovered.
Also, while Citi engages in certain actions to reduce the exposure resulting from outsourcing, such as
performing security control assessments of third-party vendors and limiting third-party access to the
least privileged level necessary to perform job functions, these actions cannot prevent all third-party
related cyber-attacks or data breaches.

Cyber incidents can result in the disclosure of personal, confidential or proprietary customer or client
information, damage to Citi's reputation with its clients and the market, customer dissatisfaction and
additional costs, including credit costs, to Citi, such as repairing systems, replacing customer payment
cards or adding new personnel or protection technologies. Regulatory penalties, loss of revenues,
exposure to litigation and other financial losses, including loss of funds, to both Citi and its clients and
customers and disruption to Citi's operational systems could also result from cyber incidents (for
additional information on the potential impact of operational disruptions, see the operational systems
risk factor in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular).
Moreover, the increasing risk of cyber incidents has resulted in increased legislative and regulatory
scrutiny of firms' cyber-security protection services and calls for additional laws and regulations to
further enhance protection of consumers' personal data.

While Citi maintains insurance coverage that may, subject to policy terms and conditions including
significant self-insured deductibles, cover certain aspects of cyber risks, such insurance coverage may
be insufficient to cover all losses.

For additional information about Citi's management of cyber-security risk, see "Managing Global
Risk—Operational Risk—Cyber-security Risk" in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by
reference into the Offering Circular.

Incorrect Assumptions or Estimates in Citi's Financial Statements Could Cause Significant
Unexpected Losses in the Future, and Changes to Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards
or Interpretations Could Have a Material Impact on How Citi Records and Reports Its Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require Citi to use certain assumptions and
estimates in preparing its financial statements, including reserves related to litigation and regulatory
exposures, valuation of DTAs, the estimate of the allowance for credit losses and the fair values of
certain assets and liabilities, among other items. If Citi's assumptions or estimates underlying its
financial statements are incorrect or differ from actual events, Citi could experience unexpected losses,
some of which could be significant.

Periodically, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issues financial accounting and
reporting standards that may govern key aspects of Citi's financial statements or interpretations thereof
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when those standards become effective, including those areas where Citi is required to make
assumptions or estimates. For example, the FASB's new accounting standard on credit losses (CECL),
which will become effective for Citi on 1 January 2020, will require earlier recognition of credit losses
on loans and held-to-maturity securities and other financial assets. The CECL methodology requires
that lifetime "expected credit losses” be recorded at the time the financial asset is originated or
acquired. The expected credit losses are adjusted each period for changes in expected lifetime credit
losses. The CECL methodology replaces the multiple existing impairment models under U.S. GAAP
that generally require that a loss be "incurred™" before it is recognized. For additional information on
this and other accounting standards, including the expected impacts on Citi's results of operations and
financial condition, see "Future Application of Accounting Standards" in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form
10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular.

Changes to financial accounting or reporting standards or interpretations, whether promulgated or
required by the FASB or other regulators, could present operational challenges and could require Citi
to change certain of the assumptions or estimates it previously used in preparing its financial
statements, which could negatively impact how it records and reports its financial condition and results
of operations generally and/or with respect to particular businesses. For additional information on the
key areas for which assumptions and estimates are used in preparing Citi's financial statements, see
"Significant Accounting Policies and Significant Estimates” in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K
incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular and Notes 1 and 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular.

Citi May Incur Significant Losses and Its Regulatory Capital and Capital Ratios Could Be
Negatively Impacted if Its Risk Management Processes, Strategies or Models Are Deficient or
Ineffective.

Citi utilizes a broad and diversified set of risk management and mitigation processes and strategies,
including the use of risk models in analysing and monitoring the various risks Citi assumes in
conducting its activities. For example, Citi uses models as part of its comprehensive stress testing
initiatives across Citi. Citi also relies on data to aggregate, assess and manage various risk exposures.
Management of these risks is made even more challenging within a global financial institution such as
Citi, particularly given the complex, diverse and rapidly changing financial markets and conditions in
which Citi operates as well as that losses can occur from untimely, inaccurate or incomplete processes
caused by unintentional human error.

These processes, strategies and models are inherently limited because they involve techniques,
including the use of historical data in many circumstances, assumptions and judgments that cannot
anticipate every economic and financial outcome in the markets in which Citi operates, nor can they
anticipate the specifics and timing of such outcomes. Citi could incur significant losses, and its
regulatory capital and capital ratios could be negatively impacted, if Citi's risk management processes,
including its ability to manage and aggregate data in a timely and accurate manner, strategies or models
are deficient or ineffective. Such deficiencies or ineffectiveness could also result in inaccurate
financial, regulatory or risk reporting.

Moreover, Citi's Basel |11 regulatory capital models, including its credit, market and operational risk
models, currently remain subject to on-going regulatory review and approval, which may result in
refinements, modifications or enhancements (required or otherwise) to these models. Modifications or
requirements resulting from these on-going reviews, as well as any future changes or guidance
provided by the U.S. banking agencies regarding the regulatory capital framework applicable to Citi,
have resulted in, and could continue to result in, significant changes to Citi's risk weighted assets.
These changes can negatively impact Citi's capital ratios and its ability to achieve its regulatory capital
requirements as it projects or as required.

COMPLIANCE RISKS

Ongoing Implementation and Interpretation of Regulatory Changes and Requirements in the U.S.
and Globally Have Increased Citi's Compliance Risks and Costs.

As referenced above, over the past several years, Citi has been required to implement a significant
number of regulatory changes across all of its businesses and functions, and these changes continue. In
some cases, Citi's implementation of a regulatory requirement is occurring simultaneously with
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changing or conflicting regulatory guidance, legal challenges or legislative action to modify or repeal
existing rules or enact new rules. Moreover, in many cases, these are entirely new regulatory
requirements or regimes, resulting in much uncertainty regarding regulatory expectations as to what is
definitely required in order to be in compliance. Accompanying this compliance uncertainty is
heightened regulatory scrutiny and expectations in the U.S. and globally for the financial services
industry with respect to governance and risk management practices, including its compliance and
regulatory risks (for a discussion of heightened regulatory expectations on "conduct risk" at, and the
overall "culture" of, financial institutions such as Citi, see the legal and regulatory proceedings risk
factor in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular). A
failure to resolve any identified deficiencies could result in increased regulatory oversight and
restrictions. All of these factors have resulted in increased compliance risks and costs for Citi.

Examples of regulatory changes that have resulted in increased compliance risks and costs include (i) a
proliferation of laws relating to the limitation of cross-border data movement and/or collection and use
of customer information, including data localization and protection and privacy laws, which also can
conflict with or increase compliance complexity with respect to other laws, including anti-money
laundering laws; and (ii) the FRB's "total loss absorbing capacity” (TLAC) requirements, including,
among other things, consequences of a breach of the clean holding company requirements, given there
are no cure periods for the requirements.

Extensive compliance requirements can result in increased reputational and legal risks, as failure to
comply with regulations and requirements, or failure to comply as expected, can result in enforcement
and/or regulatory proceedings (for additional discussion, see the legal and regulatory proceedings risk
factor in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular).
Additionally, increased and on-going compliance requirements and uncertainties have resulted in
higher costs for Citi. For example, Citi employed roughly 30,000 risk, regulatory and compliance staff
as of year-end 2018, out of a total employee population of 204,000, compared to approximately 14,000
as of year-end 2008 with a total employee population of 323,000. These higher regulatory and
compliance costs can impede Citi's on-going, business-as-usual cost reduction efforts, and can also
require management to reallocate resources, including potentially away from on-going business
investment initiatives, as discussed above.

Citi Is Subject to Extensive Legal and Regulatory Proceedings, Investigations and Inquiries That
Could Result in Significant Penalties and Other Negative Impacts on Citi, Its Businesses and Results
of Operations.

At any given time, Citi is defending a significant number of legal and regulatory proceedings and is
subject to numerous governmental and regulatory examinations, investigations and other inquiries. The
global judicial, regulatory and political environment has generally been unfavourable for large financial
institutions. The complexity of the federal and state regulatory and enforcement regimes in the U.S,,
coupled with the global scope of Citi's operations, also means that a single event or issue may give rise
to a large number of overlapping investigations and regulatory proceedings, either by multiple federal
and state agencies in the U.S. or by multiple regulators and other governmental entities in different
jurisdictions, as well as multiple civil litigation claims in multiple jurisdictions.

Moreover, U.S. and non-U.S. regulators have been increasingly focused on "conduct risk," a term used
to describe the risks associated with behaviour by employees and agents, including third-party vendors
utilized by Citi, that could harm clients, customers, investors or the markets, such as improperly
creating, selling, marketing or managing products and services or improper incentive compensation
programs with respect thereto, failures to safeguard a party's personal information, or failures to
identify and manage conflicts of interest. In addition to increasing Citi's compliance and reputational
risks, this focus on conduct risk could lead to more regulatory or other enforcement proceedings and
civil litigation, including for practices, which historically were acceptable but now receive greater
scrutiny. Further, while Citi takes numerous steps to prevent and detect conduct by employees and
agents that could potentially harm clients, customers, investors or the markets, such behaviour may not
always be deterred or prevented. Banking regulators have also focused on the overall culture of
financial services firms, including Citi. In addition to regulatory restrictions or structural changes that
could result from perceived deficiencies in Citi's culture, such focus could also lead to additional
regulatory proceedings.
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In addition, the severity of the remedies sought in legal and regulatory proceedings to which Citi is
subject has remained elevated. U.S. and certain international governmental entities have increasingly
brought criminal actions against, or have sought criminal convictions from, financial institutions, and
criminal prosecutors in the U.S. have increasingly sought and obtained criminal guilty pleas or deferred
prosecution agreements against corporate entities and other criminal sanctions from those institutions.
These types of actions by U.S. and international governmental entities may, in the future, have
significant collateral consequences for a financial institution, including loss of customers and business,
and the inability to offer certain products or services and/or operate certain businesses. Citi may be
required to accept or be subject to similar types of criminal remedies, consent orders, sanctions,
substantial fines and penalties, remediation and other financial costs or other requirements in the future,
including for matters or practices not yet known to Citi, any of which could materially and negatively
affect Citi's businesses, business practices, financial condition or results of operations, require material
changes in Citi's operations or cause Citi reputational harm.

Further, many large claims—both private civil and regulatory—asserted against Citi are highly
complex, slow to develop and may involve novel or untested legal theories. The outcome of such
proceedings is difficult to predict or estimate until late in the proceedings. Although Citi establishes
accruals for its legal and regulatory matters according to accounting requirements, Citi's estimates of,
and changes to, these accruals involve significant judgment and may be subject to significant
uncertainty, and the amount of loss ultimately incurred in relation to those matters may be substantially
higher than the amounts accrued. In addition, certain settlements are subject to court approval and may
not be approved.

For additional information relating to Citi's legal and regulatory proceedings and matters, including
Citi's policies on establishing legal accruals, see Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular.

RISKS RELATING TO NOTES

Prospective investors in Notes should determine whether an investment in Notes is appropriate in their
particular circumstances and should consult with their legal, business and tax advisers to determine the
consequences of an investment in Notes and to arrive at their own evaluation of the investment. In
particular, Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL and the CGMFL Guarantor
recommend that investors take independent tax advice before committing to purchase any Notes. None
of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL and the CGMFL Guarantor provides tax
advice and therefore responsibility for any tax implications of investing in any Notes rests entirely with
each investor. Investors should note that the tax treatment will differ from jurisdiction to jurisdiction.
Investors will assume and be solely responsible for any and all taxes of any jurisdiction or
governmental or regulatory authority, including (without limitation) any state or local taxes or other
similar assessment or charge that may be applicable to any payment in respect of the Notes.

An investment in Notes is only suitable for investors who:

@ have the requisite knowledge and experience in financial and business matters to evaluate the
merits and risks of an investment in Notes;

(b) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate such merits and
risks in the context of their financial situation;

(c) are capable of bearing the economic risk of an investment in Notes for an indefinite period of
time; and

(d) recognise that it may not be possible to dispose of Notes for a substantial period of time, if at
all.

Prospective investors in Notes should make their own independent decision to invest in Notes and as to
whether the investment in Notes is appropriate or proper for them based upon their own judgement and
upon advice from such advisers as they may deem necessary. Prospective investors in Notes should
not rely on any communication (written or oral) of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor,
CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor, any Dealer or any of their affiliates or their respective officers or
agents as investment advice or as a recommendation to invest in Notes, it being understood that
information and explanations related to Notes shall not be considered to be investment advice or a
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recommendation to invest in Notes. No communication (written or oral) received from Citigroup Inc.,
CGMHlI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor, any Dealer or any of their affiliates
or their respective officers or agents shall be deemed to be an assurance or guarantee as to the expected
results of an investment in Notes.

An investment in Notes involves risks and should only be made after assessing the direction, timing
and magnitude of potential future market changes (e.g. in the value of the security indices, inflation
indices, commaodity indices, commodities, shares, depositary receipts, exchange traded funds, mutual
funds, currencies, warrants, proprietary indices, dividend futures contracts, interest rates or other items
which comprise or relate to the Underlying(s)), as well as the terms and conditions of the Notes. More
than one risk factor may have simultaneous effects with regard to the Notes such that the effect of a
particular risk factor may not be predictable. In addition, more than one risk factor may have a
compounding effect, which may not be predictable. No assurance can be given as to the effect that any
combination of risk factors may have on the value of the Notes.

Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of Notes

A wide range of Notes may be issued under this Offering Circular. A number of these Notes may have
features which contain particular risks for potential investors. Set out below are a description of the
most common features. Investors must also refer to such risk factors to understand the particular risks
related to the features of the provisions for payment of interest (if any) and determination of the amount
payable and/or, as the case may be, assets deliverable on redemption or final settlement of the Notes
that may be issued under this Offering Circular.

Risks Relating to Renminbi Notes

Notes settled in Renminbi (Renminbi Notes) may be issued under the Programme. Renminbi Notes
contain particular risks for potential investors, including:

Renminbi is not completely freely convertible; there are significant restrictions on remittance of
Renminbi into and outside the PRC which may adversely affect the liquidity of Renminbi Notes.

Renminbi is not completely freely convertible at present. The government of the PRC (the PRC
Government) continues to regulate conversion between Renminbi and foreign currencies, including
the Hong Kong dollar. However, there has been significant reduction over the years by the PRC
government of control, particularly over trade transactions involving import and export of goods and
services as well as other frequent routine foreign exchange transactions. These transactions are known
as current account items.

Remittance of Renminbi by foreign investors into and out of the PRC for the purposes of capital
account items, such as capital contributions, is generally only permitted upon obtaining specific
approvals from, or completing specific registrations or filings with, the relevant authorities on a case-
by-case basis and is subject to a strict monitoring system. Regulations in the PRC on the remittance of
Renminbi into the PRC for settlement of capital account items are developing gradually.

Although starting from 1 October 2016, Renminbi has been added to the Special Drawing Rights (the
international reserve assets created by the International Monetary Fund to supplement its member
countries' official reserves) basket created by the International Monetary Fund and policies further
improving accessibility to Renminbi to settle cross-border transactions in foreign currencies were
implemented by (the PBOC the People's Bank of China, the central bank of the RPC) in 2018, there is
no assurance that the PRC Government will continue to gradually liberalise control over cross border
remittance of Renminbi in the future or that new regulations in the PRC will not be promulgated in the
future which have the effect of restricting or eliminating the remittance of Renminbi into or outside the
PRC. In the event that funds cannot be repatriated outside the PRC in Renminbi, this may affect the
overall availability of Renminbi outside the PRC and the ability of the Issuer to source Renminbi to
finance its obligations under Renminbi Notes.

There is only limited availability of Renminbi outside the PRC, which may affect the liquidity of
Renminbi Notes and the Issuer's ability to source Renminbi outside the PRC to service such
Renminbi Notes.
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As a result of the restrictions imposed by the PRC Government on cross border Renminbi fund flows,
the availability of Renminbi outside the PRC is limited. While the PBOC has entered into agreements
on the clearing of Renminbi business with financial institutions (each a RMB Clearing Bank),
including, but not limited to, Hong Kong and are in the process of establishing Renminbi clearing and
settlement mechanisms in a number of other jurisdictions (the Settlement Arrangements), the current
size of Renminbi denominated financial assets outside the PRC is limited.

There are restrictions imposed by the PBOC on Renminbi business participating banks in respect of
cross-border Renminbi settlement, such as those relating to direct transactions with PRC enterprises.
Furthermore, Renminbi business participating banks do not have direct Renminbi liquidity support
from the PBOC. The relevant RMB Clearing Bank only has access to onshore liquidity support from
the PBOC for the purpose of squaring open positions of participating banks for limited types of
transactions. The relevant RMB Clearing Bank is not obliged to square for participating banks any
open positions resulting from other foreign exchange transactions or conversion services and the
participating banks will need to source Renminbi from outside the PRC to square such open positions.

Although it is expected that the offshore Renminbi market will continue to grow in depth and size, its
growth is subject to many constraints as a result of PRC laws and regulations on foreign exchange.
There is no assurance that new PRC regulations will not be promulgated or the Settlement
Arrangements will not be terminated or amended in the future which will have the effect of restricting
availability of Renminbi outside the PRC. The limited availability of Renminbi outside the PRC may
affect the liquidity of the Renminbi Notes. To the extent the Issuer is required to source Renminbi
outside the PRC to service the Renminbi Notes, there is no assurance that the Issuer will be able to
source such Renminbi on satisfactory terms, if at all. If Renminbi is not available in certain
circumstances as described in the Conditions applicable to Renminbi Notes, the Issuer can make
payments in U.S. dollars or other specified currencies as set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Investment in Renminbi Notes is subject to exchange rate risks.

The value of Renminbi against the U.S. dollar and other foreign currencies fluctuates from time to time
and is affected by changes in the PRC and international political and economic conditions and by many
other factors. In August 2015, the PBOC implemented changes to the way it calculates the Renminbi’s
daily midpoint against the U.S. dollar to take into account market-maker quotes before announcing the
daily midpoint. This change, among others that may be implemented, may increase the volatility in the
value of the Renminbi against other currencies. All payments with respect to Renminbi Notes will be
made in Renminbi unless otherwise specified. As a result, the value of these Renminbi payments in
other foreign currency terms may vary with the prevailing exchange rates in the marketplace. If the
value of Renminbi depreciates against other foreign currencies, the value of investment in other
applicable foreign currency terms will decline.

In the event that access to Renminbi becomes restricted to the extent that, by reason of Renminbi
Inconvertibility, Renminbi Non-Transferability or Renminbi Illiquidity (as defined in the Conditions),
it is impossible, impractical, illegal or impracticable for the Issuer (or, if applicable, any party to a
Hedging Position), to pay or deliver any amounts or assets due in Renminbi, the Conditions allow the
Issuer or, as the case may be, the CGMHI Guarantor or the CGMFL Guarantor to delay such payment
in Renminbi until ten Business Days after such time the relevant Renminbi Currency Event ceases to
exist; to make payment in U.S. dollars or other specified foreign currency at the prevailing spot rate of
exchange; and/or to redeem the Notes by payment of the Early Redemption Amount in respect of each
Calculation Amount, all as provided in more detail in the Conditions. As a result, the value of these
Renminbi payments or deliveries may vary with the prevailing exchange rates in the marketplace. If
the value of Renminbi depreciates against the U.S. dollar or other foreign currencies, the value of a
holder's investment in U.S. dollar or other foreign currency terms will decline.

Payments in respect of Renminbi Notes will only be made to investors in the manner specified in the
terms and conditions of the relevant Notes.

Investors may be required to provide certification and other information (including Renminbi account
information) in order to be allowed to receive payments in Renminbi in accordance with the Renminbi
clearing and settlement system for participating banks in the Renminbi Settlement Centre(s). All
Renminbi payments to investors in respect of the Renminbi Notes will be made solely for so long as
the Renminbi Notes are represented by a Global Registered Note Certificates held in Euroclear and
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Clearstream, Luxembourg or any alternative clearing system, by transfer to a Renminbi bank account
maintained in the Renminbi Settlement Centre(s) in accordance with prevailing Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg rules and procedures. Other than described in the Conditions, neither the
Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor nor the CGMFL Guarantor can be required to make payment by any
other means (including in any other currency or in bank notes or by transfer to a bank account in the
PRC).

An investment in Renminbi Notes is subject to risk of change in the regulatory regime governing the
issuance of Renminbi Notes.

Renminbi Notes issuance is subject to laws and regulations of the relevant Renminbi Settlement
Centre(s). The PRC Government currently views Hong Kong as one of the key offshore RMB-settled
instrument centres and has established a cooperative relationship with Hong Kong's local government
to develop the RMB-settled instrument market. There can be no assurance that the PRC Government
will continue to encourage issuance of RMB-settled instruments outside of mainland China and any
change in the Chinese government's policy or the regulatory regime governing the issuance of
RMB-settled instruments may adversely affect the Renminbi Notes.

General risks and risks relating to Underlying(s)

Notes linked to Underlying(s) involve a high degree of risk, which may include, among others, interest
rate, foreign exchange, time value and political risks. Prospective purchasers of such Notes should
recognise that their Notes, other than any Notes having a minimum redemption value, may be
worthless on redemption. Purchasers should be prepared to sustain a total loss of the purchase price of
their Notes, except, if so indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement, to the extent of any minimum
redemption value attributable to such Notes. This risk reflects the nature of a Note as an asset which,
other factors held constant, may tend to decline in value over time and which may become worthless
when it matures (except to the extent of any minimum redemption value). See "Certain factors
affecting the value and trading price of Notes linked to Underlying(s)" below. Prospective purchasers
of such Notes should be experienced with respect to options and option transactions, should understand
the risks of transactions involving the relevant Notes and should reach an investment decision only
after careful consideration, with their advisers, of the suitability of such Notes in light of their
particular financial circumstances, the information set forth herein and the information regarding the
relevant Notes and the particular Underlying(s), as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

The risk of the loss of some or all of the purchase price of a Note linked to Underlying(s) upon
redemption means that, in order to recover and realise a return upon his or her investment, a purchaser
of a Note must generally be correct about the direction, timing and magnitude of an anticipated change
in the value of the relevant Underlying(s). Assuming all other factors are held constant, the more a
Note is "out-of-the-money" and the shorter its remaining term to maturity, the greater the risk that
purchasers of such Notes will lose all or part of their investment. The only means through which a
Noteholder can realise value from a Note prior to the maturity date in relation to such Note is to sell it
at its then market price in an available secondary market. See "The secondary market generally"”
below.

Prospective investors should understand that although the Notes do not create an actual interest in, or
ownership of, the relevant Underlying(s), the return on the Notes may attract certain of the same risks
as an actual investment in the relevant Underlying(s).

Fluctuations in the value or the yield (if applicable) or the relevant rates of exchange (if applicable) of
the relevant Underlying(s) will affect the value of the relevant Notes. Purchasers of Notes risk losing
their entire investment if the value of the relevant Underlying(s) does not move in the anticipated
direction.

Any lIssuer may issue several issues of Notes relating to particular Underlying(s). However, no
assurance can be given that any Issuer will issue any Notes other than the Notes to which the applicable
Pricing Supplement relates. At any given time, the number of Notes outstanding may be substantial.
Notes provide opportunities for investment and pose risks to investors as a result of fluctuations in the
value of the Underlying(s).
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All Notes will be unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer and all Notes issued by it will
rank equally among themselves and with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the
Issuer. The obligations of the CGMHI Guarantor under the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee will be
unsecured and unsubordinated and will rank pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the CGMHI Guarantor. The obligations of the CGMFL Guarantor under
the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee will be unsecured and unsubordinated and will rank pari passu with all
other outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the CGMFL Guarantor. The Issuer's
obligations under the Notes issued by it, the CGMHI Guarantor's obligations under the CGMHI Deed
of Guarantee and the CGMFL Guarantor's obligations under the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee represent
general contractual obligations of each respective entity and of no other person. Only Notes issued by
CGMHI will be guaranteed by the CGMHI Guarantor. Only Notes issued by CGMFL will be
guaranteed by the CGMFL Guarantor. Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. will not be guaranteed by any
entity.

In particular, except in certain circumstances where the Notes are Physical Delivery Notes, a Note will
not represent a claim against any Underlying and, in the event that the amount paid on redemption of
the Notes is less than the principal amount of the Notes, a Noteholder will not have recourse under any
relevant Note to any security indices, inflation indices, commodity indices, commodities, shares,
depositary receipts, exchange traded funds, mutual funds, currencies, warrants, proprietary indices,
dividend futures contracts, interest rates or other item which may comprise the relevant Underlying(s)
in respect of such Notes. The exposure to the relevant Underlying(s) is notional and an investment in
the Notes is not an investment in the relevant Underlying(s). Although the performance of the relevant
Underlying(s) will have an effect on the Notes, the relevant Underlying(s) and the Notes are separate
obligations of different legal entities. Investors will have no legal or beneficial interest in the relevant
Underlying(s). In addition, any Issuer and/or the CGMHI Guarantor and/or the CGMFL Guarantor
and/or any of their affiliates may enter into arrangements to hedge the Issuer's and/or the CGMHI
Guarantor's and/or the CGMFL Guarantor's obligations under the Notes and/or the CGMHI Deed of
Guarantee and/or the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee but are not required to do so. If they do so, any
Issuer and/or the CGMHI Guarantor and/or the CGMFL Guarantor and/or any such affiliate will have
certain rights under such hedging arrangements and may pursue actions and take steps that they deem
appropriate to protect their own interests under such hedging arrangements without regard to the
consequences for Noteholders. A Noteholder will not have recourse to the applicable counterparty
under any such hedging arrangements and any such hedging arrangements will not confer any rights or
entitlements on any Noteholders and will constitute separate obligations of the Issuer and/or the
CGMHI Guarantor and/or the CGMFL Guarantor and/or any such affiliate.

The Notes will only redeem at an amount equivalent to at least par if the applicable Pricing Supplement
provide that the Redemption Amount per Calculation Amount of such Notes at maturity is an amount
equivalent to at least the Calculation Amount of such Notes. Investors should note that all payments
under the Notes are subject to the credit risk of the Issuer and, where the Issuer is CGMHI, of the
CGMHI Guarantor or, where the Issuer is CGMFL, of the CGMFL Guarantor. Furthermore, the Notes
may be traded in the secondary market or redeemed early, and if so, the price for which a Note may be
sold or redeemed early may be less than the principal amount of such Note and/or an investor's initial
investment in such Notes.

Investors should note that, if the Notes provide that the Redemption Amount per Calculation Amount
of such Notes at maturity may be less than the Calculation Amount, such Notes may be redeemed at an
amount less than par. If the Notes are redeemed at less than par or the Notes are cancelled or repaid
early in accordance with their terms, the amount received by the relevant holders may be less than the
initial investment. Furthermore, any amount due to be paid or delivered is subject to the credit risk of
the Issuer and, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the credit risk of the CGMHI Guarantor or, where the
Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor.

Certain factors affecting the value and trading price of Notes linked to Underlying(s)

The amounts due and/or value of any assets to be delivered in respect of the Notes at any time prior to
the relevant maturity date is typically expected to be less than the trading price of such Notes at that
time. The difference between the trading price and such amounts due and/or value of any assets to be
delivered, as the case may be, will reflect, among other things, the "time value" of the Notes. The
"time value" of the Notes will depend partly upon the length of the period remaining to maturity and
expectations concerning the value of the Underlying(s). Notes offer hedging and investment
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diversification opportunities but also pose some additional risks with regard to interim value. The
interim value of Notes varies as the price or level of the Underlying(s) varies, as well as due to a
number of other interrelated factors, including those specified herein.

Before selling Notes, Noteholders should carefully consider, among other things, (i) the trading price of
the relevant Notes, (ii) the value and volatility of the Underlying(s), (iii) the remaining tenor, (iv) in the
case of Cash Settled Notes, the probable range of any Redemption Amounts, (v) any change(s) in
interim interest rates and dividend yields if applicable, (vi) any change(s) in currency exchange rates,
(vii) the depth of the market or liquidity of the Underlying(s) and (viii) any related transaction costs.

An investment in Notes linked to Underlying(s) may have significant risks that are not associated with
a similar investment in a conventional security such as a debt instrument that:

o has a pre-determined specified principal amount;

. is denominated in the investor's currency; and

. bears interest at either a fixed or a floating rate based on nationally published interest rate
references.

The risks associated with a particular Note linked to Underlying(s) will generally depend on factors
over which none of the Issuers, the CGMHI Guarantor and the CGMFL Guarantor has any control and
which cannot readily be foreseen. These risks include:

. economic events;
. political events; and
) the supply of, and demand for, any relevant Underlying(s).

In recent years, prices for various Underlying(s) have been highly volatile. Such volatility may be
expected in the future. Fluctuations in the rates, levels or prices that have occurred in the past are not
necessarily indicative, however, of fluctuations that may occur during the term of any Notes linked to
Underlying(s).

In addition, investors should be aware that the value of any relevant Underlying(s) may be determined
or published by any Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor and/or the CGMFL Guarantor or an affiliate thereof
or determined or published by third parties or entities which are not subject to regulation under the laws
of the United States or the EEA.

The risk of loss as a result of linking principal and/or interest payments to Underlying(s) can be
substantial and the payment of principal and/or interest may be contingent on the occurrence of certain
events which may not occur. Each investor should consult their own financial and legal advisers as to
the risks of an investment in Notes linked to Underlying(s).

Risks related to implementation of regulatory reform

Implementation of U.S. federal financial reform legislation may affect the value of Underlying(s),
which may ultimately affect the value, trading price and viability of Notes. For example, the
Dodd-Frank Act would, upon full implementation, impose limits on the maximum position that could
be held by a single dealer in certain of the Underlying(s) and may subject certain transactions to new
forms of regulation that could create barriers to some types of hedging activity by the Issuer and/or any
Hedging Party or any of their respective affiliates. Other provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act could
require certain Underlying(s) or hedging transactions to be cleared, traded on a regulated exchange and
reported to regulators, central data repositories and, in some cases, the public. The Dodd-Frank Act
also expands entity registration requirements and imposes business conduct requirements on persons
active in the swaps market (which may include new capital and margin requirements), which may
affect the value of Underlying(s) or value and/or cost of hedging transactions. Such regulation may
consequently affect the value, trading price and viability of the Notes. The implementation of the
Dodd-Frank Act and future rulemaking thereunder could potentially limit or completely restrict the
ability of the Issuer to hedge its exposure on Notes, increase the costs of hedging or make hedging
strategies less effective, which may then constitute an Adjustment Event in respect of certain Notes.
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Changes in exchange rates and exchange controls could result in a loss of the value of the Notes
and payments in respect thereof in relation to the currency of the jurisdiction of an investor

An investment in Notes denominated in a Specified Currency other than the currency of the jurisdiction
of a particular investor (the investor's currency), entails significant risks that are not associated with a
similar investment in a security denominated in the investor's currency. These risks include, but are not
limited to:

. the possibility of significant market changes in rates of exchange between the investor's
currency and the Specified Currency;

o the possibility of significant changes in rates of exchange between the investor's currency and
the Specified Currency resulting from the official redenomination or revaluation of the
Specified Currency; and

. the possibility of the imposition or modification of foreign exchange controls by either the
jurisdiction of the investor's or foreign governments.

These risks generally depend on factors over which none of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI
Guarantor, CGMFL and the CGMFL Guarantor has any control and which cannot be readily foreseen,
such as:

. economic events;
. political events; and
. the supply of, and demand for, the relevant currencies.

In recent years, rates of exchange between some foreign currencies in which the Notes may be
denominated have been volatile. This volatility may be expected in the future. Fluctuations that have
occurred in any particular exchange rate in the past are not necessarily indicative, however, of
fluctuation that may occur in the rate during the term of any Note. Depreciation of the Specified
Currency of a Note against an investor's currency would result in a decrease in the effective yield of
such Note below its coupon rate (if applicable) and could result in a substantial loss to the investor in
terms of the investor's currency.

Governments and monetary authorities have imposed from time to time, and may in the future impose,
exchange controls that could affect applicable exchange rates as well as the availability of a Specified
Currency at the time of payment of principal, any premium, or interest on any Note. There can be no
assurance that exchange controls will not restrict or prohibit payments of principal, any premium, or
interest denominated in any such Specified Currency.

Even if there are no actual exchange controls, it is possible that a Specified Currency would not be
available to the Issuer and/or, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor and/or, where the
Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor when payments on a Note are due because of circumstances
beyond the control of the Issuer and/or the CGMHI Guarantor and/or CGMFL Guarantor. Each
investor should consult their own financial and legal advisers as to the risks of an investment in Notes
denominated in a currency other than the investor's currency.

The above risks may be increased if any Specified Currency and/or an investor's currency is the
currency of an emerging market jurisdiction.

The unavailability of currencies could result in a loss of value of the Notes and payments
thereunder

The currency in which payments on a Note are required to be made may be redenominated, for
example, because such currency is:

. unavailable due to the imposition of exchange controls or other circumstances beyond the
Issuer's and/or, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor's and/or, where the Issuer
is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor's control;
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o no longer used by the government of the country issuing the currency; or

. no longer used for the settlement of transactions by public institutions of the international
banking community,

Where the currency in which payments in respect of a Note is officially redenominated, other than as a
result of Economic and Monetary Union, such as by an official redenomination of any such currency
that is a composite currency, then the payment obligations of the Issuer and/or, where the Issuer is
CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor and/or, where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor on such
Note immediately following the redenomination will be the amount of redenominated currency that
represents the amount of the Issuer's and/or, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor's
and/or, where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor's obligations immediately before the
redenomination. The Notes will not provide for any adjustment to any amount payable as a result of:

. any change in the value of the Specified Currency of those Notes relative to any other
currency due solely to fluctuations in exchange rates; or

. any redenomination of any component currency of any composite currency, unless that
composite currency is itself officially redenominated.

Certain considerations associated with Notes relating to security indices

Investors in Notes relating to security indices should be familiar with investments in global capital
markets and with indices generally. The level of a security index is generally based on the value of the
component securities of that index although investors should note that the level of a security index at
any time may not include the reinvestment of the yield on the component securities of such security
index. Investors should understand that global economic, financial and political developments, among
other things, may have a material effect on the value of the component securities of a security index
and/or the performance of a security index.

The risks of a particular Note linked to a security index will depend on the terms of that Note. Such
risks may include, but are not limited to, the possibility of significant changes in:

. the prices of the component securities of the relevant index or indices (component securities)
and the weighting of each component within the relevant index or indices;

. other objective prices; and
. economic or other measures making up the relevant security index or indices.

Investors should note that any dividends, other distributions assets and/or amounts paid to holders of
the component securities will not be paid to the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is
CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL) or to the holders of Notes. The return
on Notes will thus not reflect any such assets and/or amounts which would be paid to investors that
have made a direct investment in any such component securities. Consequently, the return on Notes
may be less than the return from a direct investment in any such component securities.

Market volatility reflects the degree of instability and expected instability of the performance of a
security index and the component securities. The level of market volatility is largely determined by the
prices for financial instruments supposed to protect investors against such market volatility. The prices
of these instruments are determined by forces of supply and demand in the options and derivative
markets generally. These forces are, themselves, affected by factors such as actual market volatility,
expected volatility, economic factors and speculation. In recent years, currency exchange rates and
prices for component securities have been highly volatile. Such volatility may be expected in the
future. Fluctuations in the rates or prices that have occurred in the past are not necessarily indicative,
however, of fluctuations that may occur during the term of any Note relating to Security Indices.

In considering whether to purchase Notes relating to Security Indices, each investor should be aware
that the calculation of amounts payable or, as applicable, assets due on Notes relating to Security
Indices may involve reference to:
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. an index determined by an affiliate of the Issuer and/or the CGMHI Guarantor (if applicable)
and/or the CGMFL Guarantor (if applicable); or

. prices that are published solely by third parties or entities which are not regulated by the laws
of the United States, the EEA or the jurisdiction of the particular investor.

Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to Security
Indices

As the terms and conditions of Notes relating to Security Indices include provisions dealing with the
postponement of a Valuation Date due to the occurrence of a Disrupted Day, such postponement or any
alternative provisions for valuation provided in the terms and conditions of such Notes may have an
adverse effect on the value of such Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of any security index
(being (a) the occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any underlying hedging position in
relation to the Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to performing its obligations
in respect of the Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased Cost of Hedging; (b) such security index
(i) not being calculated and announced by or on behalf of the relevant index sponsor but instead being
calculated and announced by or on behalf of a successor to the relevant index sponsor or (ii) being
replaced by a successor index; or (c) any Additional Disruption Event specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement), then the Calculation Agent shall make such adjustment(s) to the terms of the
Notes as the Calculation Agent determines necessary to account for the effect of such Adjustment
Event or the Calculation Agent may replace the security index the subject of the Adjustment Event
with a new security index using, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, the same or a
substantially similar formula and method of calculation as used in the calculation of the level of such
security index or a security index selected by reference to such other criteria as specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement. Any such adjustment may include, in the case of an Increased Cost of
Hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such Increased Cost of Hedging (including, but not
limited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect of the Notes to reflect any such
increased costs). Any such adjustments may have an adverse effect on the value of such Notes and, if
the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment can reasonably so be made, such Adjustment
Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If the Calculation Agent determines that a Security Index Adjustment Event occurs (being, in respect of
a security index, the relevant index sponsor announcing that it will make a material change to a
relevant security index, the index sponsor permanently cancelling the index and no successor index
existing or the index sponsor or any other person or entity acting on its behalf failing to calculate and
announce the relevant index), then the Calculation Agent may determine whether such Security Index
Adjustment Event has a material effect on the relevant Notes and, if so, shall either (A) calculate the
relevant level of such security index in accordance with the formula for and method of calculating the
relevant security index last in effect prior to the applicable change, cancellation or failure and/or (B)
substitute the affected security index with a replacement index using, in the determination of the
Calculation Agent, the same or a substantially similar formula and method of calculation as used in the
calculation of the level of such security index or a security index selected by reference to such other
criteria as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and determine any adjustment necessary to
the terms of the Notes to account for such substitution and/or (C) make such adjustments to the terms
of the Notes as it determines necessary or appropriate to account for the effect of such Security Index
Adjustment Event. Any such calculation, substitution and/or adjustment may have an adverse effect on
the value of such Notes and, if the Calculation Agent determines that no calculation or substitution can
reasonably so be made, such Security Index Adjustment Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) circumstances in which the Calculation Agent
determines that no adjustment or substitution can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event,
(b) no calculation or substitution can be made following a Security Index Adjustment Event, (c) a
Section 871(m) Event or (d) a Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event (if specified as applicable
in the applicable Pricing Supplement)), the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in the terms
and conditions of the relevant Notes. If the Notes are redeemed early, the Issuer will pay to each
Noteholder in respect of each Calculation Amount held by such holder an amount equal to the fair
market value of such Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding
any underlying and/or related hedging and funding arrangements, as determined by the Calculation
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Agent, or such other amount as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. There is no
guarantee that the amount repaid to investors will be equal to or higher than the investor's initial
investment in the relevant Notes and such amount may be substantially less than the investor's initial
investment.

Investors in Notes relating to Security Indices should read "Underlying Schedule 1 — Security Index
Conditions" in this Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement in order to fully
understand the provisions relating to such Notes.

Certain considerations associated with Notes relating to inflation indices

Investors in Notes relating to inflation indices should be familiar with investments in global capital
markets and with indices generally.

The risks of a particular Note relating to inflation indices will depend on the terms of that Note. Many
economic and market factors may influence an inflation index and consequently the value of Notes
relating to inflation indices, including:

. general economic, financial, political or regulatory conditions and/or events; and/or

. fluctuations in the prices of various assets, goods, services and energy resources (including in
response to supply of, and demand for, any of them); and/or

. the level of inflation in the economy of the relevant country and expectations of inflation.

In particular, the level of an inflation index may be affected by factors unconnected with the financial
markets.

Any such factor may either offset or magnify one or more of the other factors.
Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to inflation indices

If an underlying closing level for an inflation index for a specified reference month has not been
published or announced by five business days prior to the relevant payment date, then the Calculation
Agent shall determine a substitute index level. Any such substitution may have an adverse effect on
the value of such Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of any inflation index
(being (a) the occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any underlying hedging position in
relation to the Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to performing its obligations
in respect of the Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased Cost of Hedging, or (b) the imposition of
increased or unexpected fees and costs for the use of such index on the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates
by the relevant index sponsor which the Calculation Agent deems material), then the Calculation Agent
shall make such adjustment(s) to the terms of the Notes as the Calculation Agent determines necessary
to account for the effect of such Adjustment Event including, in the case of an Increased Cost of
Hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such Increased Cost of Hedging (including, but not
limited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect of the Notes to reflect any such
increased costs). Any such adjustments may have an adverse effect on the value of such Notes and, if
the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment can reasonably so be made, such Adjustment
Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If "Revision" is specified as applicable for an inflation index in the applicable Pricing Supplement, then
any revision to an underlying closing level of an inflation index occurring before the relevant revision
cut-off date shall be considered final and conclusive for the purpose of any determination made in
respect of the Notes. If "No Revision" is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement
(or if "Revision" is not specified as applicable) then the first publication and announcement of an
underlying closing level for such inflation index shall be final and conclusive. Further, if the
Calculation Agent determines that the index sponsor of an inflation index has corrected an underlying
closing level for such index to correct a manifest error no later than the earlier to occur of the relevant
manifest error cut-off date and thirty calendar days following the first publication and announcement of
such level, then the Calculation Agent may use the corrected level of such inflation index for the
purposes of any calculation in respect of the relevant payment date. In the event of inconsistency
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between a revision and a manifest error correction, the manifest error correction shall prevail. Any
such adjustment (or absence of an adjustment, for the purpose of the Notes) to any level of an inflation
index may have an adverse effect on the value of the Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that either (a) a level for an inflation index has not been published
or announced for two consecutive months and/or (b) the relevant index sponsor announces that it will
no longer continue to publish or announce such inflation index and/or (c) the relevant index sponsor
cancels such inflation index then the Calculation Agent may replace the originally designated inflation
index with a successor index. Any such adjustment may have an adverse effect on the value of the
Notes and, if no successor index can be determined, then an Early Redemption Event shall occur with
respect to the Notes.

If an index sponsor announces, in respect of an inflation index, that it will make a material change to a
relevant inflation index then the Calculation Agent shall make such consequential adjustments to the
terms of the Notes as are consistent with any adjustment made to any relevant fallback bond or as are
necessary for such modified inflation index to continue as an inflation index for the purpose of the
Notes. Any such adjustments may have an adverse effect on the value of such Notes and, if the
Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment can reasonably so be made, then an Early Redemption
Event shall occur with respect to the Notes.

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) circumstances in which the Calculation Agent
determines that no adjustment can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event, (b) no
successor index can be determined or no adjustment can reasonably be made following a material
change to a relevant inflation index, (c) a Section 871(m) Event or (d) a Hedging Disruption Early
Termination Event (if specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement)), the Notes may be
redeemed as more fully set out in the terms and conditions of the relevant Notes. If the Notes are
redeemed early, the Issuer will pay to each Noteholder in respect of each Calculation Amount held by
such holder an amount equal to the fair market value of such Calculation Amount less the cost to the
Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding any underlying and/or related hedging and funding
arrangements, as determined by the Calculation Agent, or such other amount as is specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement. There is no guarantee that the amount repaid to investors will be equal
to or higher than the investor's initial investment in the relevant Notes and such amount may be
substantially less than the investor's initial investment.

Investors in Notes relating to inflation indices should read "Underlying Schedule 2 — Inflation Index
Conditions” in this Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement in order to fully
understand the provisions relating to such Notes.

Certain considerations associated with Notes relating to commaodity indices

Investors should be familiar with investments in global capital markets and with indices and
commodities generally. The level of a commodity index is generally based on the value of the
commodities and/or other securities comprised in that commodity index and, as such, investors in
Notes relating to commodity indices should also read "Certain considerations associated with Notes
relating to commodities”" below. Investors should understand that global economic, financial and
political developments, among other things, may have a material effect on the value of the commodities
and/or futures contracts comprising a commodity index and/or the performance of such index.

The risks of a particular Note relating to a commodity index will depend on the terms of that Note.
Such risks may include, but are not limited to, the possibility of significant changes in the prices of:

. the commodities and/or futures underlying the relevant index or indices;
. another objective price; and
. economic or other measures making up the relevant index or indices.

Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to commaodity
indices

The terms and conditions of Notes relating to commodity indices include provisions dealing with the
postponement of a Valuation Date or postponement of the valuation of a component of a commodity
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index due to the occurrence of a Disrupted Day, such postponement or any alternative provisions for
valuation provided in the terms and conditions of such Notes may have an adverse effect on the value
of such Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of any commodity
index (being (a) the occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any underlying hedging
position in relation to the Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to performing its
obligations in respect of the Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased Cost of Hedging, (b) the
substitution of a commodity index with a substitute commodity index due to the originally designated
commodity index being either (i) not calculated and announced by or on behalf of the relevant index
sponsor but instead being calculated and announced by or on behalf of a successor to the relevant index
sponsor acceptable to the Calculation Agent or (ii) replaced by a successor index, (c) the imposition of
increased or unexpected fees and costs for the use of such index on the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates
by the relevant index sponsor which the Calculation Agent deems material, or (d) the imposition of,
change in or removal of any tax relating to any component of such commodity index or commodity
relating to such component (if specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) which the
Calculation Agent deems material), then the Calculation Agent shall make such adjustment(s) to the
terms of the Notes as the Calculation Agent determines necessary to account for the effect of such
Adjustment Event or the Calculation Agent may replace the commodity index the subject of the
Adjustment Event with a new commodity index using, in the determination of the Calculation Agent,
the same or a substantially similar formula and method of calculation as used in the calculation of the
level of such commodity index or a commodity index selected by reference to such other criteria as
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. Any such adjustment may include, in the case of an
Increased Cost of Hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such Increased Cost of Hedging
(including, but not limited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect of the Notes to
reflect any such increased costs). Any such adjustments may have an adverse effect on the value of
such Notes and, if the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment can reasonably so be made,
such Adjustment Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If the Calculation Agent determines that a Commodity Index Adjustment Event occurs (being, in
respect of a commodity index, the relevant index sponsor announcing that it will make a material
change to a relevant commodity index, the index sponsor permanently cancelling the index and no
successor index existing or the index sponsor or any other person or entity on its behalf failing to
calculate and announce the relevant index), then the Calculation Agent may determine whether such
Commodity Index Adjustment Event has a material effect on the relevant Notes and, if so, shall either
(A) calculate the relevant level of such commodity index in accordance with the formula for and
method of calculating the relevant commodity index last in effect prior to the applicable change,
cancellation or failure and/or (B) substitute the affected commodity index with a replacement index
using, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, the same or a substantially similar formula and
method of calculation as used in the calculation of the level of such commodity index or a commaodity
index selected by reference to such other criteria as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and
determine any adjustment necessary to the terms of the Notes to account for such substitution and/or
(C) make such adjustments to the terms of the Notes as it determines necessary or appropriate to
account for the effect of such Commaodity Index Adjustment Event. Any such calculation, substitution
and/or adjustment may have an adverse effect on the value of such Notes and, if the Calculation Agent
determines that no calculation or substitution can reasonably so be made, such Adjustment Event shall
be an Early Redemption Event.

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) circumstances in which the Calculation Agent
determines that no adjustment or substitution can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event,
(b) no calculation or substitution can reasonably be made following a Commaodity Index Adjustment
Event, (c) a Section 871(m) Event or (d) a Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event (if specified as
applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement)), the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in
the terms and conditions of the relevant Notes. If the Notes are redeemed early, the Issuer will pay to
each Noteholder in respect of each Calculation Amount held by such holder an amount equal to the fair
market value of such Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding
any underlying and/or related hedging and funding arrangements, as determined by the Calculation
Agent or such other amount as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. There is no guarantee
that the amount repaid to investors will be equal to or higher than the investor's initial investment in the
relevant Notes and such amount may be substantially less than the investor's initial investment.
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Investors in Notes relating to commodity indices should read "Underlying Schedule 3 — Commodity
Index Conditions" in this Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement in order to fully
understand the provisions relating to such Notes.

Certain considerations associated with Notes linked to commodities

Investors should note that the movements in the price of any relevant commodities may be subject to
significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices
and the timing of changes in the relevant price of a commodity or commodities may affect the actual
yield of the Notes, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier
the change in the price or prices of the commodities, the greater the effect on yield of the Notes.

Commodity futures markets are highly volatile. Commodity markets are influenced by, among other
things, changing supply and demand relationships, weather, governmental, agricultural, commercial
and trade programmes and policies designed to influence commaodity prices, world political and
economic events, and changes in interest rates. Moreover, investments in futures and options contracts
involve additional risks including, without limitation, leverage (margin is usually a percentage of the
face value of the contract and exposure can be nearly unlimited). A holder of a futures position may
find such position becomes illiquid because certain commaodity exchanges limit fluctuations in certain
futures contract prices during a single day by regulations referred to as "daily price fluctuation limits"
or "daily limits". Under such daily limits, during a single trading day no trades may be executed at
prices beyond the daily limits. Once the price of a contract for a particular future has increased or
decreased by an amount equal to the daily limit, positions in the future can neither be taken nor
liquidated unless traders are willing to effect trades at or within the limit. This could prevent a holder
from promptly liquidating unfavourable positions and subject it to substantial losses. Futures contract
prices in various commodities occasionally have exceeded the daily limit for several consecutive days
with little or no trading. Similar occurrences could prevent the liquidation of unfavourable positions
and subject an investor in a Note relating to commodities to such contract prices resulting in substantial
losses.

Risk related to the possible rolling mechanism of commodity futures contracts

The yield on Notes relating to commodities may not perfectly correlate to the trend in the price of the
underlying commodities as the use of such future commodity contracts generally involves a rolling
mechanism. This means that the commodity futures contracts which expire prior to the relevant
payment date under the relevant Notes are replaced with future commodity contracts that have a later
expiry date. Investors may therefore only marginally benefit from any rise/fall in prices on such
commodities.

Moreover, investors should consider that the commaodity futures contracts could have a trend which
differs significantly from that of the commodity spot markets. The trend in the price of a commodity
futures contracts compared to the underlying commodity is closely linked to the present and future
level of the production of the underlying commodity or to the level of estimated natural reserves,
particularly in the case of energy commaodities. In addition, the price of the relevant commaodity futures
contract may not be considered an accurate prediction of a market price, since it also includes the
so-called "carrying costs" (such as, for example, warehouse costs, insurance covering the goods,
transportation etc.), which also contribute toward the determination of the price of the commodity
futures contracts. These factors which directly influence the commaodities prices substantially explain
the imperfect correlation between the commodity spot markets and the commodity futures contracts.

Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to commodities

As the terms and conditions of Notes relating to commodities include alternative provisions for
valuation and/or provisions dealing with the postponement of a Valuation Date due to the occurrence of
a Disrupted Day, such alternative provisions for valuation or postponement may have an adverse effect
on the value of such Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of any commodity
(being the occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any underlying hedging position in
relation to the Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to performing its obligations
in respect of the Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased Cost of Hedging), then the Calculation
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Agent shall make such adjustment(s) to the terms of the Notes as the Calculation Agent determines
necessary to account for the effect of such Adjustment Event including, in the case of an Increased
Cost of Hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such Increased Cost of Hedging (including,
but not limited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect of the Notes to reflect any
such increased costs). Any such adjustments may have an adverse effect on the value of such Notes
and, if the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment can reasonably so be made, such
Adjustment Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) circumstances in which the Calculation Agent
determines that no adjustment can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event, (b) the
occurrence of a disruption event and any relevant disruption fallbacks fail (or are deemed to fail) to
provide a relevant price in respect of a commodity and a valuation date, (c) any Additional Early
Redemption Event specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement (being an "abandonment of scheme"
in relation to commaodities that are emissions) or any other event specified as such in the applicable
Pricing Supplement, (d) a Section 871(m) Event or (e) a Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event
(if specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement)), the Notes may be redeemed as more
fully set out in the terms and conditions of the relevant Notes. If the Notes are redeemed early, the
Issuer will pay to each Noteholder in respect of each Calculation Amount held by such holder an
amount equal to the fair market value of such Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or its
affiliates of unwinding any underlying and/or related hedging and funding arrangements, as determined
by the Calculation Agent or such other amount as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
There is no guarantee that the amount repaid to investors will be equal to or higher than the investor's
initial investment in the relevant Notes and such amount may be substantially less than the investor's
initial investment.

Investors in Notes relating to commodities should read "Underlying Schedule 4 — Commodity
Conditions” in this Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement in order to fully
understand the provisions relating to such Notes.

Certain considerations associated with Notes relating to shares

Investors should be familiar with investments in global capital markets and with shares generally.
Before purchasing Notes, investors should carefully consider, among other matters, the value and price
volatility of shares by reference to which amounts payable or deliverable under the relevant Notes are
calculated.

Notes will give rise to obligations of the Issuer and will not give rise to any obligations of any share
company. No offer is made by any share company and no offer is made of other securities supported
by or convertible into shares or other securities of any share company.

No issuer of such shares will have participated in the preparation of the applicable Pricing Supplement
or in establishing the terms of the Notes and none of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor,
CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor and any Dealer will make any investigation or enquiry in connection
with such offering with respect to the information concerning any such issuer of shares contained in
such Pricing Supplement or in the documents from which such information was extracted.
Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date
(including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available documents
described in this paragraph or in any applicable Pricing Supplement) that would affect the trading price
of the share will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the
disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events concerning such an issuer of shares could
affect the trading price of the shares and therefore the trading price of the relevant Notes.

Except as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to Physical Delivery Notes,
Noteholders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or distributions or any other
rights with respect to the relevant shares to which such Notes relate notwithstanding that if so specified
in the applicable Pricing Supplement, Noteholders may be entitled to receive payments calculated by
reference to the amount of dividends, distributions or other payments that would be received by a
holder of the relevant shares. The return on such Notes may thus not reflect any dividends or other
distributions which would be paid to investors that have made a direct investment in the relevant
shares. Consequently, the return on Notes linked to shares may be less than the return from a direct
investment in the relevant shares.
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The risks of a Note relating to shares will depend on the terms of that Note. Such risks may include,
but are not limited to, the possibility of significant changes in the price(s) of the share or shares. The
value of shares may go down as well as up and the value of any share on any date may not reflect its
performance in any prior period. There can be no assurance as to the future value of any share or of the
continued existence of any share or share company. In addition, in certain circumstances it may not be
possible or practicable for the Calculation Agent to determine the value of the relevant shares — see
"Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to shares"
below. Accordingly, before making an investment decision with respect to Notes, prospective
investors should carefully consider whether an investment, the return on which will depend on the
performance of shares, is suitable for them.

In considering whether to purchase Notes relating to shares, each investor should be aware that the
calculation of amounts payable on such Notes may involve reference to the performance of one or
more shares over a period of time and to shares, the issuer(s) of which are incorporated outside the
United States and the EEA.

Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to shares

As the terms and conditions of the Notes include provisions dealing with the postponement of a
Valuation Date due to the occurrence of a Disrupted Day, such postponement or any alternative
provisions for valuation provided in the terms and conditions of such Notes may have an adverse effect
on the value of such Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of a share (being (a) the
occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any underlying hedging position in relation to the
Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to performing its obligations in respect of
the Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased Cost of Hedging, (b) a corporate action, de-listing,
insolvency, merger event, nationalisation, tender offer and/or any Additional Disruption Event
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement or (c) if Additional Provisions for Shares traded through
the China Connect Service are specified as applicable for a Share, Adjustment Events may, if so
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, include that the relevant shares cease to be accepted as
"China Connect Securities" or the China Connect Service is suspended or terminated which materially
affects the routing of orders or holding of the relevant shares and which is reasonably likely not to be
temporary), then the Calculation Agent shall make such adjustment(s) to the terms of the Notes as the
Calculation Agent determines necessary to account for the effect of such Adjustment Event or the
Calculation Agent may replace the share the subject of the Adjustment Event with a new share selected
by the Calculation Agent from an applicable reference index or selected by reference to such other
criteria as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. Any such adjustment may include, in the
case of an Increased Cost of Hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such Increased Cost of
Hedging (including, but not limited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect of the
Notes to reflect any such increased costs). Any such adjustment(s) or substitution may have an adverse
effect on the value of such Notes and, if the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment(s) or
substitution can reasonably so be made, such Adjustment Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) circumstances where the Calculation Agent determines
that no adjustment or substitution can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event, (b) a
Section 871(m) Event or (c) a Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event (if specified as applicable
in the applicable Pricing Supplement)), the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in the terms
and conditions of the relevant Notes. If the Notes are redeemed early, the Issuer will pay to each
Noteholder in respect of each Calculation Amount held by such holder an amount equal to the fair
market value of such Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding
any underlying and/or related hedging and funding arrangements, as determined by the Calculation
Agent or such other amount as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. There is no guarantee
that the amount repaid to investors will be equal to or higher than the investor's initial investment in the
relevant Notes and such amount may be substantially less than the investor's initial investment.

Investors in Notes relating to shares should read "Underlying Schedule 5 — Share Conditions" in this
Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement in order to fully understand the provisions
relating to such Notes.
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Certain considerations associated with Notes relating to depositary receipts

Investors should be familiar with investments in global capital markets and with depositary receipts
generally. Before purchasing Notes, investors should carefully consider, among other matters, the
value and price volatility of depositary receipts and relevant underlying shares by reference to which
amounts payable under the relevant Notes are calculated.

Notes will give rise to obligations of the Issuer and will not give rise to any obligations of any
depositary or any underlying share company. No offer is made by any depositary or any underlying
share company and no offer is made of other securities supported by or convertible into depositary
receipts, underlying shares or other securities of any depositary or any underlying share company.

No issuer of such depositary receipts or any underlying shares related to such depositary receipts will
have participated in the preparation of the applicable Pricing Supplement or in establishing the terms of
the Notes and none of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL
Guarantor and any Dealer will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with
respect to the information concerning any depositary or any related underlying share company
contained in such Pricing Supplement or in the documents from which such information was extracted.
Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date
(including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available documents
described in this paragraph or in any applicable Pricing Supplement) that would affect the trading price
of the depositary receipt or the underlying share will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent
disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events
concerning such depositary or underlying share company could affect the trading price of the
depositary receipts and therefore the trading price of the relevant Notes.

Except as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to Physical Delivery Notes,
Noteholders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or distributions or any other
rights with respect to the relevant depositary receipts and/or underlying shares to which such Notes
relate notwithstanding that, if so specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, Noteholders may be
entitled to receive payments calculated by reference to the amount of dividends, distributions or other
payments that would be received by a holder of the relevant depositary receipts and/or underlying
shares. The return on such Notes may thus not reflect any dividends or other distributions which would
be paid to investors that have made a direct investment in the relevant depositary receipts and/or
underlying shares. Consequently, the return on Notes linked to depositary receipts may be less than the
return from a direct investment in the relevant depositary receipts and/or underlying shares.

The risks of a Note relating to depositary receipts will depend on the terms of that Note. Such risks
may include, but are not limited to, the possibility of significant changes in the price(s) of the
depositary receipts. The value of depositary receipts may go down as well as up and the value of any
depositary receipt on any date may not reflect its performance in any prior period. There can be no
assurance as to the future value of any depositary receipts or of the continued existence of any
depositary and/or underlying share company. In addition, in certain circumstances it may not be
possible or practicable for the Calculation Agent to determine the value of the relevant depositary
receipts — see "Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to
depositary receipts” below. Accordingly, before making an investment decision with respect to Notes,
prospective investors should carefully consider whether an investment, the return on which will depend
on the performance of the depositary receipts and the underlying shares related to such depositary
receipts, is suitable for them.

In considering whether to purchase Notes relating to depositary receipts, each investor should be aware
that the calculation of amounts payable on such Notes may involve reference to the performance of one
or more depositary receipts and the related underlying shares over a period of time and to depositary
receipts and/or underlying shares, the issuer(s) of which are incorporated outside the United States and
the EEA.

Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to depositary
receipts

As the terms and conditions of the Notes include provisions dealing with the postponement of a
Valuation Date due to the occurrence of a Disrupted Day, such postponement or any alternative
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provisions for valuation provided in the terms and conditions of such Notes may have an adverse effect
on the value of such Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of a depositary receipt
and/or an underlying share (being (a) the occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any
underlying hedging position in relation to the Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in
relation to performing its obligations in respect of the Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased
Cost of Hedging or (b) a corporate action, delisting, insolvency, merger event, nationalisation, tender
offer, written instructions being given by an underlying share company to the relevant depositary to
withdraw or surrender underlying shares or the termination of a relevant deposit agreement and/or any
Additional Disruption Event specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement), then the Calculation
Agent shall make such adjustment(s) to the terms of the Notes as the Calculation Agent determines
necessary to account for the effect of such Adjustment Event or the Calculation Agent may replace the
depositary receipt and/or the underlying share the subject of the Adjustment Event with a new
depositary receipt selected by the Calculation Agent (referencing, where "same underlying share and
currency" is specified as the Depositary Receipt Substitution Criteria in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, the same underlying share and denominated in the same currency as the previous
depositary receipt (and, if no such depositary receipt is selected or available, then the underlying share
shall be substituted and a new depositary receipt selected in respect of such new underlying share) or in
accordance with any other criteria specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) and/or a new share
selected by the Calculation Agent: (a) from an applicable reference index, or (b) in accordance with the
criteria (if any) specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. Any such adjustment may include, in
the case of an Increased Cost of Hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such Increased
Cost of Hedging (including, but not limited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect
of the Notes to reflect any such increased costs). Any such adjustment(s) or substitution may have an
adverse effect on the value of such Notes and, if the Calculation Agent determines that no
adjustment(s) or substitution can reasonably so be made, such Adjustment Event shall be an Early
Redemption Event.

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (2) circumstances where the Calculation Agent determines
that no adjustment(s) or substitution can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event, (b) a
Section 871(m) Event or (c) a Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event (if specified as applicable
in the applicable Pricing Supplement)), the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in the terms
and conditions of the relevant Notes. If the Notes are redeemed early, the Issuer will pay to each
Noteholder in respect of each Calculation Amount held by such holder an amount equal to the fair
market value of such Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding
any underlying and/or related hedging and funding arrangements, as determined by the Calculation
Agent or such other amount as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. There is no guarantee
that the amount repaid to investors will be equal to or higher than the investor's initial investment in the
relevant Notes and such amount may be substantially less than the investor's initial investment.

Investors in Notes relating to depositary receipts should read "Underlying Schedule 6 — Depositary
Receipt Conditions" in this Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement in order to fully
understand the provisions relating to such Notes.

Certain considerations associated with Notes relating to ETF shares

Investors in Notes relating to exchange traded fund shares (ETF shares) should be familiar with
investments in global capital markets and with ETF shares generally. Before purchasing Notes,
investors should carefully consider, among other matters, the value and price volatility of ETF shares
by reference to which amounts payable under the relevant Notes are calculated.

Notes will give rise to obligations of the Issuer and will not give rise to any obligations of the issuer of
any ETF shares. No offer is made by any issuer of ETF shares and no offer is made of other securities
supported by or convertible into ETF shares or other securities of any fund or other issuer of securities.

No issuer of ETF shares will have participated in the preparation of the applicable Pricing Supplement
or in establishing the terms of the Notes and none of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor,
CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor and any Dealer will make any investigation or enquiry in connection
with such offering with respect to the information concerning any such issuer of ETF shares contained
in such Pricing Supplement or in the documents from which such information was extracted.
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Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date
(including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available documents
described in this paragraph or in any applicable Pricing Supplement) that would affect the trading price
of the ETF share will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the
disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events concerning such an issuer of ETF shares could
affect the trading price of the ETF share and therefore the trading price of the relevant Notes.

Investors should note that whilst ETF shares are traded on an exchange and are therefore valued in a
similar manner as a share traded on an exchange, the Adjustment Events in relation to Notes linked to
ETF shares include certain adjustments which would be applicable to Notes linked to an underlying
fund.

Except as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to Physical Delivery Notes,
Noteholders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or distributions or any other
rights with respect to the relevant ETF shares to which such Notes relate notwithstanding that, if so
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and Noteholders may be entitled to receive payments
calculated by reference to the amount of dividends, distributions or other payments that would be
received by a holder of the relevant ETF shares. The return on such Notes may thus not reflect any
dividends or other distributions which would be paid to investors that have made a direct investment in
relevant ETF shares. Consequently, the return on Notes linked to ETF shares may be less than the
return from a direct investment in the relevant ETF shares.

The risks of a Note relating to ETF shares will depend on the terms of that Note. Such risks may
include, but are not limited to, the possibility of significant changes in the price(s) of the ETF shares.
The value of ETF shares may go down as well as up and the value of any ETF share on any date may
not reflect its performance in any prior period. There can be no assurance as to the future value of any
ETF share or of the continued existence of any ETF share or the issuer of such ETF share. In addition,
in certain circumstances it may not be possible or practicable for the Calculation Agent to determine
the value of the relevant ETF shares — see "Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption
in relation to Notes linked to ETF shares" below. Accordingly, before making an investment decision
with respect to Notes, prospective investors should carefully consider whether an investment, the return
on which will depend on the performance of ETF shares, is suitable for them.

In considering whether to purchase Notes relating to ETF shares, each investor should be aware that the
calculation of amounts payable on such Notes may involve reference to the performance of one or
more ETF shares over a period of time and to ETF shares, the issuer(s) of which are established outside
the United States and the EEA.

Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to ETF shares

As the terms and conditions of the Notes include provisions dealing with the postponement of a
Valuation Date due to the occurrence of a Disrupted Day, such postponement or any alternative
provisions for valuation provided in the terms and conditions of such Notes may have an adverse effect
on the value of such Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of an ETF share (being
(a) the occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any underlying hedging position in relation
to the Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to performing its obligations in
respect of the Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased Cost of Hedging; (b) a corporate action,
de-listing, insolvency, merger event, nationalisation, tender offer, fund modification, strategy breach,
regulatory action, cross-contamination and/or any Additional Disruption Event specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement), then the Calculation Agent shall make such adjustment(s) to the terms
of the Notes as the Calculation Agent determines necessary to account for the effect of such
Adjustment Event or the Calculation Agent may replace the ETF share the subject of the Adjustment
Event with a new exchange traded fund share selected by the Calculation Agent (which shall be an
exchange-traded fund share which, where a "related index" is specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, tracks such related index, or an index substantially similar in formula and calculation
method, or an index selected by the Calculation Agent with reference to such other criteria as specified
in the applicable Pricing Supplement). Any such adjustment may include, in the case of an Increased
Cost of Hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such Increased Cost of Hedging (including,
but not limited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect of the Notes to reflect any
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such increased costs). Any such adjustment(s) or substitution may have an adverse effect on the value
of such Notes and, if the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment(s) or substitution can
reasonably so be made, such Adjustment Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) circumstances where the Calculation Agent determines
that no adjustment(s) or substitution can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event, (b) a
Section 871(m) Event or (c) a Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event (if specified as applicable
in the applicable Pricing Supplement)), the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in the terms
and conditions of the relevant Notes. If the Notes are redeemed early, the Issuer will pay to each
Noteholder in respect of each Calculation Amount held by such holder an amount equal to the fair
market value of such Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding
any underlying and/or related hedging and funding arrangements, as determined by the Calculation
Agent or such other amount as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. There is no guarantee
that the amount repaid to investors will be equal to or higher than the investor's initial investment in the
relevant Notes and such amount may be substantially less than the investor's initial investment.

Investors in Notes relating to ETF Shares should read "Underlying Schedule 7 — Exchange-Traded
Fund (ETF) Share Conditions" in this Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement in order
to fully understand the provisions relating to such Notes.

Certain considerations associated with Notes relating to mutual fund interests

Investors in Notes relating to mutual fund interests should be familiar with investments in global
capital markets and with mutual funds generally. Before purchasing Notes, investors should carefully
consider, among other matters, the value and price volatility of mutual fund interests by reference to
which amounts payable under the relevant Notes are calculated.

The Notes will give rise to obligations of the Issuer and will not give rise to any obligations of any
mutual fund administrator, adviser or manager in respect of a mutual fund. No offer is made by any
mutual fund administrator, adviser or manager in respect of a mutual fund and no offer is made of other
mutual fund interests or any securities, investments or other assets in which any relevant mutual fund
may trade or invest.

No mutual fund administrator, adviser or manager in respect of a mutual fund will have participated in
the preparation of the applicable Pricing Supplement or in establishing the terms of the Notes and none
of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor and any Dealer
will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to the information
concerning any such mutual fund contained in such Pricing Supplement or in the documents from
which such information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events
occurring prior to the relevant issue date (including events that would affect the accuracy or
completeness of the publicly available documents described in this paragraph or in any applicable
Pricing Supplement) that would affect the value of the mutual fund interest will have been publicly
disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material
future events concerning such mutual fund could affect the value of the mutual fund interest and
therefore the trading price of the Notes.

Mutual funds may trade and invest in a broad range of investments such as debt and equity securities,
commodities and foreign exchange and may enter into derivative transactions, including, without
limitation, futures and options. Mutual fund interests may be illiquid and may only be traded on an
infrequent basis. Investors should review the applicable Pricing Supplement to ascertain the
characteristics of any relevant mutual fund interest. The trading strategies of mutual funds are often
opaque. Mutual funds, as well as the markets and instruments in which they invest, are often not
subject to review by governmental authorities, self-regulatory organisations or other supervisory
authorities.

For all the above reasons, investing directly or indirectly in mutual funds is generally considered to be
risky. If the underlying mutual fund does not perform sufficiently well, the value of the Notes will fall,
and may in certain circumstances be zero.

The value of mutual fund interests may be affected by the performance of the relevant fund service
providers and in particular the relevant fund adviser.
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Except as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to Physical Delivery Notes,
Noteholders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or distributions or any other
rights with respect to the relevant mutual fund interests to which such Notes relate notwithstanding
that, if so specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, Noteholders may be entitled to receive
payments calculated by reference to the amount of dividends, distributions or other payments that
would be received by a holder of the mutual fund interests. The return on such Notes may thus not
reflect any dividends or other distributions which would be paid to investors that have made a direct
investment in relevant mutual fund interests. Consequently, the return on Notes linked to mutual fund
interests may be less than the return from a direct investment in the relevant mutual fund interests.

The risks of a Note relating to mutual fund interests will depend on the terms of that Note. Such risks
may include, but are not limited to, the possibility of significant changes in the value(s) of the mutual
fund interests. The value of mutual fund interests may go down as well as up and the value of any
mutual fund interest on any date may not reflect its performance in any prior period. There can be no
assurance as to the future value of any mutual fund interest or of the continued existence of any mutual
fund interest or the issuer of such mutual fund interest. In addition, in certain circumstances it may not
be possible or practicable for the Calculation Agent to determine the value of the relevant mutual fund
interest — see "Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to
mutual fund interests” below. Accordingly, before making an investment decision with respect to
Notes, prospective investors should carefully consider whether an investment, the return on which will
depend on the performance of mutual fund interests, is suitable for them.

In considering whether to purchase Notes relating to mutual fund interests, each investor should be
aware that the calculation of amounts payable on such Notes may involve reference to the performance
of one or more mutual fund interests over a period of time and to mutual fund interests, the issuer(s) of
which are established outside the United States and the EEA.

Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to mutual fund
interests

As the terms and conditions of the Notes include provisions dealing with the postponement of a
Valuation Date due to the occurrence of a Disrupted Day, such postponement or any alternative
provisions for valuation provided in the terms and conditions of such Notes may have an adverse effect
on the value of such Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of a mutual fund
interest (being (a) the occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any underlying hedging
position in relation to the Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to performing its
obligations in respect of the Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased Cost of Hedging or (b) a
corporate action, insolvency, merger event, nationalisation, adviser resignation event, fund
modification, strategy breach, regulatory action, reporting disruption, cross-contamination, failure by a
fund service provider and/or any Additional Disruption Event specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement), then the Calculation Agent shall make such adjustment(s) to the terms of the Notes as the
Calculation Agent determines necessary to account for the effect of such Adjustment Event or the
Calculation Agent may replace the mutual fund interest the subject of the Adjustment Event with a new
mutual fund interest selected by the Calculation Agent (in a fund which provides daily liquidity, the
shares or units of which may be subscribed, sold to or redeemed by the fund (subject to giving no more
than two fund business days' notice and no charges being imposed by the fund), and which in the
determination of the Calculation Agent, has the same or substantially similar strategies, and the same
currency as, the affected mutual fund). Any such adjustment may include, in the case of an Increased
Cost of Hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such Increased Cost of Hedging (including,
but not limited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect of the Notes to reflect any
such increased costs). Any such adjustment may also include a monetisation whereby the Calculation
Agent shall determine the value of the Mutual Fund Interest affected by the relevant Adjustment Event
on a date selected by the Calculation Agent and shall make such adjustments to the terms of the Notes
so that the Notes reference such value (and interest thereon) rather than such Mutual Fund Interest.
Any such adjustment(s) or substitution may have an adverse effect on the value of such Notes and, if
the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment(s) or substitution can reasonably so be made, such
Adjustment Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.
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If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) circumstances where the Calculation Agent determines
that no adjustment(s) or substitution can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event, (b) the
Calculation Agent determines that no Monetisation can reasonably be effected, (c) a Section 871(m)
Event or (d) a Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event (if specified as applicable in the applicable
Pricing Supplement)), the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in the terms and conditions of
the relevant Notes. If the Notes are redeemed early, the Issuer will pay to each Noteholder in respect of
each Calculation Amount held by such holder an amount equal to the fair market value of such
Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding any underlying and/or
related hedging and funding arrangements, as determined by the Calculation Agent or such other
amount as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. There is no guarantee that the amount
repaid to investors will be equal to or higher than the investor's initial investment in the relevant Notes
and such amount may be substantially less than the investor's initial investment.

Investors in Notes relating to mutual fund interests should read "Underlying Schedule 8 — Mutual Fund
Conditions" in this Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement in order to fully
understand the provisions relating to such Notes.

Certain considerations associated with Notes relating to currency exchange rates

Investors in Notes relating to currency exchange rates should be familiar with investments in global
capital markets and with currency exchange rates generally. An investment in Notes linked to currency
exchange rates may bear similar market risks to a direct investment in foreign exchange and investors
should take advice accordingly.

Movements in currency exchange rates may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate
with changes in interest rates or other indices and the timing of changes in the currency exchange rates
may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations.
In addition, Notes linked to currency exchange rates may be linked to emerging market currencies and,
as such, may experience greater volatility and less certainty as to future levels or as against other
currencies. Emerging market currencies are highly exposed to the risk of a currency crisis happening
in the future and this could result in the occurrence of a Disrupted Day — see "Disrupted Days,
Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to currency exchange rates where
the EMTA Provisions are not specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement" below.

Fluctuations in exchange rates and implied volatility of the relevant currency (or basket of currencies)
will affect the value of the relevant Notes. Currency values may be affected by complex political and
economic factors, including governmental action to fix or support the value of a currency/currencies,
regardless of other market forces (see "Changes in exchange rates and exchange controls could result
in a loss of the value of the Notes and payments in respect thereof in relation to the currency of the
jurisdiction of an investor" above).

Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to currency
exchange rates where the EMTA Provisions are not specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing
Supplement

As the terms and conditions of the Notes include provisions dealing with the postponement of a
Valuation Date due to the occurrence of a Disrupted Day, such postponement or any alternative
provisions for valuation provided in the terms and conditions of the Notes may have an adverse effect
on the value of such Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of a currency exchange
rate (being (a) the occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any underlying hedging position
in relation to the Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to performing its
obligations in respect of the Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased Cost of Hedging or (b) a
relevant country has lawfully converted or exchanged its currency for a successor currency), then the
Calculation Agent shall make such adjustment(s) to the terms of the Notes as the Calculation Agent
determines necessary to account for the effect of such Adjustment Event including, in the case of an
Increased Cost of Hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such Increased Cost of Hedging
(including, but not limited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect of the Notes to
reflect any such increased costs). Any such adjustment(s) may have an adverse effect on the value of
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such Notes and, if the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment(s) can reasonably so be made,
such Adjustment Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) circumstances where the Calculation Agent determines
that no adjustment(s) can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event, (b) a Section 871(m)
Event or (c) a Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event (if specified as applicable in the applicable
Pricing Supplement)), the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in the terms and conditions of
the relevant Notes. If the Notes are redeemed early, the Issuer will pay to each Noteholder in respect of
each Calculation Amount held by such holder an amount equal to the fair market value of such
Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding any underlying and/or
related hedging and funding arrangements, as determined by the Calculation Agent or such other
amount as is set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement. There is no guarantee that the amount repaid
to investors will be equal to or higher than the investor's initial investment in the relevant Notes and
such amount may be substantially less than the investor's initial investment.

Where the EMTA Provisions are specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement

The terms and conditions of the Notes include provisions dealing with the consequences of a Disrupted
Day. These consequences shall be determined in accordance with the Disruption Fallbacks specified in
the applicable Pricing Supplement and may include (i) where Valuation Postponement is specified in
the applicable Pricing Supplement, postponement of a Valuation Date due to the occurrence of a
Disrupted Day; (ii) where First Fallback Reference Price or Second Fallback Reference Price is
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, determination of the Underlying Closing Level for the
relevant Valuation Date by reference to alternative prices for the applicable currency exchange rate;
and (iii) where Calculation Agent Determination is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, the Calculation Agent determining the Underlying Closing Level for the relevant
Valuation Date. Such alternative provisions for valuation provided in the terms and conditions of the
Notes may have an adverse effect on the value of such Notes. The Valuation Postponement provisions,
if applicable, may result in a Noteholder receiving payments in respect of the Notes after the originally
scheduled date for payment.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of a currency exchange
rate (being (a) the occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any underlying hedging position
in relation to the Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to performing its
obligations in respect of the Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased Cost of Hedging or (b) (i) any
relevant rate which as of the Trade Date is reported, sanctioned, recognised, published, announced or
adopted (or similar action) by the relevant Government Authority and any such rate cease to be so
reported, sanctioned, recognised, published, announced or adopted (or similar action) (ii) any relevant
rate ceases to be reported, sanctioned, recognised, published, announced or adopted (or similar action)
(iii) the sponsor and/or administrator of a relevant rate officially designates or appoints a successor
sponsor and/or administrator entity for that relevant rate or (iv) a relevant country has lawfully
converted or exchanged its currency for a successor currency), then the Calculation Agent shall make
such adjustment(s) to the terms of the Notes as the Calculation Agent determines necessary to account
for the effect of such Adjustment Event including, in the case of an Increased Cost of Hedging,
adjustments to pass on to Noteholders any such Increased Cost of Hedging (including, but not limited
to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect of the Notes to reflect any such increased
costs) and in the case of a successor rate, determination of the relevant rate by reference to the official
successor rate. Any such adjustment(s) may have an adverse effect on the value of such Notes and, if
the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment(s) can reasonably so be made, such Adjustment
Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) circumstances where the Calculation Agent determines
that no adjustment(s) can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event (b) a Section 871(m)
Event or (c) a Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event (if specified as applicable in the applicable
Pricing Supplement)), the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in the terms and conditions of
the relevant Notes. If the Notes are redeemed early, the Issuer will pay to each Noteholder in respect of
each Calculation Amount held by such holder an amount equal to the fair market value of such
Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding any underlying and/or
related hedging and funding arrangements, as determined by the Calculation Agent or such other
amount as is set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement. There is no guarantee that the amount repaid
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to investors will be equal to or higher than the investor's initial investment in the relevant Notes and
such amount may be substantially less than the investor's initial investment.

Settlement Disruption

If, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, payment of any amount due in respect of the Notes cannot
be made by it in the Specified Currency on any date on which payment is scheduled to be made under
the Notes due to the occurrence of a Currency Settlement Disruption Event (being (a) the imposition of
restrictions on the transferability, purchase and holding of the Specified Currency, (b) its
non-acceptance by a clearing system or its disuse, (c) its illiquidity in the relevant market or (d) any
other circumstances beyond the Issuer's control), then the Issuer shall be entitled to satisfy its
obligations to the Holders by either (i) delaying any such payment until after the Currency Settlement
Disruption Event ceases to exist or (ii) making such payment in United States dollars on, or as soon as
reasonably practicable after, the relevant payment date. Any such delayed payment or payment in
United States dollars will not constitute a default and Holders shall not be entitled to further interest or
any other payment in respect of such delay.

Investors in Notes relating to currency exchange rates should read "Underlying Schedule 9 — FX Rate
Conditions" in this Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement in order to fully
understand the provisions relating to such Notes.

Certain considerations associated with Notes relating to warrants

Investors should be familiar with investments in global capital markets and with warrants generally.
Before purchasing Notes, investors should carefully consider, among other matters, the value and price
volatility of warrants by reference to which amounts payable or deliverable under the relevant Notes
are calculated.

Notes will give rise to obligations of the Issuer and will not give rise to any obligations of the issuer of
any warrant. No offer is made by the issuer of any warrant and no offer is made of other securities or
other assets into which the warrants may be convertible.

No issuer of such warrants will have participated in the preparation of the applicable Pricing
Supplement or in establishing the terms of the Notes and none of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI
Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor and any Dealer will make any investigation or enquiry in
connection with the offering of the Notes with respect to the information concerning any such issuer of
warrants or the assets, indices or other item(s) to which the warrants relate contained in such Pricing
Supplement or in the documents from which such information was extracted. Consequently, there can
be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date (including events that would
affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available documents described in this paragraph or
in any applicable Pricing Supplement) that would affect the trading price of the warrants will have been
publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose
material future events concerning such an issuer of warrants or such assets, indices or other item(s)
could affect the trading price of the warrants and therefore the trading price of the relevant Notes.

Except as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to Physical Delivery Notes,
Noteholders will not have rights to receive distributions or any other rights with respect to the relevant
warrants to which such Notes relate notwithstanding that, if so specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement and Noteholders may be entitled to receive payments calculated by reference to the
amount of distributions or other payments that would be received by a holder of the relevant warrants.
The return on such Notes may thus not reflect any distributions which would be paid to investors that
have made a direct investment in the relevant warrants. Consequently, the return on Notes linked to
warrants may be less than the return from a direct investment in the relevant warrants.

The risks of a Note relating to warrants will depend on the terms of that Note and payments in respect
of a Note relating to warrants will depend upon the value of the relevant warrants which will be
dependent on the reference item or items underlying such warrant. Such risks may include, but are not
limited to, the possibility of significant changes in the price(s) of the warrants. The value of warrants
may go down as well as up and the value of any warrant on any date may not reflect its performance in
any prior period. There can be no assurance as to the future value of any warrant or of the continued
existence of any warrant or the issuer of the warrants or the creditworthiness of the warrant issuer.
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Accordingly, before making an investment decision with respect to Notes, prospective investors should
carefully consider whether an investment, the return on which will depend on the performance of
warrants, is suitable for them.

In considering whether to purchase Notes relating to warrants, each investor should be aware that the
calculation of amounts payable on such Notes may involve reference to the performance of one or
more warrants over a period of time and to warrants, the issuer(s) of which are incorporated outside the
United States and the EEA.

Payments in respect of the relevant warrants will be determined by reference to one or more indices,
shares, depositary receipts, mutual fund interests, currencies, commodities, gilts or other reference
items specified in the terms of the relevant warrants. In considering whether to purchase the Notes,
each investor should review carefully the terms of the warrants and understand fully such reference
item or items and how amounts payable in respect of the warrants are determined.

Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to warrants

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) the cancellation or termination of a relevant warrant for
any reason other than by reason of its scheduled exercise, (b) a Section 871(m) Event or (c) a Hedging
Disruption Early Termination Event (if specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement)),
the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in the terms and conditions of the relevant Notes. If
the Notes are redeemed early, the Issuer will pay to each Noteholder in respect of each Calculation
Amount held by such holder an amount determined as set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
There is no guarantee that the amount repaid to investors will be equal to or higher than the investor's
initial investment in the relevant Notes and such amount may be substantially less than the investor's
initial investment.

Investors in Notes relating to warrants should read "Underlying Schedule 10 — Warrant Conditions" in
this Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement in order to fully understand the provisions
relating to such Notes.

Certain considerations associated with Notes relating to Citi proprietary indices

Investors in Notes relating to Citi proprietary indices should be familiar with investments in global
capital markets and with indices generally. The level of a Citi proprietary index is generally based on
the value of its components (each an index component), which may be securities, commodities,
derivative instruments, indices or other types of assets or any combination thereof, as described in the
relevant index conditions and/or methodology. Investors in Notes relating to a particular Citi
proprietary index should read the relevant index conditions and/or methodology, and the sub-sections
set out in this risk factors section which relate to Notes linked directly to the index components of such
Citi proprietary index. Investors should understand that global economic, financial and political
developments, among other things, may have a material effect on the value of the index components of
a Citi proprietary index and/or the performance of a Citi proprietary index.

The risks of a Note relating to a Citi proprietary index will depend on the terms of that Note and the
relevant index conditions and/or methodology. In particular, investors should also read any discussion
of the risks of such Citi proprietary index, which are set out in the relevant index conditions and/or
methodology. Such risks may include, but are not limited to, the possibility of significant changes in:

. the levels, prices, rates or values (as relevant) of the index components of such Citi proprietary
index and the weighting of each such index component within such Citi proprietary index; and

) economic or other measures observed for the purposes of such Citi proprietary index.

A Citi proprietary index reflects the performance of notional investment positions in its index
components. There is no actual portfolio of assets in respect of such Citi proprietary index to which
any person is entitled or in which any person has any ownership interest, and no Citi proprietary index
creates any obligation of any person connected with any index component. A Citi proprietary index
merely identifies certain hypothetical investment positions, the performance of which will be used as a
reference point for the purpose of calculating its level. The performance of a Citi proprietary index
may be different from the result of any actual investment in any one or more of its index components.
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As disclosed in the relevant index conditions and/or methodology, the level of a Citi proprietary index
may reflect the deduction of notional fees and/or costs.

As disclosed in the relevant index conditions and/or methodology, any distribution, dividend and/or
amount (distribution) paid to persons who have made an actual investment in any of the index
components of a Citi proprietary index may not be reflected in the level of such Citi proprietary index.

A distribution paid to persons who have made an actual investment in any of the index components of a
Citi proprietary index will not be paid to the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is
CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL) or to the holders of Notes relating to
such Citi proprietary index. The return on such Notes will thus not reflect any such distribution.
Consequently, the return on such Notes may be less than the return from a direct investment in any
such index components.

The strategy that a Citi proprietary index aims to reflect may not be successful and other strategies
using constituents which are the same as the index components of such Citi proprietary index may
perform better than such Citi proprietary index. Investors in Notes relating to such Citi proprietary
index should therefore review the relevant index conditions and/or methodology to assess the strategy
that such Citi proprietary index has been developed to reflect.

The index conditions and/or methodology of a Citi proprietary index describe the manner in which the
relevant index calculation agent performs all calculations, determinations, rebalancings and
adjustments in respect of such Citi proprietary index, and the limited circumstances in which the
relevant index sponsor may amend the index conditions and/or methodology of such Citi proprietary
index. The index conditions and/or methodology of a Citi proprietary index also describe the conflicts
of interest which may arise for the relevant index calculation agent and its affiliates.

In addition investors should be aware that the calculation of amounts payable on Notes relating to a Citi
proprietary index involves reference to an index that is administered and maintained and, in some
cases, calculated and published by an affiliate of the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor and/or the CGMFL
Guarantor, the level of which may not be widely published.

Disruption of an index component of a Citi proprietary index and determination of the level of such
Citi proprietary index

The index conditions and/or methodology of a Citi proprietary index will set out the frequency of the
publication of its level. In the event that the level, price, rate or value (as relevant) of any of its index
components is not available for any reason, the relevant index calculation agent may calculate the level
of such Citi proprietary index for the relevant day by observing a valuation for the affected index
component from a different day or may delay the calculation of the level of such Citi proprietary index.
Investors should review the index conditions and/or methodology of such Citi proprietary index to
determine how the level of such Citi proprietary index is calculated.

If "Component Valuation" is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement and the level
of the relevant Citi proprietary index has been published for a particular day, then if such day (a) is not
a day on which valuations of an index component of such Citi proprietary index are scheduled to be
observed, or (b) is a disrupted day for an index component of such Citi proprietary index (each,
howsoever defined in the relevant index conditions and/or methodology of such Citi proprietary index),
then any level of such Citi proprietary index calculated and published by the relevant index calculation
agent for such day may be disregarded by the Calculation Agent and the Calculation Agent may itself
calculate the level of such Citi proprietary index for such day in accordance with the then-current
methodology of such Citi proprietary index but may do so by reference to the level, price, rate or value
(as relevant) of the index components of such Citi proprietary index observed on subsequent days. This
process may result in a level of such Citi proprietary index for such day being calculated by the
Calculation Agent which is different to the published level of such Citi proprietary index and may have
an adverse effect on the value of the relevant Notes.

Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to Citi
proprietary indices

As the terms and conditions of Notes relating to Citi proprietary indices include provisions dealing with
the postponement of a Valuation Date due to the occurrence of a Disrupted Day, such postponement or
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any alternative provisions for valuation provided in the terms and conditions of such Notes may have
an adverse effect on the value of such Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of any Citi proprietary
index (being (a) the occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any underlying hedging
position in relation to the relevant Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to
performing its obligations in respect of the relevant Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased Cost
of Hedging, (b) the substitution of a Citi proprietary index with a substitute index due to the originally
designated Citi proprietary index being either (i) not calculated and announced by or on behalf of the
relevant index sponsor but instead being calculated and announced by or on behalf of a successor to the
relevant index sponsor acceptable to the Calculation Agent or (ii) replaced by a successor index or (c)
the imposition of, change in or removal of any tax relating to any index component of such Citi
proprietary index or other asset relating to such index component (if specified as applicable in the
applicable Pricing Supplement), then (A) the Calculation Agent shall make such adjustment(s) to the
terms of the relevant Notes as the Calculation Agent determines necessary to account for the effect of
such Adjustment Event, or (B) the Calculation Agent may replace the Citi proprietary index which is
the subject of the Adjustment Event with either (1) a new index using, in the determination of the
Calculation Agent, the same or a substantially similar formula and method of calculation as used in the
calculation of the level of such Citi proprietary index, or (2) a replacement index selected by reference
to such other criteria as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. Any such adjustment may
include, in the case of an Increased Cost of Hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such
Increased Cost of Hedging (including, but not limited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable
in respect of the Notes to reflect any such increased costs). Any such adjustments or substitution may
have an adverse effect on the value of such Notes and, if the Calculation Agent determines that no
adjustment can reasonably so be made, such Adjustment Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If a Proprietary Index Adjustment Event occurs (being, in respect of a Citi proprietary index, (a) the
relevant index sponsor announcing that it will make a material change to such Citi proprietary index,
(b) the relevant index sponsor permanently cancelling such Citi proprietary index and no successor
index existing or (c) the relevant index sponsor or any other person or entity on its behalf failing to
calculate and announce such Citi proprietary index), then the Calculation Agent may determine
whether such Proprietary Index Adjustment Event has a material effect on the relevant Notes and, if so,
shall either (i) calculate the relevant level of such Citi proprietary index in accordance with the formula
for and method of calculating such Citi proprietary index last in effect prior to the applicable change,
cancellation or failure or (ii) substitute such Citi proprietary index with a replacement index using, in
the determination of the Calculation Agent, the same or a substantially similar formula and method of
calculation as used in the calculation of the level of such Citi proprietary index or a replacement index
selected by reference to such other criteria as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, and
determine any adjustment necessary to account for such substitution. Any such calculation,
substitution and/or adjustment may have an adverse effect on the value of such Notes and, if the
Calculation Agent determines that no calculation or substitution can reasonably so be made, such
Adjustment Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) circumstances in which the Calculation Agent
determines that no adjustment or substitution can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event,
(b) no calculation or substitution can reasonably be made following a Proprietary Index Adjustment
Event, (c) a Section 871(m) Event or (d) a Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event (if specified as
applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement)), then the relevant Notes may be redeemed as more
fully set out in the terms and conditions of the relevant Notes. If the relevant Notes are redeemed early,
then the Issuer will pay to each Noteholder in respect of each Calculation Amount held by such holder
an amount equal to the fair market value of such Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or
its affiliates of unwinding any underlying and/or related hedging and funding arrangements, as
determined by the Calculation Agent or such other amount as is specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement. There is no guarantee that the amount repaid to investors will be equal to or higher than
the investor's initial investment in the relevant Notes and such amount may be substantially less than
the investor's initial investment.

Investors in Notes relating to Citi proprietary indices should read "Underlying Schedule 11 —
Proprietary Index Conditions™ in this Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement in order
to fully understand the provisions relating to such Notes.
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Certain considerations associated with Notes relating to dividend futures contracts

Investors relating to dividend futures contracts should be familiar with investments in global capital
markets and with equity index dividends derivatives generally. The value of a dividend futures contract
will generally track the dividends paid by the companies (each a Relevant Company) comprised in the
equity index (the Relevant Index) relating to the relevant dividend futures contract from time to time
during one calendar year. Investors should understand that global economic, financial and political
developments, among other things, may have a material effect on the performance of such Relevant
Companies and therefore on the value of the dividends paid by such Relevant Companies and the value
of the relevant dividend futures contract. Before purchasing Notes relating to dividend futures
contracts, investors should carefully consider, among other matters, the value and price volatility of
dividend futures contracts and the performance of the Relevant Companies comprised in the Relevant
Index by reference to which amounts payable under the relevant Notes are calculated.

Notes relating to dividend futures contracts will give rise to obligations of the Issuer and will not give
rise to any obligations under the relevant dividend futures contract or any obligations of any Relevant
Company. No offer is made by the sponsor of the relevant dividend futures contract or any Relevant
Company. No sponsor of the relevant dividend futures contract will have participated in the preparation
of the applicable Pricing Supplement or in establishing the terms of the Notes.

Not all types of dividends paid by a Relevant Company may be relevant for the purpose of determining
the price of a dividend futures contract (for example, in general, ordinary dividends declared by a
Relevant Company (paid in cash or shares) are considered as realised dividends, which, if so provided
in the contract specifications for the relevant dividend futures contract, are relevant for the purpose of
determining the price of dividend futures contracts, whereas special or extraordinary dividends are not
generally considered as realised dividends and therefore, if so provided in the contract specifications
for the relevant dividend futures contract will not be relevant for the purpose of determining the price
of such dividend futures contract). Further, the Relevant Companies may change from time to time in
accordance with the rules of the Relevant Index and such a change in Relevant Companies may have an
adverse effect on the price of the dividend futures contract and amounts payable in respect of the
Notes. Investors should refer to the contract specifications for the dividend futures contract and the
index rules relating to the Relevant Index for details regarding the calculation methodologies (including
which dividends will be included in the calculation of the dividend futures contract) and adjustments
which may be made thereto (including to the Relevant Companies to be included in the Relevant
Index). Investors should note that the performance of similar dividend futures contracts in respect of
prior contract periods will not necessarily be indicative of the performance of the relevant dividend
futures contract to which the Notes relate.

The market value of the Notes may, at any time, be affected by certain factors relating to dividend
futures contracts which may include, but are not limited to, the possibility of significant changes in:

) the Relevant Companies comprised in the Relevant Index and expectations relating to the
dividends to be announced in relation thereto;

. market interest and yield rates;
) the time remaining to the final settlement date of the relevant dividend futures contract; and
. economic, political and macro-economic factors.

Investors should understand that the value of the dividends paid by the Relevant Companies may be
influenced by many factors, including the earnings and dividend policy of each such Relevant
Company, changes in applicable laws and regulations, global economic, financial and political
developments and structural supply and demand factors. Relevant Companies may pay reduced
dividends or no dividends in respect of the relevant contract period. The amount of dividends paid by
Relevant Companies in respect of similar periods may bear no relation to dividends paid during the
relevant contract period. Any such changes may have an adverse effect on the amount of relevant
dividends paid by Relevant Companies and, in turn, the price of the relevant dividend futures contract
and amounts payable in respect of the Notes.
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Adjustments to Valuation Dates, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked
to dividend futures contracts

As the terms and conditions of Notes relating to dividend futures contracts may include provisions
dealing with (x) the postponement of a Valuation Date due to the occurrence of a Disrupted Day or (y)
the variation of a Valuation Date following the announcement by the relevant dividend futures contract
sponsor that the expiry date of a dividend futures contract will occur on an alternative date to that
originally contemplated, such postponement, variation or any alternative provisions for valuation
provided in the terms and conditions of such Notes may have an adverse effect on the value of such
Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of any dividend futures
contract (being (a) the occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any underlying hedging
position in relation to the Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to performing its
obligations in respect of the Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased Cost of Hedging, (b) such
dividend futures contract (i) not being calculated and announced by or on behalf of the relevant
dividend futures contract sponsor but instead being calculated and announced by or on behalf of a
successor to the relevant dividend futures contract sponsor or (ii) being replaced by a successor
dividend futures contract; or (c) any Additional Disruption Event specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement), then the Calculation Agent shall make such adjustment(s) to the terms of the Notes as the
Calculation Agent determines necessary to account for the effect of such Adjustment Event including,
in the case of an Increased Cost of Hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such Increased
Cost of Hedging (including, but not limited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect
of the Notes to reflect any such increased costs). Any such adjustments may have an adverse effect on
the value of the Notes and, if the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment can reasonably so be
made, such Adjustment Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If a Dividend Futures Contract Adjustment Event occurs (being, in respect of a dividend futures
contract, (i) the relevant exchange and/or dividend futures contract sponsor, as the case may be,
announcing that it will make a material change or modification to a relevant dividend futures contract,
(ii) the relevant exchange and/or the dividend futures contract sponsor, as the case may be, permanently
cancelling or discontinuing the dividend futures contract or there otherwise being a permanent
discontinuation in trading or trading never commencing in such dividend futures contract and no
successor dividend futures contract existing, or (iii) any "final settlement price" not being displayed or
published on the relevant electronic page or by the exchange at the relevant valuation time), then the
Calculation Agent may determine whether such Dividend Futures Contract Adjustment Event has a
material effect on the Notes and, if so, shall either (A) calculate the "final settlement price” of such
dividend futures contract by calculating the value of the relevant dividends for the applicable contract
period for such dividend futures contract by reference to the formula for and the method of calculation
last in effect of any related dividend point index or such other sources as it deems appropriate and/or
(B) make such adjustments to the terms of the Notes as it determines necessary or appropriate to
account for the effect of the relevant Dividend Futures Contract Adjustment Event and/or (C) in the
case of (ii) above only, substitute such dividend futures contract with a replacement dividend futures
contract and determine any adjustment necessary to account for such substitution. Any such
calculation, substitution and/or adjustment may have an adverse effect on the value of the Notes and, if
the Calculation Agent determines that no calculation, adjustment or substitution can reasonably so be
made, such Dividend Futures Contract Adjustment Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) circumstances in which the Calculation Agent
determines that no adjustment or substitution can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event,
(b) no calculation, substitution or adjustment can reasonably be made following a Dividend Futures
Contract Adjustment Event, (c) a Section 871(m) Event or (d) a Hedging Disruption Early Termination
Event (if specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement)), the Notes may be redeemed as
more fully set out in the terms and conditions of the Notes. If the Notes are redeemed early, the Issuer
will pay to each Noteholder in respect of each Calculation Amount held by such holder an amount
equal to the fair market value of such Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates
of unwinding any underlying and/or related hedging and funding arrangements, as determined by the
Calculation Agent or such other amount as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. There is
no guarantee that the amount repaid to investors will be equal to or higher than the investor's initial
investment in the Notes and such amount may be substantially less than the investor's initial
investment.
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Investors in Notes relating to dividend futures contracts should read "Underlying Schedule 12 —
Dividend Futures Contract Conditions™ in this Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement
in order to fully understand the provisions relating to such Notes.

Certain considerations associated with Notes relating to rates

Investors should be familiar with investments in global capital markets and with rates generally.
Before purchasing Notes, investors should carefully consider, among other matters, the value and price
volatility of the rates by reference to which amounts payable or deliverable under the relevant Notes
are calculated.

The market value of the Notes may, at any time, be affected by certain factors relating to rates which
may include, but are not limited to, the possibility of significant changes in:

) the level of the rate;
) macro-economic, political or financial factors, speculation; and
) central bank and government intervention

In recent years, rates have been relatively low and stable, but this may not continue and interest rates
may rise and/or become volatile. Fluctuations that have occurred in any rate in the past are not
necessarily indicative, however, of fluctuation that may occur in the rate during the term of any Note.
Fluctuations in rates will affect the value of the Notes.

Investors should understand that, depending on the terms of the Notes, they may receive no amount(s)
or assets because of the performance of the relevant rates and they may lose a substantial portion of
their investment. In addition, investors should ensure that they review the terms of the Notes in
question as these may provide for amounts due or assets deliverable to be determined by reference to
an option or formulae linked to the relevant rate rather than being a conventional debt security
referencing a rate, such as one which bears interest at a specified floating rate of interest.

Disrupted Days, Adjustment Events and Early Redemption in relation to Notes linked to rates

As the terms and conditions of Notes relating to rates include provisions dealing with the consequences
of a Disrupted Day, including referring to alternative price sources or determination of the relevant rate
by the Calculation Agent or by reference to quotes from reference dealers, such any alternative
provisions for valuation provided in the terms and conditions of such Notes may have an adverse effect
on the value of such Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Adjustment Event occurs in respect of any rate (being the
occurrence at any time of a change in law affecting any underlying hedging position in relation to the
Notes or materially increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to performing its obligations in respect of
the Notes, a Hedging Disruption or an Increased Cost of Hedging), then the Calculation Agent shall
make such adjustment(s) to the terms of the Notes as the Calculation Agent determines necessary to
account for the effect of such Adjustment Event. Any such adjustment may include, in the case of an
Increased Cost of Hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such Increased Cost of Hedging
(including, but not limited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect of the Notes to
reflect any such increased costs). Any such adjustments may have an adverse effect on the value of
such Notes and, if the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment can reasonably so be made,
such Adjustment Event shall be an Early Redemption Event.

If an Early Redemption Event occurs (being (a) circumstances in which the Calculation Agent
determines that no adjustment or substitution can reasonably be made following an Adjustment Event,
(b) a Section 871(m) Event or (c) a Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event (if specified as
applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement)), the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in
the terms and conditions of the Notes. If the Notes are redeemed early, the Issuer will pay to each
Noteholder in respect of each Calculation Amount held by such holder an amount equal to the fair
market value of such Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding
any underlying and/or related hedging and funding arrangements, as determined by the Calculation
Agent or such other amount as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. There is no guarantee
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that the amount repaid to investors will be equal to or higher than the investor's initial investment in the
Notes and such amount may be substantially less than the investor's initial investment.

Investors in Notes relating to rates should read "Underlying Schedule 13 — Rate Conditions" in this
Offering Circular and the applicable Pricing Supplement in order to fully understand the provisions
relating to such Notes.

Substitute or Successor Rates

If an Underlying which is a Rate (other than a USD Benchmark to which the Benchmark Transition
Provisions described below apply) has been discontinued or is permanently no longer being published,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Conditions, the Determination Agent may determine, in
its sole and absolute discretion, any relevant underlying closing level for such Rate by reference to an
industry-accepted substitute or successor rate (or, if none, a comparable alternative) and may make
such adjustments to the Conditions as it determines necessary or appropriate to reflect any
industry-accepted practices for the successor or comparable rate in order to preserve the original
economic rationale and objectives of the Notes, including applying an adjustment factor. Any such
amendments may result in payments under the Notes being different from those originally anticipated.

Mandatory early redemption of Notes

If "Mandatory Early Redemption Provisions" are specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing
Supplement relating to an issue of Notes, then such Pricing Supplement will specify what constitutes a
"Mandatory Early Redemption Event" and, following the occurrence of a Mandatory Early Redemption
Event, the Notes will be redeemed on the relevant Mandatory Early Redemption Date and the relevant
Mandatory Early Redemption Amount specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement will become
payable and no further amount shall be payable in respect of such Notes. In this case, investors are
subject to a reinvestment risk, as they may not be able to replace their investment in such Notes with an
investment that has a similar profile of potential returns and risks as the relevant Notes.

If any Notes are redeemed early in accordance with the above, the amount received by the relevant
holders will be limited to the Mandatory Early Redemption Amount irrespective of the price of the
relevant Underlying(s) or any other reference factor(s) applicable to such Underlying(s). Furthermore,
investors will not benefit from any movement in the price of relevant Underlying(s) that may occur
during the period between the relevant date of early redemption and the maturity date.

Realisation Disruption

If "Realisation Disruption” is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement and a
Realisation Disruption Event occurs (being, in summary, either (i) an event which imposes restrictions
or taxes, charges or deductions in respect of the Notes and/or on hedging arrangements in respect of the
Notes which would materially restrict, or materially increase the cost of, the Issuer's obligations under
the Notes or materially restrict, or materially increase the cost of, any Hedging Party's obligations
under any such hedging arrangements or (ii) the occurrence or existence of any event which either
materially restricts the exchange, delivery or transfer of the currency of payment of the Notes or of any
hedging arrangements in respect of the Notes or restricts the determination of any exchange rate in
relation to any such currency), then either (a) the terms of the Notes (including any payment or delivery
obligations) may be adjusted in order to reflect the economic effect of the particular Realisation
Disruption Event or (b) the Issuer may redeem the Notes.

Investors should note that any such adjustments by the Calculation Agent may include (but are not
limited to): (i) payments under the Notes being made in a different currency to the previously specified
payment currency of the Notes; (ii) deduction of applicable taxes, charges or deductions from payments
due in respect of the Notes resulting in reduced amounts paid in respect of the Notes or delivery of any
Entitlement being subject to payment by the relevant Noteholder of an amount equal to a pro rata
portion of any such tax, charge or deduction; (iii) delay of payments or deliveries in respect of the
Notes until the relevant restrictions are lifted; (iv) determination of relevant exchange rates by the
Calculation Agent taking into consideration all available information that it deems relevant, which may
result in a different rate to that which would have applied had the Realisation Disruption Event not
occurred and (v) (where legally permissible) in lieu of paying any cash amounts in respect of the Notes,
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procuring the physical delivery of any Underlying(s) (or vice versa). All the above could produce a
materially different redemption to that originally anticipated in respect of the Notes.

If the Notes are redeemed early pursuant to (b) above, the Issuer will pay to each Noteholder in respect
of each Calculation Amount held by such holder an amount equal to the fair market value of such
Calculation Amount less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding any underlying related
hedging arrangements, as determined by the Calculation Agent or such other amount as is specified in
the applicable Pricing Supplement. There is no guarantee that the amount repaid to investors will be
equal to or higher than the investor's initial investment in the relevant Notes and such amount may be
substantially less than the investor's initial investment.

Certain considerations regarding hedging

Prospective purchasers intending to purchase Notes to hedge against the market risk associated with
investing in the particular Underlying(s) should recognise the complexities of utilising Notes in this
manner. For example, the value of the relevant Notes may not exactly correlate with the value of the
relevant Underlying(s). Due to fluctuating supply and demand for Notes, there is no assurance that
their value will correlate with movements of the Underlying(s). For these reasons, among others, it
may not be possible to purchase or liquidate securities in a portfolio at the prices used to calculate the
value of any relevant index, share or basket.

Partly-paid Notes

The relevant Issuer may issue Notes, except for within the United States or to, or for the account or
benefit of, U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S or in regulations adopted under the CEA), where
the issue price is payable in more than one instalment. Failure to pay any subsequent instalment of the
issue price in respect of such Notes could result in an investor losing all of his investment.

Notes with a multiplier or other leverage factor can be volatile investments and Noteholders may
not receive returns that directly correlate to the performance of the relevant Underlying(s)

Notes with variable interest rates and/or redemption amounts can be volatile investments. If they are
structured to include multipliers or other leverage factors, or caps or floors, or any combination of
those features, their market values may be even more volatile than those for securities that do not
include those features.

Furthermore, the amounts payable under such Notes may not directly correlate to the rise and/or fall in
price or level of an Underlying. For example, Notes may provide that any positive performance of any
Underlying is subject to:

@ a percentage participation factor that is less than 100 per cent. of a price or level of such
Underlying;

(b) a cap or maximum amount; and/or

(© a negative spread or percentage deduction to a relevant price, level or value of such
Underlying,

which, in each case, would mean that the positive performance (if any) of such Underlying is not fully
accounted for in any relevant payment(s) made under the Notes.

Fixed Rate Notes

Investment in Fixed Rate Notes involves the risk that if market interest rates subsequently increase
above the rate paid on the Fixed Rate Notes, this will adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate
Notes.

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes bear interest at a rate that converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate or
from a floating rate to a fixed rate. Such a feature to convert the interest basis, and any conversion of
the interest basis, may affect the secondary market in, and the market value of, such Notes as the
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change of interest basis may result in a lower interest return for Noteholders. Where the Notes convert
from a fixed rate to a floating rate, the spread on the Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may be less favourable
than then prevailing spreads on comparable Floating Rate Notes tied to the same reference rate. In
addition, the new floating rate at any time may be lower than the rates on other Notes. Where the Notes
convert from a floating rate to a fixed rate, the fixed rate may be lower than then prevailing rates on
those Notes and could affect the market value of an investment in the relevant Notes.

Notes with a variable rate of interest

If the Notes are New York Law Notes and the principal amount of the Notes as of the issue date of the
relevant tranche is less than U.S.$2,500,000 (or equivalent), in addition to any maximum interest rate
that may be applicable to any note which has a variable rate of interest, the interest rate on such note
will in no event be higher than the maximum rate permitted by applicable law. As of the date of this
Offering Circular, the maximum rate of interest under provisions of the New York penal law, with a
few exceptions, is 25 per cent. per annum on a simple interest basis.

Leveraging Risk

Borrowing to fund the purchase of the Notes (leveraging) can have a significant negative impact on the
value of and return on the investment. Investors considering leveraging the Notes should obtain further
detailed information as to the applicable risks from the leverage provider.

Illegality in relation to Notes

If the Issuer determines that the performance of its obligations under an issue of Notes or where the
Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor determines that the performance of its obligations under the
CGMHI Deed of Guarantee in respect of such Notes or, where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL
Guarantor determines that the performance of its obligations under the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee in
respect of such Notes or that any arrangements made to hedge the Issuer's and/or where the Issuer is
CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor's and/or, where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor's
obligations under such Notes and/or, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee
and/or where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee, as the case may be, has become
illegal in whole or in part for any reason, the Issuer may redeem the Notes early and, if and to the
extent permitted by applicable law, will pay to each Noteholder (i) in respect of Underlying Linked
Notes in respect of each Calculation Amount held by such holder, an amount equal to the fair market
value of each such Calculation Amount notwithstanding such illegality less the cost to the Issuer and/or
its affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements or such other amount as is
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and (ii) in respect of Notes other than Underlying
Linked Notes, an amount calculated pursuant to the relevant Condition or as specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement. There is no guarantee that the amount repaid to investors will be equal to or higher
than the investor's initial investment in the relevant Notes and such amount may be substantially less
than the investor's initial investment.

Possible Taxable Event for U.S. Federal Income Tax Purposes

Certain modifications to the terms of the Notes could be treated as "significant modifications" of the
Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes, in which case the Notes would be treated, in whole or part,
as retired and reissued. Significant modifications could include a designation by the Issuer of a
Substitute for itself and the designation of a substitute or successor rate.

In the event of a significant modification, a U.S. Holder (as defined below under "Taxation—United
States Federal Tax Considerations™) would generally be required to recognise gain or loss (subject to
possible treatment as a recapitalisation or, in the case of loss, to the possible application of the wash
sale rules) with respect to the Notes. Moreover, the treatment of the Notes after such an event could
differ from their prior treatment. A changed treatment of the Notes could have possible withholding tax
consequences to Non-U.S. Holders (as defined below under "Taxation—United States Federal Tax
Considerations™). Prospective purchasers should consult their tax advisors regarding the risk of such
an event.
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Possible U.S. Federal Withholding Tax under Section 871(m)

Section 871(m) of the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code) imposes a
30 per cent. (or lower treaty rate) withholding tax on certain "dividend equivalents" paid or deemed
paid to Non-U.S. Holders (as defined below under "Taxation—United States Federal Tax
Considerations™) with respect to financial instruments linked to U.S. equities or indices that include
U.S. equities under certain circumstances. Treasury regulations promulgated under Section 871(m)
may require withholding on Non-U.S. Holders in respect of dividend equivalents deemed paid under
certain Notes, regardless of whether the Notes are issued by the U.S. Issuer or the Non-U.S. Issuer (as
defined below under "Taxation—United States Federal Tax Considerations™). Under these regulations,
this withholding regime generally applies to Notes that substantially replicate the economic
performance of one or more underlying U.S. equities, as determined based on one of two tests set forth
in the regulations. However, based on an Internal Revenue Service (IRS) notice, Notes issued prior to
2021 will generally be subject to withholding tax only if they have a "delta" of one with respect to the
relevant underlying U.S. equity. The regulations provide certain other exceptions to this withholding
regime, in particular for instruments linked to certain broad-based indices that meet requirements set
forth in the regulations as well as instruments linked to securities that track such indices. The Issuer
will not be required to pay any additional amounts in respect of amounts withheld under Section
871(m).

Prospective purchasers of the Notes should consult their tax advisors regarding the potential application
of Section 871(m) to a particular Note.

Prospective purchasers of the Notes should note that if a Section 871(m) Event (as defined under
"General Conditions of the Notes") occurs, an Early Redemption Event will occur, in which case the
relevant Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in the terms and conditions of such Notes.

Meetings of Noteholders and Modifications

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes contain provisions for calling meetings of Noteholders to
consider matters which may have a general or specific effect upon their interests. These provisions
permit defined majorities to bind all Noteholders, including those Noteholders who did not attend and
vote at the relevant meeting, and Noteholders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes also provide that the Issuer and, where the Issuer is CGMHI,
the CGMHI Guarantor or, where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor may make, without the
consent of the Noteholders, (i) any modification to the Notes, the Fiscal Agency Agreement, Swedish
Notes Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, the Finnish Notes Issuing and Paying Agency
Agreement, the relevant Deed of Covenant, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee and/or the CGMFL Deed
of Guarantee which, in the opinion of the Issuer, is not materially prejudicial to the interests of the
Noteholders or (ii) any modification to the Notes, the Fiscal Agency Agreement, Swedish Notes
Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, the Finnish Notes Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, the
Deeds of Covenant, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee and/or the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee which is of
a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct a manifest error or proven error or to comply
with mandatory provisions of the law.

In determining what is "materially prejudicial”, the Issuer shall not consider the individual
circumstances of any Noteholder or the tax or other consequences of such modification in any
jurisdiction. Any such amendment may have an adverse effect on the value of the Notes or, without
limitation, a Noteholder's tax, regulatory or accounting treatment of such Notes.

Substitution

Investors should note that, in relation to any Notes, either of the Issuer, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the
CGMHI Guarantor and/or, where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor may, without the
consent of the holders but subject to certain conditions, substitute for itself in respect of such Notes or,
if applicable, in respect of the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee or the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee any
company which is, on the date of such substitution, in the opinion of the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor
or the CGMFL Guarantor, as the case may be, of at least equivalent standing and creditworthiness to it.
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Determinations

The terms of the Notes confer on the Issuer, the Calculation Agent and certain other persons some
discretion in making determinations and calculations in relation to, inter alia, Underlying(s) and the
occurrence of various events. The Issuer, the Calculation Agent or such other persons will act in good
faith and in its sole and absolute discretion or in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner
(as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement), but there can be no assurance that the exercise of
any such discretion will not affect the value of the Notes or the occurrence of an early repayment.

Change of law

The Conditions of the Notes are based on relevant laws in effect as at the date of this Offering Circular.
No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change to such laws or
administrative practices after the date of this Offering Circular.

Notes subject to optional redemption by the Issuer

An optional redemption feature of Notes is likely to limit their market value. During any period when
the Issuer may elect to redeem Notes, the market value of those Notes generally will not rise
substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed. This also may be true prior to any
redemption period.

The Issuer may be expected to redeem Notes when its cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate
on the Notes. At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption
proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Notes being redeemed and may
only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk
in light of other investments available at that time.

Investors should note, inter alia, the circumstances, in Condition 5 of the General Conditions of the
Notes when the Issuer is entitled to redeem the relevant Notes and any related provisions set out in the
applicable Pricing Supplement.

Notes which are issued at a substantial discount or premium may experience price volatility in
response to changes in market interest rates

The market value of any Notes issued at a substantial discount (such as Zero Coupon Notes) or
premium to their principal amount tend to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates
than do prices for more conventional interest-bearing notes. Generally, the longer the remaining term
of such Notes, the greater the price volatility as compared to more conventional interest-bearing notes
with comparable maturities.

Risks relating to Notes that are Physical Delivery Notes
Settlement disruption event and failure to deliver

In the case of Physical Delivery Notes, if a Settlement Disruption Event occurs or exists on any date
specified for the delivery of the relevant Entitlement, redemption will be postponed until the next
Settlement Business Day in respect of which there is no Settlement Disruption Event. The Issuer
(where Settlement via Intermediary is not specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement)
or the relevant Intermediary (where Settlement via Intermediary is specified as applicable in the
applicable Pricing Supplement) in these circumstances may select to deliver the relevant Entitlement
using such other commercially reasonable manner as it may select or it may pay the Disruption Cash
Redemption Amount in lieu of delivering the Entitlement.

If, in relation to Physical Delivery Notes, "Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity" is specified as applying
in the applicable Pricing Supplement and it is impossible or impracticable, in the opinion of the
Calculation Agent, to deliver, when due, some or all of the Relevant Assets where such failure to
deliver is due to illiquidity in the market for such Relevant Assets or Substitute Assets, the Issuer
(where Settlement via Intermediary is not specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement)
or the relevant Intermediary (where Settlement via Intermediary is specified as applicable in the
applicable Pricing Supplement) has the right to pay the Failure to Deliver Redemption Amount in lieu
of delivering some or all of such Relevant Assets which are affected by such illiquidity.
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If "Aggregation of Entitlements" is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement,
Physical Delivery Notes which are held by the same Noteholder will be aggregated for the purpose of
determining the aggregate Entitlements in respect of such Notes and such aggregate Entitlements will
be rounded down to the nearest Tradeable Amount of the Relevant Asset(s), in such manner as the
relevant Calculation Agent shall determine. If "Aggregation of Entitlements” is not specified as
applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the Entitlement in respect of each Calculation Amount
will be rounded down to the nearest whole multiple of the Tradeable Amount of the Relevant Asset(s)
in such manner as the relevant Calculation Agent shall determine. Amounts of the Relevant Asset less
than the Tradeable Amount shall not be delivered and no cash or other adjustment will be made in
respect thereof unless "Cash Adjustment™ is specified as applying in the applicable Pricing Supplement,
in which case, the Issuer (where Settlement via Intermediary is not specified as applicable in the
applicable Pricing Supplement) or the relevant Intermediary (where Settlement via Intermediary is
specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) shall pay to the relevant Noteholder a
cash amount equal to the value of any such lesser amount.

Issuer’s option to substitute assets or to pay the alternate cash redemption amount

If the Notes are Physical Delivery Notes, the Issuer (where Settlement via Intermediary is not specified
as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) or the relevant Intermediary (where Settlement via
Intermediary is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) may, if the Calculation
Agent determines that the Relevant Asset or Relevant Assets, as the case may be, comprises shares
which are not freely tradeable and deliverable, elect either (i) to substitute a Substitute Asset or
Substitute Assets, as the case may be, for the Relevant Asset or Relevant Assets, or (ii) not to deliver or
procure the delivery of the relevant Entitlement or the relevant Substitute Asset or Substitute Assets, as
the case may be, to the relevant Noteholders, but in lieu thereof to make payment to the relevant
Noteholders on the maturity date of the Alternate Cash Redemption Amount.

Expenses

All Expenses arising from the delivery of the Entitlement in respect of Physical Delivery Notes shall be
for the account of the relevant Noteholder.

Expenses in respect of Physical Delivery Notes shall be deducted by the Issuer (where Settlement via
Intermediary is not specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) or the relevant
Intermediary (where Settlement via Intermediary is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing
Supplement) from any cash amount owing to such Noteholder and paid by the Issuer (where Settlement
via Intermediary is not specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) or the relevant
Intermediary (where Settlement via Intermediary is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing
Supplement) on behalf of the Noteholder or paid by the Issuer (where Settlement via Intermediary is
not specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) or the relevant Intermediary (where
Settlement via Intermediary is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) on behalf
of such Noteholder by converting such amount of the Relevant Asset(s) due to be delivered as
necessary to pay the Expenses, as specified by the Noteholder in the relevant Asset Transfer Notice. If
any Expenses are not so paid, the relevant Noteholder shall be deemed to authorise the Issuer (where
Settlement via Intermediary is not specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) or the
relevant Intermediary (where Settlement via Intermediary is specified as applicable in the applicable
Pricing Supplement) to convert and the Issuer (where Settlement via Intermediary is not specified as
applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) or the relevant Intermediary (where Settlement via
Intermediary is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) may convert such amount
of the Relevant Asset(s) into cash sufficient to cover the Expenses in respect of the relevant Note from
which the relevant Intermediary shall deduct such Expenses.

Variation of Settlement

In respect of Physical Delivery Notes, the Issuer (where Settlement via Intermediary is not specified as
applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) or the relevant Intermediary (where Settlement via
Intermediary is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) has (where Variation of
Settlement is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) an option, to vary settlement
in respect of such Notes and, in lieu of delivering or procuring delivery of the relevant Entitlement, to
pay an amount determined to be equal to the fair market value of the Entitlement on the Maturity Date.
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In such circumstances, a Noteholder will not receive any Relevant Assets as the Notes will only be
cash settled and the redemption amount received by a Noteholder may be significantly less than such
Noteholder's initial investment in the Notes. Furthermore, a Noteholder would not benefit from any
increase in the price of the Relevant Assets that would have otherwise been deliverable if the Notes had
been settled by physical delivery after the date of determination of such fair market value.

Risks relating to Notes that are Dual Currency Notes

If the Notes are Dual Currency Notes, then amounts payable in respect of the Notes will be determined
by converting all amounts due under the Notes from the Denomination Currency into the Relevant
Currency by multiplying such amount by the Dual Currency Exchange Rate for the last occurring
valuation date. In such circumstances, amounts that Noteholders receive in respect of the Notes are also
linked to the performance of the Underlying, which is the exchange rate used for such conversions.
Investors should therefore also have regard to the risk factors relating to Notes linked to a currency
exchange rate as set out above.

Risks in investing in the form of certificateless depositary interests in CREST

Investors may also hold indirect interests in Notes through Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited (formerly
known as CRESTCo Limited) (CREST) through the issuance of dematerialised depository interests
(CDIs) issued, held, settled and transferred through CREST. CDIs are independent securities
constituted under English law and transferred through CREST and will be issued by CREST
Depository Limited (the CREST Depository) pursuant to the global deed poll dated 25 June 2001 (as
subsequently modified, supplemented and/or restated) (the CREST Deed Poll).

The rights of CDI Holders to Notes are represented by the relevant entitlements against the CREST
Depository which (through the CREST Nominee (as defined herein)) holds interests in such Notes.
Accordingly, rights under Notes underlying CDIs cannot be enforced by CDI Holders except indirectly
through the intermediary depositaries and custodians. The enforcement of rights under such Notes will
be subject to the local law of the relevant intermediaries. This could result in an elimination or
reduction in the payments that otherwise would have been made in respect of such Notes in the event
of any insolvency or liquidation of any of the relevant intermediaries, in particular where Notes held in
clearing systems are not held in special purpose accounts and are fungible with other securities held in
the same accounts on behalf of other customers of the relevant intermediaries.

The rights of the CDI Holders will be governed by the arrangements between CREST, Euroclear,
Clearstream, Luxembourg and the Issuer, including the CREST Deed Poll. Potential investors should
note that the provisions of the CREST Deed Poll, the CREST Manual and the CREST Rules contain
indemnities, warranties, representations and undertakings to be given by CDI Holders and limitations
on the liability of the CREST Depository. CDI Holders are bound by such provisions and may incur
liabilities pursuant to or resulting from a breach of any such indemnities, warranties, representations
and undertakings in excess of the amounts originally invested by them. As a result, the rights of and
returns received by CDI Holders may differ from those of holders of Notes which are not represented
by CDls.

In addition, CDI Holders may be required to pay fees, charges, costs and expenses to the CREST
Depository in connection with the use of the CREST International Settlement Links Service. These will
include the fees and expenses charged by the CREST Depository in respect of the provision of services
by it under the CREST Deed Poll and any taxes, duties, charges, costs or expenses which may be or
become payable in connection with the holding of Notes through the CREST International Settlement
Links Service.

Potential investors should note that none of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL,
the CGMFL Guarantor any Dealer, any distributor, any Paying Agent, the Registrar and any Transfer
Agent will have any responsibility for the performance by any intermediaries or their respective direct
or indirect participants or accountholders of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures
governing their operations.

Green Bonds

Notes may be issued as green bonds (Green Bonds) or Notes for which it is the relevant Issuer's
intention to apply the offering proceeds specifically to fund the financing or refinancing of Eligible
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Green Assets (as defined in the applicable Pricing Supplement), in whole or in part, in each case where
the use of such funds supports the relevant Issuer's sustainable progress strategy. The applicable Pricing
Supplement will indicate whether or not the Notes are intended to constitute Green Bonds and will
provide additional information in relation to the intended use of proceeds in respect of any Green
Bonds.

Risks related to the market generally
Impact of fees, commissions and/or inducements on the Issue Price and/or offer price

Investors should note that the Issue Price and/or offer price of Notes may include fees and/or other
commissions and inducements (e.g. placement fees, distribution fees, structuring fees). Any such fees
and/or other commissions and inducements will not be taken into account for the purposes of
determining the price of such Notes in the secondary market and will result in a difference between the
Issue Price and/or offer price of the Notes and the bid/offer price quoted by any intermediary in the
secondary market. Any such difference will result in a decrease in the value of an issue of Notes,
particularly in relation to any such Notes sold immediately following the issue date or offer period
relating to the relevant Tranche of such Notes.

The secondary market

Notes may have no established trading market when issued, and one may never develop. If a market
does develop, it may not be very liquid and may be sensitive to changes in financial markets and an
investor may not be able to find a timely and/or suitable counterpart. Therefore, investors may not be
able to sell their Notes easily or at prices that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar
investments that have a developed secondary market or at prices higher than the relevant investor's
initial investment. Investors seeking to liquidate/sell positions in the Notes prior to the stated maturity
date may receive substantially less than their original purchase price. Therefore, in establishing their
investment strategy, investors should ensure that the term of the Notes is in line with their future
liquidity requirements. This is particularly the case should the relevant Issuer be in financial distress,
which may result in any sale of the Notes having to be a substantial discount to their principal amount
or for Notes that are especially sensitive to interest rate, currency or market risks, are designed for
specific investment objectives or strategies or have been structured to meet the investment
requirements of limited categories of investors. These types of Notes generally would have a more
limited secondary market and more price volatility than conventional debt securities. [lliquidity may
have a severely adverse effect on the market value of Notes. The liquidity of Notes is also influenced
by the type of investor to whom such Notes are sold. To the extent that an issue of Notes is or becomes
illiquid, investors may have to hold the relevant Notes until maturity before they are able to realise
value.

The Issuer may, but is not obliged to, list an issue of Notes on a stock exchange. Notes issued pursuant
to this Offering Circular will not be listed on a market that is a regulated market in accordance with
Directive 2014/65/EU. If Notes are not listed or traded on any stock exchange, pricing information for
the relevant Notes may be more difficult to obtain and the liquidity of such Notes may be adversely
affected.

If Notes are not listed or traded on a stock exchange, they may be traded on trading systems governed
by the laws and regulations in force from time to time (e.g. multilateral trading systems or "MTF") or
in other trading systems (e.g. bilateral systems, or equivalent trading systems). In the event that trading
in such Notes takes place outside any such stock exchange, regulated market or trading systems, the
manner in which the price of such Notes is determined may be less transparent and the liquidity of such
Notes may be adversely affected. Investors should note that none of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the
CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor and any Dealer grants any warranty to
Noteholders as to the methodologies used to determine the price of Notes which are traded outside a
trading system. However, where the Issuer or any of its affiliates determines the price of such Notes, it
will take into account the market parameters applicable at such time in accordance with applicable
provisions of law. Even if Notes are listed and/or admitted to trading, this will not necessarily result in
greater liquidity.

Each of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor and any
Dealer may, but is not obliged to, at any time purchase Notes at any price in the open market or by
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tender or private agreement. Any Notes so purchased may be held or resold or surrendered for
cancellation. If any Notes are redeemed in part, then the number of Notes outstanding will decrease,
which will reduce liquidity for the outstanding Notes. Any such activities may have an adverse effect
on the price of the relevant Notes in the secondary market and/or the existence of a secondary market.

Any of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor or any Dealer
or affiliate thereof, as, where applicable, part of its activities as a broker and dealer in fixed income and
equity securities and related products or otherwise, may make a secondary market in relation to any
Notes and may provide an indicative bid price on a daily basis. Any indicative prices so provided shall
be determined by the relevant party in its sole discretion taking into account prevailing market
conditions and shall not be a representation by such party that any Notes can be purchased or sold at
such prices (or at all).

Notwithstanding the above, any of the parties specified above may suspend or terminate making a
market and providing indicative prices without notice, at any time and for any reason.

Consequently, there may be no market for the relevant Notes and investors should not assume that such
a market will exist. Accordingly an investor must be prepared to hold the Notes until the maturity date.

Where a market does exist, to the extent that an investor wants to sell any Notes, the price may, or may
not, be at a discount from the outstanding principal amount.

If it is possible to sell Notes, they would be sold for the prevailing bid price in the market and may be
subject to a transaction fee. The prevailing bid price may be affected by several factors including the
performance of any relevant Underlying, prevailing interest rates at the time of sale, the time remaining
to the stated maturity date, the creditworthiness of the Issuer and/or where the Issuer is CGMHI, the
CGMHI Guarantor and/or, where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor and factors affecting
the capital markets generally. The introduction of additional or competing products in the market may
also have a negative effect on the price of any Notes. It is therefore possible that an investor selling
Notes in the secondary market may receive substantially less than their original purchase price.

Credit ratings may not reflect all risks

One or more independent credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to securities issued under the
Programme, including any Notes. The credit rating agencies may have different rating methodologies,
criteria, models and requirements from one another. The ratings may not reflect the potential impact of
all risks related to structure, market, additional factors discussed above, and other factors that may
affect the value of the Notes. A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and
may be revised or withdrawn by the rating agency at any time. The ratings of any Notes may be
reduced, withdrawn or qualified at any time by the applicable rating agency. If the ratings on any
Notes are reduced, withdrawn or qualified, it could adversely affect the liquidity or the market value of
such Notes.

Additionally, the global landscape of financial sector regulation itself is undergoing significant change.
In the U.S., the Dodd-Frank Act, among other things, expands regulatory oversight of Citigroup Inc.
(and its subsidiaries) and credit rating agencies. It is not clear how this expanded regulatory oversight
will impact the ratings on the Notes or the rating of the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor and/or the
CGMFL Guarantor.

In general, European regulated investors are restricted under the CRA Regulation from using credit
ratings for regulatory purposes, unless such ratings are issued by a credit rating agency established in
the EU and registered under the CRA Regulation (and such registration has not been withdrawn or
suspended, subject to transitional provisions that apply in certain circumstances). Such general
restriction will also apply in the case of credit ratings issued by non-EU credit rating agencies, unless
the relevant credit ratings are endorsed by an EU-registered credit rating agency or the relevant non-EU
rating agency is certified in accordance with the CRA Regulation (and such endorsement action or
certification, as the case may be, has not been withdrawn or suspended, subject to transitional
provisions that apply in certain circumstances). If the status of the rating agency rating an issue of
Notes changes, European regulated investors may no longer be able to use the rating for regulatory
purposes and such Notes may have a different regulatory treatment. This may result in European
regulated investors selling the relevant Notes which may impact the value of such Notes and any

71
0012230-0017435 ICM:34056498.7B



RISK FACTORS

secondary market. The list of registered and certified rating agencies published by the ESMA on its
website in accordance with the CRA Regulation is not conclusive evidence of the status of the relevant
rating agency included in such list, as there may be delays between certain supervisory measures being
taken against a relevant rating agency and the publication of the updated ESMA list. Certain
information with respect to the credit rating agencies and ratings is set out above. Information relating
to the current ratings of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI and CGML is available at www.citigroup.com.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or
review or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to
determine whether and to what extent (1) Notes are legal investments for it, (2) Notes can be used as
collateral for various types of borrowing and (3) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of
any Notes. Financial institutions should consult their legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to
determine the appropriate treatment of Notes under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.

The United States tax treatment of certain notes is unclear

For U.S. federal tax purposes, the proper treatment and characterisation of Notes that are not treated as
debt instruments (generally, Notes that do not provide for the return at maturity of a holder's
investment) are unclear. As a result, the timing and character of income on such a Note are uncertain,
and for a non-U.S. investor there is a risk that payments on such a Note may be subject to withholding
tax. If withholding tax applies to a payment on such a Note, the Issuer will not be required to pay
additional interest in respect of amounts withheld.

The U.S. Treasury Department and the IRS have requested comments on various issues regarding the
U.S. federal income tax treatment of “prepaid forward contracts" and similar financial instruments and
have indicated that such transactions may be the subject of future regulations or other guidance. In
addition, members of Congress have proposed legislative changes to the tax treatment of derivative
contracts. Any legislation, Treasury regulations or other guidance promulgated after consideration of
these issues could materially and adversely affect the tax consequences of an investment in the Notes,
possibly with retroactive effect.

In 2015, the U.S. Treasury Department and the IRS released notices designating certain "basket
options", "basket contracts" and substantially similar transactions as reportable transactions. The
notices apply to specified transactions in which a taxpayer or its "designee" has, and exercises,
discretion to change the assets or an algorithm underlying the transaction. While an exercise of the
type of discretion that would give rise to such reporting requirements in respect of the Notes is not
expected, if the Issuer, an index sponsor or calculation agent or other person were to exercise discretion
under the terms of a Note or an index underlying a Note and were treated as a holder's "designee" for
these purposes, unless an exception applied certain holders of the relevant Notes would be required to
report certain information to the IRS, as set forth in the applicable Treasury regulations, or be subject to
penalties. The Issuer might also be required to report information regarding the transaction to the IRS.

Prospective purchasers of the Notes are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal
tax consequences of an investment in the Notes.

Changes in any applicable tax law or practice may have an adverse effect on a Noteholder

Any relevant tax law or practice applicable as at the date of this Offering Circular and/or the date of
purchase or subscription of any Notes may change at any time (including during any subscription
period or the term of any Notes). Any such change may have an adverse effect on a Noteholder,
including that Notes may be redeemed before their due date, their liquidity may decrease and/or the tax
treatment of amounts payable or receivable by or to an affected Noteholder may be less than otherwise
expected by such Noteholder.
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Benchmark reforms and discontinuation

The scrutiny and reform of "benchmarks" may adversely affect the value of and return on Notes linked
to or referencing such "benchmarks"

Interest rates and indices or other figures which are deemed to be "benchmarks" (including, but not
limited to the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) and the Euro Interbank Offered Rate
(EURIBORY)), are the subject of recent national and international regulatory scrutiny and reform. Some
of these reforms are already effective whilst others are still to be implemented or formulated. These
reforms may cause such benchmarks to perform differently than they performed in the past or to be
discontinued entirely and may have other consequences which cannot be predicted. Any such
consequence could adversely affect the value of and return on any Notes that refer or are linked to a
benchmark to calculate interest or other payments due on those Notes.

Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 (the Benchmarks Regulation) applies, subject to certain transitional
provisions, to the provision of benchmarks, the contribution of input data to a benchmark and the use of
a benchmark within the EU. Among other things, it (i) requires benchmark administrators to be
authorised or registered (or, if non-EU-based, to be subject to an equivalent regime or otherwise
recognised or endorsed) and (ii) prevents certain uses by EU supervised entities (such as CGML) of
benchmarks provided by administrators that are not authorised or registered (or, if non-EU based, not
deemed equivalent or recognised or endorsed).

The Benchmarks Regulation could have a material impact on any Notes linked to or referencing a
benchmark, in particular, if the methodology or other terms of the benchmark are changed in order to
comply with the requirements of the Benchmarks Regulation. Such changes could, among other things,
have the effect of reducing, increasing or otherwise affecting the volatility of the published rate or level
of the relevant benchmark.

Any of the international or national or other proposals for reform, or the general increased regulatory
scrutiny of benchmarks, could also increase the costs and risks of administering or otherwise
participating in the setting of a benchmark and complying with any such regulations or requirements.

Specifically, the sustainability of LIBOR has been questioned as a result of the absence of relevant
active underlying markets and possible disincentives (including possibly as a result of benchmark
reforms) for market participants to continue contributing to such benchmarks. On 27 July 2017, and in
a subsequent speech by its Chief Executive on 12 July 2018, the UK Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA) (which regulates LIBOR) confirmed that it will no longer persuade or compel banks to submit
rates for the calculation of the LIBOR benchmark after 2021 (the FCA Announcements). The FCA
Announcements indicated that the continuation of LIBOR on the current basis cannot and will not be
guaranteed after 2021. In addition, on 29 November 2017, the Bank of England and the FCA
announced that, from January 2018, its Working Group on Sterling Risk-Free Rates has been mandated
with implementing a broad-based transition to the Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) over the
next four years across sterling bond, loan and derivative markets, so that SONIA is established as the
primary sterling interest rate benchmark by the end of 2021. It is impossible to predict whether and to
what extent banks will continue to provide LIBOR submissions to the administrator of LIBOR,
whether LIBOR rates will cease to be published or supported before or after 2021 or whether any
additional reforms to LIBOR may be enacted in the United Kingdom or elsewhere.

Separate workstreams are also underway in Europe to reform EURIBOR using a hybrid methodology
and to provide a fallback by reference to a euro risk-free rate (based on a euro overnight risk-free rate
as adjusted by a methodology to create a term rate). On 13 September 2018, the working group on euro
risk-free rates recommended Euro Short-term Rate, published by the Euroepan Central Bank (ECB), as
the new risk free rate. In addition, on 21 January 2019, the euro risk free-rate working group published
a set of guiding principles for fallback provisions in new euro denominated cash products (including
bonds). The guiding principles indicate, among other things, that continuing to reference EURIBOR in
relevant contracts may increase the risk to the euro area financial system. The guiding principles were
followed by a further report in November 2019 setting out high-level recommendations for fallback
provisions for cash products referencing EURIBOR.

Since 1 October 2019 EONIA has been calculated with a reformed methodology tracking €STR plus a
fixed spread. To ensure the smooth transition from EONIA to €STR, EMMI (the administrator of
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EONIA) will continue to publish EONIA until 3 January 2022, the date on which EONIA will be
discontinued. In the summer of 2019 the euro-risk free rate working group published a report on
transitioning from EONIA to €STR and recommendations on the EONIA to €STR legal action plan.

Such factors may have (without limitation) the effect of: (i) discouraging market participants from
continuing to administer or contribute to certain benchmarks; (ii) triggering changes in the rules or
methodologies used in certain benchmarks and/or (iii) leading to the discontinuance or unavailability of
quotes of certain benchmarks. Any of the foregoing may have an adverse effect on the value of and
return on any Notes linked to or referencing a benchmark.

It is not possible to predict with any certainty whether, and to what extent, LIBOR, EURIBOR, EONIA
or any other -IBOR will continue to be supported going forwards and EMMI has announced EONIA
will be ceased at the beginning of 2022. This may cause LIBOR, EURIBOR or any other -IBOR to
perform differently than they have done in the past, and may have other consequences which cannot be
predicted.

In addition, at the date of this Offering Circular, no consensus exists as to what rate or rates may
become accepted alternatives to the various —IBORs and it is impossible to predict the effect of any
such alternatives on the value of Notes linked to or referencing an —IBOR. Uncertainty as to the nature
of alternative reference rates and as to potential changes or other reforms to —IBORs may adversely
affect the relevant —-IBORs rate during the term of the Notes and the return on and/or market for Notes
linked to or referencing —IBORs.

Investors should consult their own independent advisers and make their own assessment about the
potential risks imposed by the Benchmarks Regulation and other reforms in making any investment
decision with respect to any Notes linked to or referencing a benchmark.

Investors should be aware that, if an -IBOR were discontinued or otherwise unavailable, amounts
payable on the Notes which reference such —IBOR will be determined for the relevant period by the
fall-back provisions applicable to such Notes which may (depending on market circumstances at the
relevant time) not operate as intended. Depending on the manner in which the relevant —IBOR rate is to
be determined under the Terms and Conditions and subject as provided in "Administrator/Benchmark
Event"”, "USD Floating Rate Fallbacks" and "Substitute or Successor Rates" below, this may in certain
circumstances (i) be reliant upon the provision by reference banks of offered quotations for the —-IBOR
rate which, depending on market circumstances, may not be available at the relevant time or (ii) where
the applicable fallback is to use the rate which applied in the previous period when the relevant -IBOR
was available, result in the effective application of a fixed rate based on the rate which applied in the
previous period or (iii) result in the Calculation Agent determining the relevant rate in its discretion.
Any of the foregoing could have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of, and return on, any the
Notes.

Administrator/Benchmark Event

The occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event may cause early redemption or adjustment of
the Notes which may include selecting one or more successor benchmarks and making related
adjustments to the Notes, including if applicable to reflect increased costs. An
Administrator/Benchmark Event may arise if any of the following circumstances occurs or may occur:
(1) a benchmark is materially changed or cancelled, or (2)(i) the relevant authorisation, registration,
recognition, endorsement, equivalence decision or approval in respect of the benchmark or the
administrator or sponsor of the benchmark is not obtained, (ii) an application for authorisation,
registration, recognition, endorsement, equivalence decision, approval or inclusion in any official
register is rejected or (iii) any authorisation, registration, recognition, endorsement, equivalence
decision or approval is suspended or inclusion in any official register is withdrawn, or (3) unless the
Pricing Supplement specifies that "Administrator/Benchmark Event (Limb (3))" does not apply, it is
not commercially reasonable to continue use of the benchmark due to licensing restrictions or increased
licence costs or (4) a relevant supervisor officially announces the benchmark is no longer
representative of any relevant underlying market(s).
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USD Floating Rate Fallbacks

As set out in paragraph (b) (Effect of Benchmark Transition Event) of Condition 21 of the General
Conditions (the Benchmark Transition Provisions), if "USD Floating Rate Fallback Provisions" is
specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement in respect Notes referencing USD LIBOR
and the Determination Agent determines that a Benchmark Transition Event and its related Benchmark
Replacement Date have occurred with respect to USD LIBOR of the appropriate tenor during the term
of such Notes, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Conditions, the Determination Agent in
its sole discretion will select a Benchmark Replacement to be substituted for such rate in accordance
with the Benchmark Transition Provisions. The Benchmark Replacement will include a spread
adjustment and technical, administrative or operational changes as set out in the Benchmark Transition
Provisions may be made to the Conditions if the Determination Agent determines in its sole discretion
appropriate. The Benchmark Transition Provisions may also then apply to such replacement rate and
any subsequent replacement rate in the event a Benchmark Transition Event and related Benchmark
Replacement Date occur with respect thereto (the relevant USD LIBOR and any such replacement rate,
each a USD Benchmark).

The interests of the Determination Agent (which may be the Issuer or an affiliate of the Issuer) in
making the determinations described above may be adverse to the interests of holders of the relevant
Notes. The selection of a Benchmark Replacement, and any decisions made by the Determination
Agent in connection with implementing a Benchmark Replacement with respect to any Notes, could
adversely affect the return on and value of such Notes. Further, there is no assurance that the
characteristics of any Benchmark Replacement will be similar to the relevant replaced USD
Benchmark or that any Benchmark Replacement will produce the economic equivalent of the relevant
replaced USD Benchmark.

The Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) is a relatively new market index and as the related
market continues to develop, there may be an adverse effect on the return on or value of Notes
referencing SOFR

Where the USD Floating Rate Fallback Provisions are specified to apply in respect of any Notes, under
the Benchmark Transition Provisions, if a Benchmark Transition Event and its related Benchmark
Replacement Date occur with respect to USD LIBOR of the appropriate tenor, then any term(s) (each a
Relevant Benchmark Linked Term) of the relevant Notes which would otherwise reference such
USD LIBOR will instead reference an alternative rate based on SOFR (if it can be determined as of the
Benchmark Replacement Date and assuming no interpolated benchmark is available) (unless a
Benchmark Transition Event and its related Benchmark Replacement Date also occur with respect to
the Benchmark Replacements that are linked to SOFR, in which case each Relevant Benchmark Linked
Term will reference the next-available Benchmark Replacement). Relevant Benchmark Linked Terms
may include, without limitation, the interest payable under the relevant Notes, depending upon their
terms.

In the following discussion of SOFR, references to SOFR-linked Notes, mean Notes at any time when
the terms of such Notes are or will be determined based on SOFR following a Benchmark
Replacement.

The Benchmark Replacements specified in the Benchmark Transition Provisions include Term SOFR,
a forward-looking term rate which will be based on the Secured Overnight Financing Rate. Term
SOFR is currently being developed under the sponsorship of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York
(the NY Federal Reserve), and there is no assurance that the development of Term SOFR will be
completed. If a Benchmark Transition Event and its related Benchmark Replacement Date occur with
respect to USD LIBOR of the appropriate tenor and, at that time, a form of Term SOFR has not been
selected or recommended by the Federal Reserve Board, the NY Federal Reserve, a committee thereof
or successor thereto, then the next-available Benchmark Replacement under the Benchmark Transition
Provisions will be substituted for the purposes of each Relevant Benchmark Linked Term under the
relevant Notes (unless a Benchmark Transition Event and its related Benchmark Replacement Date
occur with respect to that next-available Benchmark Replacement).

These replacement rates and adjustments may be selected or formulated by (i) the Relevant
Governmental Body (such as the Alternative Reference Rates Committee of the NY Federal Reserve),
(ii) the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc., or (iii) in certain circumstances, the
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Determination Agent. In addition, the Benchmark Transition Provisions expressly authorise the
Determination Agent to make Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes with respect to, among
other things, the determination of determination or valuation dates and the timing and frequency of
determining rates and making payments. The application of a Benchmark Replacement and Benchmark
Replacement Adjustment, and any implementation of Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes,
could result in adverse consequences in relation to the Relevant Benchmark Linked Term(s), which
could adversely affect the return on and value of the relevant Notes. Further, there is no assurance that
the characteristics of any Benchmark Replacement will be similar to the then-current USD Benchmark
that it is replacing, or that any Benchmark Replacement will produce the economic equivalent of the
then-current USD Benchmark that it is replacing.

The NY Federal Reserve began to publish SOFR in April 2018. Although the NY Federal Reserve has
also begun publishing historical indicative SOFR going back to 2014, such prepublication historical
data inherently involves assumptions, estimates and approximations. Investors should not rely on any
historical changes or trends in SOFR as an indicator of the future performance of SOFR. Since the
initial publication of SOFR, daily changes in the rate have, on occasion, been more volatile than daily
changes in comparable benchmark or market rates. As a result, the return on and value of SOFR-linked
Notes may fluctuate more than floating rate securities that are linked to less volatile rates.

Also, since SOFR is a relatively new market index, SOFR-linked Notes likely will have no established
trading market, and an established trading market may never develop or may not be very liquid. Market
terms for securities indexed to SOFR, such as the spread over SOFR, may evolve over time, and
trading prices of SOFR-linked Notes may be lower than those of later-issued SOFR-linked securities as
a result. Similarly, if SOFR does not prove to be widely used in securities like the Notes, the trading
price of SOFR-linked Notes may be lower than those of securities linked to rates that are more widely
used. SOFR-linked Notes may not be able to be sold or may not be able to be sold at prices that will
provide a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed secondary market, and may
consequently suffer from increased pricing volatility and market risk.

The NY Federal Reserve notes on its publication page for SOFR that use of SOFR is subject to
important limitations, indemnification obligations and disclaimers, including that the NY Federal
Reserve may alter the methods of calculation, publication schedule, rate revision practices or
availability of SOFR at any time without notice. There can be no guarantee that SOFR will not be
discontinued or fundamentally altered in a manner that is materially adverse to holders of SOFR-linked
Notes. If the manner in which SOFR is calculated is changed or if SOFR is discontinued, that change
or discontinuance may adversely affect the return on and value of the relevant Notes.

Substitute or Successor Rates

If one or more rates (other than a USD Benchmark to which the Benchmark Transition Provisions
described above apply) comprising an Interest Rate or a Rate in respect of the Notes has been
discontinued or is permanently no longer being published, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in
the Conditions, the Determination Agent (which may be the Issuer or an affiliate of the Issuer) may
determine, in its sole and absolute discretion, the relevant Interest Rate or Underlying Closing Level in
respect of such Rate, as applicable, by reference to an industry-accepted substitute or successor rate (or,
if none, a comparable alternative) and may make such adjustments to the Conditions as it determines
necessary or appropriate to reflect any industry-accepted practices for the successor or comparable rate
in order to preserve the original economic rationale and objective of the Notes, including applying an
adjustment factor. Any such amendments may result in an Interest Rate or Underlying Closing Level,
as applicable, in respect of the Notes which is different from the rate originally anticipated and also
different from the rate that would have been determined had such rate been determined as specified
under "Benchmark reforms and discontinuation — Future discontinuance of an —IBOR may adversely
affect the value of Notes which reference such benchmark" above.

The interests of the Determination Agent in making the determinations described above may be
adverse to the interests of the Noteholders. The selection of a substitute or successor rate and any
decision made by the Determination Agent in connection with implementing such substitute or
successor rate could result in adverse consequences to the applicable interest rate or other term(s) of the
Notes determined by reference to the originally applicable rate, which could adversely affect the return
on, value of and market for such Notes. Further, there is no assurance that any substitute of successor
rate will produce the economic equivalent of the originally applicable rate.
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Potential conflicts of interest

Where the Calculation Agent is an affiliate of the Issuer, potential conflicts of interest may exist
between the Calculation Agent and Noteholders, including with respect to certain determinations and
judgements that the Calculation Agent may make pursuant to the Notes that may influence the amount
receivable or specified assets deliverable in respect of the Notes.

Any of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor and/or their
affiliates may be the sponsor of an Underlying and may publish values or prices in respect of an
Underlying. Any of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor
and/or any of their affiliates may also from time to time engage in transactions involving Underlying(s)
for their proprietary accounts or for other accounts under their management, subject to requirements of
all applicable laws and regulations. Any of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL,
the CGMFL Guarantor and/or their affiliates may also issue other derivative instruments in respect of
any Underlying(s). Any of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL
Guarantor, and/or their affiliates may also act as underwriter in connection with future offerings of
shares or other securities related to an issue of Notes or may act as financial adviser to certain
companies or companies whose securities are Underlying(s) in respect of one or more issues of Notes
or in a commercial banking capacity for such companies. These activities may have a positive or
negative effect on the value of the relevant Underlying(s) and consequently upon the value of the
Notes.

Any of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor, any Dealer
and/or any of their affiliates may at the date hereof or at any time hereafter be in possession of
information in relation to an Underlying that is or may be material and may or may not be publicly
available to Noteholders. There is no obligation on any of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI
Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor, or any Dealer to disclose to any potential investors in
Notes or to Noteholders any such information.

Any of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor, any Dealer
and/or any of their affiliates may have existing or future business relationships with the issuer of, or
other entity associated with, any Underlying(s) (including, but not limited to, lending, depositary, risk
management, advisory and banking relationships), and will pursue actions and take steps that they or it
deems necessary or appropriate to protect their and/or its interests arising therefrom without regard to
the consequences for a Noteholder.

Where Notes are offered to the public, as the relevant Dealer(s) and any distributors act pursuant to a
mandate granted by the Issuer and they receive fees on the basis of the services performed and the
outcome of the placement of such Notes, potential conflicts of interest could arise.

Information concerning the Underlying(s) and historic interest rates in the case of Floating Rate
Notes

Information relating to the past and further performance and volatility of the Underlying(s) is available
from internationally recognised published or electronically displayed sources, including the relevant
Electronic Page specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Information relating to historic interest rates in the case of Floating Rate Notes is available from
internationally recognised published or electronically displayed sources, including the page specified in
the applicable Pricing Supplement or referred to in the applicable Floating Rate Option.

Post issuance information

None of the Issuers, the CGMHI Guarantor and the CGMFL Guarantor will provide any post issuance
information, except if required by any applicable laws and regulations.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE FOR THE CITIGROUP INC.

OFFERING CIRCULAR

The information contained in the following documents, each previously published on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange, is hereby incorporated by reference into this Offering Circular and are deemed to be
part of this Offering Circular:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(€)

()

@

(h)

(i)

@)

the Annual Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended 31 December 2018 filed
with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) on 22 February 2019
(the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K);

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three months ended 31 March
2019 filed with the SEC on 1 May 2019 (the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form 10-Q);

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three and six months ended 30
June 2019 filed with the SEC on 2 August 2019 (the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form 10-Q);

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three and nine months ended 30
September 2019 filed with the SEC on 1 November 2019 (the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form

10-Q)

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes" contained in the Citigroup Inc. Offering
Circular dated 17 December 2013 (the 2013 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular);

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes" contained in the Citigroup Inc. Offering
Circular dated 22 January 2015 (the January 2015 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular);

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes" contained in the Citigroup Inc. Offering
Circular dated 23 December 2015 (the December 2015 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular);

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes" and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement
contained in the Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular dated 16 December 2016 (the December
2016 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular), as supplemented by a Supplement dated 17 January
2017 (the January 2017 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular Supplement); and

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes™ and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement
contained in the Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular dated 15 December 2017 (the December
2017 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular), as supplemented by a Supplement dated 11 July
2018 (the July 2018 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular Supplement).

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes" and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement
contained in the Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular dated 14 December 2018 (the December
2018 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular), as supplemented by a Supplement (No.3) dated 16
August 2019 (the August 2019 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular Supplement).

The following information appears on the pages of the relevant document(s) as set out below:

1.

Audited consolidated financial statements of Citigroup Inc. as of 31 December 2018 and
2017 and for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016, as set out in the Citigroup
Inc. 2018 Form 10-K:

Page(s)

Consolidated Statements of Income and 124-125
Comprehensive Income
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B. Consolidated Balance Sheet 126-127
C. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' 128-129
Equity
D. Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 130-131
E. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 132-292
F. Report of the Independent Registered Public 122
Accounting Firm -  Consolidated  Financial
Statements dated 22 February 2019
2. Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form
10-K:
Page(s)
A Description of the principal activities of Citigroup 4-28
Inc.
B. Description of the principal markets in which 14-28, 146
Citigroup Inc. competes
C. Description of the principal investments of Citigroup 178-190
Inc.
D. Description of trends and events affecting Citigroup 4-28, 31, 48-57, 113-117, 132-143
Inc.
E. Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 276-282
F. Risk Factors 49-57
G. Risk Management 58-112
3. Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three months
ended 31 March 2019, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form 10-Q:
Page(s)
A. Consolidated ~ Statements  of  Income  and 72-73
Comprehensive Income
B. Consolidated Balance Sheet 74-75
C. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' 76
Equity
D. Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77-78
E. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 79-176
4. Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form
10-Q:
Page(s)
A Description of the principal activities of Citigroup 1-21
Inc.
B. Description of the principal markets in which 3-21, 65-66, 81
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Citigroup Inc. competes

Description of the principal investments of Citigroup 95-106
Inc.
Description of trends and events affecting Citigroup 2-21,67-70,79
Inc.
Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 168-169
Risk Management 34-66

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three and six
months ended 30 June 2019, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and 78-79
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 80-81
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' 82
Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 83-84
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 85-189

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of Citigroup 1-23, 87
Inc.
Description of the principal markets in which 8, 10-22, 87
Citigroup Inc. competes
Description of the principal investments of Citigroup 102-115
Inc.
Description of trends and events affecting Citigroup 1-23, 24-34, 72, 74-75, 85
Inc.
Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 187-189
Risk Management 35-71

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three and nine
months ended 30 September 2019, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated ~ Statements of  Income  and 80-81
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 82-83
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' 84-85

Equity
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10.

11.

12.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 86-87
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 88-201

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of Citigroup 1-22
Inc.
Description of the principal markets in which 2,8-22
Citigroup Inc. competes
Description of the principal investments of Citigroup 104-117
Inc.
Description of trends and events affecting Citigroup 3-5, 24-35, 73-77, 191-193, 202
Inc.
Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 191-193
Risk Management 37-72

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the 2013 Citigroup Inc. Offering
Circular

Page(s)
General Conditions of the Notes 184-243
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 244-321

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the January 2015 Citigroup Inc.
Offering Circular

Page(s)
General Conditions of the Notes 192-250
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 251-331

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the December 2015 Citigroup Inc.
Offering Circular

Page(s)
General Conditions of the Notes 211-274
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 275-354

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement, as
contained in the December 2016 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular

Page(s)
General Conditions of the Notes 225-294
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 295-380
Pro Forma Pricing Supplement 370-402
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13. The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the January 2017 Citigroup Inc.
Offering Circular Supplement

Page(s)
A. Schedule 3 — Amendments to the General Conditions 9-10
of the Notes
14. The Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement, as
contained in the December 2017 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular
Page(s)
A General Conditions of the Notes 232-298
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 299-378
C. Pro Forma Pricing Supplement 379-411

15. The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the July 2018 Citigroup Inc.
Offering Circular Supplement

Page(s)
A. Schedule 3 — Amendments to the Underlying 8-15
Schedule 5 — Share Conditions

16. The Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement, as
contained in the December 2018 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular

Pages(s)

A. General Conditions of the Notes 235-303

Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 304-385

C. Pro Forma Pricing Supplement 386-420

17. The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the August 2019 Citigroup Inc.
Offering Circular Supplement

Pages(s)

A. Schedule 5 — Amendments to the Terms and 19-25
Conditions of the Notes

Any information not listed in the cross-reference list above but included in the above mentioned
documents is additional information given for information purposes only.

In addition, all quarterly interim reports on Form 10-Q of Citigroup Inc., its Annual Reports on Form
10-K for fiscal years after 2018, all quarterly earnings releases on Form 8-K and any other reports filed
by Citigroup Inc. with the SEC pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the United States Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), and the rules and regulations thereunder,
subsequent to the date of the financial statements included in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K and
the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form 10-Q referred to above will be available to the public on the SEC's
website (address: http://www.sec.gov).

The Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular should be read and construed in conjunction with (i) any
documents incorporated by reference therein; (ii) any supplement to this Offering Circular or the
Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular and any applicable Pricing Supplement and (iii) any document or
information in relation to Citigroup Inc. subsequently filed with the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and
available on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's website (www.bourse.lu), which will be deemed
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incorporated by reference therein. Any statement contained therein or in any document incorporated by
reference therein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purposes of this Offering
Circular or the Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular to the extent that any supplement to this Offering
Circular or the Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular or any other subsequently dated document incorporated
by reference therein modifies or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or superseded
shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Offering Circular
or the Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular.
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The information contained in the following documents, each previously published on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange, is hereby incorporated by reference into this Offering Circular and are deemed to be
part of this Offering Circular:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

()

@

(h)

@)

(k)

the annual financial report of CGMHI for the year ended 31 December 2017 containing its
audited consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2017 and 2016 and for each of
the years in the three year period ended 31 December 2017 (the CGMHI 2017 Annual
Report);

the annual financial report of CGMHI for the year ended 31 December 2018 containing its
audited consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2018 and 2017 and for each of
the years in the three year period ended 31 December 2018 (the CGMHI 2018 Annual
Report);

the Half-Yearly Financial Report of CGHHI containing its unaudited consolidated interim
financial statements as of and for the six month period ended 30 June 2019 (the CGMHI 2019
Half-Yearly Financial Report);

the Annual Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended 31 December 2018 filed
with the SEC on 22 February 2019 (the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K);

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three months ended 31 March
2019 filed with the SEC on 1 May 2019 (the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form 10-Q);

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three and six months ended 30
June 2019 filed with the SEC on 2 August 2019 (the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form 10-Q);

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three and nine months ended 30
September 2019 filed with the SEC on 1 November 2019 (the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form

10-Q);

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes") contained in the CGMHI Offering
Circular dated 23 December 2015 (the December 2015 CGMHI Offering Circular);

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes") and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement
contained in the CGMHI Offering Circular dated 16 December 2016 (the December 2016
CGMHI Offering Circular), as supplemented by a Supplement dated 17 January 2017 (the
January 2017 CGMHI Offering Circular Supplement and, together with the January 2017
Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular Supplement, the January 2017 Offering Circular
Supplement); and

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes" and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement
contained in the CGMHI Offering Circular dated 15 December 2017 (the December 2017
CGMHI Offering Circular), as supplemented by a Supplement dated 11 July 2018 (the July
2018 CGMHI Offering Circular Supplement and, together with the July 2018 Citigroup
Inc. Offering Circular Supplement, the July 2018 Offering Circular Supplement).

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes" and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement
contained in the CGMHI Offering Circular dated 14 December 2018 (the December 2018
CGMHI Offering Circular), as supplemented by a Supplement (No.3) dated 16 August 2019
(the August 2019 CGMHI Offering Circular Supplement).
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The following information appears on the specified pages of the relevant documents as set out below:
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m

Audited consolidated financial statements of CGMHI as of 31 December 2017 and 2016 for
each of the years in the three year period ended 31 December 2017, as set out in the CGMHI
2017 Annual Report:

Page(s) of the section
entitled ""Consolidated
Financial Statements"'

Consolidated Statements of Income 1
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 2
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition 3-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7-70
Independent Auditor's Report Thirty-first page of the

published CGMHI 2017
Annual Report

Management Report of the Issuer, as set out in the CGMHI 2017 Annual Report:

Page(s) of the section
entitled ""Management
Report"

Management Report 1-25

Audited consolidated financial statements of CGMHI as of 31 December 2018 and 2017 for
each of the years in the three year period ended 31 December 2018, as set out in the CGMHI
2018 Annual Report:

Page(s) of the section
entitled ""Consolidated
Financial Statements"*

Consolidated Statements of Income 1
Consolidated Statements of Income 2
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition 3-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7-67
Independent Auditor's Report Thirty-first page of the

published CGMHI 2018
Annual Report

Management Report of the Issuer, as set out in the CGMHI 2018 Annual Report:
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Page(s) of the section entitled
""Management Report™

Management Report 1-28

Unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of CGMHI as of and for the six month
period ended 30 June 2019, as set out in the CGMHI 2019 Half-Yearly Financial Report:

Page(s) of the section entitled
"'"Consolidated Financial

Statements"’
Consolidated Statements of Income 1
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 2
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition 3-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 5
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7-43

The Management Report of CGMHI, as set out in the CGMHI 2019 Half Yearly Financial
Report:

Page(s) of the section entitled
""Management Report"

Management Report 1-28

Audited consolidated financial statements of Citigroup Inc. as of 31 December 2018 and 2017
and for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016, as set out in the Citigroup Inc.
2018 Form 10-K:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive 124-125
Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 126-127
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 128-129
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 130-131
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 132-292
Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting 122
Firm — Consolidated Financial Statements dated 22
February 2019

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of Citigroup Inc. 4-28
Description of the principal markets in which Citigroup Inc. 14-28, 146
competes
Description of the principal investments of Citigroup Inc. 178-190
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Description of trends and events affecting Citigroup Inc. 4-28, 31, 113-117, 132-143
Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 276-282
Risk Factors 48-57
Risk Management 58-112

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three months
ended 31 March 2019, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive 72-73
Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 74-75
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 76
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77-78
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 79-176

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of Citigroup Inc. 1-21
Description of the principal markets in which Citigroup Inc. 3-21, 65-66, 81
competes
Description of the principal investments of Citigroup Inc. 95-106
Description of trends and events affecting Citigroup Inc. 2-21, 67-70, 79
Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 168-169
Risk Management 34-66

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three and six
months ended 30 June 2019, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive 78-79
Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 80-81
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 82
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 83-84
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 85-189

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)
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Description of the principal activities of Citigroup Inc. 1-23, 87
Description of the principal markets in which Citigroup Inc. 8, 10-22, 87
competes

Description of the principal investments of Citigroup Inc. 102-115
Description of trends and events affecting Citigroup Inc. 1-23, 24-34, 72, 74-75, 85
Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 187-189
Risk Management 35-71

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three and nine
months ended 30 September 2019, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive 80-81
Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 82-83
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 84-85
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 86-87
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 88-201

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of Citigroup Inc. 1-22
Description of the principal markets in which Citigroup Inc. 2,8-22
competes
Description of the principal investments of Citigroup Inc. 104-117
Description of trends and events affecting Citigroup Inc. 3-5, 24-35, 73-77, 191-193, 202
Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 191-193
Risk Management 37-72

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the December 2015 CGMHI Offering
Circular

Page(s)
General Conditions of the Notes 211-274
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 275-354

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement, as contained
in the December 2016 CGMHI Offering Circular

Page(s)

General Conditions of the Notes 225-294
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

A

Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 295-380
Pro Forma Pricing Supplement 370-402

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the January 2017 CGMHI Offering
Circular Supplement

Page(s)

Schedule 3 — Amendments to the General Conditions of the 9-10
Notes

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement, as contained
in the December 2017 CGMHI Offering Circular

Page(s)
General Conditions of the Notes 232-298
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 299-378
Pro Forma Pricing Supplement 379-411

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the July 2018 CGMHI Offering
Circular Supplement

Page(s)

Schedule 3 — Amendments to the Underlying Schedule 5 — 8-15
Share Conditions

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement, as contained
in the December 2018 CGMHI Offering Circular

Page(s)
General Conditions of the Notes 235-303
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 304-385
Pro Forma Pricing Supplement 386-420

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the August 2019 CGMHI Offering
Circular Supplement

Page(s)

Schedule 5 — Amendments to the Terms and Conditions of 19-25
the Notes

Any information not listed in the cross-reference list above but included in the above mentioned
documents is additional information given for information purposes only.

In addition, all quarterly interim reports on Form 10-Q of Citigroup Inc., its Annual Report on Form
10-K for fiscal years after 2018, all quarterly earnings releases on Form 8-K and any other reports filed
by Citigroup Inc. with the SEC pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the United States Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), and the rules and regulations thereunder,
subsequent to the date of the financial statements included in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K and
the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form 10-Q referred to above will be available to the public on the SEC's
website (address: http://www.sec.gov).
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The CGMHI Offering Circular should be read and construed in conjunction with (i) any documents
incorporated by reference therein; (ii) any supplement to this Offering Circular or the CGMHI Offering
Circular and any applicable Pricing Supplement; and (iii) any document or information relating to
Citigroup Inc. and CGMHI subsequently filed with the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and available on
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's website (www.bourse.lu), which will be deemed incorporated by
reference therein. Any statement contained therein or in any document incorporated by reference
therein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purposes of this Offering Circular or the
CGMHI Offering Circular to the extent that any supplement to this Offering Circular or the CGMHI
Offering Circular or any other subsequently dated document incorporated by reference therein modifies
or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as
so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Offering Circular or the CGMHI Offering
Circular.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE FOR THE CGMFL OFFERING

CIRCULAR

The information contained in the following documents, each previously published on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange, is hereby incorporated by reference into this Offering Circular and are deemed to be
part of this Offering Circular:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

()

()]

(h)

(i)

)

(k)

(0

(m)

(n)

(0)

the annual report of CGMFL containing its audited non-consolidated financial statements for
the period ended 31 December 2017 (the CGMFL 2017 Annual Report);

the annual report of CGMFL containing its audited non consolidated financial statements for
the period ended 31 December 2018 (the CGMFL 2018 Annual Report);

the interim financial report of CGMFL containing its unaudited non-consolidated interim
financial statements as of and for the six month period ended 30 June 2019 (the CGMFL
2019 Interim Financial Report);

the annual report and audited financial statements of the CGMFL Guarantor for the year ended
31 December 2017 (the CGMFL Guarantor 2017 Annual Report);

the annual report and audited financial statements of the CGMFL Guarantor for the year ended
31 December 2018 (the CGMFL Guarantor 2018 Annual Report);

the unaudited interim report and financial statements of the CGMFL Guarantor containing its
unaudited non-consolidated interim financial statements as at and for the six month period
ended 30 June 2019 (the CGMFL Guarantor 2019 Interim Financial Report);

the Annual Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended 31 December 2018 filed
with the SEC on 22 February 2019 (the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K);

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three months ended 31 March
2019 filed with the SEC on 1 May 2019 (the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form 10-Q);

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three and six months ended 30
June 2019 filed with the SEC on 2 August 2019 (the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form 10-Q);

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three and nine months ended 30
September 2019 filed with the SEC on 1 November 2019 (the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form

10-Q)

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes™) contained in CGMFL Offering Circular
dated 17 December 2013 (the 2013 CGMFL Offering Circular);

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes") contained in CGMFL Offering Circular
dated 22 January 2015 (the January 2015 CGMFL Offering Circular);

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes") contained in the CGMFL Offering
Circular dated 23 December 2015 (the December 2015 CGMFL Offering Circular);

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes™) and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement
contained in the CGMFL Offering Circular dated 16 December 2016 (the December 2016
CGMFL Offering Circular);

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and

"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes" and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement
contained in the CGMFL Offering Circular dated 15 December 2017 (the December 2017
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CGMFL Offering Circular), as supplemented by a Supplement dated 11 July 2018 (the July
2018 CGMFL Offering Circular Supplement); and

the Terms and Conditions of the Notes (comprising the "General Conditions of the Notes" and
"Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes™ and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement
contained in the CGMFL Offering Circular dated 14 December 2018 (the December 2018
CGMFL Offering Circular), as supplemented by a Supplement (No.2) dated 21 March 2019
(the March 2019 CGMFL Offering Circular Supplement) and a Supplement (No.3) dated
16 August 2019 (the August 2019 CGMFL Offering Circular Supplement).

Citigroup Inc. has not guaranteed, and is not otherwise liable for, the obligations of CGMFL or
the CGMFL Guarantor in respect of Notes issued by CGMFL. Holders of Notes issued by
CGMFL are subject to the credit risk of CGMFL and the CGMFL Guarantor, without recourse
to Citigroup Inc. or any other party, and are dependent on the ability of CGMFL and the
CGMFL Guarantor to make payments on their respective obligations as they become due.

The following information appears on the specified pages of the relevant documents as set out below:

1.

m O o w >

m

o o w >

m

Audited historical non-consolidated financial information of CGMFL in respect of the
period ended 31 December 2017, as set out in the CGMFL 2017 Annual Report:

Page(s)

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income 1
Statement of Financial Position 2
Statements of Changes in Equity 3
Cash Flow Statement 4
Notes to the Financial Statements 5-35
Report on the financial statements by KPMG Luxembourg S.a.r.l. 11-16 of the published
CGMFL 2017 Annual

Report

Audited non consolidated financial statements of CGMFL in respect of the period ended 31
December 2018, as set out in the CGMFL 2018 Annual Report:

Page(s)

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income 1
Statement of Financial Position 2
Statements of Changes in Equity 3
Cash Flow Statement 4
Notes to the Financial Statements 5-41
Report on the financial statements by KPMG Luxembourg S.a.r.l. Twelfth to seventeenth
pages of the published

CGMFL 2018 Annual

Report

Unaudited non-consolidated interim financial statements of CGMFL as of and for the six
month period ended 30 June 2019, as set out in the CGMFL 2019 Interim Financial
Report:

Page(s)
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Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income 6
Condensed Interim Balance Sheet 7
Condensed Interim Statement of Changes in Equity 8
Condensed Interim Cash Flow Statement 9
Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Statements 10-29

Audited historical financial information of the CGMFL Guarantor in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2017, as set out in the CGMFL Guarantor 2017 Annual Report:

Page(s)
Income Statement 17
Statement of Comprehensive Income 18
Statement of Changes in Equity 18
Balance Sheet 19
Notes to the Financial Statements 20-83
Independent Auditor's Report to the Member of Citigroup Global 15-16

Markets Limited

Audited historical financial information of the CGMFL Guarantor in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2018, as set out in the CGMFL Guarantor 2018 Annual Report:

Page(s)
Income Statement 18
Statement of Comprehensive Income 19
Statement of Changes in Equity 20
Balance Sheet 21
Notes to the Financial Statements 22-88
Independent Auditor's Report to the Member of Citigroup Global 16-17

Markets Limited

Unaudited interim financial statements of the CGMFL Guarantor as at and for the
six-month period ended 30 June 2019, as set out in the CGMFL Guarantor 2019 Interim
Financial Report:

Page(s)
Interim Income Statement 9
Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income 10
Interim Statement of Changes in Equity 11
Interim Balance Sheet 12
Notes to the Financial Statements 13-32

Audited consolidated financial statements of Citigroup Inc. as of 31 December 2018 and
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2017 and for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016, as set out in the Citigroup
Inc. 2018 Form 10-K:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income 124-125
Consolidated Balance Sheet 126-127
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 128-129
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 130-131
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 132-292
Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm — 122

Consolidated Financial Statements dated 22 February 2019

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form
10-K:

Page(s)

Description of the principal activities of Citigroup Inc. 4-28

Description of the principal markets in which Citigroup Inc. 14-28, 146
competes

Description of the principal investments of Citigroup Inc. 178-190

Description of trends and events affecting Citigroup Inc. 4-28, 31, 48-57,

113-117, 132-143

Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 276-282

Risk Factors 48-57

Risk Management 58-112

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three months
ended 31 March 2019, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income 72-73
Consolidated Balance Sheet 74-75
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 76
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77-78
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 79-176

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of Citigroup Inc. 1-21
Description of the principal markets in which Citigroup Inc. 3-21, 65-66, 81

competes

94

0012230-0017435 ICM:34056498.7B3



DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE FOR THE CGMFL OFFERING CIRCULAR

o O

m

11.

o o w »

m

13.

o o w >

A.

Description of the principal investments of Citigroup Inc. 95-106
Description of trends and events affecting Citigroup Inc. 2-21,67-70,79
Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 168-169
Risk Management 34-66

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three and six
months ended 30 June 2019, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income 78-79
Consolidated Balance Sheet 80-81
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 82
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 83-84
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 85-189

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)

Description of the principal activities of Citigroup Inc. 1-23, 87

Description of the principal markets in which Citigroup Inc. 8, 10-22, 87
competes

Description of the principal investments of Citigroup Inc. 102-115

Description of trends and events affecting Citigroup Inc. 1-23, 24-34, 72, 74—785,

5

Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 187-189

Risk Management 35-71

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three and nine
months ended 30 September 2019, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income 80-81
Consolidated Balance Sheet 82-83
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 84-85
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 86-87
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 88-201

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of Citigroup Inc. 1-22
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Description of the principal markets in which Citigroup Inc. 2,8-22

competes

Description of the principal investments of Citigroup Inc. 104-117

Description of trends and events affecting Citigroup Inc. 3-5, 24-35, 73-77,
191-193, 202

Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 191-193

Risk Management 37-72

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in 2013 CGMFL Offering Circular

Page(s)
General Conditions of the Notes 184-243
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 244-321

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in January 2015 CGMFL Offering
Circular

Page(s)
General Conditions of the Notes 192-250
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 251-331

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in December 2015 CGMFL Offering
Circular

Page(s)
General Conditions of the Notes 211-274
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 275-354

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement, as
contained in December 2016 CGMFL Offering Circular

Page(s)
General Conditions of the Notes 225-294
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 295-380
Pro Forma Pricing Supplement 370-402

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement, as
contained in the December 2017 CGMFL Offering Circular

Page(s)
General Conditions of the Notes 232-298
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 299-378
Pro Forma Pricing Supplement 379-411

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the July 2018 CGMFL Offering
Circular Supplement
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Page(s)
A Schedule 3 — Amendments to the Underlying Schedule 5 — Share 8-15
Conditions
21, The Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the Pro Forma Pricing Supplement, as
contained in the December 2018 CGMFL Offering Circular
Page(s)
A. General Conditions of the Notes 235-303
Schedules to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes 304-385
C. Pro Forma Pricing Supplement 386-420

22. The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the March 2019 CGMFL Offering
Circular Supplement

Page(s)

A Information relating to the CGMFL Offering Circular — Bail-in in 8-10
respect of Notes issued by CGMFL, paragraph 3 relating to
amendments to Condition 22 of the General Conditions of the
Notes

23. The Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as contained in the August 2019 CGMFL
Offering Circular Supplement

Page(s)

A. Schedule 5 — Amendments to the Terms and Conditions of the 19-25
Notes

Any information not listed in the cross-reference list above but included in the above mentioned
documents is additional information given for information purposes only.

In addition, all quarterly interim reports on Form 10-Q of Citigroup Inc., its Annual Reports on Form
10-K for fiscal years after 2018, all quarterly earnings releases on Form 8-K and any other reports filed
by Citigroup Inc. with the SEC pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the United States Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), and the rules and regulations thereunder,
subsequent to the date of the financial statements included in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K and
the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form 10-Q referred to above will be available to the public on the SEC's
website (address: http://www.sec.gov).

The CGMFL Offering Circular should be read and construed in conjunction with (i) any documents
incorporated by reference therein; (ii) any supplement to this Offering Circular or the CGMFL Offering
Circular and any applicable Pricing Supplement; and (iii) any document or information relating to
CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor and Citigroup Inc. subsequently filed with the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange and available on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's website (www.bourse.lu), which will be
deemed incorporated by reference therein. Any statement contained therein or in any document
incorporated by reference therein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purposes of this
Offering Circular or the CGMFL Offering Circular to the extent that any supplement to this Offering
Circular or the CGMFL Offering Circular or any other subsequently dated document incorporated by
reference therein modifies or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or superseded
shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Offering Circular
or the CGMFL Offering Circular.

97
0012230-0017435 ICM:34056498.7B


http://www.sec.gov/
http://www.bourse.lu/

DESCRIPTION OF CITIGROUP INC.

DESCRIPTION OF CITIGROUP INC.

Citigroup Inc. (Citi, the Company, or Citigroup) is a global diversified financial services holding
company whose businesses provide consumers, corporations, governments and institutions with a
broad, yet focussed, range of financial products and services. Citigroup Inc. has approximately 200
million customer accounts and does business in more than 161 countries and jurisdictions. Citigroup
Inc. is a bank holding company within the meaning of the U.S. Bank Holding Company Act of 1956
registered with, and subject to examination by, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System
(the Federal Reserve). Some of Citi's subsidiaries are subject to supervision and examination by their
respective federal and state authorities. At 31 December 2018, Citigroup Inc. had approximately
204,000 full-time employees worldwide.

Citigroup Inc.'s objects and purpose is to "engage in any lawful act or activity for which a corporation
may be organised under the General Corporation Law of Delaware", as stated in Article THIRD of
Citi's Restated Certificate of Incorporation. As at the date of this Offering Circular, Citigroup operates,
for management reporting purposes, via two primary business segments: Global Consumer Banking
and Institutional Clients Group, with the remaining operations in Corporate/Other. Its businesses
conduct their activities across the North America, Latin America, Asia and Europe, Middle East and
Africa regions. Citigroup's principal subsidiaries are Citibank, N.A., Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and
Grupo Financiero Banamex, S.A. de C.V., each of which is a wholly owned, indirect subsidiary of
Citigroup.

Citigroup Inc. is a holding company and services its obligations primarily by earnings from its
operating subsidiaries. Citigroup Inc. may augment its capital through issuances of common stock,
perpetual preferred stock and equity issued through awards under employee benefit plans, among other
issuances. Citigroup Inc. and Citigroup Inc.'s subsidiaries that operate in the banking and securities
businesses can only pay dividends if they are in compliance with the applicable regulatory
requirements imposed on them by federal and state bank regulatory authorities and securities regulators
in the United States. Citigroup Inc.'s subsidiaries may be party to credit agreements that also may
restrict their ability to pay dividends. Citigroup Inc. currently believes that none of these regulatory or
contractual restrictions on the ability of its subsidiaries to pay dividends will affect Citigroup Inc.'s
ability to service its own debt. Citigroup Inc. must also maintain the required capital levels of a bank
holding company, and must submit a capital plan, subjected to stress testing, to the Federal Reserve, to
which the Federal Reserve does not object, before it may pay dividends on its stock.

Under longstanding policy of the Federal Reserve, a bank holding company is expected to act as a
source of financial strength for its subsidiary banks. As a result of this regulatory policy, the Federal
Reserve might require Citigroup Inc. to commit resources to its subsidiary banks when doing so is not
otherwise in the interests of Citigroup Inc. or its shareholders or creditors.

The principal offices for Citigroup Inc. are located at 388 Greenwich Street, New York, NY 10013, and
its telephone number is + 1 212 559-1000. Citigroup Inc. was established as a corporation incorporated
in Delaware on 8 March 1988, registered at the Delaware Division of Corporations with perpetual
duration pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation Law with file number 2154254. Citi's
authorised capital stock consists of 6 billion shares of common stock and 30 million shares of preferred
stock. As at 30 September 2019, there were 2,183,193,940 fully paid common stock shares outstanding
and 779,200 preferred shares outstanding. A common stock share carries one vote, and no pre-emptive
or other subscription rights or conversion rights. A preferred stock share carries no general voting
rights. No shareholder, or associated group of shareholders acting together, owns enough shares of
Citigroup Inc.'s common stock to directly or indirectly exercise control over Citi.
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF CITIGROUP INC.

The members of the board of directors of Citigroup Inc. are:

Board of Directors
John C. Dugan
Michael L. Corbat

Diana L. Taylor

Ernesto Zedillo Ponce de Leon

Jay Jacobs

Eugene M. McQuade

Peter B. Henry

Duncan P. Hennes
Gary M. Reiner
James S. Turley

Ellen Costello

Renée James
S. Leslie Ireland
Deborah C. Wright

Grace E. Dailey

Alexander Wynaendts

Title
Chairman

CEO

Main duties outside Citigroup Inc.

Former Superintendent of Banks, State of New
York

Director, Center for the Study of Globalization
and Professor in the Field of International
Economics and Politics, Yale University

Former President and Managing Director, Pacific
Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO)

Former Chief Executive Officer, Citibank, N.A.
and Former Vice Chairman, Citigroup Inc.

Former Dean, New York University Stern School
of Business

Co-Founder and Partner, Atrevida Partners, LLC
Operating Partner, General Atlantic LLC
Former Chairman and CEO, Ernst & Young

Retired Chief Executive Officer of BMO Financial
Corporation and the former U.S. Country Head of
BMO Financial Group

Operating Executive, The Carlyle Group

Former Assistant Secretary for Intelligence and
Analysis, U.S. Department of the Treasury

Former Chairman of Carver Bancorp, Inc.

Former Senior Deputy Comptroller for Bank
Supervision Policy and Chief National Bank
Examiner, OCC

Chief Executive Officer, and Chairman of the
Management Executive Boards, Aegon N.V.

The executive officers of Citigroup Inc. are Peter Babej, Kristine Braden, Mark Carawan, Michael
Corbat, Jane Fraser, Bradford Hu, David Livingstone, Mark Mason, Mary McNiff, Jessica Roos,
Edward Skyler, Ernesto Torres Cantu, Sara Wechter, Rohan Weerasinghe, Mike Whitaker and Paco

Ybarra.

The business address of each director and executive officer of Citigroup Inc. in such capacities is 388

Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10013.

There are no potential conflicts of interest existing between any duties owed to Citigroup Inc. by its
senior management listed above and their private interests and/or other duties.
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Citigroup Inc. is in compliance with the laws and regulations of the United States relating to corporate
governance.

Committees of the Board of Directors
The standing committees of Citi's board of directors are:

The audit committee, which assists the board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility relating to (i) the
integrity of Citi's consolidated financial statements and financial reporting process and Citi's systems of
internal accounting and financial controls, (ii) the performance of the internal audit function, (iii) the
annual independent integrated audit of Citi's consolidated financial statements and internal control over
financial reporting, the engagement of the independent registered public accounting firm and the
evaluation of the Independent registered public account firm's qualifications, independence and
performance, (iv) policy standards and guidelines for risk assessment and risk management, (v) the
compliance by Citi with legal and regulatory requirements, including Citi's disclosure controls and
procedures, and (vi) the fulfilment of the other responsibilities set out in its charter, as adopted by the
board.

The members of the audit committee are Ellen M. Costello, Grace E. Dailey, John C. Dugan, Duncan
P Hennes, Peter B. Henry, Lew W. (Jay) Jacobs IV, Eugene M. McQuade, James S. Turley and
Deborah C. Wright.

The risk management committee, which assists the board in fulfilling its responsibility for (i) oversight
of Citi's risk management framework, including the significant policies, procedures and practices used
in managing credit, market, operational and certain other risks; (ii) oversight of Citi's policies and
practices relating to funding risk, liquidity risk and price risk, which constitute significant components
of market risk, and risks pertaining to capital management; and (iii) oversight of the performance of the
Fundamental Credit Risk credit review function.

The members of the risk management and finance committee are Ellen M. Costello, Grace E. Dailey,
Barbra Desoer, John C. Dugan, Duncan P. Hennes, Renée J. James, Eugene M. McQuade, James S.
Turley, Alexander R Wynaendts and Ernesto Zedillo Ponce de Ledn.

The personnel and compensation committee, which is responsible for determining the compensation
for the Chief Executive Officer and approving the compensation of other executive officers and other
members of senior management. The Committee is also responsible for approving the incentive
compensation structure for other members of senior management and certain highly compensated
employees (including discretionary incentive awards to covered employees as defined in applicable
bank regulatory guidance), in accordance with guidelines established by the committee from time to
time. The committee also has broad oversight over compliance with bank regulatory guidance
governing Citi's incentive compensation.

The members of the personnel and compensation committee are John C Dugan, Duncan P. Hennes,
Lew W. (Jay) Jacobs IV, Gary M. Reiner and Diana L. Taylor.

The nomination, governance and public affairs committee is responsible for (i) identifying
individuals qualified to become Board members and recommending to the Board the director nominees
for the next annual meeting of stockholders; (ii) leading the Board in its annual review of the Board's
performance; (iii) recommending to the Board directors for each committee for appointment by the
Board; (iv) shaping corporate governance policies and practices and monitoring Citi's compliance with
such policies and practices; and (v) reviewing and approving all related party transactions. The
committee also has responsibility for reviewing political and charitable contributions made by Citi and
the Citigroup Foundation, reviewing Citi's policies and practices regarding supplier diversity,
reviewing Citi's business practices and reviewing Citi's sustainability policies and programs, including
environmental, climate change and human rights.

The members of the nomination, governance and public affairs committee are John C. Dugan, Peter B.
Henry, Lew W. (Jay) Jacobs 1V, Diana L. Taylor and Ernesto Zedillo Ponce de Ledn.

The executive committee is responsible for acting on behalf of the Board if a matter requires Board

action before a meeting of the full Board can be held.
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The members of the executive committee are John C. Dugan, Barbra Desoer, Duncan P. Hennes, Peter
B. Henry, Eugene M. McQuade, Gary M. Reiner, Diana L. Taylor and James S. Turley.

The operations and technology committee is responsible for oversight of the scope, direction, quality,
and execution of Citi's technology strategies formulated by management and providing guidance on
technology as it may pertain to, among other things, Citi business products and technology platforms.

The operations and technology committee is comprised of Gary M. Reiner, S. Leslie Ireland and Renee
J. James.

The ethics and culture committee is responsible for (i) oversight of management's efforts to foster a
culture of ethics within the organization; (ii) oversight and shaping the definition of Citi's value
proposition; (iii) oversight of management's efforts to enhance and communicate Citi's value
proposition, evaluating management's progress, and providing feedback on these efforts; (iv) reviewing
and assessing the culture of the organization to determine if further enhancements are needed to foster
ethical decision-making by employees; (v) oversight of management's efforts to support ethical
decision-making in the organization, evaluating management's progress, and providing feedback on
these efforts; and (vi) reviewing Citi's Code of Conduct and the Code of Ethics for Financial
Professionals.

The members of the ethics and culture committee are Peter B. Henry, Lew W. (Jay) Jacobs IV,
Deborah C. Wright and Ernesto Zedillo Ponce de Leon.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO CITIGROUP INC.

The table below sets out a summary of key selected financial information for Citigroup Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries. Such information is extracted from the consolidated financial statements of
Citigroup Inc. contained in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K as filed with the SEC on 22 February
2019.

At or for the year ended 31 December
2018 2017
(audited) (audited)
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Total revenues, net of interest expense 72,854 72,444
Income/(loss) from continuing operations 18,088 (6,627)
Citigroup's Net Income/(loss) 18,045 (6,798)
Balance Sheet Data:

Total assets 1,917,383 1,842,465
Total deposits 1,013,170 959,822
Long-term debt (including U.S.$ 38,229 and 231,999 236,709

U.S.$ 31,392 as of 31 December 2018 and 2017,
respectively, at fair value)
Total Citigroup stockholders' equity 196,220 200,740

The table below sets out a summary of key financial information for Citigroup Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries. Such information is extracted from the consolidated financial statements of Citigroup Inc.
contained in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form 10-Q as filed with the SEC on 1 November 2019.

For the nine months ended 30 September
2019 2018
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Total revenues, net of interest expense 55,908 55,730
Income from continuing operations 14,472 13,783
Citigroup's Net Income 14,422 13,732
For the three months ended 30 September
2019 2018
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Total revenues, net of interest expense 18,574 18,389
Income from continuing operations 4,943 4,633
Citigroup's Net Income 4,913 4,622
At 30 September At 31 December
2019 2018
(unaudited) (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Balance Sheet Data:

Total assets 2,014,802 1,917,383

Total deposits 1,087,769 1,013,170

Long-term debt 242,238 231,999

Total Citigroup stockholders' equity 196,373 196,220
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Auditors

The auditors of Citigroup Inc. are KPMG LLP of 345 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10154, United
States of America. KPMG LLP is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and is regulated by the U.S. Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

KPMG LLP audited the consolidated balance sheets of Citigroup Inc. as of 31 December 2018 and
2017 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows
for each of the years in the three-year period ended 31 December 2018. KPMG LLP expressed an
unqualified opinion on such financial statements in its report dated 22 February 2019.

Material Contracts

Citigroup Inc. has no contracts that are material to its ability to fulfil its obligations under any Notes
issued by it.

Use of Proceeds

Subject as set out below, the net proceeds of the issue of Notes by Citigroup Inc. will be used for
general corporate purposes, which may include capital contributions to its subsidiaries and/or the
reduction or refinancings of borrowings of Citigroup Inc. or its subsidiaries. Details of any use of
proceeds may be set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement. Citigroup Inc. expects to incur
additional indebtedness in the future.

Notes may be issued by Citigroup Inc. as green bonds (Green Bonds) or Notes for which it is
Citigroup Inc.'s intention to apply the offering proceeds specifically to fund the financing or
refinancing of Eligible Green Assets (as defined in the applicable Pricing Supplement), in whole or in
part, in each case, where the use of such funds supports Citigroup Inc.'s sustainable progress strategy.
The applicable Pricing Supplement will indicate whether or not the Notes are intended to constitute
Green Bonds and will provide additional information in relation to the intended use of proceeds in
respect of any Green Bonds.

Corporate authorities

Citigroup Inc. has obtained all necessary consents, approvals and authorisations in the United States in
connection with the establishment and update of the Programme, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee and
the issue and performance of the Notes. The update of the Programme and the issue of the Notes by
Citigroup Inc. under the Programme was authorised by certificates of the Funding Committee of
Citigroup Inc. dated 6 February 2019 and pursuant to resolutions of the board of directors of Citigroup
Inc. dated 16 January 2019. The giving of the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee was authorised by a
certificate of the Funding Committee of Citigroup Inc. dated 29 August 2018.

Legal proceedings

For a discussion of Citigroup Inc.'s material legal and regulatory matters, see (i) Note 27 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K, (ii) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form 10-Q, (iii) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form 10-Q and (iv) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form 10-Q. Save as disclosed in the
documents referenced above, neither Citigroup Inc. nor any of its subsidiaries is involved in, or has
been involved in, any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings that may have had, in the twelve
months before the date of this Offering Circular, a significant effect on the financial position or
profitability of Citigroup Inc. or Citigroup Inc. and its subsidiaries as a whole, nor, so far as Citigroup
Inc. is aware, are any such proceedings pending or threatened.

Significant change and material adverse change

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of Citigroup Inc. or Citigroup
Inc. and its subsidiaries as a whole since 30 September 2019 (the date of Citigroup Inc.'s most recently
published unaudited interim financial statements), and there has been no material adverse change in the
financial position or prospects of Citigroup Inc. or Citigroup Inc. and its subsidiaries as a whole since
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31 December 2018 (the date of Citigroup Inc.'s most recently published audited annual financial
statements).

104
0012230-0017435 ICM:34056498.7B3



DESCRIPTION OF CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS HOLDINGS INC.

DESCRIPTION OF CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS HOLDINGS INC.

Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. (CGMHI), operating through its subsidiaries, engages in full-
service investment banking and securities brokerage business. As used in this description, CGMHI
refers to CGMHI and its consolidated subsidiaries.

CGMHI's parent, Citigroup Inc. (Citigroup, or Citi), is a global diversified financial services holding
company whose businesses provide consumers, corporations, governments and institutions with a
broad, yet focused, range of financial products and services, including consumer banking and credit,
corporate and investment banking, securities brokerage, trade and securities services and wealth
management. Citi has approximately 200 million customer accounts and does business in more than
160 countries and jurisdictions.

Citigroup is managed pursuant to two business segments: Global Consumer Banking and Institutional
Clients Group, with the remaining operations in Corporate/Other.

The principal offices of CGMHI are located at 388 Greenwich Street, New York, NY 10013, telephone
number +1 (212) 559-1000. CGMHI was incorporated in New York on 23 February 1977 and is the
successor to Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc., a Delaware corporation, following a statutory
merger effective on 1 July 1999, for the purpose of changing its state of incorporation. On 7 April
2003, CGMHI filed a Restated Certificate of Incorporation in the State of New York changing its name
from Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc. to Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. CGMHI is a
New York corporation, and New York State does not issue corporation numbers. Its Federal Employee
Identification Number (FEIN or EIN) issued by the US Internal Revenue Service is 11-2418067.

Institutional Clients Group

Institutional Clients Group (ICG) includes Banking and Markets and securities services. ICG provides
corporate, institutional, public sector and high-net-worth clients around the world with a full range of
wholesale banking products and services, including fixed income and equity sales and trading, foreign
exchange, prime brokerage, derivative services, equity and fixed income research, corporate lending,
investment banking and advisory services, private banking, cash management, trade finance and
securities services. ICG transacts with clients in both cash instruments and derivatives, including fixed
income, foreign currency, equity and commaodity products.

ICG revenue is generated primarily from fees and spreads associated with these activities. ICG earns
fee income for assisting clients with transactional services and clearing, and providing brokerage and
investment banking services and other such activities. Such fees are recognized at the point in time
when the Company’s performance under the terms of a contractual arrangement is completed, which is
typically at the trade/execution date or closing of a transaction. Revenue generated from these activities
is recorded in Commissions and fees and Investment banking. In addition, as a market maker, ICG
facilitates transactions, including holding product inventory to meet client demand, and earns the
differential between the price at which it buys and sells the products. These price differentials and the
unrealized gains and losses on the inventory are recorded in Principal transactions (for additional
information on Principal transactions revenue, see Note 3 to CGMHI’s Consolidated Financial
Statements).

The amount and types of Markets revenues are impacted by a variety of interrelated factors, including
market liquidity; changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity
prices, commodity prices and credit spreads, as well as their implied volatilities; investor confidence;
and other macroeconomic conditions. Assuming all other market conditions do not change, increases in
client activity levels or bid/offer spreads generally result in increases in revenues. However, changes in
market conditions can significantly impact client activity levels, bid/offer spreads and the fair value of
product inventory. For example, a decrease in market liquidity may increase bid/offer spreads, decrease
client activity levels and widen credit spreads on product inventory positions.

ICG’s management of the Markets businesses involves daily monitoring and evaluating of the above
factors at the trading desk as well as the country level. ICG does not separately track the impact on
total Markets revenues of the volume of transactions, bid/offer spreads, fair value changes of product
inventory positions and economic hedges because, as noted above, these components are interrelated
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and are not deemed useful or necessary individually to manage the Markets businesses at an aggregate
level.

In the Markets businesses, client revenues are those revenues directly attributable to client transactions
at the time of inception, including commissions, interest or fees earned. Client revenues do not include
the results of client facilitation activities (e.g., holding product inventory in anticipation of client
demand) or the results of certain economic hedging activities.

ICG’s international presence is supported by trading floors in approximately 80 countries and a
proprietary network in 98 countries and jurisdictions. At June 30, 2019, ICG had approximately $1.5
trillion in assets and $753 billion in deposits, while two of its businesses—securities services and issuer
services—managed approximately $19.2 trillion in assets under custody compared to $18.0 trillion at
the end of the prior-year period.

Description of corporate structure/governance
Corporate system

CGMHI is a corporation organised under the laws of the State of New York in the United States of
America. To the best of its knowledge and belief, CGMHI complies with the federal laws and
regulations of the United States and of the laws and regulations of New York State regarding corporate
governance.

Corporate objects

CGMHI was "formed for the purpose of engaging in any lawful act or activity for which corporations
may be organised under the Business Corporation law" of New York, as stated in Article SECOND of
CGMHI's Restated Certificate of Incorporation.

Authorised and issued share capital

CGMHI's authorised share capital is 1,000 Common Stock of par value $0.01 and 10,000,000 Preferred
Stock of par value $1.00. CGMHI's issued share capital is 1,000 Common Stock which is fully paid up
and held by Citigroup Inc. No Preferred Stock has been issued.

Voting power of shareholders

Subject to the provisions of any applicable law or except as otherwise provided by the resolution or
resolutions providing for the issue of any series of Preferred Stock, the holders of outstanding shares of
Common Stock shall exclusively possess voting power for the election of directors and for all other
purposes, each holder of record of shares of Common Stock being entitled to one vote for each share of
Common Stock standing in his name on the books of CGMHI. At present, CGMHI has a single
shareholder of Common Stock being Citigroup Inc. and no holders of Preferred Stock. As such, the
shareholder of Common Stock has a controlling vote with respect to all matters submitted to a
shareholder vote. No Shareholder, or associated group of shareholders acting together, owns enough
shares of Citigroup Inc.'s common stock to directly or indirectly exercise control over Citigroup Inc.

Election of directors

The directors of CGMHI are as follows:

Name Title
Shawn K. Feeney See Below
Scott L. Flood See below

The other officers of CGMHI are as follows:

Name Title
Shawn K. Feeney Chairman,
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Daniel S. Palomaki
Daniel S. Palomaki
Charles Marquardt
Gonzalo Martin
Victor Spadafora

Scott L. Flood

Donald Bendernagel
Sarah Blotner
Robert F. Klein
Stacey Berg Keller
Myongsu Kong
Moshe Malina
Anne E. Moses
Rachel Stine
Ronny Ostrow
Sofia Rahman
Bogdana Sokolov

Elizabeth Zidones

Chief Executive Officer,

President

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Accounting Officer

Controller
Treasurer

Assistant Treasurer

General Counsel,
Secretary

Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary

Assistant Secretary

The members of the Notes Committee of CGMHI are as follows:

Notes Committee
Raja Akram

Stuart Crouch
Faial Essa
Gonzalo Martin
Mark Mason

Peter A. Mozer
Daniel S. Palomaki

Michael Verdeschi
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The main duties outside CGMHI performed by the directors and officers listed above are not
significant with respect to CGMHI.

The business address of each director and officer of CGMHI is 388 Greenwich Street, New York, NY
10013, United States of America.

There are no potential conflicts of interest existing between any duties owed to CGMHI by the senior
management listed above and their private interests and/or other duties.

Audit Committee
CGMHI does not have an audit committee.
Dividends

Except as otherwise provided by the resolution or resolutions providing for the issue of any series of
Preferred Stock, after payment shall have been made to the holders of Preferred Stock of the full
amount of dividends to which they shall be entitled pursuant to the resolution or resolutions providing
for the issue of any series of Preferred Stock, the holders of Common Stock shall be entitled, to the
exclusion of the holders of Preferred Stock of any and all series, to receive such dividends as from time
to time may be declared by the board of directors. At present, no series of Preferred Stock is issued
and outstanding.

Liquidation, dissolution or winding up; pre-emptive rights

Except as otherwise provided by the resolution or resolutions providing for the issue of any series of
Preferred Stock, in the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of CGMHI, whether
voluntary or involuntary, after payment shall have been made to the holders of Preferred Stock of the
full amount to which they shall be entitled pursuant to the resolution or resolutions providing for the
issue of any series of Preferred Stock, the holders of Common Stock shall be entitled, to the exclusion
of the holders of Preferred Stock of any and all series, to share rateably according to the number of
shares of Common Stock held by them, in all remaining assets of CGMHI available for distribution. At
present, no series of Preferred Stock is issued and outstanding.

No shareholders shall be entitled to any pre-emptive rights in respect of any securities of CGMHI.
Preferred stock

The board of directors is authorised, subject to limitations prescribed by law and the provisions of the
Restated Certificate of Incorporation, to provide for the issuance of the shares of Preferred Stock in
series, and by filing a certificate pursuant to the applicable law of the State of New York, to establish
from time to time the number of shares to be included in each such series, and to fix the designation,
powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each such series and the qualifications, limitations or
restrictions of such shares.

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO CITIGROUP GLOBAL
MARKETS HOLDINGS INC.

The selected financial information for CGMHI and its consolidated subsidiaries presented below is
extracted from the CGMHI 2018 Annual Report.

At or for the year ended 31 December
2018 (audited) 2017 (audited) 2016 (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Revenues, net of interest 10,607 11,196 10,374

expense

Income before income taxes 1,587 1,969 2,179

CGMHI's net income 1,025 651 1,344
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Data:

Total assets 502,156 456,201 420,815
Long-Term debt 99,870 78,813 49,416
Stockholder's equity (fully

paid):

Common 32,789 32,615 32,747

The selected financial information for CGMHI and its consolidated subsidiaries presented below is
extracted from the CGMHI 2019 Half-Yearly Financial Report.

For the six months ended 30 June

2019 2018
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Total revenues, net of interest expense 5,779 5,655
Income before income taxes 1,060 677
Net income 788 429

At 30 June 2019 At 31 December
(unaudited) 2018 (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Balance Sheet Data:

Total assets 540,527 502,156

Long-term debt 106,432 99,870

Total CGMHI stockholder's equity: 33,278 32,789
Auditors

CGMHI's annual accounts as of 31 December 2018 and 2017 and for the years ended 31 December
2018, 2017 and 2016 were audited without qualification in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards in the United States by KPMG LLP, independent registered public accountants,
345 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10154. The auditors of CGMHI have no material interest in
CGMHI. KPMG LLP is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is
regulated by the U.S. Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

Use of Proceeds

Subject as set out below, a portion of the proceeds of any issue of Notes will be used by CGMHI and/or
its subsidiaries for general corporate purposes, which include making a profit. Details of any use of
proceeds may be set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Notes may be issued by CGMHI as green bonds (Green Bonds) or Notes for which it is CGMHI's
intention to apply the offering proceeds specifically to fund the financing or refinancing of Eligible
Green Assets (as defined in the applicable Pricing Supplement), in whole or in part, in each case, where
the use of such funds supports CGMHI's sustainable progress strategy. The applicable Pricing
Supplement will indicate whether or not the Notes are intended to constitute Green Bonds and will
provide additional information in relation to the intended use of proceeds in respect of any Green
Bonds.

109
0012230-0017435 ICM:34056498.7B



DESCRIPTION OF CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS HOLDINGS INC.

Material Contracts

CGMHI has no contracts that are material to its ability to fulfil its obligations under any Notes issued
by it.

Corporate Authorities

The accession of CGMHI to the Programme was duly authorised by a resolution of the board of
directors of CGMHI on 29 June 2018 and the update of the Programme has been duly authorised by
certificates of the Notes Committee of CGMHI dated 14 December 2018 and 29 March 2019.

Legal proceedings

For a discussion of CGMHI's material legal and regulatory matters, see Note 16 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in the CGMHI 2018 Annual Report and Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in the CGMHI 2019 Half-Yearly Financial Report. For a discussion of Citigroup
Inc.'s material legal and regulatory matters, of which the matters discussed in Notes 16 and 13 (as
specified above) are a part, see (i) Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in the
Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K, (ii) Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in the
Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form 10-Q, (iii) Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in
the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form 10-Q and (iv) Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
included in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form 10-Q. Save as disclosed in the documents referenced
above, neither CGMHI nor any of its subsidiaries is involved in, or has been involved in, any
governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings that may have had in the twelve months before the date
of the CGMHI Offering Circular, a significant effect on the financial position or profitability of
CGMHI or CGMHI and its subsidiaries taken as a whole, nor, so far as CGMHI is aware, are any such
proceedings pending or threatened.

Significant change and material adverse change

There has been no significant change in the consolidated financial or trading position of CGMHI and
its subsidiaries taken as a whole since 30 June 2019 (the date of the most recently published unaudited
interim financial statements of CGMHI) and there has been no material adverse change in the financial
position or prospects of CGMHI and its subsidiaries taken as a whole since 31 December 2018 (the
date of the most recently published audited annual financial statements of CGMHI).
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DESCRIPTION OF CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS FUNDING LUXEMBOURG S.C.A.

Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A. (CGMFL) was incorporated as a corporate
partnership limited by shares (société en commandite par actions) on 24 May 2012 under the laws of
Luxembourg, including the law of 10 August 1915 on commercial companies as amended from time to
time (the Companies Act 1915) for an unlimited duration with its registered office at 31, Z.A.
Bourmicht, L-8070 Bertrange, Luxembourg and is registered with the Register of Trade and
Companies of Luxembourg (Registre de commerce et des sociétés, Luxembourg) under number B
169.199. CGMFL has been established for the purpose, among others, of granting loans or other forms
of funding directly or indirectly in whatever form or means to any entities in the same group.

The issued share capital of CGMFL is two million and one hundred seventy-one Euro (EUR2,000,171)
divided into:

. one (1) share with a nominal value of one Euro (EURL.-) (action de commandité, the
Unlimited Share) held by Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg GP S.ar.l., a
private limited liability company (société a responsabilité limitée) incorporated under the laws
of Luxembourg, having its registered office at 31, Z.A. Bourmicht, L-8070 Bertrange,
Luxembourg, having a share capital of twenty-seven thousand and five hundred Euro
(EUR27,500) and registered with the Register of Trade and Companies of Luxembourg under
number B 169.149 (the Unlimited Shareholder);

. one million nine hundred ninety-nine thousand nine hundred ninety-nine (1,999,999) limited
ordinary shares with a hominal value of one Euro (EURL1.-) each (actions de commanditaire,
the Limited Shares) held (i) by the Unlimited Shareholder for one (1) Limited Share and
(ii) by Citigroup Global Markets Limited (CGML), a private limited company, incorporated
under the laws of the United Kingdom, having its registered office at Citigroup Centre,
Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5LB, United Kingdom, registration number
1763297 for one million nine hundred ninety-nine thousand nine hundred ninety-eight
(1,999,998) Limited Shares (the Limited Shareholders and together with the Unlimited
Shareholder the Shareholders); and

. one hundred seventy-one (171) classes of limited preference shares with a nominal value of
one Euro (EURL.-) each held by CGML.

CGMFL is managed by Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg GP S.a r.l. The Board of
Managers (as defined below) provides independent management of CGMFL. CGMFL is a wholly
owned indirect subsidiary of Citigroup Inc. No shareholder, or associated group of shareholders acting
together, owns enough shares of Citigroup Inc.'s common stock to directly or indirectly exercise
control over Citigroup Inc.

CGMFL's registered office is situated at 31, Z.A. Bourmicht, L-8070 Bertrange, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg and the telephone number is +352 45 14 14 447.

The amended and restated articles (statuts coordonnés) of CGMFL dated 23 September 2019 (the
Articles) were published in the "Recueil Electronique des Sociétés et Associations” on 5 November
2019. The Articles have further been amended by a notarial deed dated 30 October 2019 which has
been published in the “Recueil Electronique des Sociétés et Associations” on 28 November 2019 and
by a notarial deed dated 29 November 2019 not yet published in the “Recueil Electronique des Sociétés
et Associations” as of the date of this Offering Circular.

Management of CGMFL

CGMFL is managed by Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg GP S.a r.l. in its capacity as
manager (the Corporate Manager).

The following table sets forth the names of the members of the board of managers of the Unlimited
Shareholder being the Corporate Manager (the Board of Managers) as of the date of this Offering
Circular:
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. Ms. Alberta Brusi, with professional address at 31, Z.A. Bourmicht L-8070 Bertrange,
Luxembourg;

. Mr. Vincent Mazzoli, with professional address at 31, Z.A. Bourmicht L-8070 Bertrange,
Luxembourg; and

o Mr. Jonas Bossau, with professional address at 31, Z.A. Bourmicht L-8070 Bertrange,
Luxembourg.

Alberta Brusi is the Citi Country Officer (CCO) for Luxembourg and Head of Operations and
Technology for the Benelux cluster.

She joined Citi in December 1996, in the Italy Financial Control team. She was responsible for the
Capital Markets business reporting and US legal entity regulatory reporting for Institutional Client
Group (ICG). She transferred to Citi London in 2003 and was given the responsibility for ICG Finance
oversight of Western Europe, comprising eighteen countries with responsibility as Controller for the
Benelux franchises. In late 2005 she returned to Milan to become Chief of Staff to the Citi Country
Officer for Italy. In 2012, she expanded her responsibilities and was appointed Chief Administrative
Officer and Operations and Technology head for the country.

Alberta Brusi has a Bachelor of Arts degree in Classical Literature and a Bachelor of Commerce after
degree, both from University of Alberta, and Edmonton Canada.

Alberta Brusi was appointed as Manager on 10 September 2015 for an unlimited duration.

Vincent Mazzoli has been with Citigroup for over 20 years and has had several responsibilities in
Operations, Investor Services product, control and governance and also in Prime Finance. He is a
member of the EMEA Issuance Solutions team within the Multi-Asset Group.

Vincent Mazzoli is a board member of Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg GP S.ar.l.
Vincent Mazzoli was appointed as Manager on 19 March 2015 for an unlimited duration.

Vincent Mazzoli holds a degree and a master degree in Finance and Banking from the University of
Liege (Belgium).

Jonas Bossau has been with Citi in Luxembourg for over 30 years.

Since 2008 he has been in charge of the Luxembourg Client Executive team responsible for managing
some of the largest institutional custody and fund administration clients of Citi in Luxembourg. Jonas
was instrumental in creating and implementing the Global Custody product offering in Citi
Luxembourg.

Jonas Bossau was appointed as Manager on 20 July 2018 for an unlimited duration.

There are no potential conflicts of interest existing between any duties owed to CGMFL by the board
of managers listed above and their private interests and/or other duties.

Principal activities

As set out in Clause 4 in the Articles of CGMFL, the corporate object of CGMFL is the granting of
loans or other forms of funding directly or indirectly in whatever form or means to any entities
belonging to the same group (e.g. including, but not limited to, by subscription of bonds, debentures,
other debt instruments, advances, the granting of pledges or the issuing of other guarantees of any kind
to secure the obligations of any entities, through derivatives or otherwise).

CGMFL may finance itself in whatever form including, without limitation, through borrowing or
through issuance of listed or unlisted notes and other debt or equity instruments, convertible or not (e.g.
including but not limited to bonds, notes, loan participation notes, subordinated notes, promissory
notes, certificates, shares (whether preference or not) and warrants) including under stand-alone issues,
medium term note and commercial paper programmes.
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CGMFL may also:

Q) grant security for funds raised, including notes and other debt or equity instruments issued,
and for the obligations of CGMFL; and

(ii) enter into all necessary agreements, including, but not limited to underwriting agreements,
marketing agreements, management agreements, advisory agreements, administration
agreements and other contracts for services, selling agreements, deposit agreements, fiduciary
agreements, hedging agreements, interest and/or currency exchange agreements and other
financial derivative agreements, bank and cash administration agreements, liquidity facility
agreements, credit insurance agreements and any agreements creating any kind of security
interest.

In addition to the foregoing, CGMFL can perform all legal, commercial, technical and financial
investments or operations and, in general, all transactions which are necessary or useful to fulfil its
objects as well as all operations connected directly or indirectly to facilitating the accomplishment of
its purpose in all areas described above.

CGMFL's Articles and Luxembourg law however prohibit it from entering into any transaction which
would constitute a regulated activity of the financial sector or require a business licence under
Luxembourg law without due authorisation under Luxembourg law.

CGMFL grants loans and other forms of funding to entities belonging to the same group and therefore
competes in any market in which the Group has a presence.

Corporate Governance

No corporate governance regime to which CGMFL would be subject exists in Luxembourg as of the
date of this Offering Circular.

Share Capital

CGMFL has a share capital of two million and one hundred seventy-one Euro (EUR2,000,171.-),
represented by two million and one hundred seventy-one (2,000,171) shares, divided into (i) one
million nine hundred ninety-nine thousand nine hundred ninety-nine (1,999,999) Limited Shares,
(if) one (1) Unlimited Share and (iii) one hundred seventy-one (171) classes of limited preference
shares (the Preference Shares), each having a nominal value of one Euro (EUR1). 500,000 of the
limited shares and the unlimited share have been partly paid up and the Preference Shares have been
fully paid up, for an amount of five hundred and eighteen thousand six hundred and fifteen Euro and
seventy-six cents (EUR518,615.76).

Limited Unlimited  Preference  Subscription

Shares: Share: Share Price in Euro
Citigroup Global Markets 1 - - 0.25
Funding Luxembourg GP S.ar.l.

1 0.25

Citigroup Global Markets Limited 1,999,998 - 499,999.50

- - 171 18,615.76
Total Shares/Subscription Price 1,999,999 1 171 518,615.76
Total Capitalisation: EUR2,000,171

CGMFL has an authorised capital of one hundred thousand Euro (EUR100,000.-) represented by a
maximum of one hundred thousand (100,000) limited preference shares, having a nominal value of one
Euro (EUR1) each and which may be divided into different classes. As of the date of this Offering

113
0012230-0017435 ICM:34056498.7B



DESCRIPTION OF CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS FUNDING LUXEMBOURG S.C.A.

Circular, ninety-nine thousand eight-hundred and twenty-nine Euro (EUR99,829.-) of such authorised
capital remains available.

Approved Statutory Auditor (Réviseur d'entreprises agréé) and financial year

CGMFL's approved statutory auditor (réviseur d'enterprises agréé) is KPMG Luxembourg Société
Coopérative (formerly KPMG Luxembourg S.a r.l.), a private limited liability company (société a
responsibilité limitée) incorporated and existing under Luxembourg law, having its registered office at
39, avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg and registered with the Register of Commerce and
Companies of Luxembourg under number B 149 133 (KPMG Luxembourg), who has been
reappointed for a period of five (5) years until the 2022 audit, by a resolution of the sole shareholder of
CGMFL dated 3 May 2018. KPMG Luxembourg is a member of the Institut des Réviseurs
d'Entreprises.

CGMFL's fiscal year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December each year, except for the first fiscal
year that started on the date of incorporation of CGMFL and ended on 31 December 2012.

KPMG Luxembourg audited the CGMFL 2018 Annual Report. KPMG Luxembourg expressed an
unqualified opinion on the CGMFL 2018 Annual Report.

Taxation

CGMFL is subject to the tax laws of Luxembourg on income and does not have any special tax status.
It is, therefore, in principle entitled to the benefits of tax treaties concluded between the Grand Duchy
of Luxembourg and other countries (subject to the acceptance of such contracting states).

Employees

CGMFL has no employees.

Selected Financial Information

The tables below set out, in summary form, key financial information for CGMFL. The summary was

extracted from CGMFL's Annual Report for the period ended on 31 December 2018, which was filed
for publication with the Register of Commerce and Companies of Luxembourg on 30 April 2019:

At or for the year ended At or for the year ended

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
(audited) (audited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,694 1,856
Structured notes purchased 6,750,065 3,865,956
Index linked certificates purchased 744,423 654,547
Derivatives assets 258,766 302,872
Current income tax assets - 30
Other Assets 800 -
Total Assets 7,755,748 4,825,261
Liabilities
Structured notes issued 6,750,065 3,865,956
Index linked certificates issued 744,423 654,547

114
0012230-0017435 ICM:34056498.7B



DESCRIPTION OF CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS FUNDING LUXEMBOURG S.C.A.

At or for the year ended At or for the year ended
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
(audited) (audited)

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Derivatives liabilities 258,766 302,872
Redeemable preference shares 9 7
Other liabilities 1,618 1,150
Current tax liabilities 37 61
Total Liabilities 7,754,918 4,824,593
Equity

Share capital 627 627
Reserves 61 -
Foreign currency translation reserve 41 (85)
Retained earnings 101 126
Total equity 830 668
Total liabilities and equity 7,755,748 4,825,261

The tables below set out a summary of key financial information extracted from CGMFL's unaudited
interim report and financial statements for the six month period ended 30 June 2019:

At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8,098 1,694
Structured notes purchased 10,508,906 6,750,065
Index linked certificates purchased 391,532 744,423
Derivative assets 255,165 258,766
Current income tax assets 24 -
Other Assets 577 800
Total Assets 11,164,302 7,755,748
Liabilities

Structured notes issued 10,508,906 6,750,065
Index linked certificates issued 391,532 744,423
Derivative liabilities 255,165 258,766
Redeemable preference shares 15 9
Other liabilities 7,786 1,618
Current tax liabilities 52 37
Total Liabilities 11,163,456 7,754,918
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Equity

Share capital 627 627
Reserves 63 61
Foreign currency translation reserve 41 41
Retained earnings 115 101
TOTAL EQUITY 846 830
Total liabilities and equity 11,164,302 7,755,748
Accounts

CGMFL prepares annual and half yearly non-consolidated accounts. The first annual accounts were
prepared in respect of the period from the date of its incorporation to 31 December 2012 in accordance
with the Articles and were published by CGMFL on 7 June 2013.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1915, CGMFL will publish its audited annual
accounts on an annual basis following approval of the annual accounts by the annual general meeting
of the Shareholders.

Any future published audited annual accounts or unaudited half yearly accounts prepared for CGMFL
will be obtainable free of charge from the registered office of CGMFL in Luxembourg, as described in
the section entitled "Documents Obtainable Free of Charge".

Material Contracts

Apart from any agreements entered into by it in connection with the Programme or the Citi Warrant
Programme, CGMFL has not entered into any material contracts other than in the ordinary course of its
business.

Use of Proceeds

Subject as set out below, the net proceeds of the issue of Notes by CGMFL will be used primarily to
grant loans or other forms of funding to Citigroup Global Markets Limited and any entity belonging to
the same group, and may be used to finance CGMFL itself. Details of any use of proceeds may be set
out in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Notes may be issued by CGMFL as green bonds (Green Bonds) or Notes for which it is CGMFL's
intention to apply the offering proceeds specifically to fund the financing or refinancing of Eligible
Green Assets (as defined in the applicable Pricing Supplement), in whole or in part, in each case, where
the use of such funds supports CGMFL's sustainable progress strategy. The applicable Pricing
Supplement will indicate whether or not the Notes are intended to constitute Green Bonds and will
provide additional information in relation to the intended use of proceeds in respect of any Green
Bonds.

Corporate authorities

The issuance of the Notes by CGMFL and any other relevant corporate actions in relation to the
issuance of the Notes have been authorised pursuant to resolutions of the board of managers of the
Corporate Manager of CGMFL on 26 June 2013, 24 September 2013, 24 September 2014,
25 September 2015, 16 December 2015, 7 December 2016, 14 December 2017, 21 November 2018, 10
December 2018, 23 January 2019 and 5 December 2019.

Legal proceedings

For a discussion of Citigroup Inc.'s material legal and regulatory matters, see (i) Note 27 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K, (ii) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form 10-Q, (iii) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form 10-Q and (iv) Note 23 to the
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Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form 10-Q. Save as disclosed in the
documents referenced above, CGMFL has not been involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration
proceedings that may have had, in the twelve months preceding the date of the CGMFL Offering
Circular, a significant effect on CGMFL's financial position or profitability nor, so far as CGMFL is
aware, are any such proceedings pending or threatened.

Significant change and material adverse change

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of CGMFL since 30 June 2019
(the date of its most recently published unaudited interim financial statements) and there has been no
material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of CGMFL since 31 December 2018 (the
date of its most recently published audited annual financial statements).

All Monies Guarantee Granted by CGML

On 11 May 2017 CGML granted a guarantee (the form of which is set out on pages 136 — 139 below)
under which CGML unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees payment of all sums payable by
CGMFL in respect of any liability of CGMFL of any kind and in any currency (whether present or
future, actual or contingent and whether incurred alone or jointly with another) together with all the
charges, commission, interest and expenses payable by CGMFL in connection with the relevant
liability (the All Monies Guarantee). The All Monies Guarantee constitutes direct, unconditional,
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of CGML and ranks and will rank pari passu (subject to
mandatorily preferred debts under applicable laws) with all other outstanding, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of CGML.

While the All Monies Guarantee given by CGML will cover cash payment obligations of CGMFL
under its Notes, the All Monies Guarantee does not materially change the position of Noteholders as all
obligations of CGMFL in connection with the Notes are already guaranteed by CGML under the
existing CGMFL Deed of Guarantee. The All Monies Guarantee is without prejudice to, and does not
affect in any way, the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee or CGML's obligations under the CGMFL Deed of
Guarantee.
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Citigroup Global Markets Limited (CGML) is a private company limited by shares and was
incorporated in England and Wales on 21 October 1983. CGML operates under the laws of England
and Wales, including the Companies Act, and is domiciled in England. Its registered office is at
Citigroup Centre, Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5LB and its telephone number is +44
(0)20 7986 4000. The registration number of CGML is 01763297 on the register maintained by
Companies House.

Directors of CGML

The directors of CGML are:

Name Position at CGML
D.L. Taylor Director
M.P. Basing Director
J.D.K. Bardrick Director
L. Arduini Director
R.F. Goulding Director
C. Ardalan Director
F.M. Mannion Director
D. Jain Director

The business address of each director of CGML in his or her capacity as such is Citigroup Centre,
Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5LB. There are no potential conflicts of interest existing
between any duties owed to CGML by the board of directors listed above and their private interests
and/or other duties. There are no principal activities performed by the directors outside of CGML
which are significant with respect to CGML.

The CGML Board comprises of Cyrus Ardalan (Chairman), James David Kempster Bardrick (CEO),
Leonardo Arduini, Malcolm Phillip Basing, Richard Frank Goulding, Deepak Jain, Francis Michael
Mannion, Diana Lancaster Taylor.

Principal activities

CGML is a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of Citigroup Inc. and has a major international presence
as a dealer, market maker and underwriter in equity, fixed income securities and commaodity markets,
as well as providing advisory services to a wide range of corporate, institutional and government
clients. It is headquartered in London, and operates globally. CGML is authorised by the Prudential
Regulation Authority (PRA) and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the PRA.

Corporate Governance

To the best of its knowledge and belief, CGML complies with the laws and regulations of England
regarding corporate governance.

Share capital of CGML and major shareholders

As at 30 June 2019, the fully paid up issued share capital of CGML was U.S.$1,499,626,620 made up
of 1,499,626,620 ordinary shares of a par value of U.S.$1 each.

All of the issued share capital of CGML is owned by Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Bahamas
Limited (100 per cent.), which is an indirect subsidiary of Citigroup Inc. No shareholder or associated
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group of shareholders acting together owns enough shares of Citigroup Inc.'s common stock to directly
or indirectly exercise control over Citigroup Inc.

Selected Financial Information

The following table sets out, in summary form, selected financial information for CGML. The
summary was extracted from the audited financial information of CGML for the year ended
31 December 2018, which was published on 20 May 2019.

At or for the year ended 31 December

2018 (audited) 2017 (audited)
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

GroSS Profit.......cccovciiiiiieiee et 3,472 2,924
Fee and Commission iNCOME........ccccccvvvevveeiveevneene, 1,535 1,342
Net dealing INCOME......c.ovvvirirrcieeeee e 2,414 1,953
Operating profit on ordinary activities before

162 02C- 11 0] 0 JPU TSP RRT 760 451
Balance Sheet Data:

TOtal @SSELS .. vvviivieciiieecie e 404,907 377,942
Subordinated LOANS.........cocvvvveiiieeiiiee e cciee e 9,600 4,012
Shareholder's funds..........coccoevviiee e 18,080 16,031

The table below sets out a summary of key financial information extracted from CGML's unaudited
interim report for the six month period ended 30 June 2019.
At or for the six month period ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(in millions of U.S dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Gross Profit.......cccccceiiiiiciice e 1,682 1,804

Fee and Commission iNCOME .......ccccceevvevveeiesrennennn, 671 825

Net dealing inCOME.........cccevveeiieiiiece e 1,126 1,213

Operating profit on ordinary activities before

TAXALION .oveciececc e 378 345
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
(unaudited) (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Balance Sheet Data:

TOtAl @SSELS ....vvecveeeivie ettt 451,359 404,907
Total Liabilities ....cvveveeiiiiecie e 433,260 386,827
Shareholder's funds........ccccooveeeeeecciie e, 18,099 18,080
Auditor of CGML

CGML's auditor is KPMG LLP, having its registered office at 15 Canada Square, London E14 5GL.
KPMG LLP is regulated by the Financial Reporting Council. KPMG are members of the UK's
chartered accountants' professional body, ICAEW, of Chartered Accountants' Hall, Moorgate Place,
London EC2R 6EA.

KPMG LLP audited the financial statements of CGML for the fiscal years ended 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2018 and expressed an unqualified opinion on such financial statements in its reports
dated 12 April 2018 and 10 April 2019.

Material Contracts

CGML has no contracts that are material to its ability to fulfil its obligations under any Notes issued by
CGMFL.
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Corporate authorities

CGML has obtained all necessary consents, approvals and authorisations in England in connection with
the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee.

Litigation

For a discussion of Citigroup Inc.'s material legal and regulatory matters, see (i) Note 27 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Citigroup Inc. 2018 Form 10-K, (ii) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q1 Form 10-Q, (iii) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q2 Form 10-Q, and (iv) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2019 Q3 Form 10-Q. Save as disclosed in the
documents referenced above, CGML is not and has not been involved in any governmental, legal or
arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which
CGML is aware) in the twelve months preceding the date of the CGMFL Offering Circular which may
have or have in such period had a significant effect on the financial position or profitability of CGML
or CGML and its subsidiaries as a whole.

Significant or Material Adverse Change

There has been (i) no significant change in the financial or trading position of CGML or CGML and its
subsidiaries as a whole since 30 June 2019 (the date of its most recently published unaudited interim
financial statements) and (ii) no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of
CGML or CGML and its subsidiaries as a whole since 31 December 2018 (the date of its most recently
published audited annual financial statements).
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1. For so long as the Programme remains in effect or any Notes remain outstanding, the
following documents will be obtainable free of charge in electronic form and (in the case of
the items listed under (v), (vi), (xii) and (xv) below) obtainable (in the case of (xv) below,
where the relevant Notes are not listed on the Euro MTF market of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange, by a holder only), during normal business hours free of charge on any weekday
(Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted), at the specified office of the Fiscal Agent
and each of the other Paying Agents and at the registered office of CGMFL at 31, Z.A.
Bourmicht, L-8070 Bertrange, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg:

(i)

(i)
(iii)

(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)
(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

the Fiscal Agency Agreement, as amended or supplemented (which includes the form
of the Global Registered Note Certificates and the definitive Registered Note
Certificates);

the Dealership Agreement, as amended or supplemented;

any Swedish Notes Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement and the Finnish Notes
Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, in each case, once entered into in respect of
the Swedish Notes and the Finnish Notes, respectively;

the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee;

the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee;

the Deeds of Covenant, as amended or supplemented;

the Rule 144A Deed Polls, as amended or supplemented;

the Restated Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of Citigroup Inc.;
the Restated Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of CGMHI;

the articles of incorporation of CGMFL;

the articles of association of the CGMFL Guarantor;

the annual report and audited consolidated financial statements of Citigroup Inc. for
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the annual report and
audited consolidated financial statements of CGMHI for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the annual report and audited
non-consolidated financial statements of CGMFL for the period ended 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017 and the annual report and audited consolidated financial
statements of the CGMFL Guarantor for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017, in each case together with any relevant audit reports prepared in connection
therewith;

the most recently published interim unaudited consolidated financial statements of
Citigroup Inc., the most recently published interim unaudited consolidated financial
statements of CGMHI, the most recent interim unaudited non-consolidated financial
statements of CGMFL and the most recent unaudited interim non-consolidated
financial statements of the CGMFL Guarantor;

the 2013 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular, the 2013 CGMFL Offering Circular, the
January 2015 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular, the January 2015 CGMFL Offering
Circular, the December 2015 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular, the December 2015
CGMHI Offering Circular, the December 2015 CGMFL Offering Circular, the
December 2016 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular, the December 2016 CGMHI
Offering Circular, the December 2016 CGMFL Offering Circular, the January 2017
Offering Circular Supplement, the December 2017 Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular,
the December 2017 CGMHI Offering Circular, the December 2017 CGMFL
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Offering Circular, the July 2018 Offering Circular Supplement, the December 2018
Citigroup Inc. Offering Circular, the December 2018 CGMHI Offering Circular, the
December 2018 CGMFL Offering Circular, the March 2019 Offering Circular
Supplement and the August 2019 Offering Circular Supplement;

(xv) each Pricing Supplement; and

(xvi) a copy of this Offering Circular together with any supplement to this Offering
Circular or further Offering Circular.

2. Copies of the latest annual report and audited consolidated financial statements of Citigroup
Inc. and the latest quarterly interim unaudited consolidated financial statements of Citigroup
Inc. may be obtained at the specified offices of each of the Fiscal Agent and the other Paying
Agents during normal business hours so long as any of the Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. is
outstanding. Copies of the latest annual report and audited consolidated financial statements
of CGMHI and the latest half-yearly interim unaudited consolidated financial statements of
CGMHI may be obtained at the specified offices of each of the Fiscal Agent and the other
Paying Agents during normal business hours so long as any of the Notes issued by CGMHI is
outstanding. Copies of the latest annual report and audited non-consolidated financial
statements of CGMFL and the latest half-yearly interim unaudited non-consolidated report
and financial statements of CGMFL may be obtained at the specified offices of each of the
Fiscal Agent and the Paying Agents during normal business hours so long as any of the Notes
issued by CGMFL is outstanding. Copies of the latest annual report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the CGMFL Guarantor and the latest half-yearly interim unaudited
non-consolidated financial statements of the CGMFL Guarantor may be obtained at the
specified offices of each of the Fiscal Agent and the other Paying Agents during normal
business hours so long as any of the Notes issued by CGMFL is outstanding.
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

Under the Programme, each Issuer may from time to time issue notes (together, the Securities)
including, for the avoidance of doubt, Notes issued under this Offering Circular denominated or
payable in any currency, subject as set out herein. The applicable terms of any Securities will be agreed
between the Issuer and, where applicable, the relevant Dealer prior to the issue of the Securities and
will be set out in the terms and conditions of the Securities which, for the purpose of Notes issued
pursuant to this Offering Circular, shall mean the "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" endorsed on,
scheduled to, or incorporated by reference into, the Notes, as modified and/or replaced by the
applicable Pricing Supplement, as attached to, or endorsed on, such Notes.

The maximum aggregate principal amount of Securities outstanding at any one time under the
Programme will not exceed U.S.$60,000,000,000 or its equivalent in other currencies. For the purpose
of calculating the U.S. dollar equivalent of the aggregate principal amount of Securities issued under
the Programme from time to time:

€)] the U.S. dollar equivalent of Securities denominated in another currency shall be determined
as of the date of agreement to issue such Notes (the Agreement Date) on the basis of the
forward rate for the sale of the U.S. dollar against the purchase of such currency in the London
foreign exchange market quoted by any leading bank selected by the relevant Issuer on the
Agreement Date;

(b) the U.S. dollar equivalent of Dual Currency Notes, Partly Paid Notes and Underlying Linked
Notes shall be calculated in the manner specified above by reference to the original principal
amount of such Notes; and

(©) the principal amount of Zero Coupon Notes and other Notes issued at a discount or a premium
shall be deemed to be the net proceeds received by the relevant Issuer for the relevant issue of
Notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE ISSUE OF NOTES UNDER THIS
OFFERING CIRCULAR

1. Application has been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Notes to be admitted to
trading on the Euro MTF and to be listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange. The Euro MTF is not a regulated market for the purposes of the Directive
2014/65/EU.

As specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, an issue of Notes may or may not be listed
or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on the Euro MTF as may be agreed between the
Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

2. Notes have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and
DTC. The address of Euroclear is 1 Boulevard du Roi Albert Il, B-1210 Brussels, Belgium,
the address of Clearstream, Luxembourg is 42 Avenue JF Kennedy, L-1855, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg and the address of DTC is 55 Water Street, New York, New York 10041, United
States.

The Issuer may make an application for any Notes issued by it in registered form (other than
Notes represented by a Combined Global Registered Note Certificate) to be accepted for
trading in book-entry form by DTC. The Common Code or CUSIP, as applicable, and the
International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) for each Tranche of Notes will be set
out in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

3. The Issuer may make an application for clearance of Notes through Euroclear Sweden and
Euroclear Finland. The address of Euroclear Sweden is Euroclear Sweden AB, Box 191, 101
23 Stockholm, Sweden, the address of Euroclear Finland is Euroclear Finland Ltd., Visiting
Address, Urho Kekkosen katu 5C, PO Box 1110 001001 Helsinki, Finland.

4, None of the Issuers, the CGMHI Guarantor and the CGMFL Guarantor will provide any
post-issuance information, except if required by any applicable laws and regulations.

5. The Legal Entity Identifier of each of the Issuers is as follows:
Citigroup Inc.: 6SHGI4ZSSLCXXQSBB395
Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc.: 82VOJDD5PTRDMVVMGV31

Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A.: 549300EVRWDWFJUNNP53
6. Green Bonds

Where Notes are issued as "Green Bonds" or Notes for which it is the relevant Issuer's
intention to apply the offering proceeds specifically to fund the financing or refinancing of
relevant eligible green assets, the net proceeds of the sale of the Notes will be allocated to
finance or refinance, amongst other things, loans and/or investments made by Citigroup Inc.
and its subsidiaries (the Group) for assets or projects that meet specified green bond eligibility
criteria, as described in the applicable Issue Terms.

The Group green bond eligibility criteria reflect good practices for supporting the transition to
a low-carbon economy through projects in areas including, but not necessarily limited to, the
following: renewable energy; energy efficiency; sustainable transportation; water quality and
conservation; and green building.

The eligible assets will be screened against the relevant green bond eligibility criteria,
management of the proceeds of any such Notes will be supervised and monitored and
information about any Green Bonds issued will be published, all as described in the applicable
Issue Terms.
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ISSUE OF NOTES

Notes will be issued on a continuous basis in series (each a Series). The Notes of each Series are
intended to be interchangeable with all other Notes of that Series.

Each Series of Notes may be issued in tranches (each a Tranche) having different issue dates but the
terms otherwise identical to other Tranches constituting such series (or identical other than in respect of
the first payment of interest).

The specific terms of each Tranche will be set forth in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
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FORM OF CGMHI DEED OF GUARANTEE

The form of the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee, as amended by the Programme Limit Increase Letter dated
17 September 2018, is set out below.

THIS DEED OF GUARANTEE is made on 21 December 2015 by Citigroup Inc. (the Guarantor) in
favour of the Relevant Account Holders (as defined in the Deed of Covenant referred to below) and the
holders for the time being of Notes (as defined below) issued by CGMHI in relation to which Citigroup
Inc. is shown as the Guarantor in the applicable Issue Terms. Each Relevant Account Holder and each
holder of a Note is a Holder.

WHEREAS:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Citigroup Inc., Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. (CGMHI) and Citigroup Global
Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A. (CGMFL). and Citigroup Global Markets Limited have
entered into a Citi U.S.$60,000,000,000 Global Medium Term Note Programme (as amended
and/or supplemented from time to time, the Programme) under which each of CGMFL,
CGMHI and Citigroup Inc. may issue Notes (as defined below);

Notes issued by CGMHI on and after the date hereof are issued with the benefit of this Deed of
Guarantee (other than any Notes issued so as to be consolidated and form a single Series with
any Notes issued prior to the date hereof), in each case where Citigroup Inc. is shown as the
Guarantor in the applicable Issue Terms;

Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. and CGMFL are not guaranteed by the Guarantor and do not
have the benefit of this Deed of Guarantee; and

CGMHI has executed a Deed of Covenant dated 21 December 2015 (the CGMHI Deed of
Covenant, which expression includes the same as it may be amended, supplemented or restated
from time to time) relating to Global Registered Note Certificates in respect of English Law
Notes issued by CGMHI pursuant to the Programme. References herein to the CGMHI Deed of
Covenant shall not apply in relation to New York Law Notes.

NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows:

1.

DEFINITIONS
As defined herein:

Notes means all Notes (including the Global Registered Note Certificates to be delivered in
respect of the relevant Notes) issued by CGMHI under the Programme and shall include
English Law Notes (which expression shall include Swedish Notes and Finnish Notes) and
New York Law Notes.

Where Citigroup Inc. is shown as the Guarantor in the applicable Issue Terms, that shall be
conclusive evidence that the Notes have the benefit of this Deed of Guarantee.

Terms used but not defined herein shall bear the meaning given to them in the Fiscal Agency
Agreement dated 21 December 2015 relating to the Programme (as amended, restated and/or
supplemented from time to time).

DEED OF GUARANTEE

Subject as provided herein, the Guarantor irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees by way
of deed poll to each Holder that if, for any reason, CGMHI does not either pay any sum payable
by it to such Holder in respect of any Note or under the Deed of Covenant, as the case may be,
including any premium or any other amounts of whatever nature or additional amounts which
may become payable under any of the foregoing, or deliver any amount deliverable by it to or
for such Holder in respect of any Note or under the CGMHI Deed of Covenant, as the case may
be, in any case as and when the same shall become either due and payable or due and
deliverable, as the case may be, under any of the foregoing, the Guarantor will duly and
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promptly pay or deliver, as the case may be, to such Holder on demand the sum or the amount
(as to which the certificate of such Holder shall in the absence of manifest error be conclusive)
payable or deliverable, as the case may be, by CGMHI to or for such Holder. For the avoidance
of doubt, the provisions of this Deed of Guarantee shall apply only in connection with Notes in
relation to which Citigroup Inc. is shown as the Guarantor in the applicable Issue Terms.

3. GUARANTOR AS PRINCIPAL OBLIGOR

Without affecting CGMHI's obligations, the Guarantor will be liable under this Deed of
Guarantee as if it were the sole principal obligor and not merely a surety. Accordingly, it will
not be discharged, nor will its liability be affected, by anything which would not discharge it or
affect its liability if it were the sole principal obligor (including (a) any time, indulgence,
waiver or consent at any time given to CGMHI or any other person, (b) any amendment to any
Note or the CGMHI Deed of Covenant or to any security or other guarantee or indemnity, (c)
the making or absence of any demand on CGMHI or any other person for payment, (d) the
enforcement or absence of enforcement of any Note, the CGMHI Deed of Covenant or of any
security or other guarantee or indemnity, (e) the release of any such security, guarantee or
indemnity, (f) the dissolution, amalgamation, reconstruction or reorganisation of CGMHI or
any other person, (g) the illegality, invalidity or unenforceability of or any defect in any
provision of any Note or the CGMHI Deed of Covenant or any of CGMHI's obligations under
any of them or (h) any other act, event or omission which but for this sub-Clause might operate
to discharge, impair or otherwise affect the obligations expressed to be assumed by the
Guarantor herein or any of the rights, powers or remedies conferred upon the Holders or any of
them by this Deed of Guarantee or by law).

4. GUARANTOR'S OBLIGATIONS CONTINUING

The Guarantor's obligations under this Deed of Guarantee are and will remain in full force and
effect by way of continuing security until no sum and/or amount remains payable and/or
deliverable, as the case may be under any Note or the CGMHI Deed of Covenant. Furthermore,
these obligations of the Guarantor are additional to, and not instead of, any security or other
guarantee or indemnity at any time existing in favour of a Holder, whether from the Guarantor
or otherwise. The Guarantor irrevocably waives all notices and demands whatsoever.

5. REPAYMENT OR REDELIVERY TO CGMHI

If any payment or amount received by a Holder is, on the subsequent liquidation or insolvency
of CGMHI, avoided under any laws relating to liquidation or insolvency, such payment or
delivery will not be considered as having discharged or diminished the liability of the
Guarantor and this Deed of Guarantee will continue to apply as if such payment or amount had
at all times remained owing by CGMHI.

6. INDEMNITY

As a separate and alternative stipulation, the Guarantor unconditionally and irrevocably agrees
that any sum or amount expressed to be payable or deliverable by CGMHI under any Note or
the CGMHI Deed of Covenant but which is for any reason (whether or not now known or
becoming known to CGMHI, the Guarantor or any Holder) not recoverable from the Guarantor
on the basis of a guarantee will nevertheless be recoverable from it as if it were the sole
principal debtor and will be paid or delivered, as the case may be, by it to the Holder on
demand subject as provided herein. This indemnity constitutes a separate and independent
obligation from the other obligations in this Deed of Guarantee, gives rise to a separate and
independent cause of action and will apply irrespective of any indulgence granted by any
Holder.

7. STATUS OF DEED OF GUARANTEE

The payment and delivery obligations of the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee constitute
direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Guarantor and rank and
will at all times at least rank pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated
outstanding obligations of the Guarantor, save for such obligations as may be preferred by
provisions of law that are both mandatory and of general application.
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SETTLEMENT CONDITIONAL

Any settlement or discharge between the Guarantor and the Holders or any of them shall be
conditional upon no payment and/or delivery, as the case may be, to the Holders or any of them
by the Guarantor or any other person on the Guarantor's behalf being avoided or reduced by
virtue of any laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation or similar laws of general
application for the time being in force and, in the event of any such payment and/or delivery, as
the case may be, being so avoided or reduced, the Holders shall be entitled to recover the
amount by which such payment and/or delivery, as the case may be, is so avoided or reduced
from the Guarantor subsequently as if such settlement or discharge had not occurred
PROVIDED THAT such recovery is not contrary to any law applicable thereto.

NO PRIOR ACTION REQUIRED

No Holder shall be obliged before exercising any of the rights, powers or remedies conferred
upon it by this Deed of Guarantee or by law:

€)] to make any demand of CGMHI, save, where applicable, for the presentation of the
relevant Note;

(b) to take any action or obtain judgment in any court against CGMHI; or
(© to make or file any claim or proof in a winding-up or dissolution of CGMHI,

and (save as aforesaid) the Guarantor hereby expressly waives presentment, demand, protest
and notice of dishonour in respect of each Note.

POSTPONEMENT OF GUARANTOR'S RIGHTS

The Guarantor agrees that, so long as any sums and or amounts are or may be owed by CGMHI
in respect of the Notes or the CGMHI Deed of Covenant or CGMHI is under any other actual
or contingent obligation thereunder or in respect thereof, the Guarantor will not exercise any
right which the Guarantor may at any time have by reason of the performance by the Guarantor
of its obligations hereunder:

@ to claim any contribution from any other guarantor of CGMHI's obligations under or
in respect of the Notes or the CGMHI Deed of Covenant;

(b) to take the benefit (in whole or in part) of any security enjoyed in connection with the
Notes or the CGMHI Deed of Covenant by any Holder; or

(© to be subrogated to the rights of any Holder against CGMHI in respect of amounts
paid by the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee.

TAXATION

The Guarantor undertakes in favour of each Holder that, in relation to any payment to be made
by it under this Deed, it will comply with any taxation provisions of the Conditions applicable
to the Guarantor (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the "gross-up" provisions (if any)) to
the extent that they apply to any such payments as if those provisions had been set out in full in
this Deed.

Where any Notes are settled by the Guarantor pursuant to this Deed of Guarantee by delivery of
an asset or assets, such delivery shall be made at the risk of the relevant Holders. All costs,
taxes, duties and/or expenses, including any applicable depository charges, transaction or
exercise charges, stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax, issue, registration, securities transfer,
withholding taxes or tax on income profits or gains and/or other costs, duties or taxes arising
from the delivery of the asset(s) in respect of a Note (Expenses) shall be for the account of the
relevant Holder and no delivery of any asset shall be made until all such Expenses have been
paid to the satisfaction of the Guarantor by the relevant Holder.
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12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

POWER TO EXECUTE

The Guarantor hereby warrants, represents and covenants with each Holder that it has all
corporate power, and that it has taken all necessary corporate or other steps, to enable it to
execute, deliver and perform this Deed of Guarantee, and that this Deed of Guarantee
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Guarantor in accordance with its terms.

DEPOSIT OF DEED OF GUARANTEE

This Deed of Guarantee shall take effect as a deed poll for the benefit of each Holder from time
to time and for the time being, each of which shall be entitled severally to enforce this Deed of
Guarantee against the Guarantor. This Deed of Guarantee shall be deposited with and held by
the Fiscal Agent at its specified office (being, at the date of this Deed of Guarantee, at
Citigroup Centre, Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5LB, United Kingdom) until all
the obligations of the Guarantor have been discharged in full.

PRODUCTION OF DEED OF GUARANTEE

The Guarantor hereby acknowledges the right of every Holder to the production of, and the
right of every Holder to obtain (upon payment of a reasonable charge) a copy of, this Deed of
Guarantee, and further acknowledges and covenants that the obligations binding upon it
contained herein are owed to, and shall be for the account of, each and every Holder, and that
each Holder shall be entitled severally to enforce the said obligations against the Guarantor.

STAMP DUTIES

The Guarantor shall pay all stamp, registration and other taxes and duties (including any
interest and penalties thereon or in connection therewith) which are payable upon or in
connection with the execution and delivery of this Deed of Guarantee, and shall indemnify each
Holder against any claim, demand, action, liability, damages, cost, loss or expense (including,
without limitation, legal fees and any applicable value added tax) which it incurs as a result or
arising out of or in relation to any failure to pay or delay in paying any of the same.

PARTIAL INVALIDITY

If at any time any provision thereof is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any
respect under the laws of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the
remaining provisions hereof nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such provision under
the laws of any other jurisdiction shall in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

NOTICES

All notices, demands and other communications to the Guarantor hereunder shall be made in
writing (by letter) and shall be sent to the Guarantor at:

Citigroup Inc.

388 Greenwich Street

New York

New York 10013

United States

Attention: Company Secretary

or to such other address or for the attention of such other person or department as the Guarantor
has notified to the Holders in the manner prescribed for the giving of notices in connection with
the Notes.

Every notice, demand or other communication sent in accordance with this Clause 17 shall be
effective upon receipt by the Guarantor PROVIDED THAT any such notice, demand or other
communication which would otherwise take effect on a day which is not a business day in the
place of the Guarantor or after 4.00 p.m. on any particular day shall not take effect until
10.00 a.m. on the immediately succeeding business day in the place of the Guarantor.
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18. GOVERNING LAW

This Deed of Guarantee and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection
with this Deed of Guarantee are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with,
English law.

IN WITNESS whereof the Guarantor has caused this Deed of Guarantee to be duly executed on the day
and year first above mentioned.

Executed as a deed
by CITIGROUP INC.
acting by

— N

acting under the authority of that
company, in the presence of:

Witness's Signature:
Name:
Address:
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FORM OF CGMFL DEED OF GUARANTEE
The form of the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee is set out below.

THIS DEED OF GUARANTEE is made on 25 January 2019 by Citigroup Global Markets Limited
(the Guarantor) in favour of the Relevant Account Holders (as defined in the Deed of Covenant
referred to below) and the holders for the time being of Securities (as defined below) issued by
CGMFL in relation to which Citigroup Global Markets Limited is shown as the Guarantor in the
applicable Issue Terms. Each Relevant Account Holder and each holder of a Security is a Holder.

RECITALS

(A) Citigroup Inc., Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. (CGMHI) and Citigroup Global
Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A. (CGMFL). and Citigroup Global Markets Limited
have entered into a Citi U.S.$60,000,000,000 Global Medium Term Note Programme (as
amended and/or supplemented from time to time, the Programme) under which each of
CGMFL, CGMHI and Citigroup Inc. may issue Notes (as defined below);

(B) Securities issued by CGMFL on and after the date hereof are issued with the benefit of this
Deed of Guarantee (other than any Notes issued so as to be consolidated and form a single
Series with any Notes issued prior to the date hereof), in each case where Citigroup Global
Markets Limited is shown as the Guarantor in the applicable Issue Terms;

© Securities issued by Citigroup Inc. and CGMHI are not guaranteed by the Guarantor and do
not have the benefit of this Deed of Guarantee; and

(D) CGMFL has executed a Deed of Covenant dated 25 January 2019 (the CGMFL Deed of
Covenant, which expression includes the same as it may be amended, supplemented or
restated from time to time) relating to Global Registered Security Certificates in relation to
English Law Securities issued by CGMFL pursuant to the Programme. References herein to
the CGMFL Deed of Covenant shall not apply in relation to New York Law Notes.

NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES AS FOLLOWS:
1. DEFINITIONS
As defined herein:

Securities means all Securities (including the Global Registered Security Certificates to be
delivered in respect of the relevant Securities) issued by CGMFL under the Programme other
than Excluded Notes and shall include English Law Securities (which expression shall include
Swedish Securities and Finnish Securities) and New York Law Notes.

Where Citigroup Global Markets Limited is shown as the Guarantor in the applicable Issue
Terms, that shall be conclusive evidence that the Securities have the benefit of this Deed of
Guarantee.

Terms used but not defined herein shall bear the meaning given to them in the Fiscal Agency
Agreement dated 25 January 2019 relating to the Programme (as amended, restated and/or
supplemented from time to time).

2. DEED OF GUARANTEE

Subject as provided herein, the Guarantor irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees by way
of deed poll to each Holder that if, for any reason, CGMFL does not either pay any sum
payable by it to such Holder in respect of any Security or under the Deed of Covenant, as the
case may be, including any premium or any other amounts of whatever nature or additional
amounts which may become payable under any of the foregoing, or deliver any amount
deliverable by it to or for such Holder in respect of any Security or under the CGMFL Deed of
Covenant, as the case may be, in any case as and when the same shall become either due and
payable or due and deliverable, as the case may be, under any of the foregoing, the Guarantor
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will duly and promptly pay or deliver, as the case may be, to such Holder on demand the sum
or the amount (as to which the certificate of such Holder shall in the absence of manifest error
be conclusive) payable or deliverable, as the case may be, by CGMFL to or for such Holder.
For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of this Deed of Guarantee shall apply only in
connection with Securities in relation to which Citigroup Global Markets Limited is shown as
the Guarantor in the applicable Issue Terms.

3. GUARANTOR AS PRINCIPAL OBLIGOR

Without affecting CGMFL's obligations, the Guarantor will be liable under this Deed of
Guarantee as if it were the sole principal obligor and not merely a surety. Accordingly, it will
not be discharged, nor will its liability be affected, by anything which would not discharge it
or affect its liability if it were the sole principal obligor (including (a) any time, indulgence,
waiver or consent at any time given to CGMFL or any other person, (b) any amendment to
any Security or the CGMFL Deed of Covenant or to any security or other guarantee or
indemnity, (c) the making or absence of any demand on CGMFL or any other person for
payment, (d) the enforcement or absence of enforcement of any Security, the CGMFL Deed of
Covenant or of any security or other guarantee or indemnity, (e) the release of any such
security, guarantee or indemnity, (f) the dissolution, amalgamation, reconstruction or
reorganisation of CGMFL or any other person, (g) the illegality, invalidity or unenforceability
of or any defect in any provision of any Security or the CGMFL Deed of Covenant or any of
CGMFL's obligations under any of them or (h) any other act, event or omission which but for
this Clause might operate to discharge, impair or otherwise affect the obligations expressed to
be assumed by the Guarantor herein or any of the rights, powers or remedies conferred upon
the Holders or any of them by this Deed of Guarantee or by law).

4. GUARANTOR'S OBLIGATIONS CONTINUING

The Guarantor's obligations under this Deed of Guarantee are and will remain in full force and
effect by way of continuing security until no sum and/or amount remains payable and/or
deliverable, as the case may be under any Security or the CGMFL Deed of Covenant.
Furthermore, these obligations of the Guarantor are additional to, and not instead of, any
security or other guarantee or indemnity at any time existing in favour of a Holder, whether
from the Guarantor or otherwise. The Guarantor irrevocably waives all notices and demands
whatsoever.

5. REPAYMENT OR REDELIVERY TO CGMFL

If any payment or amount received by a Holder is, on the subsequent liquidation or insolvency
of CGMFL, avoided under any laws relating to liquidation or insolvency, such payment or
delivery will not be considered as having discharged or diminished the liability of the
Guarantor and this Deed of Guarantee will continue to apply as if such payment or amount
had at all times remained owing by CGMFL.

6. INDEMNITY

As a separate and alternative stipulation, the Guarantor unconditionally and irrevocably agrees
that any sum or amount expressed to be payable or deliverable by CGMFL under any Security
or the CGMFL Deed of Covenant but which is for any reason (whether or not now known or
becoming known to CGMFL, the Guarantor or any Holder) not recoverable from the
Guarantor on the basis of a guarantee will nevertheless be recoverable from it as if it were the
sole principal debtor and will be paid or delivered, as the case may be, by it to the Holder on
demand subject as provided herein. This indemnity constitutes a separate and independent
obligation from the other obligations in this Deed of Guarantee, gives rise to a separate and
independent cause of action and will apply irrespective of any indulgence granted by any
Holder.

7. STATUS OF DEED OF GUARANTEE

The payment and delivery obligations of the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee
constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Guarantor
and rank and will at all times at least rank pari passu with all other unsecured and
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unsubordinated outstanding obligations of the Guarantor, save for such obligations as may be
preferred by provisions of law that are both mandatory and of general application.

8. SETTLEMENT CONDITIONAL

Any settlement or discharge between the Guarantor and the Holders or any of them shall be
conditional upon no payment and/or delivery, as the case may be, to the Holders or any of
them by the Guarantor or any other person on the Guarantor's behalf being avoided or reduced
by virtue of any laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation or similar laws of general
application for the time being in force and, in the event of any such payment and/or delivery,
as the case may be, being so avoided or reduced, the Holders shall be entitled to recover the
amount by which such payment and/or delivery, as the case may be, is so avoided or reduced
from the Guarantor subsequently as if such settlement or discharge had not occurred
PROVIDED THAT such recovery is not contrary to any law applicable thereto.

9. NO PRIOR ACTION REQUIRED

No Holder shall be obliged before exercising any of the rights, powers or remedies conferred
upon it by this Deed of Guarantee or by law:

€)] to make any demand of CGMFL, save, where applicable, for the presentation of the
relevant Security;

(b) to take any action or obtain judgment in any court against CGMFL,; or
(© to make or file any claim or proof in a winding-up or dissolution of CGMFL,

and (save as aforesaid) the Guarantor hereby expressly waives presentment, demand, protest
and notice of dishonour in respect of each Security.

10. POSTPONEMENT OF GUARANTOR'S RIGHTS

The Guarantor agrees that, so long as any sums and or amounts are or may be owed by
CGMEFL in respect of the Securities or the CGMFL Deed of Covenant or CGMFL is under
any other actual or contingent obligation thereunder or in respect thereof, the Guarantor will
not exercise any right which the Guarantor may at any time have by reason of the performance
by the Guarantor of its obligations hereunder:

@ to claim any contribution from any other guarantor of CGMFL's obligations under or
in respect of the Securities or the CGMFL Deed of Covenant;

(b) to take the benefit (in whole or in part) of any security enjoyed in connection with the
Securities or the CGMFL Deed of Covenant by any Holder; or

(© to be subrogated to the rights of any Holder against CGMFL in respect of amounts
paid by the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee.

11. TAXATION

The Guarantor undertakes in favour of each Holder that, in relation to any payment to be made
by it under this Deed, it will comply with any taxation provisions of the Conditions applicable
to the Guarantor (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the "gross-up" provisions (if any)) to
the extent that they apply to any such payments as if those provisions had been set out in full
in this Deed.

Where any Securities are settled by the Guarantor pursuant to this Deed of Guarantee by
delivery of an asset or assets, such delivery shall be made at the risk of the relevant Holders.
All costs, taxes, duties and/or expenses, including any applicable depository charges,
transaction or exercise charges, stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax, issue, registration,
securities transfer, withholding taxes or tax on income profits or gains and/or other costs,
duties or taxes arising from the delivery of the asset(s) in respect of a Security (Expenses)
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shall be for the account of the relevant Holder and no delivery of any asset shall be made until
all such Expenses have been paid to the satisfaction of the Guarantor by the relevant Holder.

POWER TO EXECUTE

The Guarantor hereby warrants, represents and covenants with each Holder that it has all
corporate power, and that it has taken all necessary corporate or other steps, to enable it to
execute, deliver and perform this Deed of Guarantee, and that this Deed of Guarantee
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Guarantor in accordance with its terms.

DEPOSIT OF DEED OF GUARANTEE

This Deed of Guarantee shall take effect as a deed poll for the benefit of each Holder from
time to time and for the time being, each of which shall be entitled severally to enforce this
Deed of Guarantee against the Guarantor. This Deed of Guarantee shall be deposited with and
held by the Fiscal Agent at its specified office (being, at the date of this Deed of Guarantee, at
Citigroup Centre, Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5LB, United Kingdom) until all
the obligations of the Guarantor have been discharged in full.

PRODUCTION OF DEED OF GUARANTEE

The Guarantor hereby acknowledges the right of every Holder to the production of, and the
right of every Holder to obtain (upon payment of a reasonable charge) a copy of, this Deed of
Guarantee, and further acknowledges and covenants that the obligations binding upon it
contained herein are owed to, and shall be for the account of, each and every Holder, and that
each Holder shall be entitled severally to enforce the said obligations against the Guarantor.

STAMP DUTIES

The Guarantor shall pay all stamp, registration and other taxes and duties (including any
interest and penalties thereon or in connection therewith) which are payable upon or in
connection with the execution and delivery of this Deed of Guarantee, and shall indemnify
each Holder against any claim, demand, action, liability, damages, cost, loss or expense
(including, without limitation, legal fees and any applicable value added tax) which it incurs
as a result or arising out of or in relation to any failure to pay or delay in paying any of the
same.

PARTIAL INVALIDITY

If at any time any provision thereof is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any
respect under the laws of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the
remaining provisions hereof nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such provision under
the laws of any other jurisdiction shall in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

NOTICES

All notices, demands and other communications to the Guarantor hereunder shall be made in
writing (by letter) and shall be sent to the Guarantor at:

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Citigroup Centre

Canada Square,

Canary Wharf London, E14 5LB
England

Attention: Company Secretary

or to such other address or for the attention of such other person or department as the
Guarantor has notified to the Holders in the manner prescribed for the giving of notices in
connection with the Securities.

Every notice, demand or other communication sent in accordance with this Clause 17 shall be
effective upon receipt by the Guarantor PROVIDED THAT any such notice, demand or other
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communication which would otherwise take effect on a day which is not a business day in the
place of the Guarantor or after 4.00 p.m. on any particular day shall not take effect until
10.00 a.m. on the immediately succeeding business day in the place of the Guarantor.

18. GOVERNING LAW

This Deed of Guarantee and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with this
Deed of Guarantee are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law.IN
WITNESS whereof the Guarantor has caused this Deed of Guarantee to be duly executed on the day
and year first above mentioned.

Executed as a deed
by CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS LIMITED
acting by

~— N

acting under the authority of that
company, in the presence of:

Witness's Signature:
Name:
Address:
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THIS DEED OF GUARANTEE is made on 11 May 2017 by Citigroup Global Markets Limited (the
Guarantor) in favour of each Beneficiary (as defined below).

NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows:

1.

DEFINITIONS
As defined herein:

Beneficiary means any person who is owed any sum or amount which is due and payable by
CGMFL under or in respect of any Liability;

CGMFL means Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A.;

Liabilities means all the liabilities of CGMFL of any kind and in any currency (whether
present or future, actual or contingent and whether incurred alone or jointly with another)
together with all the charges, commission, interest and expenses payable by CGMFL in
connection with the relevant liability; and

Taxes includes all present and future income and other taxes, levies, duties, imposts,
deductions charges, fees and withholdings, in each case as imposed or levied by or on behalf
of the United Kingdom, together with interest thereon and penalties with respect thereto (if

any).

Where the context so admits, the singular includes the plural and vice versa. Headings are for
convenience of reference only.

DEED OF GUARANTEE

Subject as provided herein, the Guarantor irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees by way
of deed poll to each Beneficiary that if, for any reason, CGMFL does not pay any sum payable
by it to such Beneficiary under or in respect of any Liability including any premium or any
other amounts of whatever nature or additional amounts which may become payable under the
foregoing as and when the same shall become due and payable under any of the foregoing, the
Guarantor will duly and promptly pay to such Beneficiary on the request of such Beneficiary
the sum or the amount payable by CGMFL to or for such Beneficiary.

GUARANTOR AS PRINCIPAL OBLIGOR

Without affecting CGMFL's obligations, the Guarantor will be liable under this Deed of
Guarantee as if it were the sole principal obligor and not merely a surety. Accordingly, it will
not be discharged, nor will its liability be affected, by anything which would not discharge it
or affect its liability if it were the sole principal obligor (including (a) any time, indulgence,
waiver or consent at any time given to CGMFL or any other person, (b) any amendment to
any Liability or to any security or other guarantee or indemnity, (c) the making or absence of
any demand on CGMFL or any other person for payment, (d) the enforcement or absence of
enforcement of any Liability or of any security or other guarantee or indemnity, (e) the release
of any such security, guarantee or indemnity, (f) the dissolution, amalgamation, reconstruction
or reorganisation of CGMFL or any other person, (g) the illegality, invalidity or
unenforceability of or any defect in any provision of any Liability or any of CGMFL's
obligations under or in respect of a Liability or (h) any other act, event or omission which but
for this sub-Clause might operate to discharge, impair or otherwise affect the obligations
expressed to be assumed by the Guarantor herein or any of the rights, powers or remedies
conferred upon the Beneficiaries or any of them by this Deed of Guarantee or by law).

GUARANTOR'S OBLIGATIONS CONTINUING

The Guarantor's obligations under this Deed of Guarantee are irrevocable and are and will
remain in full force and effect by way of continuing security in respect of any outstanding
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Liabilities. Furthermore, these obligations of the Guarantor are additional to, and not instead
of, any security or other guarantee or indemnity at any time existing in favour of a
Beneficiary, whether from the Guarantor or otherwise. The Guarantor irrevocably waives all
notices and demands whatsoever.

5. REPAYMENT TO CGMFL

If any payment or amount received by a Beneficiary is, on the subsequent liquidation or
insolvency of CGMFL, avoided under any laws relating to liquidation or insolvency, such
payment will not be considered as having discharged or diminished the liability of the
Guarantor and this Deed of Guarantee will continue to apply as if such payment or amount
had at all times remained owing by CGMFL.

6. INDEMNITY

As a separate and alternative stipulation, the Guarantor unconditionally and irrevocably agrees
that any sum amount expressed to be payable by CGMFL under or in respect of any Liability
but which is for any reason (whether or not now known or becoming known to CGMFL, the
Guarantor or any Beneficiary) not recoverable from the Guarantor on the basis of a guarantee
will nevertheless be recoverable from it as if it were the sole principal debtor and will be paid
by it to the Beneficiary on the request of such Beneficiary subject as provided herein. This
indemnity constitutes a separate and independent obligation from the other obligations in this
Deed of Guarantee, gives rise to a separate and independent cause of action and will apply
irrespective of any indulgence granted by any Beneficiary.

7. STATUS OF DEED OF GUARANTEE

This Deed of Guarantee shall take effect as a deed poll for the benefit of each Beneficiary
from time to time and for the time being, each of which shall be entitled severally to enforce
this Deed of Guarantee against the Guarantor. The payment obligations of the Guarantor under
this Deed of Guarantee constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of the Guarantor and rank and will at all times at least rank pari passu with all
other unsecured and unsubordinated outstanding obligations of the Guarantor, save for such
obligations as may be preferred by provisions of law that are both mandatory and of general
application.

8. SETTLEMENT CONDITIONAL

Any settlement or discharge between the Guarantor and the Beneficiaries or any of them shall
be conditional upon no payment to the Beneficiaries or any of them by the Guarantor or any
other person on the Guarantor's behalf being avoided or reduced by virtue of any laws relating
to bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation or similar laws of general application for the time being
in force and, in the event of any such payment being so avoided or reduced, the Beneficiaries
shall be entitled to recover the amount by which such payment is so avoided or reduced from
the Guarantor subsequently as if such settlement or discharge had not occurred PROVIDED
THAT such recovery is not contrary to any law applicable thereto.

9. NO PRIOR ACTION REQUIRED

No Beneficiary shall be obliged before exercising any of the rights, powers or remedies
conferred upon it by this Deed of Guarantee or by law:

€)] to make any demand of CGMFL;
(b) to take any action or obtain judgment in any court against CGMFL; or
(c) to make or file any claim or proof in a winding-up or dissolution of CGMFL,

and the Guarantor hereby expressly waives presentment, demand, protest and notice of
dishonour in respect of each Liability.
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POSTPONEMENT OF GUARANTOR'S RIGHTS

The Guarantor agrees that, so long as any sums and or amounts are or may be owed by
CGMFL under or in respect of the Liabilities or CGMFL is under any other actual or
contingent obligation thereunder or in respect thereof, the Guarantor will not exercise any
right which the Guarantor may at any time have by reason of the performance by the
Guarantor of its obligations hereunder:

@ to claim any contribution from any other guarantor of CGMFL's obligations under or
in respect of the Liabilities;

(b) to take the benefit (in whole or in part) of any security enjoyed in connection with the
Liabilities by any Beneficiary; or

(© to be subrogated to the rights of any Beneficiary against CGMFL in respect of
amounts paid by the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee.

TAXATION

All payments by the Guarantor under or in connection with this Deed of Guarantee shall be
made free and clear of and without deduction for or on account of all Taxes. All Taxes in
respect of this Deed of Guarantee and payments thereunder shall be for the account of and
shall be paid by the Guarantor for its own account prior to the date on which penalties attach
thereto. If the Guarantor is compelled by law to make payment subject to any Tax and a
Beneficiary does not actually receive for its own benefit on the due date the full amount
provided for hereunder, the Guarantor will pay all necessary additional amounts to ensure
receipt by the Beneficiary of the full amount so provided for. The Guarantor will indemnify
each Beneficiary in respect of all such Taxes.

POWER TO EXECUTE

The Guarantor hereby warrants, represents and covenants with each Beneficiary that it has all
corporate power, and that it has taken all necessary corporate or other steps, to enable it to
execute, deliver and perform this Deed of Guarantee, and that this Deed of Guarantee
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Guarantor in accordance with its terms.

NO SET-OFF OR COUNTERCLAIM

All payments to be made by the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee will be calculated
and be made without (and free and clear of any deduction for) set-off or counterclaim.

PRODUCTION OF DEED OF GUARANTEE

The Guarantor hereby acknowledges the right of every Beneficiary to the production of, and
the right of every Beneficiary to obtain (upon payment of a reasonable charge) a copy of, this
Deed of Guarantee, and further acknowledges and covenants that the obligations binding upon
it contained herein are owed to, and shall be for the account of, each and every Beneficiary,
and that each Beneficiary shall be entitled severally to enforce the said obligations against the
Guarantor.

STAMP DUTIES

The Guarantor shall pay all stamp, registration and other taxes and duties (including any
interest and penalties thereon or in connection therewith) which are payable upon or in
connection with the execution and delivery of this Deed of Guarantee, and shall indemnify
each Beneficiary against any claim, demand, action, liability, damages, cost, loss or expense
(including, without limitation, legal fees and any applicable value added tax) which it incurs
as a result or arising out of or in relation to any failure to pay or delay in paying any of the
same.
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

PARTIAL INVALIDITY

If at any time any provision thereof is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any
respect under the laws of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the
remaining provisions hereof nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such provision under
the laws of any other jurisdiction shall in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

NOTICES

All notices, demands and other communications to the Guarantor hereunder shall be made in
writing (by letter) and shall be sent to the Guarantor at:

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Citigroup Centre

Canada Square, Canary Wharf
London, El4 5LB

England

Attention: Company Secretary

or to such other address or for the attention of such other person or department as the
Guarantor has notified to the Beneficiaries.

Every notice, demand or other communication sent in accordance with this Clause 17 shall be
effective upon receipt by the Guarantor PROVIDED THAT any such notice, demand or other
communication which would otherwise take effect on a day which is not a business day in the
place of the Guarantor or after 4.00 p.m. on any particular day shall not take effect until
10.00 a.m. on the immediately succeeding business day in the place of the Guarantor.

GOVERNING LAW

This Deed of Guarantee and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection
with this Deed of Guarantee are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with,
English law.

RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES

No rights are conferred on any person under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999
to enforce any term of this Deed of Guarantee, but this does not affect any right or remedy of
any person which exists or is available apart from that Act.

JURISDICTION

The English courts have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute including a dispute relating
to non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with this Deed of Guarantee.

IN WITNESS whereof the Guarantor has caused this Deed of Guarantee to be duly executed on the
day and year first above mentioned.

Executed as a deed
by CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS LIMITED

acting by

N— N N

acting under the authority of that
company, in the presence of:

Witness's Signature:

Name:
Address:
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Subject as provided below in relation to Swedish Notes and Finnish Notes, the Notes of each Series
will be in registered form. Registered Notes may be offered and sold (i) outside the United States to
non-U.S. persons in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act (Regulation S), (ii) in the case
of Registered Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. or CGMHI, to QIBs (as defined below) in reliance on
Rule 144A under the Securities Act (Rule 144A) or (iii) in the case of Registered Notes issued by
CGMHI, both outside the United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on Regulation S and to QIBs in
reliance on Rule 144A.

Notes that are not Swedish Notes or Finnish Notes and are Registered Notes

The Registered Notes of each Tranche offered and sold in reliance on Regulation S only, which will be
sold in offshore transactions to persons that are not U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S) outside
the United States, will be represented by a Regulation S Global Registered Note Certificate (a
Regulation S Global Registered Note Certificate). Beneficial interests in a Regulation S Global
Registered Note Certificate may not be offered, sold or transferred at any time in the United States or
to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person and may not be held otherwise than through Euroclear
or Clearstream, Luxembourg and such Regulation S Global Registered Note Certificate will bear a
legend regarding such restrictions on transfer. Each Note Certificate will be numbered serially with an
identifying number which will be recorded in the Register.

The Registered Notes of each Tranche offered and sold in reliance on Rule 144A only, which may only
be issued by Citigroup Inc. or CGMHI, may only be offered and sold in private transactions to
"qualified institutional buyers" within the meaning of Rule 144A (QIBs). The Registered Notes of
each Tranche sold to QIBs will be represented by a Rule 144A Global Registered Note Certificate (a
Rule 144A Global Registered Note Certificate), and beneficial interests therein may not be offered,
sold or otherwise transferred at any time except to a QIB purchasing (or holding) the Notes for its
account or for the account of one or more QIBs in reliance on Rule 144A.

The Registered Notes of each Tranche offered and sold in reliance on both Regulation S and Rule
144A, which may only be issued by CGMHI, may only be offered and sold (i) in offshore transactions
to persons that are not U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S) outside the United States and (ii) in
private transactions to QIBs. The Registered Notes of each such Tranche may be represented by either:
(i) one or more separate Regulation S Global Registered Note Certificates and Rule 144A Global
Registered Note Certificates, or (ii) a Combined Global Registered Note Certificate (a Combined
Global Registered Note Certificate and, together with a Regulation S Global Registered Note
Certificate and a Rule 144A Global Registered Note Certificate, the Global Registered Note
Certificates). Beneficial interests in a Combined Global Registered Note Certificate may not be
offered, sold or transferred at any time expect (i) in an offshore transaction to a person that is not a U.S.
person outside the United States or (ii) to a QIB purchasing (or holding) the Notes for its account or for
the account of one or more QIBs in reliance on Rule 144A. Beneficial interests in a Combined Global
Registered Note Certificate may not be held otherwise than through Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg.

Global Registered Note Certificates will either (i) be deposited with a custodian for, and registered in
the name of a nominee of, the Depository Trust Company (DTC) for the accounts of Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg or (ii) be deposited with a common depositary or, if the Global Registered
Note Certificate is to be held under the new safekeeping structure (the NSS) a common safekeeper (the
Common Safekeeper), as the case may be, for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, and
registered in the name of a common nominee of a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg or in the name of a nominee of the Common Safekeeper, as specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement. Notes represented by a Combined Global Registered Note Certificate will be
deposited with a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and registered in the
name of a common nominee of a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.
Persons holding beneficial interests in Global Registered Note Certificates will be entitled or required,
as the case may be, to receive physical delivery of definitive Notes in fully registered form.

Where the Global Registered Note Certificate issued in respect of any Tranche is intended to be held
under the NSS, the applicable Pricing Supplement will indicate whether or not such Global Registered
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Note Certificate is intended to be held in a manner which would allow Eurosystem eligibility. Any
indication that the Global Registered Note Certificate are to be so held does not necessarily mean that
the Notes of the relevant Tranche will be recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary
policy and intra-day credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon issue or at any time during their
life as such recognition depends upon satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility criteria. The common
safekeeper for a Global Registered Note Certificate held under the NSS will be held either by Euroclear
or Clearstream, Luxembourg or another entity approved by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

The Rule 144A Global Registered Note Certificate and the Combined Global Registered Note
Certificate will be subject to certain restrictions on transfer set forth therein and will bear a legend
regarding such restrictions.

Swedish Notes

Notwithstanding the foregoing Swedish Notes will be issued in dematerialised and uncertificated
book-entry form in accordance with the Swedish Act on Central Securities Depositories and Financial
Instruments Accounts (Sw; lag (1998:1479) om vardepapperscentraler och kontoféring av finansiella
instrument) (the SFIA Act), other applicable Swedish legislation and the rules and regulations
applicable to, and/or issued by, Euroclear Sweden. Swedish Notes will not be issued in definitive or
global form.

Swedish Notes will be registered in a register kept by Euroclear Sweden on behalf of the Issuer (the
Swedish Notes Register) and payments of principal, interest or any other amounts on Swedish Notes
will be made by Euroclear Sweden on behalf of the Issuer to the persons registered as holders of such
Swedish Notes in the Swedish Notes Register on the fifth Stockholm Banking Day prior to the due date
of the relevant payment.

Finnish Notes

Notwithstanding the foregoing Finnish Notes will be issued in uncertificated and dematerialised
book-entry-form in accordance with the Finnish Act on the Book-Entry System and Clearing, (Fin. laki
arvo-osuusjarjestelmasta ja selvitystoiminnasta (348/2017, as amended)) and with the Finnish Act on
Book-Entry Accounts, (Fin. laki arvo-osuustileisté (827/1991, as amended)) other applicable Finnish
legislation and the rules and regulations applicable to, and/or issued by, Euroclear Finland. Finnish
Notes will not be issued in definitive form.

Relationship of Accountholders with Clearing Systems

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Registered Note Certificate held on behalf of
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg) who is for the time being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream,
Luxembourg as the holder of a particular principal amount of such Notes (in which regard any
certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg as to the principal
amount of such Notes standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all
purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor
(where the Issuer is CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL) and the Agents as
the holder of such principal amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the
payment of principal or interest on such principal amount of such Notes, for which purpose the
registered holder of the relevant Global Registered Note Certificate shall be treated by the Issuer, the
CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL)
and each Agent as the holder of such principal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to
the terms of the relevant Global Registered Note Certificate and the expressions Noteholder and
holder of Notes and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner or holder of a Global Registered Note
Certificate, DTC or such nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of
the Notes represented by such Global Registered Note Certificate for all purposes under the Fiscal
Agency Agreement and such Notes except to the extent that, in accordance with DTC's published rules
and procedures, any ownership rights may be exercised by its participants or beneficial owners through
participants.
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Notes which are represented by a Global Registered Note Certificate will be transferable only in
accordance with the rules and procedures for the time being of Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg and/or DTC, as the case may be, subject to the restrictions on transfer described herein.
Each of the persons shown in the records of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC as the
beneficial holder of a particular principal amount of Notes represented by such Global Registered Note
Certificate, must look solely to Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC, as the case may be, for
his share of each payment made by the Issuer, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor or,
where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor to the holder of such Global Registered Note
Certificate, and the obligations of the Issuer in respect thereof will be discharged by payment to the
holder of such Global Registered Note Certificate, in respect of each amount so paid.

Exchanges
Exchange of Global Registered Note Certificates

A Global Registered Note Certificate may be exchanged in whole but not in part (free of charge) for
definitive Registered Note Certificates only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event.

An Exchange Event means:

€)] an Event of Default (as defined in Condition 9 of the General Conditions) has occurred and is
continuing; or

(b) if the Global Registered Note Certificate is registered in the name of a nominee for a common
depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg or in the name of a nominee of the
Common Safekeeper, as the case may be, the Issuer has been notified that Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, has/have been closed for business for a
continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or
has/have announced an intention permanently to cease business or has/have in fact done so
and no successor clearing system is available; or

(© if the Global Registered Note Certificate is registered in the name of a nominee for DTC,
either DTC has notified the Issuer that it is unwilling or unable to continue to act as depository
for the Notes and no alternative clearing system is available or DTC has ceased to constitute a
clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act and no successor clearing system is
available; or

(d) the Issuer has or will become subject to adverse tax consequences which would not be
suffered were the Notes represented by the Registered Note Certificate in definitive form.

The Issuer will promptly give notice to Noteholders upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event. In the
event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (a) to (c) above, Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg, and/or DTC, as the case may be, acting on the instructions of any holder of
an interest in such Global Registered Note Certificate may give notice to the Registrar requesting
exchange and, in the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (a) to (d) above, the
Issuer may also give notice to the Registrar requesting exchange. Any exchange shall occur no later
than 10 days after the date of receipt of the relevant notice by the Registrar.

Any exchanges of a Global Registered Note Certificate will be made upon presentation of the Global
Registered Note Certificate at the specified office of the Registrar by the holder of it on any day (other
than a Saturday or Sunday) on which banks are open for general business in the city of the specified
office of the Registrar.

Deeds of Covenant in respect of English Law Notes (other than Swedish Notes and Finnish Notes)

In relation to English Law Notes (other than Swedish Notes and Finnish Notes, where any Note is
represented by a Global Registered Note Certificate and (a) the Global Registered Note Certificate (or
any part thereof) has become due and repayable in accordance with the Conditions of such Notes or the
Maturity Date has occurred and, in either case, payment in full of the amount due has not been made to
the holder of an interest in such Global Registered Note Certificate through the relevant Clearing
System(s) on such date, or (b) following an Exchange Event, the Global Registered Note Certificate is
not duly exchanged for Registered Note Certificates in definitive form by the date provided in the
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Global Registered Note Certificate, then from 8.00 p.m. (London time) on such date each holder of an
interest in such Global Registered Note Certificate through the relevant Clearing System(s) will
become entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer on, and subject to, the terms of the relevant
Deeds of Covenant, the relevant registered holder will have no further rights under the Global
Registered Note Certificate (but without prejudice to the rights any person may have under the relevant
Deed of Covenant).

Clearing Systems

Any reference herein to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, DTC, Euroclear Sweden and/or
Euroclear Finland shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any
additional or alternative clearance system specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
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BOOK ENTRY CLEARANCE SYSTEMS

The information set out below is subject to any change in or reinterpretation of the rules, regulations
and procedures of DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, Euroclear Sweden or Euroclear
Finland (together, the Clearing Systems) currently in effect.

The information in this section concerning the Clearing Systems has been obtained from sources that
the Issuers believe to be reliable, but none of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor,
CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor and any Dealer takes any responsibility for the accuracy thereof,
except that the Issuers and the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI) or the CGMFL
Guarantor (where the lIssuer is CGMFL) accept responsibility for accurately reproducing such
information and, as far as the Issuers and the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI) or the
CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL) are aware and are able to ascertain from
information published by the relevant Clearing Systems, no facts have been omitted which would
render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. This paragraph should be read in
conjunction with the first two paragraphs set out under the heading "Responsibility Statement” on page
vi.

Investors wishing to use the facilities of any of the Clearing Systems are advised to confirm the
continued applicability of the rules, regulations and procedures of the relevant Clearing System. None
of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL and the CGMFL Guarantor, and any
other party to the Fiscal Agency Agreement, the relevant Swedish Notes Issuing and Paying Agency
Agreement or the Finnish Notes Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, as the case may be, will have
any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account
of, beneficial ownership interests in the Notes held through the facilities of any Clearing System or for
maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

Book-entry Systems
DTC

DTC has advised the Issuers that it is a limited purpose trust company organised under the New York
Banking Law, a banking organisation within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member
of the Federal Reserve System, a clearing corporation within the meaning of the New York Uniform
Commercial Code and a clearing agency registered pursuant to Section 17A of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds securities that its participants (Direct Participants) deposit with
DTC. DTC also facilitates the settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities
transactions, such as transfers and pledges, in deposited securities through electronic computerised
book-entry changes in Direct Participants' accounts, thereby eliminating the need for physical
movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities
brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organisations.
DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (DTCC). DTCC
is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its
regulation subsidiaries. Access to the DTC System is also available to others such as securities brokers
and dealers, banks and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a
Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (Indirect Participants and, together with Direct
Participants, Participants). More information about DTCC can be found at www.dtcc.com and

www.dtc.org.

Under the rules, regulations and procedures creating and affecting DTC and its operations (the DTC
Rules), DTC makes book-entry transfers of Registered Notes among Direct Participants on whose
behalf it acts with respect to Notes accepted into DTC's book-entry settlement system (DTC Notes) as
described below and receives and transmits distributions of principal and interest on DTC Notes. The
DTC Rules are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Direct Participants and Indirect
Participants with which beneficial owners of DTC Notes (Owners) have accounts with respect to the
DTC Notes similarly are required to make book-entry transfers and receive and transmit such payments
on behalf of their respective Owners. Accordingly, although Owners who hold DTC Notes through
Direct Participants or Indirect Participants will not possess Registered Notes, the DTC Rules, by virtue
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of the requirements described above, provide a mechanism by which Direct Participants will receive
payments and will be able to transfer their interest in respect of the DTC Notes.

Purchases of DTC Notes under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which
will receive a credit for the DTC Notes on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual
purchaser of each DTC Note (Beneficial Owner) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct Participant's
and Indirect Participant's records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC
of their purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing
details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct Participant or
Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of
ownership interests in the DTC Notes are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates
representing their ownership interests in DTC Notes, except in the event that use of the book-entry
system for the DTC Notes is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all DTC Notes deposited by Participants with DTC are registered in
the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co, or such other name as may be requested by an
authorised representative of DTC. The deposit of DTC Notes with DTC and their registration in the
name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee effect no change in beneficial ownership. DTC has
no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the DTC Notes; DTC's records reflect only the
identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such DTC Notes are credited, which may or may
not be the Beneficial Owners. The Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their
holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants
to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will
be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may
be in effect from time to time.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the DTC Notes within an issue are being
redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in
such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to DTC
Notes unless authorised by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Issuer as soon as possible after the record date.
The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to
whose accounts the DTC Notes are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the
Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and interest payments on the DTC Notes will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee
as may be requested by an authorised representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the
Issuer or the relevant agent (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorised representative
of DTC), on the relevant payment date in accordance with their respective holdings shown in DTC's
records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and
customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers, and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC or the Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal and interest to DTC is the
responsibility of the Issuer, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants is the responsibility
of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of Direct
Participants and Indirect Participants.

Under certain circumstances, DTC will exchange the DTC Notes for definitive Registered Notes,
which it will distribute to its Participants in accordance with their proportionate entitlements and which
will be legended as set forth under "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions".

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its DTC Notes purchased or tendered, through its
Participant, to the relevant agent, and shall effect delivery of such DTC Notes by causing the Direct
Participant to transfer the Participant's interest in the DTC Notes, on DTC's records, to the relevant
agent. The requirement for physical delivery of DTC Notes in connection with an optional tender or a
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mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the DTC Notes are
transferred by Direct Participants on DTC's records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered
DTC Notes to the relevant agent's DTC account.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depositary with respect to the DTC Notes at any time by
giving reasonable notice to the Issuer or the relevant agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that
a successor depositary is not obtained, DTC Note certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depositary). In that event, DTC Note certificates will be printed and delivered to
DTC.

Since DTC may only act on behalf of Direct Participants, who in turn act on behalf of Indirect
Participants, any Owner desiring to pledge DTC Notes to persons or entities that do not participate in
DTC, or otherwise take actions with respect to such DTC Notes, will be required to withdraw its
Registered Notes from DTC as described below.

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg each holds securities for its customers and facilitates the
clearance and settlement of securities transactions by electronic book-entry transfer between their
respective accountholders. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg provide various services including
safekeeping, administration, clearance and settlement of internationally traded securities and securities
lending and borrowing. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg also deal with domestic securities
markets in several countries through established depository and custodial relationships. Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg have established an electronic bridge between their two systems across
which their respective participants may settle trades with each other.

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg customers are world-wide financial institutions, including
underwriters, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations. Indirect
access to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg is available to other institutions that clear through or
maintain a custodial relationship with an accountholder of either system.

Euroclear Sweden

Euroclear Sweden is a subsidiary within the Euroclear group of companies. It is authorised and
regulated by the Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority (Sw. Finansinspektionen) as a central
securities deposit within the meaning of the SFIA Act and as a clearing organisation within the
meaning of the Swedish Securities Market Act (2007:528 (as amended)).

Swedish Notes will be issued in registered, uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form with
Euroclear Sweden. No physical notes, certificates or other physical instruments (whether in global,
temporary or definitive form) will be issued in respect of the Swedish Notes. All transactions relating
to the Swedish Notes (such as issuance, sale and transfer, pledge arrangements and other dispositions
and redemptions) are executed as computerised book-entry registrations. Consequently, in order to
effect such entries holders must establish a book-entry account through a credit institution or a
securities firm acting as an account operator at Euroclear Sweden. More information regarding
Euroclear Sweden and its rules and operating procedures can be found at its internet web site at
https://www.euroclear.com/sweden/sv.html.

Euroclear Finland

Euroclear Finland holds securities for its customers and facilitates the clearance and settlement of
securities transactions by electronic book-entry transfer between its account holders. Euroclear Finland
offers clearing and settlement of securities denominated in EUR through one of its systems, as
applicable (RM or HexClear if the securities have been issued in the OM system). The systems support
different types of securities, equities and interest-bearing cash instruments as well as the respective
derivatives.
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Book-entry Ownership of and Payments in respect of DTC Notes

The Issuer may apply to DTC in order to have any Tranche of Notes represented by a Global
Registered Note Certificate accepted in its book-entry settlement system. Upon the issue of any such
Global Registered Note Certificate, DTC or its custodian will credit, on its internal book-entry system,
the respective principal amounts of the individual beneficial interests represented by such Global
Registered Note Certificate to the accounts of persons who have accounts with DTC. Such accounts
initially will be designated by or on behalf of the relevant Dealer. Ownership of beneficial interests in
such a Global Registered Note Certificate will be limited to Direct Participants or Indirect Participants,
including, in the case of any Regulation S Global Registered Note Certificate, the respective
depositories of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. Ownership of beneficial interests in a Global
Registered Note Certificate accepted by DTC will be shown on, and the transfer of such ownership will
be effected only through, records maintained by DTC or its nominee (with respect to the interests of
Direct Participants) and the records of Direct Participants (with respect to interests of Indirect
Participants).

Payments in U.S. dollars of principal and interest in respect of a Global Registered Note Certificate
accepted by DTC will be made to the order of DTC or its nominee as the registered holder of such
Note. In the case of any payment in a currency other than U.S. dollars, payment will be made to the
Exchange Agent on behalf of DTC or its nominee and the Exchange Agent will (in accordance with
instructions received by it) remit all or a portion of such payment for credit directly to the beneficial
holders of interests in the Global Registered Note Certificate in the currency in which such payment
was made and/or cause all or a portion of such payment to be converted into U.S. dollars and credited
to the applicable Participants' account.

The Issuer expects DTC to credit accounts of Direct Participants on the applicable payment date in
accordance with their respective holdings as shown in the records of DTC unless DTC has reason to
believe that it will not receive payment on such payment date. The Issuer also expects that payments by
Participants to beneficial owners of Notes will be governed by standing instructions and customary
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers, and will be the responsibility
of such Participant and not the responsibility of DTC, the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor (where the
Issuer is CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL) or any Agent. Payment of
principal, premium, if any, and interest, if any, on Notes to DTC is the responsibility of the Issuer.

Transfers of Notes Represented by Global Registered Note Certificates

Transfers of any interests in Notes represented by a Global Registered Note Certificate within
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and DTC will be effected in accordance with the customary
rules and operating procedures of the relevant clearing system and will be subject to the transfer
restrictions described herein. The laws in some States within the United States require that certain
persons take physical delivery of securities in definitive form. Consequently, the ability to transfer
Notes represented by a Global Registered Note Certificate to such persons may depend upon the ability
to exchange such Notes for Notes in definitive form. Similarly, because DTC can only act on behalf of
Direct Participants in the DTC system who in turn act on behalf of Indirect Participants, the ability of a
person having an interest in Notes represented by a Global Registered Note Certificate accepted by
DTC to pledge such Notes to persons or entities that do not participate in the DTC system or otherwise
to take action in respect of such Notes may depend upon the ability to exchange such Notes for Notes
in definitive form. The ability of any holder of Notes represented by a Global Registered Note
Certificate accepted by DTC to resell, pledge or otherwise transfer such Notes may be impaired if the
proposed transferee of such Notes is not eligible to hold such Notes through a Direct Participant or
Indirect Participant in the DTC system.

Subject to compliance with the transfer restrictions applicable to the Registered Notes described under
"Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions", cross-market transfers between DTC, on
the one hand, and directly or indirectly through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg accountholders,
on the other, will be effected by the relevant clearing system in accordance with its rules and through
action taken by the Registrar, the Fiscal Agent and any custodian with whom the relevant Global
Registered Note Certificates have been deposited.

On or after the Issue Date of the first Tranche of any Series, transfers of Notes of such Series between
accountholders in Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and transfers of Notes of such Series
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between participants in DTC will generally have a settlement date three business days after the trade
date (T+3). The customary arrangements for delivery versus payment will apply to such transfers.

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and DTC have each published rules and operating procedures
designed to facilitate transfers of beneficial interests in Global Registered Note Certificates among
participants and accountholders of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and DTC. However, they
are under no obligation to perform or continue to perform such procedures, and such procedures may
be discontinued or changed at any time. None of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor,
CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor the Agents and any Dealer will be responsible for any performance by
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC or their Direct Participants or Indirect Participants or
accountholders of their obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations nor will
any of them have any liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of
beneficial interests in the Notes represented by Global Registered Note Certificates or for maintaining,
supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial interests.

Euroclear UK and Ireland (CREST)

If so specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, indirect interest in Notes will be accepted for
settlement through Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited (formerly known as CRESTCo Limited)
(CREST). Following their delivery into a clearing system, interests in the relevant Notes may be
delivered, held and settled in CREST by means of the creation of CREST Depository Interests (CDIs)
representing the interests in the relevant Notes. The CDIs will be issued by the CREST Depository to
investors (CDI Holders) and will be governed by English Law.

The CDIs will represent indirect interests in the interest of CREST International Nominees Limited or
any other body appointed to act as nominee on behalf of the CREST Depository (the CREST
Nominee) in the relevant Notes. Pursuant to the documents setting out the legal relationship of CREST
with its users and Participants (the CREST Manual), Notes held in global form by a common
depositary may be settled through CREST, and the CREST Depository will issue CDIs. The CDIs will
be independent securities, constituted under English law which may be held and transferred through
CREST.

Interests in the relevant Notes will be credited to the CREST Nominee's account with Euroclear and the
CREST Nominee will hold such interests as nominee for the CREST Depository which will issue CDIs
to the relevant CREST participants.

Each CDI will be treated by the CREST Depository as if it were a relevant Note, for the purposes of
determining all rights and obligations and all amounts payable in respect thereof. The CREST
Depository will pass on to CDI Holders any interest or other amounts received by it as holder of the
relevant Notes on trust for such CDI Holder. CDI Holders will also be able to receive from the CREST
Depository notices of meetings of holders of the relevant Notes and other relevant notices issued by the
Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI) or the CGMFL Guarantor (where the
Issuer is CGMFL).

Transfers of interests in Notes by a CREST participant to a participant of Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg will be effected by cancellation of the CDIs and transfer of an interest in such Notes to
the account of the relevant participant with Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg.

The CDIs will have the same ISIN as the ISIN of the relevant Notes and will not require a separate
listing.

Prospective subscribers for Notes represented by CDIs are referred to Chapter 8 of the CREST
International Manual which contains the form of the CREST Global Deed Poll (the CREST Deed Poll)
to be entered into by the CREST Depository. The rights of the CDI Holders will be governed by the
arrangements between CREST, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, the Issuer, the CGMHI
Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI) or the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL)
including the CREST Deed Poll (in the form contained in Chapter 8 of the CREST International
Manual (as defined below)) executed by the CREST Depository. These rights may be different from
those of holders of Notes which are not represented by CDls.

CDIs will be delivered, held and settled in CREST, by means of the CREST International Settlement
Links Service (the CREST International Settlement Links Service). The settlement of the CDIs by
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means of the CREST International Settlement Links Service has the following consequences for CDI

Holders:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

()

(¢))

(h)

CDI Holders will not be the legal owners of the relevant Notes. The CDIs are separate legal
instruments from such Notes and represent an indirect interest in such Notes.

The relevant Notes themselves (as distinct from the CDIs representing indirect interests in
such Notes) will be held in account with a custodian. The custodian will hold the relevant
Notes through a clearing system. Rights in the relevant Notes will be held through custodial
and depository links through the appropriate clearing systems. The legal title to the relevant
Notes or to interests in such Notes will depend on the rules of the clearing system in or
through which the relevant Notes are held.

Rights under the relevant Notes cannot be enforced by CDI Holders except indirectly through
the intermediary depositories and custodians described above. The enforcement of rights
under the relevant Notes will therefore be subject to the local law of the relevant intermediary.
The rights of CDI Holders to the relevant Notes are represented by the entitlements against the
CREST Depository which (through the CREST Nominee) holds interests in the relevant
Notes. This could result in an elimination or reduction in the payments that otherwise would
have been made in respect of the relevant Notes in the event of any insolvency or liquidation
of the relevant intermediary, in particular where the relevant Notes held in clearing systems
are not held in special purpose accounts and are fungible with other securities held in the same
accounts on behalf of other customers of the relevant intermediaries.

The CDIs issued to CDI Holders will be constituted and issued pursuant to the CREST Deed
Poll. CDI Holders will be bound by all provisions of the CREST Deed Poll and by all
provisions of, or prescribed pursuant to, the CREST International Manual dated 3 January
2018 as amended, modified, varied or supplemented from time to time (the CREST
International Manual) and the CREST Rules dated 1 October 2018 as amended, modified,
varied or supplemented from time to time (the CREST Rules) (which, in each case, form part
of the CREST Manual) applicable to the CREST International Settlement Links Service and
CDI Holders must comply in full with all obligations imposed on them by such provisions.

Potential investors should note that the provisions of the CREST Deed Poll, the CREST
International Manual and the CREST Rules contain indemnities, warranties, representations
and undertakings to be given by CDI Holders and limitations on the liability of the Issuer, the
CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI) or the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer
is CGMFL) and the CREST Depository.

CDI Holders may incur liabilities resulting from a breach of any such indemnities, warranties,
representations and undertakings in excess of the money invested by them. The attention of
potential investors is drawn to the terms of the CREST Deed Poll, the CREST International
Manual and the CREST Rules, copies of which are available from CREST at 33 Cannon
Street, London EC4M 5SB or by calling +44 (0)20 7849 0000 or from the CREST website at
www.euroclear.com/site/public/EUI.

Potential investors should note CDI Holders may be required to pay fees, charges, costs and
expenses to the CREST Depository in connection with the use of the CREST International
Settlement Links Service. These will include the fees and expenses charged by the CREST
Depository in respect of the provision of services by it under the CREST Deed Poll and any
taxes, duties, charges, costs or expenses which may be or become payable in connection with
the holding of the CDIs through the CREST International Settlement Links Service.

Potential investors should note that none of the Issuers, the CGMHI Guarantor (where the
Issuer is CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL), any Dealer, any
distributor, any Paying Agent, the Registrar and any Transfer Agent will have any
responsibility for the performance by any intermediaries or their respective direct or indirect
participants or accountholders of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures
governing their operations.
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ERISA MATTERS

The U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (ERISA), prescribes rules
pertaining to the management of "plan assets" of pension and other employee benefit plans subject to
ERISA (ERISA Plans) and the appointment of parties who may manage such assets. Section 406 of
ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code prohibit ERISA Plans, as well as those plans that are not subject
to ERISA but that are subject to Section 4975 of the Code, such as individual retirement accounts and
Keogh plans (together with ERISA Plans, Plans), and certain investment entities in which Plans invest,
from engaging in certain transactions involving "plan assets" with persons who are "parties in interest"
under ERISA or "disqualified persons” under Section 4975 of the Code with respect to such Plans.

The rules and regulations applicable under ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code contain certain
"look-through" provisions. Under these provisions, if a Plan invests in an equity interest of an entity,
the assets of the Plan will be deemed to include not only the equity interest but also an undivided
interest in each of the underlying assets of the entity, unless an exception to the look-through rule were
to apply. An "equity interest” is defined under the applicable rules as any interest in an entity other
than an instrument treated as indebtedness under applicable local law that has no substantial equity
features. No assurance can be given that the Notes will not be treated as equity interests for these
purposes. The look-through rule would not apply if the Notes or the Issuer qualified for an exception
available under applicable rules. If a Plan were to acquire an interest in the Notes, and no exception to
the look-through rule were to apply, the Issuer would be regarded as a plan asset entity and the assets
and transactions would be attributed to the Plan investor. In this event, the Plan investor could be
viewed as having improperly delegated to the Issuer responsibility for the management of the Plan's
assets, and the transactions and holdings of the Issuer might involve violations of the prohibited
transaction rules of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code, as well as violations of other rules applicable
under ERISA.

In addition, certain governmental plans, church plans and non-U.S. plans (Non-ERISA Arrangement)
are not subject to such provisions of ERISA or the Code, but may be subject to similar rules under
other applicable laws or regulations.

Based on the foregoing, the Notes may not be acquired or held by a Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement
or any party acting on behalf of or using the assets of a Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement. Any
purchaser or subsequent transferee of the Notes or any interest therein will be deemed to have
represented by its purchase thereof that it is not a Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement and is not acting
on behalf of or using the assets of a Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement.
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE AND TRANSFER AND SELLING RESTRICTIONS

Subject to the terms and conditions contained in an amended and restated Dealership Agreement dated
on or about 25 January 2019, as supplemented by a First Supplemental Dealership Agreement dated 19
July 2019 (as further amended, supplemented and/or restated, the Dealership Agreement) between
Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor, the Arranger and the
relevant Dealers (as defined in the Dealership Agreement), the Notes will be offered on a continuous
basis by the Issuer to the Dealers. However, each Issuer reserves the right to sell Notes directly on its
own behalf to other entities and to offer Notes in specified jurisdictions directly to the public through
distributors, in accordance with all applicable rules and regulations. Notes may be resold at prevailing
market prices, or at prices related thereto, at the time of such resale, as determined by the Issuer or the
relevant Dealer. The Notes may also be sold by the Issuer through the Dealers, acting as agent of the
Issuer. The Dealership Agreement also provides for Notes to be issued in syndicated Tranches which
are jointly and severally underwritten by two or more Dealers.

The Issuer and the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI) or the CGMFL Guarantor (where
the Issuer is CGMFL) have agreed to indemnify the Dealers against certain liabilities in connection
with the offer and sale of the Notes issued by such Issuer, including in relation to liabilities arising
under the Securities Act. The Dealership Agreement may be terminated in relation to all the Dealers or
any of them by Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor, in
relation to itself and Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor
only, by any Dealer or the Arranger, at any time on giving not less than ten days' notice.

Transfer Restrictions

Transfer Restrictions in respect of Notes represented by Regulation S Global Registered Note
Certificates or Rule 144A Global Registered Note Certificates

As a result of the following restrictions, purchasers of Notes are advised to consult legal counsel
prior to making any purchase, offer, sale, resale or other transfer of such Notes.

Each purchaser of Notes or any beneficial interest therein represented by a Regulation S Global
Registered Note Certificate or a Rule 144A Global Registered Note Certificate, by its acquisition or
acceptance thereof will be deemed to acknowledge, represent and agree as follows (terms used in this
paragraph that are defined in Rule 144A or in Regulation S are used herein as defined therein):

€)] (i) in the case of Notes issued by Citigroup Inc., CGMHI or CGMFL and offered and sold in
reliance on Regulation S, as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, that such
purchaser is outside the United States and is not a U.S. person; or (ii) in the case of Notes
issued by Citigroup Inc. or CGMHI and offered and sold in reliance on Rule 144A, as
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, that such purchaser is a "qualified institutional
buyer" (a QIB), purchasing (or holding) the Notes for its own account or for the account of
one or more QIBs and it is aware that the offer and sale to it is being made in reliance on Rule
144A,

(b) that the Notes and, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee and where the
Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee are being offered and sold in a transaction
not involving a public offering in the United States within the meaning of the Securities Act,
and that the Notes, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee and the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee have
not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or any U.S. State securities laws
and may not be offered, sold, pledged or otherwise transferred within the United States or to,
or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except as set forth below with respect to Notes
issued by Citigroup Inc., or CGMHI, and offered and sold in reliance on Rule 144A,;

(c) (i) in the case of Notes issued by Citigroup Inc., CGMHI or CGMFL and offered and sold in
reliance on Regulation S, as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, that such
purchaser will not re-sell, pledge or otherwise transfer the Notes or any beneficial interest
therein at any time within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S.
person, other than the Issuer or any affiliate thereof; and (ii) in the case of Notes issued by
Citigroup Inc. or CGMHI and offered and sold in reliance on Rule 144A, as specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement, that such purchaser will not re-sell, pledge or otherwise
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transfer the Notes or any beneficial interest therein at any time other than to (1) the Issuer or
any affiliate thereof or (2) a person it reasonably believes is a QIB purchasing (or holding) for
its own account or for the account of one or more QIBs in a transaction meeting the
requirements of Rule 144A and in accordance with all applicable securities laws of the States
of the United States and any other jurisdiction;

it will, and will require each subsequent holder to, notify any purchaser of the Notes or any
beneficial interest therein from it of the resale restrictions referred to in paragraph (c) above;

that Notes offered and sold in the United States to QIBs in reliance on Rule 144A will be
represented by one or more Rule 144A Global Registered Note Certificates, and that Notes
offered and sold outside the United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on Regulation S will
be represented by one or more Regulation S Global Registered Note Certificates;

it is not, and its purchase and holding of the Notes is not made on behalf of or with "plan
assets” of, an employee benefit plan subject to Title I of the U.S. Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (ERISA), a plan, individual retirement account or
other arrangement subject to Section 4975 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the Code) or an employee benefit plan or plan subject to any laws, rules or
regulations substantially similar to Title | of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code;

that the Rule 144A Global Registered Note Certificates, will bear a legend to the following
effect:

"[NEITHER] THIS GLOBAL SECURITY [NOR THE CGMHI DEED OF GUARANTEE]
[HAS NOT BEEN] [HAS BEEN] NOR WILL BE REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S.
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE SECURITIES ACT) OR WITH ANY
SECURITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY OF ANY STATE OR OTHER
JURISDICTION OF THE UNITED STATES AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE
OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT AS SET
FORTH IN THE FOLLOWING SENTENCE. BY ITS ACQUISITION OF AN INTEREST
HEREIN, THE HOLDER (A) REPRESENTS THAT IT IS A "QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" (AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES
ACT) PURCHASING THE NOTES REPRESENTED HEREBY FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT
OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF ONE OR MORE QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS;
(B) AGREES THAT IT WILL NOT RESELL, PLEDGE OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER
THE NOTES REPRESENTED HEREBY AT ANY TIME OTHER THAN (1) TO THE
ISSUER OR ANY AFFILIATE THEREOF OR (2) TO A PERSON WHOM THE SELLER
REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER WITHIN THE
MEANING OF RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT PURCHASING FOR ITS
OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF ONE OR MORE QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS IN A TRANSACTION MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF
RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL
APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS OF THE STATES OF THE UNITED STATES AND
ANY OTHER JURISDICTION; (C) REPRESENTS THAT IT IS NOT, AND ITS
PURCHASE AND HOLDING OF THE NOTES IS NOT MADE ON BEHALF OF OR
WITH "PLAN ASSETS" OF, AN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN SUBJECT TO TITLE I OF
THE U.S. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT OF 1974, AS
AMENDED (ERISA), A PLAN, INDIVIDUAL RETIREMENT ACCOUNT OR OTHER
ARRANGEMENT SUBJECT TO SECTION 4975 OF THE U.S. INTERNAL REVENUE
CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED (THE CODE) OR AN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN OR
PLAN SUBJECT TO ANY LAWS, RULES OR REGULATIONS SUBSTANTIALLY
SIMILAR TO TITLE | OF ERISA OR SECTION 4975 OF THE CODE; AND (D) IT
AGREES THAT IT WILL DELIVER TO EACH PERSON TO WHOM AN INTEREST IN
THIS GLOBAL SECURITY IS TRANSFERRED A NOTICE SUBSTANTIALLY TO THE
EFFECT OF THIS LEGEND. THE NOTES [THE CGMHI DEED OF GUARANTEE]
[AND ANY ENTITLEMENT] DO NOT CONSTITUTE, AND HAVE NOT BEEN
MARKETED AS, CONTRACTS OF SALE OF A COMMODITY FOR FUTURE
DELIVERY (OR OPTIONS THEREON) SUBJECT TO THE U.S. COMMODITY
EXCHANGE ACT, AS AMENDED (THE CEA), AND TRADING IN THE NOTES HAS
NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING
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(h)

COMMISSION PURSUANT TO THE CEA. THE ISSUER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO
REQUIRE THE DELIVERY OF SUCH LEGAL OPINIONS, CERTIFICATIONS OR
OTHER EVIDENCE AS MAY REASONABLY BE REQUIRED IN ORDER TO
DETERMINE THAT ANY PROPOSED TRANSFER OF ANY INTEREST HEREIN IS
BEING MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE FOREGOING RESTRICTIONS, THE
SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS.

THIS GLOBAL SECURITY AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION (INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE FISCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT REFERRED TO
HEREIN) MAY BE AMENDED OR SUPPLEMENTED FROM TIME TO TIME,
WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF, BUT WITH NOTICE TO, THE HOLDERS OF
INTERESTS IN THIS GLOBAL SECURITY, GIVEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
CONDITIONS, TO MODIFY THE RESTRICTIONS ON AND PROCEDURES FOR
RESALES AND OTHER TRANSFERS OF INTERESTS IN THIS GLOBAL SECURITY
TO REFLECT ANY CHANGE IN APPLICABLE LAW OR REGULATION (OR THE
INTERPRETATION THEREOF) OR IN PRACTICES RELATING TO RESALES OR
OTHER TRANSFERS OF RESTRICTED SECURITIES GENERALLY. ANY HOLDER
OF AN INTEREST IN THIS GLOBAL SECURITY SHALL BE DEEMED, BY ITS
ACCEPTANCE OR PURCHASE THEREOF, TO HAVE AGREED TO ANY SUCH
AMENDMENT OR SUPPLEMENT (EACH OF WHICH SHALL BE CONCLUSIVE AND
BINDING ON SUCH HOLDER AND ALL FUTURE HOLDERS OF INTERESTS IN THIS
GLOBAL SECURITY AND ANY NOTES ISSUED IN EXCHANGE OR SUBSTITUTION
THEREFOR, WHETHER OR NOT ANY NOTATION THEREOF IS MADE HEREON).";

that the Regulation S Global Registered Note Certificates will bear a legend to the following
effect:

"[NEITHER] THIS GLOBAL SECURITY [NOR THE CGMHI DEED OF GUARANTEE]
[NOR THE CGMFL DEED OF GUARANTEE] [HAS NOT BEEN] [HAS BEEN] NOR
WILL BE REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED
(THE SECURITIES ACT) OR WITH ANY SECURITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY
OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF THE UNITED STATES, AND MAY
NOT AT ANY TIME BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR TO, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR
BENEFIT OF, U.S. PERSONS (AS SUCH TERMS ARE USED IN REGULATION S
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT), OTHER THAN THE ISSUER OR ANY AFFILIATE
THEREOF, AND PAYMENTS [AND/OR DELIVERIES] ON THE NOTES MAY NOT BE
MADE TO ANY U.S. PERSON OR ANY PERSON WITHIN THE UNITED STATES.
CERTIFICATION OF NON-U.S. BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP MAY BE REQUIRED AS A
CONDITION TO RECEIVING ANY PAYMENTS [AND/OR DELIVERIES] ON THE
NOTES. BY ITS ACQUISITION OF AN INTEREST HEREIN, THE HOLDER
REPRESENTS THAT IT IS NOT, AND ITS PURCHASE AND HOLDING OF THE
NOTES IS NOT MADE ON BEHALF OF OR WITH "PLAN ASSETS" OF, AN
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN SUBJECT TO TITLE I OF THE U.S. EMPLOYEE
RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT OF 1974, AS AMENDED (ERISA), A PLAN,
INDIVIDUAL RETIREMENT ACCOUNT OR OTHER ARRANGEMENT SUBJECT TO
SECTION 4975 OF THE U.S. INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED
(THE CODE) OR AN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN OR PLAN SUBJECT TO ANY
LAWS, RULES OR REGULATIONS SUBSTANTIALLY SIMILAR TO TITLE | OF
ERISA OR SECTION 4975 OF THE CODE. THE NOTES [AND THE CGMHI DEED OF
GUARANTEE] [AND THE CGMFL DEED OF GUARANTEE] [AND ANY
ENTITLEMENT] DO NOT CONSTITUTE, AND HAVE NOT BEEN MARKETED AS
CONTRACTS OF SALE OF A COMMODITY FOR FUTURE DELIVERY (OR OPTIONS
THEREON) SUBJECT TO THE U.S. COMMODITY EXCHANGE ACT, AS AMENDED
(THE CEA) AND TRADING IN THE NOTES HAS NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE U.S.
COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING COMMISSION PURSUANT TO THE CEA. THE
ISSUER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REQUIRE THE DELIVERY OF SUCH LEGAL
OPINIONS, CERTIFICATIONS OR OTHER EVIDENCE AS MAY REASONABLY BE
REQUIRED IN ORDER TO DETERMINE THAT ANY PROPOSED TRANSFER OF ANY
INTEREST HEREIN IS BEING MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE FOREGOING
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RESTRICTIONS, THE SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES
LAWS.";

Q) that it has been afforded an opportunity to request from the Issuer (and the CGMHI Guarantor
or the CGMFL Guarantor, if applicable) and to review all additional information it considers
to be necessary to verify the accuracy of the information contained in this Offering Circular
and the applicable Pricing Supplement or otherwise and it has not relied on the Dealers or any
person affiliated with the Dealers in connection with its investigation of the accuracy of such
information or its investment decision; and

() that the Issuer and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing
acknowledgements, representations and agreements and agrees that if any of such
acknowledgements, representations or agreements made by it are no longer accurate, it shall
promptly notify the Issuer; and if it is acquiring any Notes as a fiduciary or agent for one or
more accounts it represents that it has sole investment discretion with respect to each such
account and that it has full power to make the foregoing acknowledgements, representations
and agreements on behalf of each such account.

No sale of Notes in the United States in reliance on Rule 144A to any one purchaser will be for less
than U.S.$100,000 (or its foreign currency equivalent) in principal amount and no Note will be issued
in connection with such a sale in a smaller principal amount. If the purchaser is a non-bank fiduciary
acting on behalf of others, each person for whom it is acting must purchase at least U.S.$100,000 (or its
foreign currency equivalent) in principal amount of Registered Notes.

Transfer Restrictions in respect of Notes represented by Combined Global Registered Note
Certificates

As a result of the following restrictions, purchasers of Notes are advised to consult legal counsel
prior to making any purchase, offer, sale, resale or other transfer of such Notes.

Each purchaser of the Notes or any beneficial interest therein represented by a Combined Global
Registered Note Certificate, by its acquisition or acceptance thereof will be deemed to acknowledge,
represent and agree as follows (terms used in this paragraph that are defined in Rule 144A or in
Regulation S are used herein as defined therein):

€)] either (i) such purchaser is outside the United States and is not a U.S. person or (ii) such
purchaser is a "qualified institutional buyer" (a QIB), purchasing (or holding) the Notes for its
own account or for the account of one or more QIBs and it is aware that the offer and sale to it
is being made in reliance on Rule 144A,;

(b) that the Notes and the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee are being offered and sold in a transaction
not involving a public offering in the United States within the meaning of the Securities Act,
and that the Notes and the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee have not been and will not be
registered under the Securities Act or any U.S. State securities laws and may not be offered,
sold, pledged or otherwise transferred within the United States or to, or for the account or
benefit of, U.S. persons except to QIBs in compliance with Rule 144A,

(c) that such purchaser will not re-sell, pledge or otherwise transfer the Notes or any beneficial
interest therein at any time other than (i) to the Issuer or any affiliate thereof, (ii) in an
offshore transaction outside the United States to a person that is not a U.S. person or (iii) to a
person it reasonably believes is a QIB purchasing (or holding) the Notes for its own account
or for the account of one or more QIBs in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule
144A, in each case in accordance with all applicable securities laws of the States of the United
States and any other jurisdiction;

(d) it will, and will require each subsequent holder to, notify any purchaser of the Notes or any
beneficial interest therein from it of the resale restrictions referred to in paragraph (c) above;

(e it is not, and its purchase and holding of the Notes is not made on behalf of or with "plan
assets” of, an employee benefit plan subject to Title |1 of the U.S. Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (ERISA), a plan, individual retirement account or
other arrangement subject to Section 4975 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
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amended (the Code) or an employee benefit plan or plan subject to any laws, rules or
regulations substantially similar to Title | of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code;

that the Combined Global Registered Note Certificates in respect of the Notes will bear a
legend to the following effect:

"NEITHER THIS GLOBAL SECURITY NOR THE CGMHI DEED OF GUARANTEE HAS
BEEN NOR WILL BE REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED (THE SECURITIES ACT) OR WITH ANY SECURITIES REGULATORY
AUTHORITY OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF THE UNITED STATES
AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THE FOLLOWING SENTENCE. BY ITS
ACQUISITION OF AN INTEREST HEREIN, THE HOLDER (A) REPRESENTS THAT
EITHER (i) IT IS A "QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" (AS DEFINED IN RULE
144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) PURCHASING THE NOTES REPRESENTED
HEREBY FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF ONE OR MORE
QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS; OR (ii) IT IS OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES
AND IT IS N